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A MESSAGE FROM
THE CHAIRMAN
EMERITUS

This is my last Chairman’s letier. | retired as Chairman of the Board at the
Annua! Stockholders' Meeting in February 2008 after 18 rewarding years
in this role.

| have handed over the reins to Gary Rogers,
an exceptional business leader who has
added great vaiue to our Board deliberations
over the past 10 years. Gary recently
retired as the Chairman and CEQ of Dreyer's
Grand Ice Cream after building it into the
world’s largest ice cream company. He fully
understands owr business challenges and
opportunities and has actively participated
in developing our future strategies. With his
background of success, Gary will be a great partner to John Anderson as
he drives profiiadle growih.

Although | no fonger will be engaged in the day-to-day operations of the
company, | will continue to be involved as a member of the Board and
Chairman Emeritus. Afier 35 years with the company, including 15 years
as CEO, the time is right for me to make this transition. The business is
strong, and we have capable leadership in place to guide its future success.
} look forward to spending more time with my family and being mare
actively involved in community and philanthropic interests.

Levi Strauss & Co. is making solid progress under John Anderson's
leadership. A longtime LS&C0. employee, John has a deep-seated passion
for the company and its brands. In his first year as CEQ, he has already
put his distinctive stamp on the business by driving the developmeni
of innavative products and encouraging the adoption of market-leading
concepts and products across the company. Later in this anaual report,
John reports on the progress we made during 2007, the challenges we
addressed and the key strategic and operational initiatives that are driving
enhanced performance.




It is gratifying to be leaving the company in the hands of leaders who
strongly believe in our core vaiues of empathy, originality, integrity and
courage. Both Gary and John are committed to our operating philosophy
of "Profits through Principles,” believing that a company can be both
commercially successful and a distinguished corporate citizen at the
same time. This annual report includes a comprehensive summary of
our corporaie citizenship activities during 2007 and how we will buitd on
those efforts in the future,

Levi Strauss & Co. has made much progress during the past few years.
I want to express my deep appreciation for the ongoing suppert of
our shareholders and investors as we have steadily strengthened the
company.

L also would like ta thank our Board of Directors for their helpful counsel and
commitment. During the past year we augmented ihe Board's expertise
by adding two accomplished members: Vanessa Castagna, whe brings
more than 30 years of retail experience, and Stephen Neal, Chairman of a
major law firm and an expert in corporale governance.

Regrettably, Pat House decided to step down from the Board at the end
of the fiscal year to focus on other professional and civic activities. While
her contributions were wide-ranging, | am especially appreciative of Pat’s
leadership of the Board's Human Resources Committee.

Finally, want to thank our employees for their dedication and contributions
to the company, its brands and community service. Throughout my
career they have been a source of inspiration and innumerable fasting
friendships.

Sincesely,

e

ROBERT D. HAAS

Chaitmen Emeriius




A MESSAGE
FROM THE CEO

In 2007, we made sofid progress in our financial performance and in
strengthening the operational capabilities of the company. We grew our
revenues and delivered considerable profit while reducing debt — which
gives us the means to invest in future growth initiatives. The company is
the strongest it has been in many years.

QOur strategies of upgrading products, expanding distribution, capitalizing
on our global footprint and making our operations more efficient are
warking. Looking akead to 2008, we will need to wark even harder to
execuie these strategies in the face of urceriain economic conditions
confronting our business, particutarly in the United States.

Grow the Caompany

In 2007, we generated full-year revenue and profit growth, although the
second half of the year proved more chailenging with marketplace conditions
weakening in the United States and key mature markets in Asia as the year
unfolded. '

Our net revenues for the fiscal year grew 4 pe-cent, helped substantially by
stranger foreign cursencies. We are delivering more income as a result of
our focus on lowering debt and interest expense. Income before income
{ax increased 9 percent to 5376 mitlion compared to fiscal 2006. Net
income improved by 93 percent to $460 million, substantially driven by a
$215 million tax benefit that resulied in part from our improved business
performance. For ihe year, we paid down mare than $250 rillion of debt.
Our total debt has now fallen to $1.96 billion, the lowest level in more than
a decade.

The three agencies that rate our debt recognized our improved financial
strength. in August, Moody’s Investors Service, Standard & Poor’s and Fiich
Ratings all upgraded our debt ratings or ratings outlook. This healthier
financial “scorecard” helped secure lower interest rates when we renanced
our high-interest 12.25 percent bonds, saving the company millions of
dallars arnually.




NET REVENUE '

INCOME

We made significant strides in 2007 to strengthen each of our three
regional businesses. Europe was a standout performer, ending the year
with a solid 13 percent net revenue increase that also included the benefit
of foreign currency exchange rates. The region bounced back from a
touch year in 2006 by successfully repositioning the Levi’s” brand in the
premium segment of the market and upgrading its retail network. Asia
Pacific faced several challenges in its largest mature markets — Japan and
Korea — including significant excess inventory. We put new leadership in
place in Japan, and continue to focus on the issues pressuring our mature
markeis. The region grew again in 2007, helped substantially by the rapid
growth of emerging markets such as China and India.

in North America, the Levi’s® brand grew again for the second consecutive
year. The Dockers® business alsc grew slightly for the year, although the
weakening U.S. retail environment slowed the brand's performance in the
second half of the year. The Signature by Levi Strauss & Co.™ brand had
a difficult vear, as expected. The brand is being overhauled to align with
our mass retail customers’evolving apparel merchandising strategies. The
plans we have developed with them will give the brand a fresh fook and a
new presence at retail for fall 2008,

Win with “"Product, Product, Product”

The company’s most significant achievement for 2007 is the worldwide growth
of the Levi's® brand. Itis our largest business and an important indicator of our
progress. People ask me what has driven the resurgence of the Levis® brand
and my answer is always: “product, product and more product” Among all the
initiatives we are pursuing 1 strengthen the company, creating great producis
is the most critical 1o our success. in 2007, our teams around the worlc worked
relentlessly t upgrace and extend our product ranges, making our assoriments
more premium, innovative and stylish. Their efforts are paying off.

The Levis® brand established itself as a leader in slim- and skinny-fit jeans
araund the world. The brand also strengthened its presence in the premium
and super-premium jeans categories. In North America, our Levis® Capital
£™ range made us & formicable competitor in the super-premium jeans
category at upscale retailers. In Europe, the super-premium Blue range helped
to reestablish the brand's credibility as a premium jeans pusveyor across the
region. Asia Pacific, where most of the Levis® range competes in the premium
and super-premium categories, further cemented its upscale position by ralling
out innovative, high-end new collections, such as Levi's® Copper™, Levi's® Lady
Style™ and Levis® Redloop.

The Dockers® brand's improved sales in 2007 also reflect its upgraded product
range worldwide. The men's business in North America continued to buildon
its four wearing occasions strategy — work, dress, weekend and golf — offering
consumer-refevant, head-to-toe lifestyle products with functional benefits,
such as Iron Free Cotton Khaki pants and lron Free shirts. But the big story for
the brand was the streng resurgence of the women’s business in North America.
A completely new product range — including a revitalized core offering - and
a constant rhythm of on-trend seasonal fashion products resulted in healihy
double-digit sales increases for the Dockers® women's business.




Adopt, Adapt, Invent - Ta Grow

One of our competitive advantages is our global footprint. We sell our
praducts in more than 114 countries. in 2007, we put processes and
pecple in place to enable us to better leverage our tremendous scale.
Our “adopt, adapt, invent” philosophy encourages teams fo share their
best ideas, products and praciices across the company. The Dockers®
brand is a great example of this. Although still a relatively smalt brand
outside of the United States, Dockers® teams around the world have come
together under a consistent lifestyle positioning ~ Dockers® an Francisco.
Operating from this common platform, the teams ave systematically
sharing product ideas, merchandising concepts and marketing pragrams,
leveraging the very best from each region. This approach lets us take full
advantage of our scale and talented peaple in every region of the world.

We are embedding our “adopt, adopt, invent” approach across our brands
and businesses. The result is greater speed o market, consistency and
efficiency worldwide.

Sell Where People Shop

Making great products doesa't matier if you can't get them in front of the
right consumers. Throughout 2007, we invested considerably in expanding

andimproving the availability of our products. We added new branded retail
stores — both company-operated and franchised — and focused on building
our business with our traditienal retail customers, We recognize that selling
in both traditional retail stores and our own branded stores is essential 1o
grow the company.

In the United States, we created separate wholesale and retail divisions for
the Levis® brand, each with their own leadership and teams dedicated to
building these distinct businesses. Both divisions contributed to the brand's
growth in 2007. We also opened our fisst company-operated Dockers®
Stores in the United States, giving the brand a venue to merchandise the
breadth of its lifestyle offering for men and women,

In Furope, we upgraded and expanded our Levis® franchise retaif network
across the region i better reflect the brand’s premium positioning. This
improved retail presence was a key to the region’s subsiantially improved
results in 2007, Asia Pacific also has expanded its setail network, including
opening branded Levis® and Dockers® Flagship stores in key consumer
markets throughout the region.

Worldwide, we now have more than 1,500 brand-dedicated stores,
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including more than 1,300 franchised stores and approximately 200
company-operated stores. We will continuie to expand and enhance our
retail presence worldwide in 2008.

Enable Growth and Productivity with Systems

We continue to upgrade our global systems to make the company more
productive, eliminate unnecessary work and reduce complexity. We have
implemented SAP in 12 countries across Asia Pacific and will “go live” in the
United States by the end of the first quarter of fiscat 2008. Furope will follow
in 2009. In addition, we are rolling out new retail systems in our own store
network,

New technalogy also helps our emplayees share information and work more
collaboratively around the world. In 2007, we introduced a new global portal
platiorm that gives empioyees a strategic communications tool, enabling
them 1o collaborate across teams, regions and the world. This approach fosters
innovation, and inczeases our produciivity and speed to market,

| am encouraged by the company’s finandial sirenqth and progress in 2007.
At the same time, | am realistic about the tough challenges ahead for us in
2008, given the weaker economic conditions in the United States and our
mature Asian markets at the start of the new year. Qur performance in 2007
demonstrates that we are on the right strategic path. Qur focus now is on
executing our plans with excellence.

Page s

twant tothank our shareholders and investors for their support, as well as our
Board of Directors for their quidance during my first year as CEC, | especially
want to thank Bob Haas for his encouragement and counsef this past year. |
have known Boh for nearly three decades, and ) wish him the very best as he
focuses more time on his family and phitanthropic endeavors. | loak forward
10 continuing o work with him in his new sole as a member of the Board.

Lastly, 19 like to thank our employees for their hard work and commitment
during a challenging year. Not only are they making the (ompany stronger
commercially, they also are upholding the core values and commitment to
responsible business practices that underpin this great company. As you will
see in the corporate citizenship write-up in this report, the legacy of Levi
Strauss fives on thanks to our employees throughout the world,

Sincerely,
i M.

JOHN ANDERSON

President and
{hief Bxecutive Officer
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Great brands and businesses are built by

consistently providing quality products and services

and by earning the trust of consumers, customers,

investors, employees and communities through
responsible, progressive and accountable business
practices. Moreover, as business leaders we have
the obligation, both individually and collectively, to
make our enterprise not only a source for economic
wealth, but also a force for positive social change
in the conduct of our business. This principle of
responsible commercial success is embedded in
our 155-year experience and continues to anchor

how we operate today.
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Our corporate Web site, levistrauss.com, contains a wealth of information on Levi Strauss
& Co’s (LS&C0.) corporate citizenship programs. On topics ranging from responsible
sourcing practices and community involvement to environmental protection,
fevistrauss.com provides detailed descriptions of what we do, how we do it and why,
This section of our annual report is intended to supplement that infermation, and
provides a summary of our noteworthy corporate citizenship efforts from 2007.

SUPPLY CHAIN PRACTICES

We work at the factory, community and public poticy levels to ensure that the people
making our products are treated with dignity and respect, and work in safe and healthy
conditions.

Factory Level

In 1991, we developed and implemented our Terms of Engagement (TOE), a set of
quidelines that cover specific business practices of ur suppliers, sich as fair emplayment,
worker health and safety, freedom of association, and environmental practices. We
were the first global company to put in place a supplier code of conduct and since then
have annually assessed each of our contract suppliers and subcontractors 1o ensure
their practices are meeting our standards. In recent years we have come 1o realize that
while the monitoring approach is helpful in ensuring that suppliers are meeting our
expeciations in the present, it is not necessarily a sustainable approach to this work.
Because we seek 10 achieve a state with our suppliers where they have embedded
responsible business practices into all operations (human resources, health and safety,
legal compliance, environmental practices, etc.} and are requlasly mezting our standards
without the need for frequent and reqular auditing, we know that we need to develop
Creative and practical solutions Lo facilitate a fundamental shift in responsibitity for
workplace standards. During the past year, on our own and in collaboration with other
stakeholders, we made progress en initiatives that we believe will help take us beyond
monitoring and create additional meaningful change at the factory level.

We firmly believe that by working with other brands in shared factories we can have a
measurable, positive impact on factory working conditiens and at the same time reduce
administrative burcens for our contractors. We teck the first step in our work on brand
collaboration in late 2005 when we disclosed the names and locations of our contract
suppliers and then reached out to other apparel brands, suggesting we explore how we
might work together in any shared factories. In 2006 we began working with brands
to develop the program and ai the close of 2007 we were working with 15 US. and
European brands in 135 facteries — sharing monitoring results and remediation plans,
conducting joint monitoring, and coordinating training on capacity-huilding.

In order to support this work, we initiated relationships with Fair Factories Clearinghouse
and SEDEX {Suppliers Ethical Data Exchange), organizations that provide Web-based
data systems for companies to input and share factory audit data with other brands and
organizations identified 1o help improve conditions at specific faciories,




Because we are sharing factory audit information with other brands, we have significantly more
information available on many of the suppliers from which we source. As expectad, with the
additional data we are seeing more issues at factories that require attentien. And because
we have been able to reduce the number of audits in each factory by about 25 percent, we
have been able to devote additional resources to remediation of all identified issues. We are
pleased to be able to divert resources in these factories from the audit process t¢ focus on
real improvement, and we are encouraged that our program has attracted additional brands
and doubled the number of participating faciories in 2007 compared to 2006. We believe
that brand collaboration on labor standards will yield performance improvements in factories
as the program matures, and are proud to be on the front line of this important industry
development.

In the past year, we alsa significantly advanced our work to integrate our TOE program more
deeply within our business. We began this work in 2005, assigning ratings to suppliers based
on their overall TOE performance, change in performance over previous years, timeliness in
completing corrective action plans and number of repeat violations, and then weighting the
ratings with other key factors in determining the suppliers with whom we would place future
oiders.

We have tearned over time that sometimes our own business practices can have unintended
consequences on a supplier’s TOE performance — a sudden rush order or last-minute design
change can affect a supplier’s abifity to meet our own sirict standards. In 2007, we sought

10 take our business integration work to the next levet and create ownership of the TOE
principles among the functions in LS&C0’s go-to-market process that are closely connecied
with the manufacturing process. We identified where in our organization we could have the
greatest effect at the factory level and worked with leaders in these targeted functions to raise
awareness of our own potential impacts on TOE performance and soficit feedback on how 10
develop business-hased solutions that would help our supoliers meet our TOE standards.

fn 2008, we will pilot a program that paiis representatives from product-deveiopment,
produci-management and other supplier touch-points with TOE managers to ensure mutual
understanding of each other's work and critical results. With the business integration progra,
we are working toward developing sustainable business practices that advance both our
business and our responsible manufacturing objectives.

We also continued to work with suppliers on our supplier ownership program, which is focused
on building suppliers’ management sysiems and capabilities so they can maintain our TOE
standards in the nommal course of business. We had piloted the program with a supplier in
Turkey in 2005, and based on our findings, we developad tools and a program design to bring
to other key suppliers. In 2007, we implemented our supalies ownership program with 20 key
suppliers. We recognize that the program is a long-term proposition for change. However, we
are confident that the management-systems and capacity-buiiding approach will prove 10 be
one way we are able io create positive change at the factory level.

Community Level LEVI

Levi Strauss & Co. and the Levi Strauss Foundation {LSF) support [ N Bchkaetas
our responsible sourcing work by making grants te innovative local, FOUNDATION

“t would like to thank Levi Strauss
& Co. for their leadership role in
creating the impetus for brand
collaborations in our factories.
Brand collaboration has been

a goal for the footwear and
apparel industry since the early
1990s, with various “top-down”
approaches pursued. For the first
time, collaboration is happening
at the factory level, crossing over
challenges previously viewed as
barriers. In the pilots that we
conducted last year with Levi
Strauss & Co. in India and Turkey,
we found that factory commitment
and responsiveness improved as
well as cost savings and efficiencies
for both the brands and the
factories - fewer audits, shared
remediation resources, consistent
messaging, aligned expectations. ..
all improving the fikelihood of
sustainable change. With these
successes, we are eager to engage
in more factory collaborations with
Levi Strauss & Co. and other brands
of like-minded philosophies,
approaches, and commitment to
improve the fives of our workers.”

Gordon Peterson
Vice President of CSR
The Timberland
Company




regional or global nonprofit organizations that focus on building capacity among
local legal and advocacy organizations. We focus on strengthening labor and
human rights protections in the apparel indusiry, and improving working and living
conditions for apparel workers in communities where our products are made,

When we began our workers' rights grantmaking program in 1999, we
quickly learned that in order to have the greatest effect, our focus needed to
be geographicaily tailored, taking into consideration the particular needs of
communities, socio-political frameworks that may keep people in poverty,
shifting trace-preference programs and potential for buy-in to innovative anti-
poverty strategies. In Latin America, for example, we continue o fund fabor
rights training and education, but we are also investing in asset building and
financial-literacy programs to address the impact of the expiration of the Muiti
Fiber Arrangement (MFA) on that region. In Haiti, HIV/AIDS protection and
prevention is 2 ¢ritical component of our workers' rights grantmaking, which also
includes microfinance and financiat-iteracy programs. And in Ching, a country
with 2 sigrificant female migrant laber force and generally weak enforcement
of the labor laws promulgated to protect it, we fund lega aid programs that are
taking on issues especially pertinent to the needs of migrant women workers.

Through our grantmaking in 2007, we sought to improve the tives of
workers by:

« educating workers and factory management on fabor rights and
responsibilities;

promoting access ¢ health services and information (hygiene,
reproductive health, HIV/AIDS);

promoting access to financial-literacy training and financial services
10 build assets;

advancing public policy and creating instituticnal change; and

promoting access to legal aid for warkplace issues.

Recognizing the strategic importance of workers’ rights grantmaking in our
overall responsible sourcing framework, in 2007, LS&C0. and LSF initiated new
relationships with severat nongovernmental organizations focused on epparet
workers and fow-wage eamers in the communities where our products are
made. One new and noteworthy LSF grantee is the Apparel Lesotho Alliance to
Fight AIDS (ALAFA). Still inits infant stages, ALAFA grew out of the major apparel
employers association in Lesothe to provide a comprehensive response to the
pandernic in that country’s appare! and textite industry. ALAFA aims (o provide
apparel workers with education and preveniion information, voluntary testing
and counseling, and treatment for peaple who test positive for HIV including
antiretroviral mecications when necessary. The 2007 LSF grant will fund ALAFA
to conduct peer-led interventions to address HiV/AIDS among garment workers
with a curricutum focused on gender inequatity, gender-hased viclence, stigma
and discrimination, and life s«ills.

In Cambodia, an important sourcing country for L5&C0., more people work in
the garment industry than any other i the country's private sector, Like many
countries in theregion, legal and government systems are refativety weak, making




Py

it difficuli for low-wage workers to have their issues heard by a court or ather government
institution. in 2005, LS&CO. provided seed money (o The Arbitration Council, a nonpartisan,
nenprofit organization that facilitates the effective resolution of industrial labor disputes
through diatogue with employers, unions and government officials. In 2007, LSF made an
additional iwo-year grant to the Arbitration Council and remains the organization's only
corporate funder.

To date, the Arbitration Council has received and settled nearly 500 individual labor disputes,
more than 90 percent of which had come from the garment industry. With 30 arbitraiors
evenly represeniing employers, unions and government, the Council has become widely
regarded as one of the country’s most successful, effective and transparent legat institutions,
and the only forum in Cambodia where employers and unions can turn 1o have their labor
disputes resclved quickly and fairly.

For & complete tist of our workers'rights grants, visit:
http://wwuw.levistravss.com/Downtaads/Grants. pdi

Public Policy Level

£S&CO. works closely with governmenis, noagoveinmental crganizations, industry
associations and other stakeholders to strengthen implementation and enforcement of labor
faws in countries where we have a business presence. Throughout 2007, LS&C0. continued its
advocacy for labor provisions and enforcement mechanisms to be incfuded in alf multilateral
and bilateral free-trade agreements (FTA). After seven years of strang advacacy en this front,
we were pleased that in May, the U.S. Congress and the U.S. frade Representative reached a
positive agreement &0 ensure that all FTAs negotiated by the United States include provisions
committing parties to adhere to the 1998 International Labor Organization Declaraticn on
the Fundamental Principles and Rights at Work.

Qur participation and leadership in important multistakeholder initiatives increased in 2007.
LS&CO. continues to chair the Americas Working Group of the MFA Forum, an open network of
organizations including representaiives of brands/retaiters, irade urions, non-governmenta
organizations and international institutions committed to warking collaboratively to address
worker rights and apparel-industry competitiveness after the expiration of textite and apparel
quotas in January 2005. .S&C0. was appointed to the organization’s executive committee
representing U.S. brands and we began active pasticipation in new MFA Forum initiatives in
Mexico, Morocco and Nicaragua (in addition to our existing participation in the 8angladesh
and Lesotho initiatives).

We remain engaged in the internationat Labor Qrganization’s (L0} Better Factories Cambodia
project, which addresses capacity building, monitoring and )
remediation, and worker rights education in Cambodian 4“‘;‘ LD
apparel factories. In 2007, we began pasticipating in the Betier ST
Work program, a unique partnership between the ILO and the Cambodia
International Finance Corporation that launched in February 2007. The program leverages the
successful Better Factories Cambodia framewerk to build cooperation between internationa!
buyers, governments, and employer and worker organizations in
order to develop scalable and susiaingble solutions to improve labor
standards and competitiveness in global supply chains. LS&C0. is
currently participating in Better Work pilots in Vietnam and Lesatho.

v/
THEGLOBAL Building on cur membership and participation in the United Nations
con Giobal Compact, in 2007, LS&CO. joined the Compact's CEQ Water

A boy in Argent 2.7 holds o brockzre from Levi Sirauss Foundation
granize Q1o e r-2d0 @l Sur abou? the arqoruzation’s igi-iraoe
supply chawn,

“Support from the Levi Strauss
Foundation and Levi Strauss and Co.
represents an important milestone
for the Arbitration Councif. It

proves that major international
garment manufacturers want

to protect workers and improve
working conditions in Cambodia by
supporting fast, fair and transparent
resolutions to labor disputes.”

Men Nimmith
Executive Director
The Arbitration
Council Foundation
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“Citizenship leadership means
advancing sustainability in
tomorrow's markets, beyond one’s
direct footprint. Such leadership
requires innovative, collaborative
endeavour, exemplified by Levi
Strauss & Co.’s engagement in the
MFA Forum, which is advancing
responsible competitiveness in

the apparel sector by blending
innovative public policies,
investments, and business
strategies and practices — grounded
in fabour and civil society and
labour engagement and design.”

Simon Zadek
Chief Executive,
AccountAbility
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Mandate. As a company that recognizes sustainable water use as a critical emerging issue

“inourindustry and has pioneered water quality standards in the apparel sector supply chain,

we look forward 1o working with other mandate signatories and the Compact to shate best
practices, improve on our current work, and encourage others in our sector 1o meaningfully
address the issues of water scarcity and sanitation.

ENVIRONMENT, HEALTH AND SAFETY

We have long believed that environmental stewardship is a ctical component of a company’s
corporate citizenship profle, and have been a leader in addressirg environmental issues associated
with apparel production. Our notable achievenents in this areainclude our groundbreaking Global
Effluent Guidefines {GEG), strict water quality quidelines that all contract laundries and finishing
facilities must comply with, and our sector-leading Restricted Substance List (RSL), which ensures
our preducts are manufactured in a responsible and environmentally sensitive manner.

In 2007, we continued to administer and improve
our RSL program, and increased the frequency
of our diafoque with contractors and chemicat
suppliers in light of product safety issues that Environmeat,
\ Flealth and Safety
resulted in numerous product recalls acioss the Handhook
food and consumer goods sectors. And following
up on the results our 2006 GEG Validation Initiative,
where we visited each of our laundries and finishing
facilities to independently sample their wastewater
and examine their sysiems, we worked on-site with
facilities that required systems improvernent in order
to comply fully with our standads. To further assist
our suppliers and other stakeholders interested in
our environment, health and safety (EHS) compliance programs, we developed a comprehensive
Environment, Health and Safety handbook that provides a management systems approach and
detailed information on how 10 meet the EHS requirements of our Terms of Engagement, including
the GEG. The EHS Handbaok is published en our Web site, www. levistrauss.com.

We also continued o develop Levis® eco, our US. and European products made with organic
cotton. In both regions we added new fits and finishes to the eco line to appeal 10 a broader
audience of concesned consumers and huild demand for the line. We are also looking at expanding
our sustainable products offerings beyond arganic cotton to indude new fibers and blends that
demand less from the environment and products made from recycled materials.




Todate, we have focused on the production and design processes to address
environmental sustainability in cur work. Looking at eur citizenship goals
in the area of the environment, we know that we must look beyond
design and production to assess the potential effects of aur business on
the environment. Accardingly, in 2007, we began to pay special attention
t0 the issue of climate change — an environmental concern not typicaily
associated with apparel production, but one that we recognize is pressing
and that every corporate citizen has a respensibility to explore.

To betterunderstand our impact on environmentalissues including cimate
change, we engaged in important data-gathering and benchmarking
exercises in 2007. '

- We completed a “cradle-to-grave” lifecycle assessment (LCA) of
select high-volume products that provides us with important
insights relating 10 the environmental impact of our products ~
from the cotien fieids thraugh production and consumer use and
then disposal — looking at impacts related to air emissions, water
usage, waste production and other areas.

We established our 2006 greenhouse-gas {GHG) inventory for
owned/leased-and-operated facilities (headquarters, distribution
centers, retail stores, data centers, sales offices, etc.) in North
and South America and are in the pracess of gathering the same
information {rom other regions in order to set globat baselines and
targets for future emissions reductions. The Americas data was
verified by a third-party consultant relying on the Worid Resources
Institute’s GHG Protocol and protocols from the California Climate
Action Registry.

We are also in the process of conducting a Facifities Environmental
Impact Assessment (FEIA) to feam about the ovesall environmental
impacts (water, waste, air emissions, chemicals, materials, etc.} of
our owned/leased-and-operated facilities around the world.

Findings from this research, which we expect to complete in early 2008,
along with results from our 2006 GEG Vaiidation Initiative will inform
a comprehensive enviionmental strategy for the company. Once the
strategy is n place, we will develop 3 roadmap for moving forward with
clear reduction and conservation targets and objectives, and programs
designed to ergage critical stakeholders in helping us meet them.

We will also continue to work with partner organizations including the

World Resources Institutes Green Power Group — California Affiliates, an

organization that is exploring

@']re e n the development and use of

TOWER GROUTP renewable energy for commercial

and industrial operations, and

Business for Sacial Responsibility’s Apparel Water Quality Werking Group

1o learn from and share environmental-stewardship best practices with
other concerned companies.

Vastewater goes through a se+25 of treatmenty i (hing {above)
Treated waier (below) 55 recy. ed 'nio the focinry g ofsa used 19
irngaie Ipadscoping
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Enrey fitered 120 water fiom your own efitable
coa:ungr and help BOOT THE BOTTLE trom Plazalte

An Employee-led, Management-
endorsed Resource Conservation
Initiative at our San Francisco
Headquarters

Picking up on a behavior of our new CEQ John Anderson,
who, upon his arrival in San Francisco, did away with
bottled water in the executive suite in favor of a pitcher
of filtered water, [S&C0.s Community Involvement
Team for the Environment ((IT) launched a campaign
to reduce waste at Levi’s Plaza by educating employees
on the environmental impacts associated with the
manufacturing, transportation and disposal of plastic
water bottles. The CIT earned the full support of senior
management and approached the facifities department
and the cafeteria, both of which were interested and
eager to participate. Facilities worked to ensure that
the buildings’ water filtering systems had the capacity
required to support a wholesale move away from bottled
water, and worked with their supplier to remove bottled
water fromvending machines at the Plaza. The cafeteria
agreed to phase bottled water out of their offerings
to employees directly and in their catering business.
Within a few weeks, bottled water was unavailable in
the Plaza. The action resulted in a greater awareness
of our day-to-day, personal environmental impact
among the general employee population, and [S&CO.
eliminated more than 250 cases of bottled water per
month from its consumption and waste streams.
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DIVERSITY AND PROGRESSIVE
EMPLOYMENT PRACTICES

LS&(C0. is a consumer-driven apparel company. We market our brands in
more than 110 countries around the world, and our consumers include a
broad spectrum of ages, tifestyles and cultures. To understand and address
differing consumer needs, drive innovation and achieve our goals, we
employ and mentor a diverse workforce at all levels of the organization,
We value and depend on diversity, and we respeci, embrace and draw
upon the varying backgrounds, knowledge, points of view and talents of
each other.

As colleagues, we are committed and accountable lo fosiering a culture
where diversity and inciusion thyive — a viork environment that provides
every employee with the opportunity to achieve their potential and to
participate fully in helping the company build its brands and generaie
sustained, profitable growth,

I 2007, we continued to work to make LS&C0. a place where empfoyees
feel supported in the workplace, have the tools they need to advance and
are excited to contribute to high-performing teams.

Diversity and Equal Treatment for All Employees

In order to see that all empioyees at LS&C0. anc nationwide can truly be
treated equally under the law, LS&CQ. pubtic policy staff continued their
efforts to lobby for the passage of the Employment Non-Discrimination
Act (ENDA) to prohibit workplace discrirrination on the basis of sexual
orientation, and the Domestic Partner Health Benefits Equity Act to
equalize federal tax treatment of health benefits for married couples and
domestic partners. For ENDA supporters, 2007 was a very encouraging
year. The legislation passed in the LLS. House of Representatives, but the
version that passed excluded transgender individuals. LS&CO.is co-chair
of a coalition that will continue 1o work with legistators to pass an all-
inclusive ENDA, and will continue to advocate strongly for passage of the
Domestic Partner Health Benefits Equity Actin 2008

For the fifth consecutive year, LS&(0. received 2 perfect score of 100
percent on the Hunan Rights Campaign’s (HRC) Corporate Equality Index,
an annual report that rates U.S. businesses on how they are treating
and responding to gay, lesbian, bisexual and transgender employees.
HRC aiso honored LS&CO. with a

Corporate Equality Award at its San |

francisco dinner event, recognizing E ; BEST

the company’s extraordinary record of  [REXERS PLACES TO WORK

support for the LGBT community. '

2008 for GLBT Equality
HIV/AIDS Treatment and  160% CORPGRATE EQUALITY INDEX
Care Program

LS&C0. is widely viewed as a leader in the business response to HIV/AIDS,
and for developing workplace pelicies, practices and protacols that remain
best practices in private, public and nonprofit seciors. In recogaition of
our work in this area, The San Francisco AIDS Foundation presented the
company with its 2007 corporate leadership award.




DOCKERS

SAN FRANCISCO

Another Courageous and Leadership
Stand for Civil Rights

Near the end of 2007, LS&CO. was approached by a San
Francisco law firm and asked, along with a number of other
California businesses and chambers of commerce with
strong diversity and civil rights records, to join a friend-
of-the-court brief to the Supreme Court of California in
support of parties chaflenging the exclusion of same-sex
marriage from the state’s marriage statute. While many
of the companies and business organizations approached
voiced support for the position and agreed it was the right
thing to do, on the day of the filing, LS&CO. was the only
signatory to the brief aside from the nonprofit organization,
Qutand Equal. Shortly after the briefwas fifed, L S&C0. CEO
John Anderson wrote the members of the San Francisco
Chamber of Commerce’s Public Policy Committee,
explaining the business case and our reasoning for signing
onto the brief. After multiple meetings attended by [ S&CO.
representatives, the Chamber’s board unanimously voted
ta join the brief if the court would allow it.

In 1992, L5&CO. took a simifar leading stand in this
civil rights frontier when we were the first fortune 500
company to extend health benefits to domestic partners
of employees, a widespread and best practice among top
ULS. corporations today.




While we are very proud of cur current programs and numerous
accomplishments, we recognize that gaps exist in HIV/AIDS treatment
and care services available to our employees and their famities around
the worid. For example, country by country, there are stark differences
between what insurance plans will cover for HIV-positive individuals,
the packages of HIV/AIDS services provided by gavernments, and the
quality and reach of HIV/AIDS services provided by nonprofits.

Atthe 2006 Clinton Globat Initiative, a global forum for visionary leaders
from all sectors, LS&CO. committed 1o creating a mose comprehensive
HIV/AIDS treatment and care program for our employees and their
dependants worldwide. The program will ensure that every LS&C0.
employee and his o her dependents are provided access to HIV/AIDS
education, treaiment, care and support services, and to advance best-
practice standards among global apparel companies.

Since making our commitment, we have made significant progress in
bringing our vision to life. The HIV/AIDS Treatment and Care Program
was established as part of the Human Resources department in the
Compensation and Berefiis area.  The department put in place a
highly credentialed team with experience in the public, private and
research seciors. The team has been pouring through daza on HIV/
AIDS prevalence and existing pregrams and services in countries where
we have employees, and are leading 2 global cross-functiona! group as
they seek to clarify needs of employees in various focations around the
world; develop a package of HIV/AIDS services including prevention,
treatment and care; provide guidance to country offices on how 10 ensure
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that employees receive locally relevant services; and leverage strategic
partnesships, drawing on the experience of nenprofit organizations, local
governments and other local and multinational companies to strengthen
service delivery and expand the psogram’s reach.

o vi stiausy B co.
Y TEE ]il\fA]D‘ Pracraw

In 2008, the team will continue to build the program and launch pilots
in select couniries with varying HIV/AIDS prevalence profiles. We look
forward to reporting more on the HIV/AIDS Treatment and Care Program’s
development in this report next year.

Employee Development and Benefits

The L5&C0. Way is our blueprint for leadirg and managing the company.
Firmly rooted on ous values — empathy, originality, integrity and courage
— and with an emphasis on collaberation and principled decision-making,
The LS&(0. Way is our commen framework for conducting ourselves,
buitding our brands and achieving both our business and our citizenship
objectives. Building on our success with a 2005 course for senior leaders
entitled “Leading the L5&C0. Way,"in 2007, we launched “The LS&C0. Way
and You" for the balance of our employees. The LS&C0. Way and You is
a day-and-a-half, visual, team-based, employee-led and interactive
experience designed to enable employees to work together in smalf
teams to discover The LS&C0. Way. The experience includes modules on
corporate responsibility and community invalvement, and incorporates
exercises in applying the company’s
values and our “Profits through Principies”
philosophy o a range o hypothetical
business s'tuations. At the close of 2007,
nearly 550 managers worldwide had been
through The £S&C0. Way and You. By the
end of 2008, we hope to have brought
more than 8,000 employees through the
experience.

Angther initiative launched in 2007 is
Backup {are Options, a unique benefit
program that supports emptoyees who
experience a temporary breakdown in their normal care arrangemeats at
times when they need to gei to work. Employees now have 24/7 access to
backup care specialists who fird and schedule care for anyone who counts
on an LS&C0. employee as their primary caregiver — infants through the
elderly.

stay a manifest.

2007 Employee Survey

In ar: effort to continuatly improve cur work environment in ways that are
relevant to the global employes hase, we conducted our second global




-
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employee survey in 2007. With 83 percent of employees responding, we
learned that we have made improvements in several areas since the last
survey {conducted in 2005} but that we can do better for our employees
in others. .

According to the survey results, employees strongly believe that our
company values guide our decision-making and play 2 significant role in
driving employee engagement. A maiority of employees believe they have
(ollaborative working relationships, are encouraged to voice and consider
differing opinicns, and have a clear understanding of the campany’s vision.
A large majority alse believes that people at all tevels of the organization are
open to addressing issues in new and different ways and sharing what they
have learned.

Ninety-one percent of employees told us that they are very proud to be
assaciated with LS&C0.

The 2007 survey also told us that there are azeas where there is opportunity
for improvement — timely decision-making, employee development and
workload management are among them — and the company’s Worldwide
Leadership leam (WLT) is taking action. Already the WLT has recanstructed
the corporate calendar to reduce the amount of time spent in global,
regional and departmental meetings; reduce the amount of required travet;
and harmonize timing for critical business planning processes to ensure
maximum efficiency. The WLT wili continue to develop new programs
and augment existing ones throughout 2008 o respond to the employee
feedback.

MAKING A DIFFERENCE IN OUR
COMMUNITIES

Employee Community Invalvement

Employee community involvement is an imporiant part of LS&CC. fife
and LS&C0. history. We have learned over time that when we encourage
employees to support organizations that are important to them with their
time, tatent and money, everybody wins — our communities, our employees
and our company.

Community Day at L5&C0. continues toevolve and grow. On Community Day,
[S&C0. employees around the world take a day away from work te volunteer
in groups with local noaprofit organizations, and the Levi Strauss Foundation
makes grants to the organizations with which employees volunteer.

In 2007, we piloted projects in Los Angeles, New York and San Francisco,
inviting consumers to join us in our Community Day efforts. Our consumers
turned out in force, comorising about 50 percent of the total volunteers
on their projects. tn San Francisco, Levis” store associates and consumers
painted a special muraf on behalf of the Foundation for Hospital Art; at the
Santa Manica location, volunteers worked with Heal the Bay to clean up
Venice Beach; and in New York City, employees and consumers worked with
New York Cares to brighten up Washington Irving High School by painting
murals and cleaning the schoal.

d

1S5(0 employees mgke a £ Fevence for lodo ™ £ 37 0Ft crganizaiions

en Communszy Day 2007,




Participation in Community Day and support for local nonprofits increased substantially
in 2007. We added eight new countries and increased employee participation by almost
25 percent compared Lo 2606. Community Day 2007 saw nearly 4,000 employees in 33
countries voluateering more than 20,000 hours on 117 projects. To recognize employees”
efiarts, the company and the Levi Strauss Foundation made more than 5210,000 in grants
1o the organizations al which employees volunteered on that day.

2007 was aiso an active year for LS&C0’s employee-led Communiiy Involvement Teams
(CIT). Around the werld, nearly 1,200 employees volunteered approximately 800 hours with
64 (ITs and deepened their ties with local community agencies.

Many of the lengstanding CI%s have been building on their successful programs over time
and are becoming quite important to the organizations they are committed to serving. The
Singapore (IT, for example, participated in an "Adopt-a-Geandparent” program, where each
member “adopted” a senior citizen housed in the Tiong Bahru Community Senior Center,
a nonprofit crganization the CIT has supported since 2005. Participants spent much-
appreciated quality time with their adoptees throughoul the year and hetped their adopted
grandparents with various tasks that they might not have been able to accomplish on theis
own. Thioughout the year, (T members also regularly took up collections for greceries for
the center and distributed them to the homes of their adopted grandparents.

The AIDS Action Group, a San Francisco-based CIT, mobilized 110 employees and orchestrated
the company’s participation in the 2007 San Francisco AIDS Walk, helping raise almast
$95,000 for Bay Area AIDS services organizations and beatirg their goat by nearly $20,000.
The (iT also put together an extensive program around World AIDS Day, with a full week of
activities, fundraising and education programs geared toward

1S&C0. employees.

The Dockers” brand supperted the CA R £ CIT {Cancer Awarengss

Recovery Education) in the 2007 Susan G. Xomen Race for the

(ure. CARE. volunieers and Team Dockers participants reised

$62,000to support breast cancer research and education, making

the LS&C0. team the Bay Area's top fundraiser. In recognition of

her hard work and long-term dedication to the event, CARE. (1T LS&CO.

chair Pam Judd was named Volunteer of the Year by the Susan . [aleauiai il
Komen Bay Area affiliate,

In the spirit of our core value empathy, LS&CO. responds to natural disasters that affect the
communities where we operaze. In October 2007, the southern California wildfires captured
ihe attention of the world as hundreds of thousands of people were evacuated from thelr
homes and property damage reached inio the bitiions of dollars. LS&CO. responded on
multiple fronts, providing grant funding to the San Diego Foundation's After the Fire Fund,
and mobilizing employee volunteers from the San Diega retail store to work with Voluneer
San Diego in its efforts to provide assistance to people and anima's affected by the fires.
And the Signature by Levi Strauss & (o™ brand donated nearty 8,500 pieces of clothing to
be distributed 1o fire victiras through the Salvation Army.

Corporate Philanthropy

In addition to supporting employee community engagement, the Levi Strauss Foundation
(LSF) continued its wark 1o address poverty among women and youth in countries around
the world where we have a business presence. The foundation pursues its mission thiough
three inerrelated strategies: preventing the spread of HIV/AIDS, helping women and youth
build assets, and strengthening workers'rights (discussed earlier).




L5&C0. volunieers periprmed ¢ “retail makeover” for Qui of ihe Closed, o San Francisco thri stoce whose profiis beneits HYZAIDS services organ.2aiions.

HIV/AIDS continies to have a disproportional impact on low-income
and minority populations in developed couniries. In fapan, the country’s
Ministry of Health, Laber and Weifare estimates that non-Japanese,
primarily migrant workers from Scutheast Asia and Latin America,
account for 26.5 percent of people living with RIV/AIDS in Japan and 14
percent of new infections. HIV-positive migrants experience stigma and
discrimination on muttiple levels and most Japanese HIV/AIDS agencies

do not focus on non-fapanese populations with education messages or
information on available services. In order to acdress these inequities,
LSF began funding Services for the Health in Asian and African Regions
(SHARE}, an organization that fecuses on Thai people living with HiV/
AIDS in Japan, the majorizy of whom are undocumented, unable to receive
necessary treatment because they are not eligible to utilize the social
welfare or health insirance system in Japan, and do not speak Japanese.

SHARE provides access to health care for these people, and thiough public
policy advocacy, addresses structural barriers in the legal and health
care systems. SHARE also provides advice and translation services for
HIV-positive natives of Thailand, Nigeria, Tanzania, Nepal, Philippines,
Indonesia and Brazil at numerous medical facilities; contributes articles
on HIV/AIDS treatment and prevention information to popular Thai
magazines that reach thousands of Thai people in Japan; and advocates
on the behaif of HIV-positive Thai people who are refused treatment at
Japanese hospitals.

The company and LSF aso continued with the highly visible “Red for
Life"” campaign in South Africa which continues to challenge citizens and
teaders Lo take responsible action and be tested for HIV/AIDS. In 2007, the
Levi's® brand, along with local nonprofit organization New Start, launched
co-branded mohile volintary counseling and testing centers that conduct
HIV testing outside of Levi's® stores. The mabite testing centers have, to
date, had a marked impact on voluniary testing in the cities where they
operate. With the Levi's® brand’s participation in the project, New Start

saw a 197 percentincrease in client flow compared to the same period in
2005, with 50 percent of those visiting the cenier between the ages of 15
and 24 — a critical and previously difficult population to reach. During one
two-month period, New Stari performad more than 13,000 HIV tests at it
mobile testing centers.

Building assels and savings is a fairly new and progresstve approach to
alleviating poverty, and one that LSF has been involved in for some time,
By developing maiched savings and microfinance programs, advocating
for aiternatives to predatory fending schemes, and working with financial
institutions to develop products for poor and low-income people, LSF
grantees have helped people around the world to save their way our of
poverty. After more than two years in development, a signature assel-
butlding program of which we are very proud, the Mission Asset Fund,
launched this year.

In 2004, L5&C0. sold a former faciory in San Francisco’s Mission District
and donated all the proceeds 1o the Levi Strauss Foundation for its global




“We're seeing more young people,

{ think, because Levi Strauss &
Co. gave us the cool factor and
put HIY testing out there for
young South Africans in a very
in-your-face way that young
peopte refated to. | don't think
young people really listen to the
government or fo public health
organizations on AIDS issues any
more, but they do pay attention
when Levi Strauss & Co. tafks
about AlDS.”

Scott Billy
Director

_ New Start

philanthropic programs, earmarking a portion te support economic development in the
surrounding neighborhood. After the sale, LSF staff participated in & two-year collaborative
planning process with community feaders. The goal of the participants was to create 3
meaningiul approach to economic development in the neighborhood that wauld benefit both
people and place. In May 2007, the Levi Strauss Foundation approved a 1 million dollar
grant to launch the Mission Asset Fund {MAF), a communty-based organization dedicated
to hefping Mission residents save and invest in their future. The action reflects the company’s
long-sianding presence in the nmghbomood and its commitment to invest a former corporate
asset toward community revitafization.

The MAF will pilot an innovative model of wealth-building in a low-income immigrant
community by expanding savings and investment apportunities for residents to become
vested stakeholders in their neighborhood through cooperative home and business awnership.
The long-term vision is that the Fund will cantribute o the evolution of the Mission as a
neighborhood of genuine economic opportunity for all its residents, regardless of income level
or immigration status — one in which everyone has a voice and a stake in their community.

In 2007, the foundation also made impertani grants in the United Kingdom, where it is
estimaied that close to three million adults do not have a bank account and nearly eight
percent of all households do not use or have access to financial products. Without access 1o a
mainstream financial system, financialty excluded people in the UK pay more ‘or basic services,
such as check cashing or bill paying, and pay exorbitant interest raies an loans. Lack of 3 bank
account can also be an impediment to entering the job marker.

London Building Society (LBS) seeks to link economically disadvantaged ethnic minority
groups {mainly refugees who face high rates of long-term unemployment, tack of formal
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qualifications, low levels of literacy and lack of marketable employment skills) with
financiat institutions through Community Invesiment Intermediaries. Organizations
identified to serve as intermediaries are typically pre-existing assistance groups such
as refugee and immigrant women's organizations. Asa result of the program, finandial
instiwutions have developed new loan producis tailored specifically to serve LBS clients
with lower interest rates than thase clients could otherwise secure in the market.

Another recent UK grantee, New Economics Foundation (NEF), is focused on the
widening hinancial exclusion gap in the UK resulting from the disappearance of local bank
branches and supporting policy reform to address financial exclusion. The organization
is engaged in research and advecacy work around practical implications of a universal
service obligation, the role of financial institutions, solutions to predatory lending and
basic bank account provision beyond 2010.

In the spirit of innovation, LSF is also exploring new and sustainable, market-based
approaches (o poverty alleviation for apparel workers. Since 2005, the foundation has
been making grants to TransFair USA to study the feasibility of a fair trade certification
standard for apparel products. We have also provided grants to Mercado Global, 2 United
Stated-based nonprofit fair-trade organization that links economically disadvantaged
cooperatives around the world 1o the United Siates market.

In 2007, Mercado Global worked with the Levi's® brand to bring fairly traded accessories
to Levi's® stores in the United States. Levi's® retail stores carried woven purses, bags
and scarves made by women from cooperatives in Guatemala as part of the brand’s
overati jeanswear offering. Some of the products sourced through Mercado Global
were made by women at another foundation grantee, the TUPUEDES Weavers' Store,
where indigenous Guatemalan women, many of whom had previously worked in
garment factories, are weaving traditional clothing o

and developing innovative designs to market locally /\

and export. With LSF funding and Me:cado Global's A
marketing assistance, the women cof TUPUEDES,

who at one time were unable 1o afford the raw maierials required for their work, have

developed a sustainable business and gained access to a quickly expanding intemationat
market.

Between LSF and LS&CO,, our philanthropy for 2007 totaled $10.6 miilion. The Levi
Strauss Foundation made 58.2 million in grants to nonprofit organizations around the
world. The LS&CO. Worldwide Community & Corporate Citizenship department provided
52.11in corporate contributions for similar activities and our brands delivered $320,150
in product donations and branded giving. In 2007, 1S&C0. made & $7.1 million gift to
the Levi Strauss Foundation reserve based on the company's financial performance for
the year.

ror a complete isting of all grants made by the Levi Strauss Foundation, visit:
http://wwer.levistrauss.com/Citizenship/LeviStraussFeundation/
GrantsDatabase.aspx

Red Tab Foundation

The Red Tab Foundation (RTF} is a unigue nonprofit organization created by a former
employee to offer financial assistance to LS&CO. employees and retirees who are unable
to afford life’s basic necessities due to unexpected harcships. Now in its 26th year, RTF
offers specialized, regional assistance, as needed, for LS&CQ's diverse community.
In 2007, RTF disbursed nearly $1.2 million to 1,270 employees and retirees worldwide,
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Lev: Strauss Feundation cvimvee Mercodo Giabs supports veaving ard
Sewing coogeratives in Guoiemala,
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Building on an existing program

that provides aid for heating fuel & Red Tab Foundation
mployees helping employees

in Plock, Poland, RTF rolled outa
program to provide support for
school books for employees’ dependents. Based on the very positive
feedback received around school book assistance in Poland, RIF
replicated the program in Manila, the Philippines,

In the United States, where 15&C0. has thousands of retired sewing
plant employees, RTF suppoits a robust basic-necessities program for
retirees that includes aid for such items as eyeglasses, hearing aids, and
critical home repairs that impact retirees’ health and safety. 2007 was
a record year for RTF' support of retirees, with a 46 percent increase
in dollar disbursements from 2006 and a nearly 70 percent increase in
total grants. White grant applications were received from retirees of all
ages, the majority of grants and dollars were distributed 1o relirees 65
ang older.

With LS&(0's owned-and-operated manufacturing presence in
couniries gutside the United States and theinciease in RTF programs that
henefit employees in those countries, RTF is experiencing an increase in
donations and fundsaising efforts from employees in our Europe and
Asia regions. In 2007, employees in Europe held “Run for Red Tab"in
Paris and Brussels, raising more than $17,500 for the foundation.

For mare information an Levi Strauss & Cos corporate citizenship work,
visil wwwr. levistrauss.com/citizenship
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PART 1

Item 1. BUSINESS
Overview

From our California Gold Rush beginnings, we have grown into one of the world’s largest brand-name apparel
companies. We have built our brands on a history of responsible business practices. bringing to life values that have
engendered consumer trust around the world. Under our brand names, we design and market products that include
jeans and jeans-related pants, casual and dress pants, tops, jackets and related accessories for men, women and
children. We also license our trademarks for a wide array of products, including accessories, pants, tops, footwear,
home and other products.

An Authentic American Icon

Our Levi’s® brand has become one of the most widely recognized brands in the history of the apparel industry.
Its broad distribution reflects its appeal across consumers of all ages and lifestyles. Today its merchandising and
marketing reflect the brand’s core attributes: original, definitive and confident.

Our Dockers® brand was at the forefront of the business casual trend in the United States. It has since grown to
a global brand covering a wide range of wearing occasions for men and women with products that combine
approachable style, relevant innovation and sustained quality. Qur Signature by Levi Strauss & Co.™ brand focuses
on bringing our style, authenticity and quality to value-seeking consumers.

Our Global Reach

We operate our business through three geographic regions: North America. Europe and Asia Pacific. Our
products are sold in over 60,000 retail locations in more than 110 countries. This includes more than 1,500 retail
stores dedicated to our brands, including both franchised and company-operated stores.

We support our brands through a global infrastructure, as we both source and market our products around the
world. We distribute our Levi’s® and Dockers® products primarily through chain retailers and department stores in
the United States and primarily through department stores, specialty retailers and franchised stores abroad. We also
distribute products under the Signature by Levi Strauss & Co.™ brand primarily through mass channel retailers in
the United States and mass and other value-oriented retailers and franchised stores abroad.

Although our brands are recognized around the world as authentically “American,” we derive approximately
42% of our net revenues from our European and Asia Pacific regions. Our Asia Pacific region includes both our
established markets, which we refer to as “mature” markets, such as Japan and Korea, and emerging markets such as
India and China, as well as our businesses in Latin America, the Middle East and Africa.

Levi Strauss & Co. was incorporated in Delaware in 1973, We conduct our operations outside the United States
through foreign subsidiaries owned directly or indirectly by Levi Strauss & Co. We manage our regional operations
through headquarters in San Francisco, Brussels and Singapore. Our global sourcing headquarters is in Singapore.
Qur corporate offices are located at Levi’s Plaza, 1155 Battery Street, San Francisco, California 94111, and our
main telephone number is (415) 501-6000.

Our common stock is primarily owned by descendants of the family of Mr. Strauss and their relatives.
Our Web site — www.levistrauss.com — contains additional and detailed information about our history, our
products and our commitments. Qur Web site and the information contained on our Web site are not part of this

annual report and are not incorporated by reference into this annual report.
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Qur Strategies for Business Development

Our management is pursuing strategies to develop our business, respond to marketplace dynamics and build on
our competitive strengths, Our key strategies are:

* Grow through innovation and “premiumization””  We intend to build upon our brand equity and design and
marketing expertise to lead innovation in our products, marketing and at retail. We are also increasing our
focus on more premium categories. We believe that our increased market responsiveness will continue to
enable us to create trend-right and wrend-leading products and marketing programs that appeal to our various
consumer segments. We will also introduce product, marketing and retail experiences in new categories that
we believe will offer attractive opportunities for growih.

s Extend our brands globally. We intend to further accelerate growth globally, especially in emerging
markets, where we have already established a strong foothold. Leveraging our expansive global presence and
talent, we aim to identify global consumer trends, adapt successes from one market to another and drive
growth across our brand portfolio.

 Expand and enhance our relationships with our wholesale customers. Qur goal is to ensure that we are
central to our wholesale customers’ success by using our brands and our strengths in product development
and marketing to drive consumer traffic and demand 1o their stores. We recognize that our wholesale
customers have many choices, including their own private-label programs. We focus on generating
competitive economics and engaging in collaborative assortment and marketing planning to achieve mutual
commercial success with our customers.

Accelerate growth through dedicated retail stores.  We continue to expand our dedicated store presence
around the world, through company-operated stores as well as franchised stores. We believe dedicated retail
stores represent an attractive opportunity o establish incremental distribution and sales as well as showcase
the full breadth of our product offerings and strength of our brands’ appeal. We also believe that we can build
upon the operational knowledge and consumer insight gained from our company-operated stores to improve
our cffectiveness as a resource to our wholesale customers and franchisees.

s Achieve operational excellence and drive productivity, We emphasize operational execution across our
businesses. We are making substantial productivity investments including the continued roll-out of an SAP
enterprise resource planning system. We are focused on deriving greater benefit from our global scale
through our sourcing organization and improved communication and collaboration across our regions. We
also focus on working capital efficiency through disciplined inventory management.

Our Brands and Products

We offer a broad range of products, including jeans, casual and dress pants, tops, skirts and jackets. Pants —
including jeans, casual pants and dress pants — represented approximately 87% of our total units sold in each of
fiscal years 2007, 2006 and 2005. Men’s products generated approximately 72% of our total net sales in each of
fiscal years 2007, 2006 and 2005.

Levi's® Brand

Consumers around the world recognize the distinctive traits of Levi’s® jeans. The double arc of stitching,
known as the Arcuate stitching design, and the Red Tab device, a fabric tab stitched into the back right pocket, are
unique to Levi’s® jeans and are instantly recognizable by consumers. We offer an extensive selection of men's,
women’s and kids’ products designed to appeal to a variety of consumer segments at a wide range of price points.
We extend our Levi's® brand from more basic jeans to premium-priced styles to appeal to fashion leaders, reflecting
what we believe is the broad consumer appeal of the brand across ages. genders and lifestyles. In the United States.
our product architecture and strategy emphasize growth in more premium segments, including updating and driving
our Red Tab™ jeans business to a more premium position with our chain and department store customers. In Europe
and Asia Pacific, the Levi’s® brand is positioned mostly in the premium segment of the men’s and women’s markets.
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Our current product range includes:

* Levi's® Red Tab™ Products,  These products are the foundation of the brand. They encompass a wide range
of jeans and jeanswear offered in a variety of fits, fabrics, finishes and styles intended to appeal to a broad
spectrum of consumers. The line is anchored by the flagship 501® button-{ly jean, the best-selling five-
pocket jean in history. The line also incorporates a full range of jeanswear fits and styles designed
specifically for women. Sales of Red Tab™ products represented a majority of our Levi’s® brand net sales in
ail three of our regions in fiscal years 2007, 2006 and 2005.

Premium Products.  We offer a variety of premium men’s and women’s products around the world, In
Europe and Asia Pacific, we offer an expanded range of high-ead products that reflects our premium
positioning in international markets. Our Levi’s® Engineered Jeans® are a reinvention of the traditional jean
designed for leading-edge consumers. The Levi's Blue™ line in Europe and Levi's® Redloop™ line in Asia
Pacific are clean, modern interpretations of jeanswear, while in Asia Pacific we also offer Levi’s® Lady Style
products for women seeking more feminine fits and finishes. In the United States, to further differentiate our
offer for consumers who seek more trend-forward and premium products, we offer our Levi’s® Capital E®
products. Our Levi's® Vintage Clothing line, offered in all of our regions, showcases our most premium
products by offering detailed replicas of our historical products dating back to the [9th century.

Our Levi's® brand products accounted for approximately 73%, 70% and 71% of our toral net sales in fiscal
2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. Although almost half of these net sales were generated in North America,
Levi’s® brand products are sold in more than [ L0 countries.

Dockers® Brand

First introduced in 1986 as an alternative between jeans and dress pants, the Dockers® brand has grown to
include men’s and women'’s appare!l for a wide range of occasions. Marketed worldwide as “Dockers® San Fran-
¢isco,” to link the brand to its hometown roots, Dockers® products combine approachable style, relevant innovation
and consistent quality.

Our current Dockers® product offerings in the United States include:

* Dockers® for Men.  This line includes a broad range of stylish casual and dress products that cover the key
wearing occasions for men: work, weekend. dress and golf. We complement these products with a variety of
tops and seasonal pants and shorts in a range of fits, fabrics. colors, styles and performance features.

* Dockers® for Women. This line includes a range of pants, shorts, tops. skirts, sweaters and jackets in
updated fits, fabrics and styles designed to provide women with a versatile head-to-toe, integrated separates
offering. with outfits that span the range of casual to dressy and work.

Our Dockers® brand products accounted for approximately 219, 21% and 199% of our total net sales in fiscal
2007, 2006 and 2005. respectively. Although a substantial majority of these net sales were in North America,
Dockers® brand products are sold in more than 50 countries.

Signature by Levi Strauss & Co.™ Brand

Our Signature by Levi Strauss & Co.™ brund, formerly marketed under the name Levi Strauss Signature®,
offers value-seeking consumers products with the style, authenticity and quality for which our company is
recognized around the world. The product pertfelio includes denim jeans, casual pants, tops and jackets in a variety
of fits, fabrics and finishes for men, women and kids. The brand is distributed through the mass retail channel in
North America and value-oriented retailers and franchised stores in Asia Pacific,

Signature by Levi Strauss & Co.™ brand products accounted for approximately 6%, 9% and (0% of our total
net sales in fiscal years 2007, 2006 and 2005. Although a substantial majority of these sales were in the United
States, Signalure by Levi Strauss & Co.™ brand products are sold in seven additional countries in our North
America and Asia Pacific regions. The brand exited the European market after the spring 2007 season.
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Licensing

The appeal of our brands across consumer groups and our global reach enable us to license our Levi's®,
Dockers® and Signature by Levi Strauss & Co.™ trademarks for a variety of product categories in multiple markets
including footwear, hosiery, belts, outerwear, eyewear, sweaters, dress shirts, kidswear, loungewear and sleepwear,
luggage and home bedding products.

We have licensees for our Levi's® and Dockers® brands in each of our regions. and for our Signature by Levi
Strauss & Co.™ brand in North America. [n addition, we enter into agreements with third parties to produce, market
and distribute our products in several countries with smaller markets. including various Latin American and Middle
Eastern countries.

We enter into licensing agreements with our licensces covering royalty payments, product design and
manufacturing standards, marketing and sale of licensed products and protection of our trademarks, We require
our licensees to comply with our code of conduct for contract manufacturing and engage independent monitors to
perform regular on-site inspections and assessments of production facilities.

Sales, Distribution and Customers

We distribute our products in a wide variety of retail formats arcund the world, including chain and department
stores, franchise and company-operated stores dedicated to our brands, multi-brand specialty stores, mass channel
retailers and both company-operated and retailer Web sites.

Multi-brand Retailers

Our distribution strategy focuses on making our brands and products available where consumers shop. Qur
strategy includes product offerings and assortments that are tailored appropriately for our wholesale customers and
their retail consumers. Our products are also sold through authorized third-party Internet sites. Sales to our lop ten
wholesale customers accounted for approximately 42% of our total net revenues in both fiscal years 2007 and 2006.

Dedicated Stores

We believe retail stores dedicated to our brands are important for the growth, visibility, availability and
commercial success of our brands, and they are an increasingly important part of our strategy for expanding
distribution of our products in all three of our regions. Our brand-dedicated stores are either operated by us or by
independent franchisees and licensees. In addition to the dedicated stores, we consider dedicated shop-in-shops
located within department stores as an important component of our retail network in international markets, and we
mairtain brand-dedicated Web sites that sell products directly to retail consumers,

Franchised stores.  Qver 1,300 franchised or other licensed stores sell Levi's®, Dockers® and Signature by
Levi Strauss & Co."™ products in markets outside the United States. These stores are a key element of our
international distribution. The stores are operated by independent third parties. We also license third parties to
operate outlet stores dedicated to our brands in the United States and abroad.

Company-operated stores. Company-operated stores generated approximately 6% and 4% of our net
revenues in fiscal 2007 and 2006, respectively. As of November 25, 2007, we had 200 company-operated retail
stores, predominantly Levi's® stores, located in more than 22 countries across our three regions. We had 73 stores in
Nerth America, 71 stores in Europe and 56 stores in Asia Pacific. In 2007, we opened 67 company-operated stores
and closed five stores.

Seasonality of Sales

In recent yeurs, we have tended to achieve our largest quarterly revenues in the fourth quarter, reflecting the
“holiday™ season, generally followed by the third quarter. reflecting the “back to school” season. In 2007, our net
revenues in the first, second, third and fourth quarters represented 24%. 23%, 24% and 29%, respectively, of our
total net revenues for the year. In 2006, our net revenues in the first, second, third and fourth quarters representcd
23%. 23%, 25% and 29%, respectively. of our total net revenues for the year.
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Our fiscal year consists of 52 or 53 weeks, ending on the last Sunday in November each year. Fiscal years 2007,
2006 and 2005 consisted of 52 weeks each and ended on November 25, 2007, November 26, 2006, and
November 27, 2005, respectively.

Marketing and Promotion
We support our brands with a diverse mix of marketing initiatives to drive consumer demand.

We advertise around the world through a broad mix of media, including television, national publications, the
Internet, cinema, billboards and other outdoor vehicles. We use other marketing vehicles, including event and music
sponsorships, product placement in major motion pictures, television shows, music videos and teading fashion
magazines, and alternative marketing techniques, including street-level events and similar targeted “viral” mar-
keling activities.

We execute region-specific marketing programs that are based on globally consistent brand values. We believe
this approach allows us to achieve consistent global brand positioning while giving us flexibility to tailor marketing
programs to local markets in order to maximize relevancy and effectiveness. We also tailor marketing programs to
express the unique attributes of our brands. For example, our Levi’s® marketing program is designed to commu-
nicate the authenticity of Levi’s® jeans, the original and definitive jeans brand, among other characteristics. Our
Dockers® products are featured in lifestyle settings that show complete outfits in everyday situations. The Dockers®
brand is marketed worldwide under a branding platform, “Dockers® San Francisco,” that links the brand to its
hometown roots and provides a single umbrella for marketing communications for men and women.

We also maintain the Web sites www.levisstore.com and www.dockersstore.com in the United States and
www.levi.com and www.dockers.com outside the United States which sell products directly to consumers in certain
countries. We operate these Web sites, as well as www.levistrausssignature.com, as marketing vehicles to enhance
consumer understanding of our brands and help consumers find and buy our products. This is consistent with our
strategies of ensuring that our brands and products are available where consumers shop and that our product
offerings and assortments are appropriately differentiated.

Sourcing and Logistics

Organization.  Qur global sourcing and regional logistics organizations are responsible for taking a product
from the design concept stage through production o delivery at retail. Qur objective is to leverage our global scale
to achieve product development and sourcing efficiencies and reduce total delivered product cost across brands and
regions while maintaining our focus on local service levels and working capital management.

Product procurement.  We source nearly all of our products through independent contract manufacturers,
with the balance sourced from our company-operated manufacturing plants. See “Item 2 — Properties” for more
information about those manufacturing facilities.

Sourcing locations.  We use numerous independent manufacturers located throughout the world for the
production and finishing of our garments. We conduct assessments of political, social, economic, trade, labor and
intellectual property protection conditions in the countries in which we source our products before we place
production in those countries and on an ongoing basis.

In 2007, we sourced products from contractors located in approximately 45 countries around the world. We
sourced products in Asia Pacific, South and Central America (including Mexico and the Caribbean), Europe, the
Middle East and Africa. We expect to increase our sourcing from contractors located in Asia in future years. No
single country accounted for more than 20% of our sourcing in 2007.

Sourcing practices.  Our sourcing practices include these elements:

* We require all third-party contractors and subcontractors who manufacture or finish products for us to
comply with our code of conduct relating to supplier working conditions as well as environmental and
employment practices. We also require our licensees to ensure that their manufacturers comply with our
requirements.




* Our code of conduct covers employment practices such as wages and benefits, working hours, health and
safety. working age and discriminatory practices, environmental matters such as wastewater treatment and
solid waste disposal, and ethical and legal conduct.

* We regularly assess manufacturing and finishing facilitics through periodic on-site facility inspections and
improvement activities, including use of independent monitors to supplement our internal staff. We integrate
review and performance results into our sourcing decisions.

We disclose the names and locations of our contract manufacturers to encourage collaboration among apparel
companies in factory monitoring and improvement. We regularly evaluate and refine our code of conduct processes.

Logistics. 'We own and operate dedicated distribution centers in a number of countries and we also outsource
logistics activities to third-party logistics providers. Distribution center activities include receiving finished goods
from our contractors and plants, inspecting those products, preparing them for presentation at retail and shipping
them to our customers and to our own stores.

Competition

The worldwide apparel industry is highly competitive and fragmented. It is characterized by low barriers to
entry, brands targeted at specific consumer segments and regional and local competitors. Principal competitive
factors include:

+ developing products with relevant fits, finishes, fabrics, style and performance features;

* maintaining favorable brand recognition through strong and effective marketing;

* anticipating and responding to changing consumer demands in a timely manner,;

+ providing sufficient retail distribution, visibility and availability and presenting products effectively at retail;
= delivering compelling value in our products for the price; and

* generating competitive economics for our wholesale customers.

We face competition from a wide range of competitors both at the worldwide and regional levels in diverse
channels across a wide range of retail price points. Worldwide, a few of our primary competitors include vertically
integrated specialty stores such as Gap Inc.: jeanswear brands such as those marketed by VF Corporation, a
competitor in multiple channels and product lines; and athletic wear companies such as adidas and Nike, Inc, who
are emerging as pan-regional competitors. In addition, each region faces localized competition, such as (i-Star in
the Netherlands. Miss Sixty in ltaly, Hugo Boss in Germany; UNIQLO in Asia Pacific, and retailers’ private or
exclusive labels such as those from Wal-Mart Stores, Inc. (Faded Glory and George brands). Target Corporation
(Mossimo and Cherokee brands) and Macy’s (INC. brand) in North America.

Trademarks

We have over 5,000 trademark registrations and pending applications in approximately 180 countries
worldwide, and we create new trademarks on an ongoing basis. Substantially all of our global trademarks are
owned by Levi Strauss & Co.. the parent and U.S. operating company. We regard our trademarks as our most
valuable assets and believe they have substantial value in the marketing of our products. The Levi’s®, Dockers® and
501® rrademarks, the Wings and Anchor Design, the Arcuate Stitching Design, the Tab Device and the Two Horse®
Design are among our core trademarks.

We protect these trademarks by registering them with the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office and with
governmental agencies in other countries, particularly where our products are manufactured or sold. We work
vigorously to enforce and protect our trademark rights by engaging in regular market reviews, helping local law
enforcement authorities detect and prosecute counterfeiters, issuing cease-and-desist letters against third parties
infringing or denigrating our trademarks, opposing registration of infringing trademarks and initiating litigation as
necessary. We currently are pursuing over 300 infringement matters around the world. We also work with trade
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groups and industry participants seeking to strengthen laws relating to the protection of intellectual property rights
in markets around the world.

Employees

As of November 25, 2007, we employed approximately 11.550 people, approximately 4,550 of whom were
located in North America, 3,500 in Europe. and 3.500 in Asia Pacific. We added approximately 870 employees in
2007, most of whom were associated with company-operated stores opened during the year, Approximately 4,100
of our employees were associated with manufacturing of our products and approximately 7.450 were non-
production employees. Of the non-production employees, approximately 1,590 worked in distribution,

History and Corporate Citizenship

Our history and longevity are unique in the apparel industry. Qur commitment to quality. innovation and
corporate citizenship began with our founder, Levi Strauss, who infused the business with the principle of
responsible commercial success that has been embedded in our business practices throughout our 155-year history.
This mixture of history, quality, innovation and corporate citizenship contributes to our brands’ iconic reputation.

In 1853, during the California Gold Rush, Mr. Strauss opened a wholesale dry goods business in San Francisco
that became known as “Levi Strauss & Co.” Seeing a need for work pants that could hold up under rough conditions,
he and Jacob Davis, a tailor, created the first jean. In 1873, they received a U.S. patent for “waist overalls™ with
metal rivets at points of strain. The first product line designated by the lot number “501” was created in [890.

During our first century. our work pants were worn primarily by cowboys. miners and other working men in the
western United States. Then, in 1934, we introduced our first jeans for women, and after World War 11, our jeans
began to appeal to a wider market. By the 1960s they had become a symbol of American culture, representing a
unique blend of history and youth. We opened our export and international businesses in the 1950s and 1960s. In
1986. we introduced the Dockers® brand of casual apparel which revolutionized the concept of business casual.

Throughout this long history, we upheld our strong belief that we can help shape society through civic
engagement and community involvement, responsible labor and workplace practices, philanthropy, ethical conduct,
environmental stewardship and transparency. We have engaged in a “profits through principles” business approach
from the earliest years of the business. Among our milestone initiatives over the years, we began to open integrated
factories two decades prior to the U.S. civil rights movement and federally mandated desegregation. we developed a
comprehensive supplier code of conduct requiring safe and healthy working conditions among our suppliers {a first
of its kind for a multnational apparel company), and we offered full medical benefits to domestic partners of
employees prior to other companies of our size. a practice most other companies now follow.

Qur Web site — www.levistrauss.com — contains additional and detailed information about our history and
corporale citizenship initiatives. Our Web site and the information contained on our Web site are not part of this
annual report and are not incorporated by reference into this annual report.

Item 1A. RISK FACTORS
Risks Relating to the Industry in Which We Compete
Qur revenues are influenced by general economic cycles.

Apparel is a cyclical industry that is dependent upon the overall level of consumer spending. Our wholesale
customers anticipate and respond to adverse changes in economic conditions and uncertainty by reducing
inventories and canceling orders. As a result, factors that diminish consumer spending and confidence in any
of the regions in which we compete, particularly deterioration in general economic conditions. increases in energy
costs or interest rates, housing market downturns, and other factors such as acts of war, acts of nature or terrorist or
political events that impact consumer confidence, could reduce our sales and adversely affect our business and
financial condition. For example, the price of oil has risen in the recent past. A continued or sustained rise in oil
prices could adversely affect consumer spending and demand for our products and also increase our operating cosls,
both of which could adversely affect our business and financial condition.

8



Intense competition in the worldwide apparel industry could reduce our sales and prices.

We face a variety of competitive challenges from jeanswear and casual apparel marketers, fashion-oriented
upparel marketers, athletic and sportswear marketers, vertically integrated specialty stores and retailers of private-
label products. Some of these competitors have greater financial and marketing resources than we do and may be
able to adapt to changes in consumer preferences or retail requirements more quickly, devote greater resources to
the building and sustaining of their brand equity and the marketing and sale of their products or adopt more
aggressive pricing policies than we can. As aresult, we may not be able to compete as effectively with them and may
not be able to maintain or grow the equity of and demand for our brands. Increased competition in the worldwide
apparel industry — including from international expansion of vertically integrated specialty stores, from depart-
ment stores, chain stores and mass channel retailers developing exclusive labels, and from well-known and
successful non-appare! brands (such as athletic wear marketers) expanding into jeans and casual apparel — could
reduce our sales and adversely affect our business and financial condition.

The success of our business depends upon our ability to offer innovative and upgraded products at attrac-
tive price points.

‘The worldwide apparel industry is characterized by constant product innovation due to changing fashion trends
and consumer preferences and by the rapid replication of new products by competitors. As a result, our success
depends in large part on our ability to develop, market and deliver innovative and stylish preducts at a pace,
intensity, and price competitive with other brands in our segments. In addition, we must create products that appeal
to multiple consumer segments at g range of price points thal appeal to the consumers of both our wholesale
customners and our dedicated retail stores. Failure on our part to regularly and rapidly develop innovative and stylish
products and update core products could limit sales growth, adversely affect retail and consumer acceptance of our
products. negatively impact the consumer traffic in our dedicated retail stores. leave us with a substantial amount of
unsold inventory which we may be forced to sell at discounted prices and impair the image of our brunds. Moreover,
our newer products may not produce as high a margin as our traditional products, which may have an adverse effect
on our overall margins and profitability.

The worldwide apparel industry is subject to ongoing pricing pressure.

The apparel market is characterized by low barriers to entry for both suppliers and marketers, global sourcing
through suppliers located throughout the world, trade liberalization, continuing movement of product sourcing 10
lower cost countries, and the ongoing emergence of new competitors with widely varying strategies and resources.
These factors contribute to ongoing pricing pressure throughout the supply chain. This pressure has had and may
continue to have the following effects:

+ require us to introduce lower-priced products or provide new or enhanced products at the same prices:

* require us 1o reduce wholesale prices on existing products;

* result in reduced gross margins across our product lines;

* increase retailer demands for allowances, incentives and other forms of economic support; and

= increase pressure on us to reduce cur preduction costs and our operating expenses.

Any of these factors could adversely affect our business and financial condition.
Increases in the price of raw materials or their reduced availability could increase our cost of goods and
decrease our profitability.

The principal fabrics used in our business are cotton. blends, synthetics and wools. The prices we pay our
suppliers for our products are dependent in part on the market price for raw materials — primarily cotton — used to
produce them. The price and availability of cotton may fluctuate substantially, depending on a variety of factors,
including demand, crop yields, weather, supply conditions, transportation costs, work stoppages, government
regulation, economic climates and other unpredictable factors. [ncreases in raw material costs, together with other
factors. will make it difficult for us to sustain the level of cost of goods savings we have achieved in recent vears and
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result in a decrease of our profitability unless we ure able to pass higher prices on to our customers. Moreover, any
decrease in the availability of cotton could impair our ability to meet our production requirements in a timely
manner.

Our business is subject to risks associated with sourcing and manufacturing overseas.

We import finished garments and raw materials into all of our operating regions. Substantially all of our import
operations are subject to customs and tax requirements and to tariffs and quotas set by governments through mutual
agreements or bilateral actions. In addition, the countries in which our products are manuofactured or imported may
from time (o time impose additional quotas, duties, tariffs or other restrictions on our imports or adversely modify
existing restrictions. Adverse changes in these import costs and restrictions, or our suppliers’ failure to comply with
customs regulations or similar laws, could harm our business.

Our operations are also subject to the effects of international trade agreements and regulations such as the
North American Free Trade Agreement, the Dominican-Republic Central America Free Trade Agreement, the
Egypt Qualified Industrial Zone program and the activities and regulations of the World Trade Organization.
Although generally these trade agreements have positive effects on trade liberalization, sourcing flexibility and cost
of goods by reducing or eliminating the duties and/or quotas assessed on products manufactured in a particular
country, irade agreements can also impose requirements that adversely affect our business, such as setting quotas on
products that may be imported from a particular country into our key markets such as the United States or the
European Union.

Qur ability to import products in a timely and cost-effective manner may also be affected by conditions at ports
or issues that otherwise affect transportation and warechousing providers, such as port and shipping capacity, labor
disputes and work stoppages, political unrest, severe weather or homeland security requirements in the United
States and other countries. These issues could delay importation of products or require us to locate alternative ports
or warehousing providers to avoid disruption to our customers. These alternatives may not be available on short
notice or could result in higher transit costs, which could have an adverse impact on our business and financial
condition.

Risks Relating to Our Business

Our net sales have not grown substantially for over ten years, we have substantial debt and actions we
have taken, and may take in the future, to address these and other issues facing our business may not be
successful over the long term.

Qur net sales have declined from a peak of $7.1 billion in 1996 to 34.1 billion in 2003, and have remained
roughly flat since 2003, We face intense competition, increased focus by retailers on private-label offerings,
customer consolidation, growth in distribution sales channels where we traditionally have not had a strong presence,
declining sales of traditional core products and continuing pressure on both wholesale and retail pricing. Qur ability
to successfully compele is impaired by our substantial debt and interest expense, which reduces our operating
flexibility and limits our ability to respond to developments in the worldwide apparel industry as effectively as
competitors that do not have comparable debt levels. In addition, the strategic, operations and management changes
we have made in recent years to improve our business and drive future sales growth may not be successful over the
long term,

We may be unable to maintain or increase our sales through our primary distribution channels.

In the United States. chdin stores and department stores are the primary distribution channels for our Levi’s®
and Dockers® products. We may be unable to increase sales of our products through these distribution channels for
several reasons including the following:

 These customers maintain — and seek to grow — substantial private-label and exclusive offerings as they
strive to differentiate the brands and products they offer from those of their competitors.
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* Other channels, including vertically integrated specialty stores and multi-brand specialty stores, account for
a substantial portion of jeanswear and casual wear sales and have placed competitive pressure on the chain
and department store channels in general.

Our ability to maintain retail floor space, market share and sales in these channels depends on our ability o
offer differentiated and exclusive products and to increase retailer profitability on our products. which could have an
adverse impact on our margins.

In Europe. department stores and independent jeanswear retailers are our primary distribution channels. These
channels have experienced challenges competing against vertically integrated specialty stores. In Asia Pacific,
some of our mature markets are facing challenges evidenced by slower performance by some wholesale customers,
Further success by vertically integrated specialty stores in Europe and continued challenges in the mature markets
of Asia Pacific may adversely affect the sales of our products in those regions,

We depend on a group of key customers for a significant portion of our revenues. A significant adverse
change in a customer relationship or in a customer’s performance or financial position could harm our
business and financial condition.

Net sales to our ten largest customers totaled approximately 42% of total net revenues in both 2007 and 2006.
Our largest customer, 1.C. Penney Company, Inc., accounted for approximately 9% of net revenues in both fiscal
years 2007 and 2006. The retail industry in the United States has experienced substantial consolidation in recent
years, such as the merger of Federated Department Stores, Inc. and May Department Stores Co., both of whom were
leading department store chains and significant Levi's® and Dockers® brand customers in 2005. This trend in
consolidution may continue. Consolidation in the retail industry typically results in store closures, centralized
purchasing decisions, increased customer leverage over suppliers, greater exposure for suppliers to credit risk and
an increased emphasis by retailers on inventory management and productivity, any of which can, and have,
adversely impacted our margins and ability operate efficiently.

Additionally, we believe that our customers are subject to the fluctuations in general economic cycles that
diminish consumer spending which in turn affects their performance and our business and relationship with them.

A decision by a major customer, for any reason, to decrease its purchases from us, to reduce the floor space.
assortments, fixtures or advertising for our products or to change its manner of doing business with us, could
adversely affect our business and financial condition. In addition, while we have long-standing customer
relationships, we do not have long-term contracts with any of our customers. As a result. purchases generally
occur on an order-by-order basis, and the relationship, as well as particular orders, can generally be terminated by
either party at any time,

To grow our business, we must increase brand awareness and sales to female consumers and younger
consumers.

In the United States, our Levi's® and Dockers® brand sales are weighted towards male consumers 35 years and
older. This is due partly to the aging of our traditional consumer, the baby boomer generation, as well as the
presence in the market of multiple brands that appeal o younger consumers. We are striving 10 increase our sales
among women and younger consumers. If we are not successful in driving increased sales with these consumers, our
results of operations and our ability 1o grow will be adversely affected.

Our inability to revitalize our business in certain markets or preduct lines could harm our financial
results.

Given the global reach and nature of our business and the breadth of our product lines, we may experience
business declines in certain markets even while experiencing growth in others. For example. our Signature by Levi
Strauss & Co.™ business declined significantly in 2007 and 2006, attributable to a variety of factors, primarily
U.S. mass channel retailers’ efforts to expand their private-label offerings. In addition, the mature markets in our
Asia Pacific, such as Japan and Korea, region are experiencing challenges. Declines in these areas impact our
overall business performance despite growth in other areas such as Europe, and the cumulative effect of these
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declines could adversely affect our results of operations. Although we have taken, and continue to take, product,
marketing, distribution and organizational actions to reverse such declines, if our actions are not successful on a
sustained basis, our resuits of operations and our ability to grow may be adversely affected.

During the past several years, we have experienced significant changes in senior management. The suc-
cess of our business depends on our ability to attract and retain qualifted and effective senior manage-
ment and board leadership.

We have had substantial change in our senior management team. Our new president and chief executive officer,
R. John Anderson, assumed his position in November 2006. In October 2006, we promoted the president of our
U.S. Levi's® business to also serve as president of our North America region. and we named a new leader of our Asia
Pacific region. In February 2007, we filled the position of president of our European region, which had been vacant
for a year. We replaced our senior human resources executive in June 2007. Robert D. Haas stepped down as our
Chairman of the Board at our recent annual stockholders’ meeting and board member Gary Rogers took his place in
that role. Continuing changes in our senior management group and board leadership could have an adverse effect on
our ability to determine and implement our strategies and on our results of operations.

Increasing the number of company-operated stores will require us to develop new capabilities and
increase our expenditures.

We plan to continue to expand the number of company-operated retail stores dedicated to our brands. Although
we currently operate 200 retail stores. we are primarily a wholesaler and an increase in the number of company-
operated stores will require us to further develop our retailing skills and capabilities. We will be required to enter
into additional leases, increase our rental expenses and make capital expenditures for these stores. These
commitments may be costly to terminate, and these investments may be difficult to recapture if we decide to
close a store or change our strategy. We must find ways to maintain or increase the consumer traffic to our exisling
and new company-operated stores. We must also offer a broad product assortment (especially women'’s and tops),
appropriately manage retail inventory levels, install and operate effective retail systems, execute effective pricing
stralegies and integrate our stores into our overall business mix. Finally, we will need to hire and train additional
qualified employees and incur additional costs to operate these stores, which will increase our operating expenses.
These factors, including those relating to securing retail space and munagement talent, are exacerbated by the fact
that many of our competitors either have large company-operated retail operations today or are seeking to expand
substantially their retail presence.

We must successfully maintain and/or upgrade our information technology systems,

We rely on various information technology systems to manage our operations. We are currently implementing
modifications and upgrades to our systems, including replacing legacy systems with successor systems, making
changes to legacy systems and acquiring new systems with new functionality. For example. we are implementing an
SAP enterprise resource planning system, which we have been implementing in Asia Pacific since 2006 and plan to
have implemented in the United States and our global sourcing organization in Spring 2008. This implementation
subjects us to inherent costs and risks associated with replacing and changing these systems, including impairment
of our ahility to fulfill customer orders, potential disruption of our internal control structure, substantial capital
expenditures, demands on management time and other risks of delays or difficulties in transitioning to new systems
or of integrating new systems into our current systems. Our systems implementations may not result in productivity
improvements at a level that outweighs the costs of implementation. or at all. Any information technology system
disruptions, if not anticipated and appropriately mitigated, could have an adverse effect on our business and
operations.

We rely on contract manufacturing of our products. Our inability to secure production sources meeting
our quality, cost, working conditions and other requirements, or failures by our contractors te perform,
could harm our sales, service levels and reputation.

We source approximately 95% of our products from independent contract manufacturers who purchase fabric
and other raw materials and may also provide us with design and development services. As a result. we must locate
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and secure production capacity. We depend on independent manufacturers (o maintain adequate financial resources,
secure a sufficient supply of raw materials, and maintain sufficient development and manufacturing capacity in an
environment characterized by continuing cost pressure and demands for product innovation and speed-to-market. In
addition, we do not have material long-term contracts with any of ouwr independent manufacturers, and these
manufacturers generally may unilaterally terminate their relationship with us at any time. Finally, we may
experience capability-building and infrastructure challenges as we expand our sourcing o new contractors in
Asia Pacific.

Our dependence on contract manufacturing could subject us to difficulty in obtaining timely delivery of
products of acceptable quality. A contractor's failure to ship products to us in a timely manner or to meet our quality
standards could cause us to miss the delivery date requirements of our customers. In addition, any interference with
our ability to receive shipments from those contractors, such as conditions at ports or issues that otherwise affect
transportation and warehousing providers. could cause delayed delivery of product. Failing to make timely
deliveries may cause our customers to cancel orders, refuse 1o accept deliveries, impose non-compliance charges
through invoice deductions or other charge-backs, demand reduced prices or reduce future orders, any of which
could harm our sales and margins.

We require contractors to meet our standards in terms of working conditions, environmental protection.
security and other matters before we are willing to place business with them. As such, we may not be able to obtain
the lowest-cost production. In addition, the labor and business practices of apparel manufacturers have received
increased attention from the media. non-governmental organizations, consumers and governmental agencies in
recent years. Any failure by our independent manufucturers to adhere to laber or other laws or appropriate labor or
business practices, and the potential litigation, negative publicity and political pressure relating to any of these
events, could harm our business and reputation,

We are a global company with nearly half our revenues coming from our international aperations, which
exposes us to political and economic risks.

We generated approximately 42% of our net revenues from our European and Asia Pacific businesses in 2007
and 2006. A substantial amount of our products came from sources outside of the country of distribution. As aresult,
we are subject to the risks of doing business abroad. including:

* currency fluctuations, which have impacted our results of operations significantly in recent vears;
* changes in tariffs and taxes:

« regulatory restrictions on repatriating foreign funds back to the United States;

* less protective foreign laws relating to intellectual property: and

* political, economic and social instability.

The functional currency for most of our foreign operations is the applicable local currency. As a result.,
fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates affect the results of our operations and the value of our foretgn
assets. which in turn may adversely affect reported earnings and the comparability of period-to-period results of
operations, In addition, we engage in hedging activities 1o manage our foreign currency exposures resuiting from
certain product sourcing activities, some intercompany sales. foreign subsidiaries’ royalty payments, earnings
repatriations. net investment in foreign operations and funding activities. However, our earnings may be subject to
volatility since we do not fully hedge our foreign currency exposures and we are required to record in income the
changes in the market values of our exposure management instruments that do not qualify for hedge accounting
reatment. Changes in currency exchange rates may also affect the relative prices at which we and foreign
competitors sell products in the same market. In addition, changes in the value of the relevant currencics may affect
the cost of certain ttems required in our operations, and foreign policies and actions regarding currency valuation
could result in actions by the United States and other countries to offset the effects.

Furthermore, due 1o our global operations, we are subject to numerons domestic and foreign laws and
regulations affecting our business, such as those related to labor, employment, worker health and safety, antitrust
and competition, environmental protection, consumer protection, import/export and anti-corruption. including but
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not limited to the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act which prohibits giving anything of value intended to influence the
awarding of government contracts. Although we have put into place policies and procedures aimed at ensuring legal
and regulatory compliance, our employees, subcontractors and agents could take actions that violate these
requirements. Violations of these regulations could subject us to criminal or civil enforcement actions, any of
which could have a material adverse effect on our business.

We have made changes in our logistics operations in recent years and continue to look for opportunities
to increase efficiencies.

We have closed several of our distribution centers in recent years and continually work to identify additional
opportunities to optimize our distribution network and reduce total delivered product cost. Changes in logistics and
distribution activities could result in temporary shipping disruptions and expense as we bring new arrangements to
full operation, which could have an adverse effect on our results of operations.

Most of the employees in our production and distribution facilities are covered by collective bargaining
agreements, and any material job actions could negatively affect our results of operations.

In North Ametica, most of our distribution employees are covered by various collective bargaining agree-
ments, and outside North America, most of our production and distribution employees are covered by either
industry-sponsored andfor state-sponsored collective bargaining mechanisms. Any work stoppages or other job
actions by these employees could harm our business and reputation.

Our licensees may not comply with our product quality, manufacturing standards, marketing and other
requirements.

We license our trademarks to third parties for manufacturing, marketing and distribution of various products.
While we enter into comprehensive agreements with our licensees covering product design, product quality,
sourcing, manufacturing, marketing and other requirements, our licensees may not comply fully with those
agreements. Non-compliance could include marketing products under our brand names that do not meet our quality
and other requirements or engaging in manufacturing practices that do not meet our supplier code of conduct. These
activittes could harm our brand equity. our reputation and our business.

Our success depends on the continued protection of our trademarks and other proprietary intellectual
property rights.

Our trademarks and other intellectual property rights are important to our success and competitive position,
and the loss of or inability o enforce trademark and other proprietary intellectual property rights could harm our
business. We devote substantial resources o the establishment and protection of our trademark and other
proprietary intellectual property rights on a worldwide basis. Our efforts to establish and protect our trademark
and other proprietary intellectual property rights may not be adequate to prevent imitation of our products by others
or 1o prevent others from seeking to block sales of our products. Unauthorized copying of our producis or
unauthorized use of our trademarks or other proprietary rights may not only erode sales of our products but may also
cause significant damage to our brand names and our ability to effectively represent ourselves to our customers,
contractors. suppliers and/or licensees. Moreover, others may seek to assert rights in, or ownership of. our
trademarks and other proprietary intellectual property. and we may not be able to successfully resolve those claims.
In addition, the laws and enforcement mechanisms of some forcign countries may not allow us to protect our
proprietary rights to the same extent as we are able 1o in the United States and other countries.

We have substantial liabilities and cash requirements associated with postretirement benefits, pension and
deferred compensation plans, and with our restructuring activities.

Our postretirement benefits, pension, and deferred compensation plans, und our restructuring activities result
in substantial liabilities on our balance sheet. In addition, these plans and activities have and will generate
substantial cash requirements for us, These liabilities may impair our liquidity. have an unfavorable impact on our
ability to obtain financing and place us at a competitive disadvantage compared to some of our competitors who do
not have such liabilities and cash requirements.



Earthquakes or other events outside of our control may damage our facilities or the facilities of third par-
ties on which we depend.

Our corporate headquarters are located in California near major geologic faults that have experienced
earthquakes in the past. An earthquake or other natural disaster could disrupt our operations. Additionally, the
loss of electric power, such as the temporary loss of power caused by power shortages in the grid servicing our
headquarters, could disrupt operations or impair critical systems. Any of these disruptions or other events outside of
our control could affect our business negatively, harming our operating results. In addition, if any of our other
facilities, including our manufacturing, finishing or distribution facilities or our company-operated or franchised
stores, or the facilities of our suppliers or customers are affected by earthquakes, power shortages, floods,
monsoons, terrorism, epidemics or other events outside of our control, our business could suffer.

We will be required to evaluate our internal control over financial reporting under Section 404 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act, Failure to timely comply with the requirements of Section 404 or any adverse results
Jrom such evaluation could result in a loss of investor confidence in our financial reports and have an
adverse effect on the credit ratings and trading price of our debt securities.

We are not currently an “accelerated filer” as defined in Rule 12b-2 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934,
as amended. Beginning with our Annual Report for the year ending November 30, 2008, Section 404 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 will require us to include an internal control report with our Annual Report on
Form 10-K. That report must include management’s assessment of the effectiveness of our internal control over
financial reporting as of the end of the fiscal year. The report must also include disclosure of any material
weaknesses in internal control over financial reporting that we have identified. Beginning with our Annual Report
for the year ending November 29, 2009, our independent registered public accounting firm will also be required to
issue a report on their evaluation of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting. Our assessment
requires us to make subjective judgments and our independent registered public accounting firm may not agree with
our assessment.

Achieving compliance with Section 404 within the prescribed period may require us to incur significant costs
and expend significant time and management resources. We cannot assure you that we will be able to complete the
work necessary for our management 10 issue its management report in a timely manner, or that we will be able to
complete any work required for our management to be able to conclude that our internal control over financial
reporting is operating effectively. If we are not able to complete the assessment under Section 404 in a timely
manner, we and our independent registered public accounting firm would be unable to conclude that our internai
control over financial reporting is effective as of the relevant period. As a result, investors could lose contidence in
our reported financial information, which could have an adverse effect on the trading price of our debt securities,
negatively affect our credit rating, and affect our ability to borrow funds on favorable terms.

Risks Relating to Qur Debt

We have debt and interest payment requirements at a level that may restrict our future operations.

As of November 25, 2007, we had approximately $2.0 billion of debt, of which all but approximately
$250 million was unsecured, and we had approximately $368.6 million of additional borrowing capacity under our
senior secured revolving credit facility. Qur substantiat debt requires us to dedicate a major portion of any cash flow
from operations to the payment of interest and principal due under our debt, which will reduce funds available for
other business purposes, and result in us having lower net income than we would otherwise have had. It could also
have important adverse consequences to holders of our securities. For example, it could:

* increase our vulnerability to general adverse economic and indusiry conditions;
= timit our flexibility in planning for or reacting to changes in our business and industry;
» place us at a competitive disadvantage compared to some of our competitors that have less debt; and

« limit our ability to obtain additional financing required to fund working capital and capital expenditures and
for other general corporate purposes.
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In addition, borrowings under our senior secured revolving credit facility are at variable rates of interest. Qur
unsecured term loan also bears interest at a variable rate. As a result, increases in market interest rates would require
a greater portion of our cash flow to be used to pay interest, which could further hinder our operations and affect the
trading price of our debt securities. Our ability to satisfy our obligations and to reduce our total debt depends on our
future operating performance and on economic, financial, competitive and other factors, many of which are beyond
our control.

Restrictions in our notes indentures, unsecured term loan and senior secured revolving credit facility may
limit our activities, including dividend payments, share repurchases and acquisitions.

The indentures relating to our senior unsecured notes, our Yen-denominated Eurobonds, our unsecured term
loan and our senior secured revolving credit facility contain restrictions, including covenants limiting our ability to
incur additional debt, grant liens, make acquisitions and other investments, prepay specified debt, consolidate,
merge or acquire other businesses, sell assets, pay dividends and other distributions, repurchase stock and enter into
transactions with affiliates. These restrictions, in combination with our leveraged condition, may make it more
difficult for us to successfully execute our business strategy, grow our husiness or compete with companies not
similarly restricled.

If our foreign subsidiaries are unabie to distribute cash to us when needed, we may be unable to satisfy
our obligations under our debt securities, which could force us to sell assets or use cash that we were
planning to use elsewhere in our business.

We conduct our international operations through foreign subsidiaries, and therefore we depend upon funds
from our foreign subsidiaries for a portion of the funds necessary to meet our debt service obligations, We only
receive the cash that remains after our foreign subsidiaries satisfy their obligations. Any agreements our foreign
subsidiaries enter into with other parties, as well as applicable laws and regulations limiting the right and ability of
non-U.S. subsidiaries and affiliates to pay dividends and remit cash to affiliated companies, may restrict the ability
of our foreign subsidiaries (o pay dividends or make other distributions to us. If those subsidiaries are unable to pass
on the amount of cash that we need, we will be unable to make payments on our debt obligations, which could force
us to sell assets or use cash that we were planning on using elsewhere in our business, which could hinder our
operations and affect the trading price of our debt securities.

Our approach to corporate governance may lead us to take actions that conflict with our creditors’ inter-
ests as holders of our debt securifies.

All of our common stock is owned by a voting trust described under “Item 12 — Security Ownership of
Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters.” Four voting trustees have the
exclusive ability to elect and remove directors, amend our by-laws and take other actions which would normally be
within the power of stockholders of a Delaware corporation. Although the voting trust agreement gives the holders
of two-thirds of the outstanding voting trust certificates the power to remove trustees and terminate the voting trust,
three of the trustees, as a group based on their ownership of voting trust certificates, have the ability to block all
efforts by the two-thirds of the holders of the voting trust certificates to remove a trustee or terminate the voting
trust. In addition, the concentration of voting trust certificate ownership in a small group of holders, including these
three trustecs, gives this group the voting power to block stockholder action on matters for which the holders of the
voting trust certificates are entitled to vote and direct the trustees under the voting trust agreement.

Our principal stockholders created the voting trust in part to ensure that we would continue to operate in a
socially responsible manner while seeking the greatest long-term benetit for our stockholders, employees and other
stakeholders and constituencies. As a result, we cannot assure that the voting trustees will cause us to be operated
and managed in a manner that benefits our creditors or that the interests of the voting trustees or our principal equity
holders will not diverge from our creditors.

Item 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

Not applicable.




Item 2. PROPERTIES

We conduct manufacturing, distribution and administrative activities in owned and leased facilities. We
operate five manufacturing-related facilities abroad and 12 distribution-only centers around the world. We have
renewal rights for most of our property leases. We anticipate that we will be able to extend these leases on terms
satisfactory to us or, if necessary, locate substitute facilities on acceptable terms. We believe our facilities and
equipment are in good condition and are suitable for our needs. Information aboul our key operating properties in
use as of November 25, 2007, is summarized in the following table:

Location Primary Use Leased/Owned

North America

Hebron, KY........... .. ... .. ... Distribution Owned
Canton, MS . ....... ... ... ... ... Distribution Owned
Henderson, NV . . ... .. .. ... ... ..... Distribution Owned
Westlake, TX . ... . .. ... ... Data Center Leased
Etobicoke, Canada . ................ Distribution Owned
Naucalpan, Mexico .. .. ............. Distribution Leased
Europe

Heusenstamm, Germany . ............ Distribution Owned
Kiskunhalas. Hungary .. ............. Manufacturing and Finishing Owned
Milan, Italy . . ... .. ... .. .. o . Distribution Leased
Plock, Poland . .......... ... ... .. Manufacturing and Finishing Leased
Warsaw, Poland. . ... ... .. ... ... ... Distribution Leased
Northhampton, UK. ... ... ... .. ... Distribution Owned
Sabadell, Spain . . .............. ..., Distribution Leased
Asia Pacific

Adelaide, Australia .. ... ... .. ... Distribution Leased
Cape Town, South Africa ............ Manufacturing, Finishing and Distribution Leased
Corly, Turkey .. ...... ... ... ... ..... Manufacturing, Finishing and Distribution Owned
Dongguan, China . ................. Manufacturing Leased'"
Hiratsuka Kanagawa, Japan........... Distribution Owned™®
Makati, Philippines . ... ............. Manufacturing Leased

(1) A third party operates production activities for us in this facility.

(2) Owned by our 84%-owned Japanese subsidiary.

Our global headquarters and the headquarters of our North America region are both located in leased premises
in San Francisco, California. Our Europe and Asia Pacific headquarters are located in leased premises in Brussels,
Belgium and Singapore, respectively. As of November 25, 2007, we also leased or owned 104 administrative and
sales offices in 40 countries, as well as leased a small number of warehouses in four countries. We own or lease
several facilities that are no longer in operation that we are working to sell or sublease.

In addition, as of November 25, 2007, we had 200 company-operated retail and outlet stores in leased premises
in 22 countries. We had 73 stores in the North America region, 71 stores in the Europe region and 56 stores in the
Asia Pacific region. In 2007, we opened 67 company-operated stores and closed five stores.




Item 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

Wrongful termination litigation.  On April 14, 2003, two former employees of our tax department filed a
complaint in the Superior Court of the State of California for San Francisco County in which they allege that they
were wrongfully terminated in December 2002. Plaintiffs allege, among other things, that Levi Strauss & Co.
engaged in a variety of fraudulent tax-motivated transactions over several years, that we manipulated tax reserves to
inflate reported income and that we fraudulently failed to set appropriate valuation allowances against deferred tax
assets. They also allege that, as a result of these and other tax-related transactions, our financial statements for
several years violated generally accepted accounting principles in the United States and Securities and Exchange
Commission (“SEC") regulations and are fraudulent and misleading, that reported net income for these years was
overstaied and that these various activities resulted in our paying excessive and improper bonuses to management
for fiscal year 2002. Plaintiffs in this action further allege that they were instructed by us to withheld information
concerning these matters from our independent registered public accounting firm and the Internal Revenue Service
(“IRS™). that they refused to do so and, because of this refusal, they were wrongfully terminated. Plaintiffs seek a
number of remedies, including compensatory and punitive damages, attorneys’ fees, restitution, injunctive relief
and any other relief the court may find proper.

On March 12, 2004, plaintiffs filed a complaint in the U.S. District Court for the Northern District of
California, San Jose Division, Case No. C-04-01026. In this complaint, in addition to restating the allegations
contained in the state complaint, plaintiffs assert that we violated Sections 154 1A et seq. of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act
by taking adverse employment actions against plaintiffs in retaliation for plaintiffs’ lawful acts of compliance with
the administrative reporting provisions of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act. Plaintiffs seck a number of remedies, including
compensatory damages, interest lost on all earnings and benefits, reinstatement, litigation costs, attorneys’ fees and
any other relief that the court may find proper. The district court has now related this case to the securities class
action (described below) styled In re: Levi Strauss & Co. Securities Litigation.

On December 7, 2004, plaintiffs requested and we agreed to, a stay of their state court action in order to first
proceed with their action in the U.S. District Court for the Northern District of California, San Jose Division, Case
No. C-04-01026. Trial of plaintiffs’ Sarbanes-Oxley Act claim, plaintiffs’ defamation ¢laim and our counter-claims
is currently set for May 27, 2008.

We are vigorously defending these cases and are pursuing our related cross-complaint against the plaintiffs in
the state case. We do not expect this litigation to have a material impact on our financial condition, results of
operations or cash flows.

Class actions securities litigation,  On March 29, 2004, the United States District Court for the Northern
District of California, San Jose Division, issued an order consolidating two putative bondholder class-actions
(styled Orens v. Levi Strauss & Co., et al. and General Retirement System of the City of Detroit, et al. v. Levi
Strauss & Co., et al.) against us, a former chief executive officer, a former chief financial officer, a former corporate
controller, our former and current directors and financial institutions alleged to have acted as our underwriters in
connection with our April 6, 2001, and June 16, 2003, registered bond offerings. Additionally, the court appointed a
lead plaintiff and approved the selection of lead counsel. The consolidated action is styled /n re Levi Strauss & Co.,
Securities Litigation, Case No. C-03-05605 RMW (class action).

The action purports to be brought on behalf of purchasers of our bonds who made purchases pursuant or
traceable to our prospectuses dated March 8, 2001, or April 28, 2003, or who purchased our bonds in the open
market from January 10, 2001, to October 9, 2003. The action makes claims under the federal securities laws,
including Sections | | and 15 of the Securities Act and Sections 10(b) and 20(a) of the Exchange Act, relating to our
SEC filings and other public statements. Specifically, the action alleges that certain of our financial statements and
other public statements during this period materially overstated our net income and other financial results and were
otherwise false and misleading, and that our public disclosures omitted to state that we made reserve adjustments
that plaintiffs allege were improper. Plaintiffs contend that these statements and omissions caused the trading price
of our bonds to be artificially inflated. Plaintiffs seek compensatory damages as well as other relief.

On May 26, 2004, the court related this action to the federal wrongful termination action discussed above, such
that each action is pending before the same judge. On July 15, 2004, we filed a motion to dismiss this action. On
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September 11, 2007. in the matter /n re Levi Strauss & Co., Securities Litigation, Case No. C-03-05605 RMW,
pending before the United States District Court for the Northern District of California, San Jose Division, the Court
dismissed the Section 10(b) and 20(a) claims and dismissed the tax fraud aspects of the Section 11 and 15 claims.
The Court also limited the plaintiff class on the Section 11 and 15 claims by eliminating from the class those
bondholders who purchased the bonds in private offerings and then exchanged them for registered bonds in the
subsequent exchange offer. Plaintiffs filed an amended complaint with respect to the tax-fraud claims January 14,
2008, and we stipulated with the plaintiffs that our response will be due on or before March 21, 2008, subject to
court approval.

We are vigorously defending this case. We cannot currently predict the impact, if any, that this action may have
on our financial condition, results of operations or cash flows.

Other litigation. In the ordinary course of business, we have various other pending cases involving
contractual matters, employee-related matters, distribution questions, product liability claims, trademark infringe-
ment and other matters. We do not believe there are any of these pending legal proceedings that will have a material
impact on our financial condition, results of operations or cash flows.

Item 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TQ A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

No matters were submitted to a vote of our security holders during the fourth quarter of the fiscal year ended
November 25, 2007.




PART II

Item 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS
AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

All outstanding shares of our common stock are deposited in a voting trust, a legal arrangement that transfers
the voting power of the shares to a trustee or group of trustees. The four voting trustees are Miriam L. Haas, Peter E.
Haas, Ir., Robert D. Haas and F. Warren Hellman, three of whom are also directors. The voting trustees have the
exclusive ability to elect and remove directors, amend our by-laws and take certain other actions which would
normally be within the power of stockhelders of a Delaware corporation. Our equity holders, who. as a resuit of the
voting trust. legally hold “voting trust certificates.” not stock, retain the right to direct the trustees on specified
mergers and business combinations, liquidations, sales of substantiably all of our assets and specified amendments
to our certificate of incorporation.

The voting trust will last untit April 2011, unless the trustees unanimously decide, or holders of at least two-
thirds of the outstanding voting trust certificates decide, to terminate it earlier. If Robert D. Haas ceases to be a
trustee for any reason, then the question of whether to continue the voting trust will be decided by the holders. The
existing trustees will select the successors to the other trustees. The agreement among the stockholders and the
trustees creating the voting trust contemplates that, in selecting successor trustees, the trustees will attempt to select
individuals who share a common viston with the sponsors of the 1996 recapitalization transaction that gave rise o
the voting trust, represent and reflect the financial and other interests of the equity holders and bring a balance of
perspectives to the trustee group as a whele. A trustee may be removed if the other three trustees unanimously vote
for removal or if holders of at least two-thirds of the outstanding voting trust certificates vote for removat.

Our common stock and the voting trust certificates are not publicly held or traded. All shares and the voting
trust certificates are subject to a stockholders’ agreement, The agreement, which expires in April 2016, limits the
transfer of shares and certificates to other holders, family members, specified charities and foundations and back to
the Company. The agreement does not provide for registration rights or other contractual devices for forcing a
public sale of shares or centificates, or other access to liquidity. The scheduled expiration date of the stockholders’
agreement is five years later than that of the voting trust agreement in order to permit an orderly transition from
effective control by the voting trust trustees to direct control by the stockholders.

As of February 1, 2008, there were 177 record holders of voting trust certificates. Our shares are not registered
on any national securities exchange, there is no established public trading market for our shares and none of our
shares are convertible into shares of any other class of stock or other securities,

We have not dectared or paid any cash dividends on our common stock since 1996. We may elect to declare and
pay cash dividends in the future at the discretion of our board of directors and depending upon our financial
condition and compliance with the terms of our debt agreements. Qur senior secured revolving credit facility and the
indentures governing our senior unsecured notes limit our ability to pay dividends. For more detailed information
about these limitations, see Note 5 to our audited consolidated financial statements included in this report,

We did not repurchase any of our common stock during the fourth quarter of the fiscal year ended
November 25, 2007, )
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Item 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following table sets forth our selected historical consolidated financial data which are derived from our
consolidated financial statements that have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP. an independent
registered public accounting firm. in 2007, and KPMG LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm.
for 2006, 2005, 2004 and 2003, The financial data set forth below should be read in conjunction with. and are
qualified by reference to, “ltem 7 — Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations”. our consolidated financial statements for 2007, 2006 and 2005 and the related notes to those
consolidated financial statements, included elsewhere in this report,

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
November 25, November 26, November 27, November 28, November 30,
2007 2006 20015 2004 2003

(Dollars in thousands)

Statements of Operations Data:

Netsales ..., .. 34,266,108 $4,106.572 $ 4,150,931 $4,093615 $ 4,106,452
Licensing revenue ................ 94,821 86.375 73.879 57,117 43,973
Netrevenues .................. 4,360.929 4,192,947 4,224 810 4,150,732 4,150,425
Costof goodssold .. .............. 2.318.883 2,216,562 2.236.962 2.288.406 2,516,521
Gross profit ......... ... ....... 2,042,046 1,976,385 1,987,848 1,862,326 1,633,904
Selling, general and administrative
EXPENSES. . . oo v 1,386,547 1,348,577 1,381,955 1,367.604 1,231,546
Restructuring charges. net. . ......... 14,458 14.149 16,633 133,623 89,009
Operating income . ... ........... 641,041 613.659 589.260 361,099 313.349
Interest expense . .. ... ............ 215,715 250,637 263,650 260,124 254,265
Loss on early extinguishment of debt . . 63.838 40,278 66.066 — 39.353
Other (income) expense, net . ........ (14.138) (22,418) {23,057) 5,450 51.023
Income (loss) before taxes ........ 375,626 345,162 282,601 95,525 (31.292)
Income tax (benefit) expense'. . ... .. (84.759) 106,159 126,654 65.135 318,025
Net income (1088) . ... ..o, $ 460,385 $ 239003 $ 155947 $ 30390 S (349.317)
Statements of Cash Flow Data:
Cash flows from operating activities ... $ 302271 $ 261,880 $ (43.777) $§ 199.8%6 $ (190,650)
Cash flows from investing activities . . . (107,277) (69.597) (34,657 (12.930) (84,484)
Cash flows from financing activities . . . {325.534) {155,228) 23,072 (32,120) 349,096
Balance Sheet Data:
Cash and cash equivalents ... ....... $ 155914 $ 279501 $§ 239584 § 299506 § 143445
Working capital .. ......... .. . ..., 647.256 805,976 657,374 609,072 778,311
Total assets . ............. 0o u-. 2,850,666 2.804,065 2,804,134 2,884,749 2,923,598
Total debt, excluding capital leases . . . . 1,960,406 2217412 2,326,699 2,323,888 2,316,429
Total capital leases. . .............. 8,177 4,694 5.587 7.441 —
Stockholders’ deficit® ... .......... (398.029) {994,047y  (1.222,085) (1,370.924) (1,393,172)
Other Financial Data:
Depreciation and amortization . ... ... $ 67514 $ 62249 $§ 59423 § 62606 B 64176
Capital expenditures . . .. ........... 92,519 77,080 41,868 16,299 68,608

(1) 1In January 2004, we revised the forecast we used in valuing our net deferred tax assets for 2003. Based on this revised long-term forecast, we
increased our valvation allowance against deferred tax assets by $282.4 million for 2003.

In the fourth guarter of 2007, as a result of improvements in business performance and recent positive developments in an ongoing IRS
examination, we reversed valuation allowances against our deferred tax assets lor foreign tax credit carryforwards, as we belicve that it is
more likely than not that these credits will be utilized prior to their expiration.

(2) Stockholders’ deficit primarily resulted from a 1996 recapitalization transaction in which our stockholders created new long-term
governance arrangements for us, including the voting trust and stockholders™ agreement. Funding for cash payments in the recapitalization
was provided in part by cash on hand and in part from approximately $3.3 billion in borrowings under bank credit facilities.
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Item 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Overview
Our Company

We design and market jeans, casual and dress pants, tops, jackets and related accessories for men, women and
children under our Levi's®, Dockers® and Signature by Levi Strauss & Co.™ (“Signature”) brands in mature and
emerging markets around the world. We also license our trademarks in many countries throughout the world for a
wide array of products, including accessories, pants, tops, footwear, home and other products.

Our business i operated through three geographic regions: North America, Europe and Asia Pacific. Qur
products are sold in over 60,000 retail locations in more than 110 countries. We support our brands through a global
infrastructure, as we both source and market our products around the world. We distribute our Levi’s® and Dockers®
products primarily through chain retailers and department stores in the United States and primarily through
department stores, specialty retailers and franchised stores abroad. We distribute products under the Signature by
Levi Strauss & Co.™ brand primarily through mass channel retailers in the United States and mass and other value-
oriented retailers and franchised stores abroad. We also distribute our Levi's® and Dockers® products through our
online stores, and our Levi's®, Dockers® and Signature products through 200 company-operated stores located in 22
countries, including the United States. These stores generated approximately 6% of our net revenues in 2007,

We derived nearly half of our net revenues and regional operating income from our European and Asia Pacific
businesses in 2007. Sales of Levi’s® brand products represented approximately 73% of our total net sales in 2007.
Pants, including jeans, casual pants and dress pants, represented approximately 87% of our total units sold in 2007,
and men’s products generated approximately 72% of our total net sales,

Trends Affecting our Business
We believe the key marketplace factors affecting us include the following:

* Apparel markets are mature in established markets such as the United States, western Europe, Japan and
Korea due in part to demographic shifts and the existence of appealing discretionary purchase alternatives.
Opportunities for major brands are increasing in rapidly growing emerging markets such as India and
China.

* Brand and produect proliferation continues around the world as companies compete with increased numbers
of differentiated brands and products targeted for specific consumer and retail segments. In addition, the
ways of marketing these brands are changing to new mediums, challenging the effectiveness of more mass-
market approaches such as television advertising. :

= Wholesaler/retailer dynamics are changing as retailers continue to consolidate and as our wholesale
customers build competitive exclusive or private-label offerings. In addition, traditional wholesalers
increasingly are investing in their own retail store distribution network.

= More competitors are seeking growth globally and are raising the competitiveness of the internaticnal
markets in which we already have an established presence.

* Quality low-cost sourcing alternatives continue to emerge around the world, resulting in pricing pressure
and minimal barriers to entry for new competitors. In addition, these sourcing alternatives enable
competitors that attract consumers with a constant flow of competitively-priced new products that reflect
the newest styles and bring additional pressure on traditional wholesalers and retailers to shorten their lead-
times and become more responsive to trends.

» Continued pressures in the U.S. housing market, interest rates and energy prices are impacting consumer
discretionary spending, creating a challenging retail environment for us and our customers.

+ The global nature of our business exposes us to earnings volatility resulting from exchange rate
fluctuations.
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These factors contribute to a market environment of intense competition, constant product innovation and
continuing cosl pressure throughout the supply chain from manufacturer to consumer. We believe we have the right
strategies, capabilities and team in place to address both our challenges and our opportunitics in the current
competitive environment.

Our 2007 Results
Our 2007 results reflect continued growth, operating cash flow generation and debt reduction:

* Net revenues. Our consolidated net revenues increased by 4% on a reported basis and 1% excluding the
benefit of favorable foreign currency exchange rates as compared to the prior year, reflecting growth in our
Asia Pacific and Europe regions and stability in our North America region. Growth in our emerging markets
such as China and India, across Europe, and in our U.S. Levi’s® brand, all of which are reflecting incremental
sales from dedicated stores, drove the increase. Our consolidated growth was stronger in the first half of the
year but stowed in the second half as our Nerth America region was impacted by an increasingly challenging
retail environment.

* Operating income. Our operating income increased $27 million from the prior year, primarily due to our
recording of a higher postretirement benefit plan curtailment gain in 2007 as compared to 2006. Our gross
margin and operating margin remained strong at 47% and 15%, respectively, while we continued to invest in
the expansion of our retail network and in the implementation and upgrade of our information technology
systems.

* Netincome. Netincome grew 93% to $460 million as compared to the prior year. Due to improvements in
business performance and recent positive developments in an ongoing IRS examination, we recorded a non-
recurring, non-cash reversal of deferred tax asset valuation allowances totaling approximately $215 million
against our foreign tax credit carryforwards. Additionally, we had lower interest expense resulting from our
debt refinancing activities in 2006 and 2007,

* Cash flows. Cash flows provided by operating activities were $302 million in 2007 as compared (o
$262 million in 2006. The increase primarily reflects continued discipline in our working capital man-
agement. We used cash on hand to reduce our debt in the second and fourth quarters of 2007, and we have
continued to invest in information technology systems and retail expansion.

= Debt reduction. In fiscal year 2007, we completed two debt refinancing actions by refinancing our
outstanding $380 million floating rate notes due 2012 through borrowings under a new senior unsecured
term loan and use of cash on hand in April 2007, and by repurchasing more than 95% of our outstanding
$525 million 12.25% senior notes due 2012 through borrowings under an amended and restated senior
secured revolving credit facility and use of cash on hand in October 2007. These actions, along with
refinancing actions undertaken in 2006, significantly contributed to a reduction in our weighted-average
interest rate from 10.23% for 2006 to 9.59% for 2007 and reduced our gross debt balance by more than
$250 million.

Our Objectives

Qur key objectives are to strengthen our brands globally in order to sustain profitable growth, continue to
generate strong cash flow and further reduce our debt. Critical strategies to achieve this include driving continued
product and marketing innovation, driving sales growth through enhancing relationships with wholesale customers
and expanding our dedicated store network, and enhancing productivity through systems improvements, optimizing
the cost of our products without sacrificing quality, and continuing our disciplined working capital management.
We are cautious in 2008 given the current eccnomic envirenment.

Financial Information Presentation

Fiscal year. Qur fiscal year consists of 52 or 533 weeks, ending on the last Sunday of November in each year.
The 2007, 2006 and 2005 fiscal years consisted of 52 weeks ending on November 25, 2007, November 26, 2006,
and November 27, 2003, respectively. Each quarter of fiscal years 2007, 2006 and 2005 consisted of 13 weeks.
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Segments.  Our business in 2007 was organized into three geographic regions: North America, Europe and
Asia Pacific. As a result of establishing a new North America organization in late 2006, we changed our reporting
segments in the first quarter of 2007 to align with the new operating structure; results for our U.S. Levi's®, Dockers®
and Signature brands. and our Canada and Mexico business, are included in our North America segment. In
addition, we began including in the North America segment certain staff costs previously included in corporate
expense., Segment disclosures contained in this Form 10-K conform to the new presentation for all reporting
periods,

Effective as of the beginning of 2008, our reporting segments were revised as follows: our Latin America
market moved to our North America regton which is being renamed as the Americas region as a result of the change,
and our Turkey, Middle East and North Africa markets moved to Europe; all of these markets were previously
managed by our Asia Pacific region. Future financial reporting will reflect these and any subsequent segment
changes.

Classification.  Our classification of certain significant revenues and expenses reflecis the following:

= Net sales is primarily comprised of sales of products to wholesale customers, including franchised stores.
and of direct sales to consumers at both our company-operated and online stores. It includes allowances for
estimated returns, discounts, and promotions and incentives.

« Licensing revenue consists of royalties earned from the use of our trademarks in connection with the
manufacturing, advertising and distnibution of trademarked products by third-party licensees.

« Cost of goods sold is primarily comprised of cost of materials, labor and manufacturing overhead, and also
includes the cost of inbound freight, internal transfers, and receiving and inspection at manufacturing
facilities.

« Selling costs include, among other things, all occupancy costs associated with company-operated stores.

« We reflect substantially all distribution costs in selling, general and administrative expenses. including costs
related to receiving and inspection at distribution centers, warchousing, shipping, handling, and other
activities associated with our distribution network.

Constant currency. Constanl currency comparisons are based on current period local currency amounts,
translated at the same foreign exchange rates utilized in the corresponding period in the prior year. We routinely
evaluate our constant currency financial performance in order to facilitate period-to-pericd comparisons without
regard to the impact of changing foreign currency exchange rates.
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Results of Operations
2007 compared to 2006

The following table summarizes, for the periods indicated. the consolidated statements of income, the changes
in these items from period to period and these items expressed as a percentage of net revenues:

Year Ended

November 285, November 26,

%o 2007 2006
November 25, Novemntber 26, Increase % of Net % of Net
2007 2006 (Decrease) Revenues Revenues
(Dollars in millions)

Netsales...................... $4.260.1 54,106.5 3.9% 97.8% 97.9%
Licensing revenue . .. ..........., 94.8 86.4 9.8% 2.2% 2.1%

Net revenues . . ............... 4,360.9 41929 4.0% 100.0% 100.0%
Costof goods sold. . ............. 23189 2,216.5 4.6% 53.2% 52.9%

Grossprofit.................. 2,042.0 1,976.4 3.3% 46.8% 47.1%
Selling, general and administrative

EXPENSES . vt v v v e i 1,386.5 1,348.6 2.8% 31.8% 32.2%
Restructuring charges. net ... ... ... 14.5 14.1 2.2% 0.3% 03%

Operating income. . . ........... 641.0 613.7 4.5% 14.7% 14.6%
Interest expense. . . .............. 215.7 250.6 (13.9% 4.9% 6.0%
Loss on early extinguishment of

debt.. . ... ... . ... L 63.8 40.3 58.5% 1.5% 1.0%
Other income, net . .............. (14.1) (22.4) (36.9)% (0.3)% (0.5)%

Income before income taxes. . . . .. 375.6 345.2 8.8% 8.6% 8.2%
Income tax (benefit) expense . ... ... (84.8) 106.2 (179.8)% (1.9)% 2.5%

Netincome .................. $ 4004 $ 239.0 92.6% 10.6% 5.7%

Consolidated net revenues

The following table presents net revenues by reporting segment for the periods indicated and the changes in net
revenues by reporting segment on both reported and constant currency bases from period to period:
Year Ended
% Increase {Decrease)

November 25, November 26, As Constant
2007 2006 Reported  Currency

(Dollars in millions)

Net revenues:

North America ............. .. ..., $2,541.3 $2,533.5 0.3% 0.1%
Europe ....... .. 1,016.2 898.0 13.2% 3.8%
Asia Pacific. . .......... ... ... .. ... ... 804.6 761.4 5.7% 2.9%
Corporate . ... .. .. i e (1.2) — — —
Total net revenues . .. ........ e $4,360.9 $4,192.9 4.0% 1.49%

Consolidated net revenues increased on both reported and constant currency bases for the year ended
November 25, 2007, as compared to the prior year. Reported amounts were affected favorably by changes in
foreign currency exchange rates, particularly in Europe.

North America.  On both reported and constant currency bases, net revenues in North America were stable as
compared to the prior year. Changes in foreign currency exchange rates did not affect net revenues significantly.
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We faced a challenging retail environment in North America in 2007 as growth in the first half of the year was
offset by declines in the second half. Net revenues increased for the U.S. Levi’s® brand, our largest business,
primarily driven by growth in the men’s category, particularly Red Tab™ products, and increased sales in our retail
network, primarily from new company-operated stores; these increases were partially offset by a decline in the
women'’s business. Net revenues for the U.S. Dockers® brand grew slightly due to higher sales of women’s products
driven by favorable customer response to our seasonal and fashion products; the men’s business was stable with
growth in the first half of the year partially offset by declines in the second half due to market conditions,
particularly the impact of retail consclidation and the loss of a customer early in the year. Increases in both
U.S. Levi's® and U.S. Dockers® brands were partially offset by higher sales allowances and discounts as compared
to the prior-year to clear seasonal inventories and to support our customers, including promotional programs. We
also had continued net revenue declines for the U.S. Signature brand.

Europe. Netrevenues in Europe increased on both reported and constant currency bases, Changes in foreign
currency exchange rates affected net revenues favorably by approximately $84 miilion.

Net revenues increased on a constant currency basis in both our retail and wholesale channels, led by increased
sales in the Levi’s® brand, partially offset by the reduction in sales volume related to the withdrawal of Signature
brand products in the second quarter of 2007. Increased sales in our dedicated store network, both from company-
operated and franchised stores, and a higher proportion of premium-priced products, particularly Levi's® Red Tab™
products, were key contributors to the net sales increase. We exited the Signature brand in Evrope after the Spring
2007 season due to limited expansion opportunities in the value channel in Europe and to focus on our Levi’s® and
Dockers® brands.

Asia Pacific. Net revenues in Asia Pacific increased on both reported and constant currency bases, Changes
in foreign currency exchange rates affected net revenues favorably by approximately $21 million.

Net revenues increased on a constant currency basis primarily due to growth in our Levi’s® brand. Dedicated
stores continued to drive growth in the region with the addition of company-operated and franchised stores. Net
sales were strong in most markets, with growth particularly concentrated in our emerging markets. Certain of our
mature markets continue to be challenging, primarily due to the persistence of high inventories held by our
wholesale customers that reduced their demand for additional Levi’s® products.

Gross profit

The following table shows consolidated gross profit and gross margin for the periods indicated and the changes
in these items from pertod to period:

Year Ended
%o
November 25, November 26, Increase
2007 2006 (Decrease)
{Dollars in millions)

Net TEVEMUES . . . . oottt ettt et et e e $4,360.9 $4,192.9 4.0%

Costofgoodssold .......... ... ... .. ... .. .. 23189 2,216.5 4.6%

Grossprofit . ... .. . e $2,042.0 $1,976.4 3.3%
Gross margin .. . ... ... ... e 46.8% 47.1% 0.3 pp

Our gross margin decreased slightly for the year ended November 25, 2007, as compared to the prior year.
Gross margins declined in North America and Asia Pacific, and increased in Europe. In North America, gross
margin was impacted primarily by higher sales allowances and discounts as described above. In Asia Pacific, gross
margin was impacted primarily by higher inventory markdown activity and higher sales of closeout products due to
high inventory at retail. In Europe, the increase in gross margin was primarily due to lower sourcing costs and the
increase in net sales from company-operated stores. The increase in consolidated gross profit was primarily driven
by changes in foreign currency exchange rates.
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Our gross margins may not be comparable to those of other companies in our indusiry, since some companies
may include costs related to their distribution network and occupancy costs associated with company-operated
stores in cost of goods sold,

Selling, general and administrative expenses

The following table shows our selling, general and administrative expenses (“SG&A™) for the periods
indicated, the changes in these items from period to pericd and these items expressed as a percentage of net
revenues:

Year Ended
November 25, November 26,
% 2007 2006
November 25, November 26, Increase % of Net % of Net
2007 2006 (Decrease) Revenues Revenues
(Dollars in millions)

Selling .............. ... .... £ 3706 $ 303.2 22.2% 8.5% 7.2%
Advertising and Promotion. ... ... .. 277.0 2853 2.9Y% 6.4% 6.8%
Administration. . . ............... 3020 3347 (9.8)% 6.9% 8.0%
Postretirement benefit plan

curtailment gains . .. ........... (52.8) (25.0) 81.7% (1.2)% (0.7)Y%
Other. ........ .. ... ... ... .... 489.7 454 4 7.8% 11.2% 10.8%

Total SG&A . ................ $1.386.5 $1,348.6 2.8% 31.8% 32.2%

Total SG&A expenses increased $37.9 million for the year ended November 25, 2007, as compared to the prior
year. Changes in foreign currency exchange rates contributed approximately $44 million to the increase in SG&A
expenses.

Selling.  Selling expenses increased across all business segments, primarily reflecting higher selling costs
associated with additional company-operated stores and our business growth in Asia Pacific.

Advertising and promotion. The decrease in advertising and promotion expenses pnmarily reflects a
decrease in spending. primarily television media, in North America, particularly in the fourth guarter, in line
with the region’s net revenue declines in the second half of the year. This decrease was partially offset by an increase
in media campaign spending in Europe.

Administration. Administration expenses include corporate expenses and other administrative charges.
These expenses decreased as compared to prior year due to a reduction in accruals for our annual and long-
term incentive compensation programs due to business performance below our internally-set objectives. Addi-
tionally, administrative expenses decreased due to the accrual in 2006 of severance and transition expenses related
to changes in senior management. These decreases were partially offset by increases in other administrative
expenses, primarily certain severance costs in Asia Pacific and Europe and higher costs associated with planning for
our SAP implementation in the United States and our global sourcing organization in 2008.

Postretirement benefit plan curtailment gains.  During the third quarter of 2006 and first quarter of 2007, we
recorded postretirement benefit plan curtailment gains of $29.0 million and $25.3 million, respectively. associated
with the closure of our Little Rock, Arkansas, distribution facility. During the second half of 2007, we recorded a
postretirement benefit plan curtailment gain of $27.5 million associated with the voluntary termination of certain
distribution center employees in North America resulting from the new labor agreement we entered into with the
union that represents many of our distribution-related employees in North America. For more information, see
Note !l to our audited consolidated financial statements included in this report.

Other.  Other SG&A costs include distribution, information resources, and marketing costs, gain or loss on
sale of assets and other operating income. These costs increased as compared to prior year primarily reflecting
higher distribution costs related to the separation and buyout costs of the voluntary termination of certain
distribution center employees in North America and the growth in net revenues in the period. These costs also
increased due to higher marketing expenses in support of revenue growth.
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Restructuring charges, net

Restructuring charges, net, increased to $14.5 million for the year ended November 25, 2007, from
$14.1 million for the prior year. The 2007 amount primarily consisted of asset impairment of $9.1 million and
severance charges of $4.3 million recorded in association with the planned closure of our distribution center in
Germany. The 2006 amount primarily consisted of severance charges associated with the closure of our Little Rock,
Arkansas, distribution center, headcount reductions in Europe and additional lease costs associated with exited
facilities in the United States.

Operating income

The following table shows operating income by reporting segment and the significant compoenents of corporate
expense for the periods indicated, the changes in these items from period to period and these items expressed as a
percentage of net revenues:

Year Ended

November 25, November 26,

%o 2007 2006
November 25, November 26, Increase % of Net %o of Net

2007 2006 (Decrease ) Revenues Revenues
’ {Dollary in millions}

Operating income:

North America................... $392.3 $401.9 (2.4)% 15.4% 15.9%
Europe. . ... .. ... ... .. 220.6 1924 14.7% 21.7% 21.4%
Asia Pacific . .......... .. L. 122.5 142.6 (14.1)% 15.2% 18.7%
Total regional operating income . . .. 7354 736.9 (0.2)% 16.9%* 17.6%*
Corporate:
Restructuring charges, net. . ......... 14.5 14.1 2.2% 0.3%* 0.3%*
Postretirement benefit plan curtailment
gANS ... (52.8) (29.0) 81.7% (1.2)%* (0.7Y%*
Other corporate staff costs and
EXPEMSES. « oot 132.7 138.1 (3.9% 3.0%* 3.3%*
Total corporate .. ............... 94.4 123.2 (23.4)% 2.2%* 2.9%*
Total operating income . . .. ....... $641.0 $613.7 4.5% 14.7%* 14.6%*
Operating margin . . . ............ 14.7% 14.6% 0.1 pp

* Percentage of consolidated net revenues

Regional operating income.  The following describes the changes in operating income by reporting segment
for the year ended November 25, 2007, as compared to the prior year:

» North America. Operating income decreased primarily due to the region’s lower wholesale gross margin,
which resulted primarily from higher sales allowances and discounts to clear seasonal inventories, and the
decrease in net sales of our U.S. Signature brand. These decreases were partially offset by the increase in net
sales of our U.S. Levi’s® brand, reflecting increased sales in our retail network, and a decrease in SG&A
expenses as a percentage of net revenues, as the decrease in advertising spending more than offset increases
reflecting our retail expansion and planning for our SAP implementation in 2008,

« Europe. Operating income increased primarily due to the favorable impact of changes in foreign currency
exchange rates and the region’s net revenue growth. Operating margin increased slightly as the region’s gross
margin improvements were partially offset by an increase in SG&A expenses as a percentage of net
revenues. This SG&A increase primarily reflected our continued investment in company-operated retail
expansion and the increase in advertising.
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* Asia Pacific.  Operating income decreased primarily due to the declines in net sales and gross margios in
certain mature markets due primarily to higher inventory markdown activity and higher sales of closeout
products. For the remainder of the region, operating income increases primarily due to increases in net sales
were offset primarily by continued investment in the expansion of our dedicated store network.

Corporate. Corporate expense is comprised of restructuring charges, net. postretirement benefit plan
curtailment gains, and other corporate expenses. including corporate staff costs.

Postretirement benefit plan curtailment gain in both periods relates to the closure of our Little Rock, Arkansas,
distribution center, and with respect to the 2007 period, the voluntary termination of certain distribution center
employees in North America. For more information. see Note 11 to our audited consolidated financial statements
included in this report.

Other corporate staff costs and expenses decreased as compared 1o prior year primarily due to reductions in
long-term incentive compensation expense and executive severance and transition costs. These decreases were
partially offset by certain severance costs in Asia Pacific and Europe. the accrual of distribution expenses related to
the separation and buyout costs of the voluntary termination of certain distribution center employees in North Amer-
ica, increases in other corporate staff costs primarily associated with increased investment in our information
technology systems, and a reduction in our workers” compensation liability reversals.

Corporate expenses in 2007 and 2006 include amortization of prior service benefit of $45.7 million and
$55.1 miilion, respectively. related (o postretirement benefit plan amendments in 2004 and 2003, and workers’
compensation reversals of $8.1 million and $13.8 million. respectively. We will continue to amortize the prior
service benefit: however, we do not expect material workers™ compensation reversals in the future.

Interest expense

Interest expense decreased 13.9% to $215.7 million for the year ended November 25, 2007, from
$250.6 million in the prior year. Lower debt levels and lower average borrowing rates in 2007, which resulted
primarily from our refinancing and debt reduction activities in 2007 and 2006, caused the decrease.

The weighted-average interest rate on average borrowings outstanding for 2007 was 9.59% as compared 10
10.23% for 2006. The weighted-average interest rate on average borrowings outstanding includes the amortization
of capitalized bank fees and underwriting fees. and excludes interest on obligations to participants under deferred
compensation plans.

Loss on early extinguishment of debt

For the year ended November 25, 2007, we recorded a loss of $63.8 million on early extinguishment of debt
primarily as a result of our redemption of our floating rate senior notes due 2012 during the second quarter of 2007
and our repurchase of $506.2 million of the outstanding $525.0 million of our 12.25% senior notes due 2012 during
the fourth quarter of 2007. The 2007 losses were comprised of prepayment premiums, tender offer consideration,
applicable consent payments and other fees and expenses of approximately $46.7 million and the write-off of
approximately $17.1 million of unamortized capitalized costs and debt discount.

For the year ended November 26, 2006, we recorded losses of $40.3 million on early extinguishment of debt
primarily as a result of our prepayment in March 2006 of the remaining balance of our term loan of approximately
$488.8 million, the amendment in May 2006 of our senior secured revolving credit facility and open market
repurchases of $50.0 million of our 2012 senior unsecured notes in November 2006. The 2006 losses were
comprised of prepayment premiums and other fees and expenses of approximately $23.0 million and the write-off
of approximately $17.3 million of unamortized capitalized costs. For more information, see Note 5 to our audited
consolidated financial statements included in this repon,.

Other income, net

Other income. net. primarily consists of foreign exchange management activities and transactions as well as
interest income. For the year ended November 25, 2007. other income decreased to $14.1 million from $22.4 miliion
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for the prior year. The decrease primarily reflects the impact of foreign currency fluctuation, primarily the
weakening of the U.S. Dollar against major foreign currencies including the Euro, the Canadian Dollar and the
Japanese Yen.

Income tax (benefit) expense

Income tax (benefit) expense was $(84.8) million for the year ended November 25, 2007, compared to
$106.2 million for the prior year. The effective tax rate was (22.6)% for the year ended November 23, 2007,
compared to 30.8% for the prior year. The decrease in the effective tax rate for 2007 as compared to 2006 was
primarily driven by a reduction in tax expense of approximately $206.8 million due primarily to the non-recurring,
nan-cash reversal of valuation allowances of $215.3 million during the fourth quarter of 2007 against our deferred
tax assets for foreign tax credit carryforwards. As a result of improvements in business performance and recent
positive developments in an ongoing IRS examination. we believe that it is more likely than not that these credits
will be utilized prior to their expiration, The income 1ax expense of $106.2 million in 2006 included a non-recurring,
non-cash benefit of $31.5 million relating to a reduction in the overall residual U.S. tax expected to be imposed upon
a repatriation of unremitted foreign earnings attributable to a change in the ownership structure of certain of our
foreign affiliates.

Net income

Net income increased to $460.4 million for year ended November 25, 2007, from $239.0 million for the prior
year primarily due to the $206.8 million net tax benefit recorded during 2007. Lower interest expense and the higher
postretirement benefit plan curtailment gain as compared to the prior year alse contributed to the increase.
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2006 compared to 2005

The following table summarizes, for the periods indicated, the consolidated statements of income, the changes
in these items from period to period and these items expressed as a percentage of net revenues:

Year Ended
November 26, November 27,
% 2006 5
November 26, November 27, Increase % of Net % of Net
2006 2005 (Decrease ) Revenues Revenues
{Daollars in millions)

Netsales......................... $4,106.5 $4,150.9 (1.1)% 97.9% 98.3%
Licensing revenue . ................. 86.4 73.9 16.9% 2.1% 1.7%
Nel revenues . ... ................ 4,192.9 42248 {0.8)% 100.0% 100.0%
Costof goodssold. . ................ 2,216.5 2,236.9 (0.9Y% 52.9% 52.9%
Grossprofit ..................... 1,976.4 1,987.9 (0.6)% 47.1% 47.1%

Selling, general and administrative

EXPENSES - . o vttt e 1,348.6 1,382.0 (2.4)Y% 32.2% 32.7%
Restructuring charges, net of reversals . . . 14.1 16.6 (15.1Y% 0.3% 0.4%
Operating income. .. .............. 613.7 589.3 4.1% 14.6% 13.9%
Interest expense . . .. ................ 250.6 263.6 (4.9N% 6.0% 6.2%
Loss on early extinguishment of debt .. .. 40.3 66.1 (39.0)% 1.0% 1.6%
Other income, net . ................. (22.4) (23.0) (2.6)% (0.5)% (0.5)%
Income before income taxes......... 345.2 282.6 22.2% 8.2% 6.7%
Income tax expense . . ............... 106.2 126.7 (16.2)% 2.5% 3.0%
Netincome ..................... $ 2390 $ 1559 53.3% 5.7% 3.7%

Consolidated net revenues

The following table presents net revenues by reporting segment for the periods indicated and the changes in net
revenues by reporting segment on both reported and constant currency bases from period to period:

Year Ended
% Increase (Decrease)
November 26, November 27, As Conslant
2005 Reported Currency

{Dollars in millions)

Net revenues:

North America .................... $2,533.5 $2,5054 1.1% 0.9%
Burope . ............. ... ........ 898.0 990.2 (9.3)% (8.3)%
Asia Pacific. ................ ... ... 761.4 729.2 4.4% 6.5%

Total net revenues .. .............. $4,192.9 $4,224.8 {0.8)% (0.3)%

Consolidated net revenues were stable on both reported and constant currency bases for the year ended
November 26, 2006, as compared to the prior year. Reported amounts were affected unfavorably by changes in
foreign currency exchange rates in Europe and Asia Pacific.

North America.  On both reported and constant currency bases, net revenues in North America were stable as
compared to the prior year. Changes in foreign currency exchange rates did not affect net revenues significantly.

Net revenues for the U.S. Levi's® brand, our largest business, grew in 2006 despite the impact of retail
consolidation. Net revenues in the men’s and women'’s categories were stable in 2006, while the boys’ caiegory
grew as compared to prior vear, New company-operated retait stores and a favorable wholesale sales mix reflecting
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a lower proportion of discounted products in line with our pricing and product strategy, were the primary factors
driving the increase. Higher sales allowances to support our retailers and their promotion of our products partly
offset the gross sales increase. Net revenues for the U.S. Dockers® brand increased from prior year, despite the
impact of retail consolidation, due to growth in both our men’s and women’s categories. We successfully launched
our wearing occasion strategy for men with products designed for work, weekend, dress and golf, introduced our
Dockers® Collection line and increased our seasonal/fashion mix in the women’s category through an overhaul of
the women’s product range. Net revenues for the U.S. Signature brand decreased from prior year primarily due to a
decrease in the women’s category resulting from Wal-Mart Stores, Inc,’s allocation of more retail space to its
private-label programs.

Europe. Net revenues in Europe decreased on both reported and constant currency bases. Changes in foreign
currency exchange rates affected net revenues unfavorably by approximately $10 million,

The decrease in net revenues occurred across all brands, primanily driven by lower demand for our products,
especially in the first half of 2006, and our exit from certain retailers in line with our strategy to strengthen the
premium positioning of the Levi’s® and Dockers® brands in Europe. Increased sales in our dedicated store network,
primarily from company-operated retail stores during the year, partially offset the decrease. Net sales in the second
half of 2006 were stable as compared to prior year, helped by fuvorable currency fluctuation and an improved
product offering.

Asia Pacific.  Net revenues in Asia Pacific increased on both reported and constant currency bases. Changes
in foreign currency exchange rates affected net revenues unfavorably by approximately $15 million.

Net revenues increased on a constant currency basis in most countries across the Asia Pacific region. Increased
sales of Levi's® brand products in both the men’s and women’s categories, the continued expansion of our dedicated
store network, and an increase in licensing revenues drove the revenue increase. However, net revenues for Japan,
the largest affiliate in the region, decreased due to a combination of a change in fushion trends, a weak advertising
campaign and high inventory at our wholesale customers that primarily affected the second half of 2006. The
decline in Japan was more than offset by growth in the rest of the region, including our emerging markets such as
China and India, each of which nearly doubled its net sales over 2005.

Gross profit

The following table shows consolidated gross profit and gross margin for the periods indicated and the changes
in these items from period to period:

Year Ended
Yo
November 26, November 27, Increase
2006 2005 (Decrease)
(Dollars in millions)

NEl TEVENLES. . . o i o e e ettt $4,192.9 $4,224.8 (0.8)%
Costof goodssold ............. ... ... ... ... 2,216.5 2,236.9 (0.9%
Grossprofit. . ... ... . .. $1,976.4 $1,987.9 (0.6)%
Gross margin . ......... .. e 47.1% 47.1% —pp

Gross profit and gross margin were flat relative to prior year. Gross margin increases resulting primarily from
an increase in licensing revenue were offset primarily by a shift in the regional revenue contribution away from
Europe, which has the highest average gross margin of all our regions, to North America, which has a lower gross
margin.

Our gross margins may not be comparable to those of other companies in our indusltry, since some companies
may include costs related to their distribution network and occupancy costs associated with company-operated
stores in cost of goods sold.
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Selling, general and administrative expenses

The following table shows our selling, general and administrative expenses (“SG&A™) for the periods
indicated. the changes in these items from period to period and these items expressed as a percentage of net
revenues:

Year Ended

November 26, November 27,

% 2006 2005
November 26, November 27, Increase % of Net % of Net
2006 2005 (Decrease) Revenues Revenues

{Dollars in millions)
Selling ....................... $ 303.2 $ 2514 20.6% 7.2% 6.0%
Advertising and promotion. . . ... ... 285.3 338.6 {(15. 7Y% 6.8% 8.0%
Administration. . . ............... 3347 326.2 2.6% 8.0% 7.7%
Postretirement benefit plan

curtailment gain. . .. ........ ... (29.0) — — (0.7% —
Other......................... 454 .4 465.8 (2.4)% 10.8% 11.0%
Total SG&A .. ............... $1,348.6 $1,382.0 (2.4)% 32.2% 32.7%

Total SG&A expenses decreased $33.4 million and as a percentage of net revenues for the year ended
November 26, 2006, as compared to prior year. Changes in foreign currency exchange rates did not affect SG&A
expenses significantly.

Selling.  Selling expense increased as compared to 2005, primarily reflecting additional selling costs in North
America associated with new company-operated stores and to support growth in our Dockers® for women product
line, and additional headcount in Asia Pacific to support our focus on emerging markets.

Advertising and promotion. The decrease in advertising and promotion expenses primarily reflects lower
media spending in Europe to bring the spend in line with our other business units. We continued to support our
brands through a diverse mix of advertising and promotion initiatives; as a percentage of their net revenues,
advertising and promotion expenses in our North America and Asia Pacific regions were consistent with prior year.

Administrarion.  Administration expenses include corporate expenses and other administrative charges.
These expenses increased as compared to prior year primarily due to costs associated with the retirement of
our former CEO, Mr. Philip A. Marineau, and the appointment of his successor, Mr. Anderson. These executive
transition costs include $7.75 million in additional cash compensation and $5.4 million in non-cash pension
curtailment loss in respect of our supplemental executive retirement plan resulting from the retirement of
Mr. Marineau, and $3.8 million in additional cash compensation paid to Mr. Anderson upon his appointment
as chief executive officer. A reduction in accruals for our annual incentive compensation program was offset by an
increase in accruals for our long-term incentive compensation programs, for which performance is measured over
multiple years.

Postretirement benefit plan curtailment gain.  In 2006 we recognized a $29.0 million gain related to the
curtailment of the postretirement benefit plan associated with the closure of our Little Rock, Arkansas. distribution
facility. For more information, see Note 11 to our audited consolidated financial statements included in this report.

Other. Other SG&A costs include distribution, information resources, marketing costs, gain or loss on sale of
assets and other operating income. These costs decreased primarily due to lower distribution costs in Europe as a
result of lower sales volume and our prior restructuring actions, and a gain on the sale of our Nordic operations
office in Europe, partially offset by an increase in information resources expense related to our implementation of
SAP in our Asia Pacific region.

Restructuring charges, net

Restructuring charges, net, decreased to $14.1 million for the year ended November 26, 2006, from
$16.6 million for the prior year. The 2006 amount primarily consisted of severance charges associated with the
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closure of the Little Rock, Arkansas, distribution center, headcount reductions in Europe related to consolidation of
Nordic operations and our decision to stop selling the Signature brand in Europe, and additional lease costs
associated with closed facilities in the United States. The 2005 amount primarily consisted of charges for severance
and employee benefits for U.S. and Europe organizational changes in 2004.

Operating income

The following table shows operating income by reporting segment and the significant components of corporate
expense for the periods indicated, the changes in these items from period to period and these items expressed as a
percentage of net revenues:

Year Ended

November 26, November 27,
%o 2006 2005
November 26, November 27, Increase As% of Net As% of Net
2006 2005 {Decrease) Revenues Revenues

{Dollars in millions)

Operating income:

North America. ............... $401.9 $367.5 9.4% 15.9% 14.7%
Europe ..................... 192.4 213.1 9.7Y% 21.4% 21.5%
Asia Pacific. ... ... .. ... .. _142.6 _144.9 (1.6)% 18.7% 19.9%
Total regional operating
income ................ 736.9 725.5 1.6% 17.6%* 17.2%*
Corporate:
Restructuring charges, net .. ... .. 14.1 16.6 (14.9)% 0.3%* 0.4%*
Postretirement benefit plan
curtailment gain . . . .......... (29.0) — — (0.7)%* 0.0%
Other corporate staff costs and
EXPEASES .\ vt r e 138.1 119.6 15.4% 3.3%* 2.8%*
Total corporate . . . ......... 123.2 136.3 (9.6)% 2.9%* 3.2%*
Total operating income . . . . .. $613.7 $589.3 4.1% 14.6%* 13.9%*
Operating Margin. .. ....... 14.6% 13.9% 0.7 pp

* Percentage of consolidated net revenues

Regional operating income. The following describes the changes in operating income by reporting segment
for the year ended November 26, 2006, as compared to the prior year:

* North America.  Operating income increased due primarily to the region’s higher gross margin, a decrease
in SG&A expenses as a percentage of net revenues, and higher net sales. The increase in gross margin
resulted primarily from product cost savings and lower inventory markdowns. SG&A expenses as a
percentage of net revenues decreased as a reduction in the region’s information resources expense, reflecting
a shift in spending from a regional to a global applications focus, and the decrease in annual incentive
compensation expense more than offset higher selling expense primarily related to our opening additional
company-operated retail stores.

= Europe. The decrease in operating income was primarily attributable to lower net sales as the operating
margin remained consistent with 2005. Higher selling expense related to the opening of additional company-
operated retail stores was offset by lower advertising and promotion and distribution expenses.

* Asia Pacific. Operating income decreased due to the substantial net sales decrease in Japan. For the
remainder of the region, operating income increased due to higher net sales and licensing revenue, which
more than offset higher SG&A expenses related to our opening additional company-operated retail stores,
and other investment in the region to support sales growth, higher information systems costs related to the
implementation of SAP and the unfavorable impact of foreign currency translation.
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Corporate. Corporate expense is comprised of restructuring charges, net, postretirement benefit plan
curtailment gain, and other corporate expenses. including corporate staff costs.

Postretirement benefit plan curtailment gain relates to the closure of our Little Rock, Arkansas, distribution
center. For more information, see Note 11 (o our audited consolidated financial statements included in this report.

Other corporate staff costs and expenses increased as compared to prior year primarily due to incremental
expenses incurred in connection with the retirement of Mr. Marineau and the appointment of Mr. Anderson as our
chief executive officer. These costs also increased due to higher corporate information resources expense, reflecting
a shift in spending from a regional to a global applications focus, and an increase in accruals for our long-term
incentive compensation programs, for which performance is measured over multiple years. These increases were
partially offset by an increase in periodic postretirement benefit plan income (resulting from the annual remeasure-
ment of the plan at the beginning of the year) and lower expenses in our global sourcing organization.

Corporate expenses in 2006 and 2005 include amortization of prior service benefit of $55.1 million and
$57.6 million, respectively, related to postretitement benefit plan amendments in 2004 and 2003, and workers’
compensation reversals of $13.8 million and $21.1 million, respectively. We will continue to amortize the prior
service benefit; however, we do not expect material workers' compensation reversals in the future.

Interest expense

Interest expense decreased to $250.6 million for the year ended November 26, 2006, from $263.6 million in the
prior year. The decrease was attributable 10 lower average debt balances and lower average borrowing rates.

The weighted-average interest rate on average borrowings outstanding for 2006 was 10.23% as compared 1o
10.51% for 2005. The weighted-average interest rate on average borrowings outstanding includes the amortization
of capitalized bank fees and underwriting fees, and excludes interest on obligations to participants under deferred
compensation plans.

Loss on early extinguishment of debt

For the year ended November 26, 2006, we recorded losses of $40.3 million on early extinguishment of debt
primarily as a result of our prepayment in March 2006 of the remaining balance of our term loan of approximately
$488.8 million, the amendment in May 2006 of our senior secured revolving credit facility and open market
repurchases of $50.0 million of our 2012 senior unsecured notes in November 2006. The 2006 losses were
comprised of prepayment premiums and other fees and expenses of approximately $23.0 million and the write-off
of approximately $17.3 million of unamortized capitalized costs.

For the year ended November 27, 2005. we recorded losses of $66.1 million on early extinguishment of debt
primarily as a result of our repurchase of $372.1 million of our $450.0 million principal amount 2006 senior
unsecured notes in January 2005, and repurchase and redemption of all of our outstanding $380.0 million and
£125.0 million 2008 senior unsecured notes in March and April 2005. The 2005 losses were comprised of tender
offer premiums and other fees and expenses of approximately $53.6 million and the write-off of approximately
$12.5 million of unamortized capitalized costs and debt discount. For more information, see Note 5 to our audited
consolidated financial statements included tn this report.

Other income, net

Other income, net, primarily consists of foreign exchange management activities and transactions as well as
interest income. For the year ended November 26, 2006, other income decreased Lo $22.4 million from $23.0 million
for the prior year, The slight decrease primarily reflects the impact of foreign currency fluctuation, primarily the
weakening of the U.S. Dollar against major currencies including the Euro and the Japanese Yen and an increase in
interest income resulting from an increase in interest rates and higher average investment balances.
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Income tax expense

Income tax expense was $106.2 million for the year ended November 26, 2006, compared to $126.7 million for
the prior year. The effective tax rate was 30.8% for the year ended November 26, 2006, compared 1o 44.8% for the
prior year. The decrease in the effective tax rate for 2006 as compared to 2005 was primarily driven by a
modification of the ownership structure of certain of our foreign subsidiaries, which resulied in a reduction in the
overall residual U.S. tax we expect to be imposed upon a repatriation of our unremitted foreign earnings. This
change in ownership structure generated a non-recurring. non-cash reduction in tax expense of $31.5 million. The
effective tax rate also decreased from 2005 as a result of our net reversal of valuation allowances totaling
$28.7 million. which includes a $17.4 million benefit relating to state net operating loss carryforwards and a
$13.8 millton benefit relating primarily to net operating loss carryforwards and other foreign deferred tax assets in
our European affiliates. Because of recent improvements in business performance and a more positive outlook, we
believe it more likely than not that these deferred tax assets will be realized. The benefit of the reversal was partialty
offset by a $2.5 millien increase in valuation allowance during the year relating to certain U.S, federal capital loss
carryforwards.

Net income

Net income increased to $239.0 million for the year ended November 26, 2006, from $155.9 million for the
prior year. The increase in 2006 was primarily due to the 1ax benefits related to the change in the ownership structure
of certain foreign subsidiaries, the postretirement benefit plan curtailment gain, the reversal of deferred tax asset
valuation allowances and lower losses on early extinguishment of debt. Lower interest expense also contributed to
the increase.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources
Liquidity outlook

We believe we will have adequate liquidity over the next twelve months to operate our business and 1o meet our
cash requirements.

Cash sources

We are a privately-held corporation. We have historically relied primarily on cash flow from vperations,
borrowings under credit facilities, issuances of notes and other forms of debt financing. We regularly explore
financing and debt reduction alternatives. including new credit agreements, unsecured and secured note issuances,
equity financing, equipment and real estate financing. securitizations and asset sales. Key sources of cash include
earnings from operations and borrowing availability under our revolving credit facility.

In 2007, we amended and restated our senior secured revolving credit facility; the maximum availability is now
$750.0 million secured by certain of our domestic assels and certain U.S. trademarks associated with the Levi's®
brand and other related intellectual property. The amended facility includes a $250.0 million term loun tranche.
Upon repayment of this $250.0 million term loan tranche, the secured interest in the U.S. trademarks will be
released. As of November 25, 2007, we had borrowings of $250.0 million under the trademark tranche and our total
availability, based on other collateral levels as defined by the agreement, was approximately $447.2 million. We had
no outstanding borrowings under the revolving tranche of the credit facility, but had utilization of other credit-
related instruments such as documentary and standby letters of credit. As a result, unused availability was
approximately $368.6 million as of November 25, 2007.

Under our senior secured revolving credit facility, we are required to meet a fixed charge coverage ratio of
[.0:1.0 when unused availability is less than $100.0 million. This covenant will be discontinued upon the repayment
in full and termination of the trademark tranche described above and with the implementation of a liquidity reserve
of $50 million, which implementation will reduce availability under our credit facility,

As of November 25, 2007, we had cash and cash equivalents totaling approximately $155.9 million, resulting
in a net liguidity position (unused availability and cash and cash equivalents) of $524.5 million.

Cash uses

Qur principal cash requirements include working capital, capital expenditures, payments of principal and
interest on our debt, payments of taxes, contributions to our pension plans and payments for postretirement health
benefit plans. [n addition, we regularly explore debt reduction alternatives, including through tender offers.
redemptions, repurchases or otherwise, and we regularly evaluate our ability to pay dividends or repurchase stock.
all consistent with the terms of our debt agreements.

The following table presents selected cash uses in 2007 and the related projected cash requirements for these
itemns in 2008:

Projected Cash
Cash Used in Requirements in

2607 2008
(Dollars in millions)

Interestt ) L. $237 $160
Federal, foreign and state taxes (net of refunds)® ... .. ... 52 78
Postretirement health benefit plans. . ... ... ... . ... oo o 24 22
Capital expenditures™ . . .. . 93 133
Pensionplans .. ... .o 13 16
Total selected cash requirements .. ........... . ... ovue... $419 $409

(1) Interest paid in 2007 includes accelerated interest payments related to the tender of our 12.25% senior notes due 2012. The significant
decrease in projected interest payments in 2008 reflects our refinuncing activities during 2007.
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(2) The increase in projecied tax payments in 2008 primarily reflects increased U.S. federal income tax payments due to the utilization of federal
net operating loss carryforwards in 2007.

(3) The increase in projected capital expenditures in 2008 primarily reflects continued investment in company-operated retail stores in North
America and costs associated with our global implementation of SAP.

The following table provides information about our significant cash contractual obligations and commitmenis
as of November 25, 2007;

Payments Due or Projected by Peried
Total 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 Thereafier
{Dollars in millions)

Contractual and Long-term Liabilities:

Short-term and long-term debt obligations(') . %1960 $8 $71 $— $— 3108  $1.700
Interest® . ... o 1,067 160 153 151 151 150 302
Capital lease obligations. .. .. ........... 8 3 5 — — — —
Operating leases™ .. .. ................ 519 101 89 81 73 65 110
Purchase obligations™® .. ... . ... .. .. .. 397 356 25 1 3 1 1
Postretirement obligations® . ... ... .. .. 176 22 22 21 21 19 71
Pension obligations® . . ................ 160 16 15 16 16 16 81
Long-term employee related benefits'” . . . . . 157 43 26 24 21 21 22

Total ... i $4.444 $782 $406 3304  $285 §$380  $2,287

(1) The terms of the trademark tranche of our credit facility require amortization payments of $71 million for each of 2008 and 2009 with the
remaining balance due at maturity in 2012, Additonally, the 2008 amount includes short-term borrowings.

(2) Interest obligations are computed using constant interest rates until maturity. The LIBOR rate as of November 25, 2007, was used for
variable-rate debt.

{3) Amounts reflect contractual obligations relating to our existing leased facilities as of November 25, 2007, and therefore do not refiect our
planned future openings of company-operated retail stores. For more information, see “item 2 — Properties.”

(4) Amounts reflect estimated commitments of $311 million for inventory purchases and $86 million for human resources, advertising,
information technotogy and other professional services.

(5) The amounts presented in the table represent an estimate of our projected payments for the next ten years based on information provided by
our plans’ actuaries. For more information, see Note 11 to our audited consolidated financial statements included in this report.

(6) The amounts presented in the lable represent an estimate of our projected contributions to the plans for the next ten years based on
information provided by our plans’ actuaries. Qur policy is to fund postretiremtent benefits as claims and premiums are paid. For more
information, see Note 11 (o our audited consolidated financial statements included in this report. '

(7} Long-term employee-related benefits relate to the current and nen-current portion of deferred compensation arrangements, liabilities for
long-term incentive plans and workers’ compensation, We estimated these payments based on prior experience and forecasted activity for
these items. For more information, see Note 15 1o our audited consolidated financial statements included in this report.

Information in the two preceding tables reflects our estimates of future cash payments. These estimates and
projections are based upon assumptions that are inherently subject to significant economic, competitive, legislative
and other uncertainties and contingencies, many of which are beyond our control. Accordingly, our actual
expenditures and liabilities may be materially higher or lower than the estimates and projections reflected in
these tables. The inclusion of these projections and estimates should not be regarded as a representation by us that
the estimates will prove to be correct.
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Cash flows

The following table summarizes. for the periods indicated. selected items in our consolidated statements of

cash flows:

Year Ended

November 25,

November 26,

November 27,

2007 2006 2005
(Dollars in millions)
Cash provided by operating activities .. ............ $302.3 $261.9 $(43.8)
Cash used for investing activities . ................ (107.3) (69.6) (34.7)
Cash used for financing activities . . ............... (325.5) (155.2}) 23.1
Cash and cash equivalents. . ..................... 1559 279.5 239.6

2007 as compared to 2006
Cash flows from operating activities

Cash provided by operating activities was $302.3 million for 2007, as compared to $261.9 million for 2006.
The $40.4 million increase in the amount of cash provided by operating activities primarily reflects continued
discipline in our working capital management. Cash use for inventories decreased — primarily in the fourth quarter
of the year —~ driven by improved inventory management leading to leaner inventory levels and the later timing of
inventory receipts for our Spring/Summer season as compared to prior year. Additionally, we reduced our pension
plan funding and reduced income tax payments in foreign jurisdictions, while our October 2007 refinancing
activities accelerated interest payments previously scheduled for the first quarter of 2008 into the fourth quarter of
2007,

Cash flows were also affected by a decrease in the amount of trade receivables collected during the first quarter
of 2007, primarily due to: the earlier timing of sales recorded in the fourth quarter of 2006, as compared to the
corresponding periods in prior year, when the later timing of sales recorded in the fourth quarter of 2005 led to the
related collections during the first quarter of 2006; payments in 2007 for executive transition expenses accrued in
2006; and payments related to the separation and buyout costs of the voluntary termination in 2007 of certain
distribution center employees in North America.

Cash flows from investing activities

Cash used for investing activities was $107.3 million for 2007 compared to $69.6 million for 2006. Cash used
in both periods primarily related to investments made in our company-operated retail stores and information
technology systems associated with the SAP installation in our Asia Pacific region and, with respect to the 2007
period, the United States and our global sourcing organization.

Cash flows from financing activities

Cash used for financing activities was $325.5 million for 2007 compared to $155.2 million for 2006. Cash used
for financing activities in 2007 primarily reflects our redemption in April 2007 of all of our floating rate notes due
2012 through borrowings under a new senior unsecured term loan and use of cash on hand, and the repurchase in
October 2007 of over 95% of our outstanding 12.25% senior notes due 2012 through borrowings under an amended
and restated senior secured revolving credit facility and use of cash on hand. Cash used for financing activities in
2006 primarily reflects repayment of our prior term loan in March 2006 through issuance of our 2016 notes and
additional 2013 Euro notes.

2006 as compared to 2005
Cash flows from operating activities

Cash provided by operating activities of $261.9 million in 2006 increased by $305.7 million as compared to
cash used for operating activities of $43.8 million in 2005. The increase was primarily driven by: an increase in net
income adjusted to exclude non-cash transactions identified in the consolidated statements of cash flows; a decrease
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in trade receivables primarily due to the earlier timing of sales recorded in the fourth quarter of 2006, resulting in
increased customer payments prior to year end; an increase in accounts payable and accrued liabilities due to
improved payment terms with vendors, enabling longer payment cycles and resulting in a higher days payable
outstanding ratio (in the prior year, we substantially expanded full package sourcing of our product from contract
manufacturers who initially demanded very short payment terms); a reduction in funding of our deferred
compensation plan’s rabbi trust, which is included in other non-current assets; decreased cash payments related
to restructuring initiatives; and a substantial reduction in tax payments due to settlements in 2005 with the IRS
relating to the closure of their audits of tax years 1986-1999.

Cash flows from investing activities

Cash used for investing activities was $69.6 million for 2006, compared to $34.7 million for 2005. Cash used in
both periods primarily related to investments made in information technology systems associated with the
installation of SAP in our Asia Pacific region and, for 2006, investments made in company-operated retail stores.
The increase was partially offset by proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment related to the sale of our
Nordic operations office in Europe during 2006 and the sale of assets related to restructuring activities in the United
States and Europe in 2005.

Cash flows from financing activities

Cash used for financing activities was $155.2 million for 2006, compared to cash provided by financing
activities of $23.1 million for 2003. Cash used for financing activities for 2006 reflects our use of the net proceeds,
plus cash on hand, from the issuance in March 2006 of $350.0 mitlion of our 2016 notes and an additional
€100.0 million of our 2013 Euro notes to prepay the remaining balance of our term loan of approximately
$488.8 million. In addition, in November 2006, we repaid the remaining $77.9 million on our 7.0% senior notes due
2006 and repurchased in the open market $50.0 million of our 12.25% senior notes due 2012,

Cash provided by financing activities for 2005 reflects our issuance of approximately $1.0 billion in unsecured
notes during the period. The increase was largely offset by the repurchases and redemptions of $918.2 million in
aggregate principal amount of our 2006 and 2008 notes, the payment of debt issuance costs of approximately
£24.6 million and the full repayment upon maturity of the remaining principal outstanding under our customer
service center equipment financing agreement of $55.9 million.

Indebtedness

As of November 25, 2007, we had fixed-rate debt of approximately $1.4 billion (71% of total debt) and
variable-rate debt of approximately $0.6 billion (29% of total debt). The borrower of substantially all of our debt is
Levi Strauss & Co., the parent and U.S. operating company. Our required aggregate short-term and long-term debt
principal payments are $81.2 million in 2008, $70.9 million in 2009, $108.3 million in 2012 and the remaining
$1.7 billion in years after 2012.

Our ong-term debt agreements contain customary covenants restricting our activities as well as those of our
subsidiaries. Currently, we are in compliance with all of these covenants,
Effects of Inflation

We believe that inflation in the regions where most of our sales occur has not had a significant effect on our net
sales or profitability.
Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements, Guarantees and Other Contingent Obligations

Off-balance sheet arrangements and other.  There were no substantial changes from our 2006 Annual Report
on Form 10-K to our off-balance sheet arrangements or contractual commitments in 2007. We have contractual
commitments for non-cancelable operating leases. For more information, see Note 7 to our audited consolidated
financial statements included in this report. We have no other material non-cancelable guarantees or commitments.

40




Indemnification agreements.  In the ordinary course of our business, we enter into agreements containing
indemnification provisions under which we agree to indemnify the other party for specified claims and losses. For
example, our trademark license agreements, real estate leases, consulting agreements, logistics outsourcing
agreements, securities purchase agreements and credit agreements typically contain these provistons. This type
of indemmification provision obligates us to pay certain amounts associated with claims brought against the other
party as the result of trademark infringement, negligence or willful misconduct of our employees, breach of contraci
by us including inaccuracy of representations and warranties, specified lawsuits in which we and the other party are
co-defendants, product claims and other matters. These amounts are generally not readily quantifiable: the
maximum possible liability or amount of potential payments that could arise out of an indemnification claim
depends entirely on the specific facts and circumstances associated with the claim. We have insurance coverage that
minimizes the potential exposure to certain of these claims. We also believe that the likelihood of substantial
payment obligations under these agreements to third parties is low and that any such amounts would be immaterial.

Critical Accounting Policies, Assumptions and Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles in the
United States requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the
consolidated financial statements and the related notes. We believe that the following discussion addresses our
critical accounting policies, which are those that are most important to the portrayal of our financial condition and
results and require management’s most difficult, subjective and complex judgments, often as a result of the need to
make estimates about the effect of matters that are inherently uncertain. Changes in such estimates, based on more
accurate future information, or different assumptions or conditions, may affect amounts reported in future periods.

We summarize our critical accounting policies below.

Revenue recognition. Net sales is primarily comprised of sales of products to wholesale customers,
including franchised stores, and direct sales to consumers at our company-operated stores. We recognize revenue
on sale of product when the goods are shipped and title passes to the customer provided that: there are no
uncertainties regarding customer acceptance; persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists; the sules price is fixed
or determinable; and collectibility is probable. Revenue is recorded net of an allowance for estimated returns,
discounts and retailer promotions and incentives. Licensing revenues from the use of our trademarks in connection
with the manufaciuring. advertising, and distribution of trademarked products by third-party licensees are earned
and recognized as products are sold by licensees based on royalty rates as set forth in the licensing agreements.

We generally recognize allowances for estimated returns, discounts and retailer promotions and incentives in
the period when the sale is recorded. We estimate non-volume-based allowances based on historical rates as well as
customer and product-specific circumstances. Actual allowances may differ from estimates due to changes in sales
volume based on retailer or consumer demand and changes in customer and product-specific circumstances. Sales
and value-added taxes collected from customers and remitted to governmental authorities are presented on a net
basis in the accompanying consolidated statements of income.

Accounts receivable, net. In the normal course of business, we extend credit to our wholesale and licensing
customers that satisfy pre-defined credit criteria. Accounts receivable are recorded net of an allowance for doubtful
accounts. We estimate the allowance for doubtful accounts based upon an analysis of the aging of accounts
receivable at the date of the consolidated financial statements, assessments of collectibility based on historic trends
and an evaluation of economic¢ conditions.

Inventory valuation. We value inventories at the lower of cost or market value. Inventory cost is generally
determined using the first-in first-out method. We include materials, labor and manufacturing overhead in the cost
of inventories. In determining inventory market values, substantial consideration is given to the expected product
selling price. We estimate quantities of slow-moving and obsclete inventory by reviewing on-hand quantities,
outstanding purchase obligations and forecasted sales. We then estimate expected selling prices based on our
historical recovery rates for sale of slow-moving and obsolete inventory and other factors, such as market
conditions, expected channel of disposition, and current consumer preferences. Estimates may differ from actual
results due to the quantity, quality and mix of products in inventory, consumer and retailer preferences and
economic conditions.
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Income tax assets and liabilities. We are subject 1o income taxes in both the U.S. and numerous foreign
jurisdictions. We compute our provision for income taxes using the asset and liability method, under which deferred
tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the expected future tax consequences of temporary differences between
the financial reporting and tax bases of assets and liabiiities and for operating loss and tax credit carryforwards.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using the currently enacted tax rates that are expected to apply to
ltaxable income for the years in which those tax assets and liabilities are expected to be realized or settled.
Significant judgments are required in order to determine the realizability of these deferred tax assets. In assessing
the need for a valuation allowance, our management evaluates all significant available positive and negative
evidence, including historical operating results, estimates of future taxable income and the existence of prudent and
feasible tax planning strategies. Changes in the expectations regarding the realization of deferred tax assets could
materially impact income tax expense in future periods.

We provide for income taxes with respect to temporary differences between the book and tax bases of foreign
investments that are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future. During the fourth quarter of 2007, we concluded
that basis differences, consisting primarily of undistributed foreign earnings, related to investments in certain
foreign subsidiaries are considered lo be permanently reinvested and therefore are no longer expected to reverse in
the foreseeable future. We plan to utilize these earnings to finance the expansion and operating requirements of
these subsidiaries,

We continuously review issues raised in connection with all ongoing examinations and open tax years to
evaluate the adequacy of our liabilities. We believe that our recorded tax liabilities are adequate to cover all open tax
years based on our assessment of many factors including past experience and interpretations of the tax law. This
assessment relies on estimates and assumptions and involves significant judgments about future events. To the
extent that our view as to the outcome of these matters change, we will adjust income tax expense in the period in
which such determination is made. We classify interest and penalties related to income taxes as income tax expense.

Derivative and foreign exchange management activifies. We recognize all derivatives as assets and
liabilities at their fair values. We may use derivatives and establish programs from time to time to manage
currency exposures that are sensitive to changes in market conditions and to changes in the timing and amounts of
forecasted exposures. The instruments that qualify for hedge accounting hedge our net investment position in
certain of our foreign subsidiaries and through the first quarter of 2007 certain intercompany royalty cash flows. For
these instruments, we document the hedge designation by identifying the hedging instrument, the nature of the risk
being hedged and the approach for measuring hedge ineffectiveness. The ineffective portions of hedges are recorded
in “Other income, net” in the Company’s consolidated statements of income. The gains and losses on the
instruments that qualify for hedge accounting treatment are recorded in the “Accumulated other comprehensive
income (loss)” in our consolidated balance sheets until the underlying has been settled and is then reclassified to
earnings. Changes in the fair values of the derivative instruments that do not qualify for hedge accounting are
recorded in “Other income, net” in our consolidated statements of income.

Employee benefits and incentive compensation

Pension and Postretirement benefits. We have several non-contributory defined benefit retirement plans
covering eligible employees. We also provide certain health care benefits for U.S. employees who meet age,
participation and length of service requirements a1 retirement. In addition, we sponsor other retirement or post-
employment plans for our foreign employees in accordance with local government programs and requirements. We
retain the right to amend, curtail or discontinue any aspect of the plans, subject to local regulations. Any of these
actions (including changes in actuarial assumptions and estimates), either individually or in combination, could
have a material impact on our consolidated financial statements and on our future financial performance.

As of November 25, 2007, we recognize either an asset or liability for any plan’s funded status in our
consolidated balance sheets in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standard (“SFAS”) 138,
Employers' Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans — an amendment of FASB
Statements No. 87, 88, 106, and 132(R). (“"SFAS 1587). We measure changes in funded status using actuarial models
in accordance with SFAS 87, “Employers’ Accounting for Pension Plans,” and SFAS 106, “Employers’ Accounting
Jor Postretirement Benefits Other Than Pensions”. These models use an attribution approach that generally spreads
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individual events over the estimated service lives of the employees in the plan. The atribution approach assumes
that employees render service over their service lives on a relatively smooth basis and as such, presumes that the
income statement effects of pension or postretirement benefit plans should follow the same pattern. Our policy is to
fund our retirement plans based upon actuarial recommendations and in accordance with applicable laws, income
tax regulations and credit agreements.

Net pension and postretirement benefit income or expense is generally determined using assumptions which
include expected long-term rates of return on plan assets, discount rates, compensation rate increases and medical
trend rates. We use a mix of actual historical rates, expected rates and external data to determine the assumptions
used in the actuanial models. For example, we utilized a bond pricing model that was tailored to the attributes of our
pension and postretirement plans to determine the appropriate discount rate to use for our U.S. benefit plans. We
utilized country-specific third-party bond indices to determine appropriate discount rates to use for benefit plans of
our foreign subsidiaries.

Emplovee incentive compensation. We maintain short-term and long-term employee incentive compensation
plans. These plans are intended to reward eligible employees for their contributions to our short-term and long-term
success. For our short-term plans, the amount of the cash bonus earned depends upon business unit and corporate
financial results as measured against pre-established targets, and also depends upon the performance and job level
of the individual. Qur Jong-term plans are intended to reward management for its long-term impact on our total
earnings performance. Performance is measured at the end of a two- or three-year period based on our performance
over the period measured against certain pre-established targets such as earnings before interest. taxes, depreciation
and amortization (“EBITDA™) or compound annual growth rates over the periods. We accrue the related
compensation expense over the period of the plan and changes in the liabilities for these incentive plans generally
correlate with our financial results and projected future financial performance and could have a material impact on
our consolidated financial statements and on future financial performance.

Recently Issued Accounting Standards

The following recently issued accounting standards have been grouped by their required effective dates as they
apply to us.

First Quarter of 2008

* In June 2006, the FASB issued Interpretation (“FIN") 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Tuxes”. an
interpretation of SFAS 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes”. FIN 48 clarifies the accounting and reporting
for income taxes where interpretation of the tax law may be uncertain. FIN 48 also prescribes a compre-
hensive model for the financial statement recognition, derecognition, measurement, presentation and
disclosure of income tax uncertainties with respect to positions taken or expected to be taken in income
tax returns. We do not anticipate that the adoption of this statement will have a material impact on our
consolidated financial statements.

* In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS 157, “Fair Value Measurements”. SFAS 157 defines fair value,
establishes a framework for measuring fair value and expands disclosure of fair value measurements.
SFAS 157 applies under other accounting pronouncements that require or permit fair value measurements
and, accordingly, does not require any new fair value measurements. SFAS 157 is effective for fiscal years
beginning after November 15, 2007, however on December 14, 2007, the FASB issued a proposed staff
position (“FSP FAS 157-b™) which would delay the effective date of SFAS 157 for nonfinancial assets and
nonfinancial liabilities to fiscal years beginning after November 13, 2008. We do not anticipate that the
adoption of this statement as it relates to our financial assets and financial liabilities will have a material
impact on our consolidated financial statements, and we are currently evaluating the potential impact, if any,
as it relates to our nonfinancial assets and nonfinancial liabilities.

e In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS 159, “The Fair Value Option for Financial Assers and Financial
Liabilities”. SFAS 159 permits entities to choose to measure certain financial assets and Labilities and other
eligible items at fair value, which are not otherwise currently required to be measured at fair value, Under
SFAS 159, the decision to measure items at fair value is made at specified election dates on an irrevocable
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instrument-by-instrument basis. Entities electing the fair value option would be required to recognize
changes in fair value in earnings and to expense upfront cost and fees associated with the item for which the
fair value option is elected. Entities electing the fair value option are required to distinguish on the face of the
statement of financial position, the fair value of assets and liabilities for which the fair value option has been
elected and similar assets and liabilities measured using another measurement aitribute, We do not anticipate
that the adoption of this statement will have a material impact on our consolidated financial statements. We
did not elect to measure existing assets and liabilities at fair value on the date of adoption.

First Quarter of 2010

+ In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS 141 (revised 2007) “Business Combinations” (“SFAS 141R™).
SFAS 141R establishes principles and requirements for how the acquirer of a business recognizes and
measures in its financial statements the identifiable assets acquired, the liabilities assumed, and any
noncontrolling interest in the acquiree. SFAS 141R also provides guidance for recognizing and measuring
the goodwill acquired in the business combination and determines what information to disclose to enable
users of the financial statements to evaluate the nature and financial effects of the business combination. We
are currently evaluating the potential impact, if any, of the adoption of SFAS 14IR on our consolidated
financial statements.

* In December 2007, the FASB issucd SFAS 160, “Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Financial
Statements — an amendment of ARB No. 517, SFAS 160 establishes accounting and reporting standards for
the noncontrolling interest in a subsidiary and for the deconsolidation of a subsidiary. It clarifies that a
noncontrolling interest in a subsidiary is an ownership interest in the consolidated entity that should be
reported as equity in the consolidated financial statements. SFAS 160 requires retroactive adoption of the
presentation and disclosure requirements for existing minority interests, All other requirements of SFAS 160
shall be applied prospectively. We are currently evaluating the potential impact of the adoption of SFAS 160
on our consolidated financial statements.
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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Certain matters discussed in this report, including (without limitation) statements under “Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” contain forward-looking statements.
Although we believe that, in making any such statements, our expectations are based on reasonable assumptions,
any such statement may be influenced by factors that could cause actual outcomes and results to be materially
different from those projected.

These forward-looking statements include statements relating to our anticipated financial performance and
business prospects and/or statements preceded by, followed by or that include the words “believe”, “anticipate”,
“intend”, “estimate”, “expect”, “project”, “could”, “plans”, “seeks” and similar expressions. These forward-
looking statements speak only as of the date stated and we do not undertake any obligation to update or revise
publicly any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise, even if
experience or future events make it clear that any expected results expressed or implied by these forward-looking
statements will not be realized. Although we believe that the expectations reflected in these forward-looking
statements are reasonable, these expectations may not prove 1o be correct or we may not achieve the financial
results, savings or other benefits anticipated in the forward-looking statements. These forward-looking statements
are necessarily estimates reflecting the best judgment of our senior management and involve a number of risks and
uncertainties, some of which may be beyond our control, that could cause actual results to differ materially from
those suggested by the forward-looking statements, including, without limitation:

 changing U.S. and international retail environments and fashion trends;

* changes in the level of consumer spending for apparel in view of general economic conditions including
interest rates, the housing market and energy prices;

our ability to sustain improvements in our European business and to address challenges in certain of our
more mature Asian markets and our Signature by Levi Strauss & Co.™ brand in the United States;

» our wholesale customers’ continuing focus on private-label and exclusive products in all channels of
distribution, including the mass channel;

= our ability to increase the number of dedicated stores for our products, including through opening and
profitably operating company-operated stores;

* our ability to effectively shift to a more premium market position worldwide, and to sustain and grow the
Dockers® brand;

* our ability to implement SAP throughout our business without disruption;

» our effectiveness in increasing efficiencies in our logistics operations;

+ our dependence on key distribution channels, customers and suppliers;

« mergers and acquisitions involving our top customers and their consequences;

= our ability to respond to price, innovation and other competitive pressures in the apparel industry and on our
key customers;

* our ability to increase our appeal to under-penetrated consumer segments and our presence in emerging
markets;

» our ability to utilize our tax credits and net operating loss carryforwards;
*» ongoing litigation matters and disputes and regulatory developments;
» changes in or application of trade and tax laws; and

= political or financial instability in countries where our products are manufactured.
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Our actual results might differ materially from historical performance or current expectations. We do not
undertake any obligation to update or revise publicly any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new
information, future events or otherwise.

Item 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK
Derivative Financial Instruments

We are exposed to market risk primarily related to foreign currencies and interest rates. We actively manage
foreign currency risks with the objective of mitigating the potential impact of currency fluctuations while
maximizing the U.S. dollar value of cash flows. We hold derivative positions only in currencies to which we
have exposure. Although we currently do not hold any interest rate derivatives, we seek to mitigate interest rate risk
by optimizing our capital structure using a combination of fixed- and variable-rate debt across various maturities.

We are exposed to credit loss in the event of nonperformance by the counterparties to the foreign exchange
contracts. However, we believe these counterparties are creditworthy financial institutions and we do not anticipate
nonperformance. We monitor the creditworthiness of our counterparties in accordance with our foreign exchange
and investment policies. In addition, we have International Swaps and Derivatives Association, Inc. (“ISDA™)
master agreements in place with our counterparties to mitigate the credit risk related to the outstanding derivatives.
These agreements provide the legal basis for over-the-counter transactions in many of the world’s commodity and
financial markets.

Foreign Exchange Risk

The global scope of our business operations exposes us to the risk of fluctuations in foreign currency markets.
This exposure is the result of certain product sourcing activities, some intercompany sales, foreign subsidiaries’
royalty payments, earnings repatriations, net investment in foreign operations and funding activities. Qur foreign
currency management objective is to mitigate the potential impact of currency fluctuations on the value of our
U.S. dollar cash flows and to reduce the variability of certain cash flows at the subsidiary level. We actively manage
forecasted exposures. N

We use a centralized currency management operation to take advantage of potential opportunities to naturally
offset exposures against each other. For any residual exposures under management, we enter into various financial
instruments including forward exchange and option contracts to hedge certain forecasted transactions as well as
certain firm commitments, including third-party and intercompany transactions. We manage the currency risk as of
the inception of the exposure. We only partially manage the timing mismatch between our forecasted exposures and
the related financial instruments used to mitigate the currency risk.

Our foreign exchange risk management activities are governed by a foreign exchange risk management policy
approved by our board of directors. Members of our foreign exchange committee, comprised of a group of our
senior financial executives, review our foreign exchange activities to ensure compliance with our policies. The
operating policies and guidelines outlined in the foreign exchange risk management policy provide a framework
that allows for an active approach to the management of currency exposures while ensuring the activities are
conducted within established parameters. Our policy includes guidelines for the organizational structure of our risk
management function and for internal controls over foreign exchange risk management activities, including various
measurements for monitering compliance. We monitor foreign exchange risk and related derivatives using different
techniques including a review of market value, sensitivity analysis and a value-at-risk model. We use widely
accepted valuation models that incorporate quoted market prices or dealer quotes to determine the estimated fair
value of our foreign exchange derivative contracts.

We use derivative instruments to manage our exposure to foreign currencies. As of November 25, 2007, we had
U.S. dollar spot and forward currency contracts to buy $622.1 million and to sell $293.6 million against various
foreign currencies. We also had Euro forward currency contracts to buy 8.3 million Euros ($12.3 million equivalent)
against the Norwegian Krone and Swedish Krona. These contracts are at various exchange rates and expire at
various dates through December 2008.
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The following table presents the currency, average forward exchange rate, notional amount and fair values for
our outstanding forward and swap contracts as of November 25, 2007. The average forward rate is the forward rate
weighted by the total of the transacted amounts. The notional amount represents the total net position outstanding as
of the stated date. A positive notional amount represents a long position in U.S. dollar versus the exposure currency,
while a negative notional amount represents a short position in U.S. dollar versus the exposure currency, The net
position is the sum of all buy transactions minus the sum of all sell transactions. All amounts are stated in U.S. dollar
equivalents. All transactions will mature before the end of December 2008.

Qutstanding Forward and Swap Transactions
As of November 25, 2007

Average Forward Notionak Fair
Currency Exchange Rate Amount Value
(Dollars in thousands)

Australian Dollar . .. .. ..o 0.88 $ 45271 3 841
Canadian Dollar . . . ... ... ... .. . it 0.99 51,533 (257
Swiss Franc . . . ... L e 1.10 (27,092) (338)
Danish Krona. . .. .. oo e 5.03 ) 23,722 99
Buro . ... . e 1.43 158,649 (4,710)
British Pound . . . . ... .. ... . . ... - 2.01 48,165 (993)
Hong Kong Dollar .. .......... ... . ... ... .. ... 1.77 16 —
Hungaran Forint .. ......... ... ... ... . ... ... 175.46 (30,425) (33
Japanese Yen . . ... .. 110.42 (16,115 (1. 417
Korean Won. . ... .. . 915.52 4,805 92
Mexican Peso. ... ... .. . e 11.08 15,077 119
Norwegian Krona. . .. ... ... ... ... ... ... ... ..... 5.45 25,254 113
New Zealand Dollar . . ......... ... ... ..., 0.75 (8,510} 210
PolishZloty ....... .. ... . . . i 2.52 (23,575) 136
Swedish Krona. . ....... ... ... . ... . ... . . .. . .... 6.29 84,160 1)
Singapore Dollar ... ... ... ... ... ... ... .. ... 1.44 (32,313) 112
Taiwan Dollar .. .......... ... . . ... ... . . ... ... ... 31.86 22,223 (184)

Total ... . e $340,845  $(6,253)

Interest rate risk

We maintain a mix of medium and long-term fixed- and variable-rate debt. We currently do not actively
manage the related interest rate risk and hold no interest rate derivatives.

The following table provides information about our financial instruments that are sensitive to changes in
interest rates. The table presents principal (face amount) outstanding balances of our debt instruments and the
related weighted-average interest rates for the years indicated based on expected maturity dates. The applicable
floating rate index is included for variable-rate instruments. All amounts are stated in U.S. dollar equivalents.
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November 25, 2007
Expected Maturity Date

Fair Value
2008 2009 2010 - 2011 2012 Thereafter Total 2007
(Dollars in thousands)
Debt Instruments
Fixed Rate (US$). ......... .. 5 -5 — $— $ — § 818,764 § 818,764 3§ 827,086
Average Interest Rate . ... ... — — — — 9.43% 9.43%
Fixed Rate (Yen 20 billion). . . . . — — — — 184.689 184.689 153,122
Average Interest Rate . .. .. .. — — — — 4.25% 4.25%
Fixed Rate (Euro 250 million). . . — — — — 370,375 370,375 361,384
Average [nterest Rate . ... ... —_ -— — — 8.63% 8.63%
Variable Rate (US$).......... 70,875 70.875 — 108,250 325,000 575.000 546,570
Average Interest Rate™ . . . ... 7.54% 7.54% — 7.54% 7.29% 7.40%
Total Principal (face amount)
of our debt instruments .. $70.875 $70.875 5— $108.250 $1,698.828 $1.948828 $1.888,162

(1) Excludes short-term borrowings.

(2) Assumes no change in short-term interest raies,
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Item B. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Levi Strauss & Co.:

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated balance sheet and the related consolidated statements of income,
stockholders’ deficit and comprehensive income, and cash flows present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Levi Strauss & Co. and its subsidiaries at November 25, 2007, and the results of their operations and their
cash flows for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America. In addition, in our opinion, the related financial statement schedule listed in the index appearing under
Item 15(2) for the year ended November 25, 2007, presents fairly, in all material respects, the information set forth
therein when read in conjunction with the related consotidated financial statements. These financial statements and
the financial statement schedule are the responsibility of the Company’s management; our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these financial statements and the financial statement schedule based on our audit, We
conducted our audit of these statements in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on
a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

As discussed in Note 11 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company changed the manner in which it
accounts for defined pension and other postretirement plans effective November 25, 2007,

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

San Francisco, CA
February 11, 2008

49




Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Stockholders and Board of Directors
Levi Strauss & Co.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Levi Strauss & Co. and subsidiaries as of
November 26, 2006, and the related consolidated statements of income, stockholders’ deficit and comprehensive
income, and cash flows for each of the years in the two-year period ended November 26, 2006. In cennection with
our audits of the consolidated financial statements, we have also audited the related financial statement Schedule I1
for each of the years in the two-year period ended November 26, 2006. These consolidated financial statements and
the financial statement schedule are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Qur responsibility is to
express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements and the financial statement schedule based on our
audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the auditing standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis. evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing
the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overail
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Levi Strauss & Co. and subsidiaries as of November 26, 2006. and the results of their
operations and their cash flows for each of the years in the two-year period ended November 26, 2006, in conformity
with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Also, in our opinion, the related financial statement Schedule 11
for each of the years in the two-year period ended November 26, 2006, when considered in relation to the basic
consolidated financial statements taken as a whole, presents fairly, in all material respects, the information set forth
therein.

KPMG LLP
San Francisco. CA

February 12, 2007, except as to the 2006 and 2005
data in Note 19, which is as of February 11, 2008

50




LEVI STRAUSS & CO. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

November 25,

November 26,

2007 2006
{Dollars in thousands)
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents . . .. ... ... .. . . i $ 155914 $ 279,501
Restricted cash . ... 0 e 1,871 1,616
Trade receivables, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $14,805 and $17,998 . . . .. 607,035 589,975
Inventories:
Raw Materials . . . .. .. e e 17,784 13,543
WOrK-In-proCess . ... . o e 14,815 13,479
Finished goods . . . ... o e 483,265 523,041
Total INVENIOTIES . . . o ot et et et e e e e 515,864 550.063
Deferred 1ax @85818, IEL . v . v o vt et e et e e e e e e 133,180 101,823
Other CUITERL A85EIS. & v o v vt it e et et et e e et e e e e e 75,647 86,292
TOta] CUITEIE SSEIS. « & v v v v v e st e e e e e et e e e e e e e e e e e e e e 1,489,511 1,609,270
Property, plant and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation of $605,859 and
530,503 . e e 447,340 404,429
Goodwill . . . e e e 206,486 203,989
Other intangible assets, NEL . . . .. .. ... ... e 42,775 42,815
Non-current deferred tax assets, NEL . . . . .0ttt it i e e e e e 511,128 457,105
L8041 0= - 153,426 86,457
Total ASSEES . . o . ot e $2,850,666 $2,804.065
LIABILITIES, TEMPORARY EQUITY AND STOCKHOLDERS’ DEFICIT
Current Liabilities:
Short-term DOITOWINGS . . . . . o i e $ 10339 $ 11,089
Current maturities of long-termdebt . . .. ... ... ... .. L 70,875 —
Current maturities of capital leases .. . ... ... 2,701 1,608
Accounts payable .. . L 243,630 245,619
Restructuring liabilities . . ... ... . e 8,783 13,080
Other accrued liabilities . . . ... . e 248,159 194,601
Accrued salaries, wages and employee benefits . .. ... .. o 218,325 261,234
Accrued interest payable . . ... L e e e 30,023 61,827
Accrued INCOME TAXES . . . . . ottt et e e e 9,420 14,226
Total current liabilities . . .. .. ... . e 842,255 803.294
Long-term debt . ... .. . e 1,879,192 2,206,323
Long-term capilal leases, less current maturities. . .. .. ... ... .. ... .. .. 5,476 3,086
Postretirement medical benefits . . . . .. ... L e e 157,447 379,188
Pension Hability . . ... .. ..o e 147,417 184,050
Long-term employee related benefits . .. ... .. ... o o 113,710 136,408
Long-term income tax labilities. . . .. .. ... . .. e e 35,122 19,994
Other long-term liabilities . . . .. .. .. e 48,123 46,635
MInoTity TMErEst . . . L .o e e 15,833 17,138
Total Babilities, . . .. . . 3,244 575 3,796,156
Commitments and contingencies (Note 7)
TemMPOTATY €QUILY - .« ottt e e et e e e e e e e e e 4.120 1,956
Stockholders’ deficit:
Common stock — $.01 par value; 270,000,000 shares authorized; 37,278,238 shares
issued and outstanding . . . ... . L 373 373
Additional paid-incapital. . ... ... .. ... 92,650 89,837
Accumulated defiCE . . . .. . e e e e (499,093) (959,478}
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) . ... ... ... .. Lo 8,041 (124,779)
Total stockholders’ deficit . . .. .. .. . e (398,029) (994,047)
Total liabilities, temporary equity and stockholders’ deficit. . ... .. ... .. .. $2,850,6606 $2,804.,065

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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LEVI STRAUSS & CO. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
November 25,  November 26,  November 27,

2007 2006 2005
{Dollars in thousands)
Netsales, ... ... et $4,266,108 $4,106,572 $4,150,931
Licensing revenue . . ... ...t e e 94,821 86,375 73.879
Net revenues . . . ...t e e e e 4,360,929 4,192,947 4,224,810
Costof goodssold ........ .. ... . ... . 2,318,883 2,216,562 2,236,962
Grossprofit. .. ... .. 2,042,046 1,976,385 1,987,848
Selling, general and administrative expenses ... ............. 1,386,547 1,348,577 1,381,955
Restructuring charges, net . .. ... ... ... .. . ... . L ... 14,458 14,149 16,633
Operating iNCOME . . .. oottt e nian 641,041 613,659 589,260
Interest eXpense . .. .. ..o e 215,715 250,637 263,650
Loss on early extinguishment of debt. .. ...... .. [ 63,838 40,278 66,066
Other INCOME, MBE . . . ettt it e e s (14,138) {22,418) (23,057
Income before INCOME tAXES. . .. .. .. ii it innnn . 375,626 345,162 282,601
income tax (benefit) expense. . ... ... e (84,759) 106,159 126,654
NELINCOME . . .ot et e e e e s $ 460,385 $ 239.003 $ 155,947

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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LEVI STRAUSS & CO. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF
STOCKHOLDERS’ DEFICIT AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Accumulated
Additional Other
Common Paid-in Accumulated Comprehensive Stockholders®
Stock Capital Deficit Income (Loss) Deficit
(Dollars in thousands)

Balance at November 28, 2004, . . . . .. $373 $88.808  $(1.354.428) $(105.677) $(1.370,924)
Netincome ... ................... — — 155.947 -— 155,947
Other comprehensive loss (net of tax)

MNote 10). ..................... — — — (7,108) (7.108)
Total comprehensive income .. ....... — — — — 148.839
Balance at November 27, 2005. . . . . .. 373 88,808 (1,198,481) (112,785) (1.222.085)
Netincome . ...... ... ..., — — 239,003 — 239.003
Other comprehensive loss (net of tax)

(Note 16). ................ .. — — — (11.994) (11,994)
Total comprehensive income . ........ — — — — 227,009
Stock-based compensation (net of

$1,956 temporary equity) . ......... — 1,029 — — 1.029
Balance at November 26, 2006. . . . . .. 373 89,837 (959,478) (124,779) (994.,047)
Netincome . ..................... —_ — 460,385 — 460,385
Other comprehensive income (net of

tax) (Note 16) . .............. ... — — — 60,015 60,015
Total comprehensive income ......... -_ — — — 520,400
Adjustment to initially apply FASB

Statement No. 158 (net of tax)...... — — — 72,805 72,805
Stock-based compensation (net of

$4,120 temporary equity) . . .. ... ... — 2,813 — — 2813
Balance at November 25, 2007. .. ... . $373 592,650 § (499.093) $ 8,041 $ (398.029)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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LEVI STRAUSS & CO. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:

Net NCOME . . . e e

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities;
Depreciation and amortization. . . . ... ... .. .. ...
ASSELIMPUINMENtS . . . ..t e e
Loss (gain) on disposal of property, plant and equipment . .. .. .. ..........
Unrealized foreign exchange gains. .. .. .. ... ... ... . ... . . ..., ..
Realized loss on foreign currency contracts not designated for hedge accounting . .
Postretirement benefit plan curtailment gains . .. ... ..., ... .. . ...
Write-off of unamaortized costs associated with early extinguishment of debt . . ..
Amortization of deferred debt issuance costs . ... ... ... L. L oL
Stock-bused compensation . .. ... L
Allowance for doubtful accounts . . ... .. ... L L L L
Deferred income taxes. . ... . ...
Change in operating assets and liabilities:
Trade receivables .. ... ... e
IOVEMIOMES. . . o vt e e e e e e
Oher CUTTENT ASSEIS . & o o v v e e e e e e e et e e e e e e
Other NON-CRITENE BSSETS . . . . . oot et ittt e e e e e
Accounts payable and other accrued labilities . .. ... ... ... L,
Income tax liabilities . . ... ... .. .. e
Reswrueturing lisbilities . .. ........ ... ... .. .. ... .. ..
Accrued salaries, wages and employee benefits . . . ... ... ... ...,
Long-term employee related benefits. . . ... ... ... ... . L,
Other long-term liabilities. . .. ... ... . .. e
Other, MEL . . . o

Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities . . ... ............

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Purchases of property, plant and equipment. . .. ....... ... . ... . oLl
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment. . . ... ................

Acquisition of retail SIOFES. . . . . . . e
Acquisition of Turkey minority interest . . ...... . .. i
Cash inflow from net investment hedges . . ... ... .. ... .. ... .. .. .. ...

Foreign currency contracts not designated for hedge accounting . . . ... ... ... ..
Net cash used for investing activities . . .. .. ..., . ...... ... .......
Cash Flows from Financing Activities:

Proceeds from issuance of long-termdebt. . ... ... ... o

Repayments of long-termdebt . . . .. ... ... .. ... L i
Net decrease in shont-term borrowings . . . .. .. ... ... .. .. ... ... ...

Debl i8SUANCE COSIS . . . . . o e e e e e e e
Restricted cash . . .. .. ... e e

Dividends to minority interest shareholders of Levi Strauss Japan KK . .. ... ...
Net cash (used for) provided by financing activities . . ... ............
Effect of exchange rate changes oncash. .. .. .. ..., ... .... ... . ... .. ...

Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents . . . . . ......_ ... ..

Beginning cash and cashequivalemts . . ... ........ ... ... o0 L

Ending cash and cash equivalents. . . . ... .......... ... ... . ... . ...,

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:
Cash paid during the period for:

LT = D
o0 e T S
Restructuring initialives . . ... v s

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
Novemher 25, November 26, November 27,
2007 2006 2005
(Dollars in thousands)
$ 460,385 $ 239,003 $ 155947
67.514 62,249 59,423
9.0710 — 1.610
444 (6,218) (5.750)
(7.186) (16,826) (16,504)
16,137 — —
(52.763) (29,041 —_
17,166 17.264 12,473
5,192 8,254 12,504
4977 2985 —
615 (1.021) 4,858
(150,079 319.452 1.827
(18,071) 46,572 (22.110)
40,422 (6.095) 3.130
19,235 (3.254) 8.191
(10.598) 1.730 (24.901)
16,168 18.536 (38.444)
9.527 (14.918) (78.066)
(8.134) (2.855) (25,648}
(87.843) (41.433) (13.005})
(32,634) (55.655) (79.329)
1.973 3.847 (827)
754 (696) 844
302,271 261,880 (43.777)
(92.519) {77,080} (41,868)
3.881 9,139 11,528
(2.502) (1.656) (2,645)
— — (3.835)
-— — 2,163
(16,137) — —
(107.277) {69.5397) (34,657
669,006 475,690 1,031,255
{984,333) (620,146) (979,253)
(1.711) (63) (2.975)
{5.297) (12,176) {24.632)
(58) 1,467 (1.323)
(3.141) — —
(325,534) (155,228} 23.072
6.953 2,862 (4.650)
(123,587 39917 (60,012)
279,501 239,584 299,596
§ 155914 $ 279,501 $ 239,584
$ 237017 $ 229,789 $ 238,683
52,275 83,492 197.315
13,322 16,998 43,112




LEVI STRAUSS & CO. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED NOVEMBER 25, 2007, NOVEMBER 26, 2006, AND NOVEMBER 27, 2005

NOTE 1: SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Nature of Operations

Levi Strauss & Co. (“"L8&CO.” or the “Company”) is one of the world’s leading branded appare! companies.
The Company designs and markets jeans and jeans-related pants, casual and dress pants, tops, jackets and related
accessories, for men, women and children under the Levi’s®, Dockers® and Signature by Levi Strauss & Co.™
brands. The Company markets its products in three geographic regions: North America, Europe and Asia Pacific.

Basis of Presentation and Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements of LS&CO. and its wholly-owned and majority-owned foreign and
domestic subsidiaries are prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles in the United States.
All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated. LS&CO. is privately held primarily
by descendants of the family of its founder, Levi Strauss, and their relatives.

The Company’s fiscal year consists of 52 or 53 weeks, ending on the last Sunday of November in each year.
The 2007, 2006 and 2005 fiscal years consisted of 52 weeks each, ending on November 25, 2007, November 26,
2006, and November 27, 2005. The fiscal year end for certain foreign subsidiaries is fixed at November 30 due to
local statutory requirements. All references to years relate to fiscal years rather than calendar years. Certain
reclassifications have been made to prior year amounts to reflect the current year presentation.

Correction of Net Revenues Presentation

The Company determined in 2006 that in prior periods net sales relating to certain sales arrangements in its
Asia Pacific business involving the use of a third party were improperly presented net of costs incurred under these
arrangements. The Company has corrected the presentation for all prior periods reported within the consolidated
statements of income. The effect of this correction increased both “Net sales” and “Selling, general and admin-
istrative expenses” in the Company’s consolidated statements of income by approximately $28 million and
$26 million for 2006 and 2005, respectively. The correction had no impact on the Company’s reported operating
income, ntet income, consolidated balance sheets or consolidated statements of cash flows for any period, and an
insignificant impact on gross profit and gross margin in all periods. All 2007 results are also presented on this basis.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the
consolidated financial statements and the related notes to consolidated financial statements. Estimates are based
upon historical factors, current circumstances and the experience and judgment of its management. Management
evaluates its assumptions and estimates on an ongoing basis and may employ outside experts to assist in its
evaluations. Changes in such estimates, based on more accurate future information, or different assumptions or
conditions, may affect amounts reported in future periods.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less to be
cash equivalents. Cash equivalents are stated at amortized cost, which approximates fair value.

Restricted Cash

Restricted cash primarily relates to required cash deposits for customs and rental guarantees to support the
Company’s international operations.
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FOR THE YEARS ENDED NOVEMBER 25, 2047, NOVEMBER 26, 2006, AND NOVEMBER 27, 2005

Accounts Receivable, Net

In the normal course of business, the Company extends credit to its wholesale customers that satisfy pre-
defined credit criteria. Accounts receivable, which includes receivables related to the Company’s net sales and
licensing revenues, are recorded net of an allowance for doubtful accounts. The Company estimates the allowance
for doubtful accounts based upon an analysis of the aging of accounts receivable at the date of the consolidated
financial statements, assessments of collectibility based on historic trends and an evaluation of economic
conditions.

Inventory Valuation

The Company values inventories at the lower of cost or market value. Inventory cost is generatly determined
using the first-in first-out method. The Company includes materials, labor and manufacturing overhead in the cost
of inventories. The Company estimates quantities of slow-moving and cbsolete inventory, by reviewing on-hand
quantities, outstanding purchase obligations and forecasted sales. The Company determines inventory market
values by estimating expected selling prices based on the Company’s historical recovery rates for slow-moving and
obsolete inventory and other factors, such as market conditions, expected channel of distribution and current
consumer preferences.

Income Tax Assets and Liabilities

The Company is subject to income taxes in both the U.S. and numerous foreign jurisdictions. The Company’s
provision for income taxes is computed using the asset and liability method, under which deferred tax assets and
liabilities are recognized for the expected future tax consequences of temporary differences between the financial
reporting and tax bases of assets and liabilities and for operating loss and tax credit carryforwards. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are measured using the currently enacted tax rates that are expected to apply to taxable income
for the years in which those tax assets and liabilities are expected to be realized or settled. Significant judgments are
required in order to determine the realizability of these deferred tax assets. In assessing the need for a valuation
allowance, management evaluates all significant available positive and negative evidence, including historical
operating results, estimates of future taxable income and the existence of prudent and feasible tax planning
strategies. Changes in the expectations regarding the realization of deferred tax assets could materially impact
income tax expense in future periods.

The Company provides for income taxes with respect to temporary differences between the book and tax bases
of foreign investments that are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future. During the fourth quarter of 2007, the
Company concluded that basis differences, consisting primarily of undistributed foreign earnings, related to
investments in certain foreign subsidiaries are considered to be permanently reinvested and therefore are no longer
expected to reverse in the foreseeable future. The Company plans to utilize these earnings to finance the expansion
and operating requirements of these subsidiaries.

The Company continuously reviews issues raised in connection with all ongoing examinations and open tax
years to evaluate the adequacy of its liabilities. The Company believes that its tax liabilities are adequate to cover all
open tax years based on its assessment of many factors including past experience and interpretations of the tax law.
This assessment relies on estimates and assumptions and involves significant judgments about future events, To the
extent that the Company’s view as to the outcome of these matters change, income tax expense will be adjusted in
the period in which such determination is made. The Company classifies interest and penalties related to income
taxes as income tax expense.
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Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are carried at cost, less accumulated depreciation. The cost is depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the related assets. Buildings are depreciated over 20 to 40 years,
and leasehold improvements are depreciated over the lesser of the life of the improvement or the initial fease term.
Machinery and equipmnent includes furniture and fixtures, automobiles and trucks, and networking communication
equipment, and is depreciated over a range from three to 20 years. Capitalized internal-use software is depreciated
over periods ranging from three to seven years.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Goodwill resulted primarily from a 1985 acquisition of LS&CO. by Levi Strauss Associates Inc., a former
parent company that was subsequently merged into the Company in 1996. Goodwill is not amortized and is subject
to an annunal impairment test which the Company performs in the fourth quarter of each fiscal year, Intangible assets
are primarily comprised of owned trademarks with indefinite useful lives which are not being amortized. The
Company’s remaining intangible assets, which are immaterial, are amortized over their estimated useful lives
ranging from five to twelve years,

Impairment

In the Company's annual impairment test of goodwill. the Company compares the fair value of the applicable
reporting unit 1o its carrying value. The Company estimates the fair value of its reporting unit by using a
combination of discounted cash flow analysis and comparison with the market values of companies that are publicly
traded. The Company reviews its other long-lived assets for impairment whenever events or changes in circum-
stances indicate the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. If the carrying amount of an asset exceeds
the expected future undiscounted cash flows, the Company measures and records an impairment loss for the excess
of the carrying value of the asset over its fair value. The Company utilizes quoted market prices, prices for similar
assets and other valuation techniques to determine the fair value of impaired assets.

Debt Issuance Costs

The Company capitalizes debt issuance costs, which are included in “Other assets” in the Company’s
consolidated balance sheets. These costs are amortized using the straight-line method of amortization for all debt
issuances prior to 2005, which approximates the effective interest method. Costs associated with debt issuances in
2005 and later are amortized using the effective interest method. Amortization of debt issuance costs is included in
“Interest expense” in the consolidated statements of income.

Restructuring Liabilities

Upon approval of a restructuring plan by management with the appropriate level of authority, the Company
records restructuring liabilities in compliance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standard (“SFAS™) 112,
“Employers’ Accounting for Postemployment Benefits,” and SFAS 146, “Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit
or Disposal Activities,” resulting in the recognition of employee severance and related termination benefits for
recurring arrangemenis when they become probable and estimable and on the accrual basis for one-time benefit
arrangements. The Company records other costs associated with exit activities as they are incurred.

Deferred Rent

The Company is obligated under operating leases of property for manufacturing, finishing and distribution
facilities, office space, retail stores and equipment. Minimum rents relating to operating leases are recognized on a
straight-line basis over the lease term after consideration of lease incentives and scheduled rent escalations
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beginning as of the date the Company takes physical possession or controls the property. Differences between rental
expense and actual rental payments are recorded as deferred rent liabilities included in “Other long-term liabilities™
on the consolidated balance sheets.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Company’s financial instruments are reflected on its books at their carrying values. The fair values of the
Company's financial instruments reflect the amounts at which the instruments could be exchanged in a current
transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced liquidation sale (i.e. at quoted market prices).

The Company has determined the estimated fair value of certain financial instruments using available market
information and valuation methodologies. However, this determination involves application of judgment in
interpreting market data. As such, the estimates presented in this report are not necessarily indicative of the
amounts that the Company could realize in a current market exchange. The Company uses widely accepted
valuation models that incorporate quoted market prices or dealer quotes to determine the estimated fair value and
reflect assumptions about currency fluctuations based on current market conditions of its foreign exchange and
option contracts and other derivative financial instruments, all of which are carried on the Company’s books at their
fair values. Dealer quotes and other valuation methods, such as the discounted value of future cash flows,
replacement cost and termination cost have been used to determine the estimated fair value for long-term debt and
the remaining financial instruments. The carrying values of cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables and short-
term borrowings approximate fair value. The fair value estimates presented in this report are based on information
available to the Company as of November 25, 2007, and November 26, 2006.

Pension and Postretirement Benefits

The Company has several non-contributory defined benefit retirement plans covering eligible employees. The
Company also provides certain health care benefits for U.5. employees who meet age. participation and length of
service requirements at retirement. In addition. the Company sponsors other retirement or post-employment plans
for its foreign employees in accordance with local government programs and requirements. The Company retains
the right to amend, curtail or discontinue any aspect of the plans, subject to local regulations.

As of November 23, 2007, the Company adopted SFAS 158, “Employers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit
Pension and Other Postretirement Plans — an amendment of FASB Statements No. 87, 88, 106, and 132(R).”
SFAS 158 requires employers to fully recognize the obligations associated with single-employer defined benefit
pension, retiree healthcare and other postretirement plans in the consolidated balance sheets. The Company
measures changes in the funded status of both its plans using actuarial models in accordance with SFAS 87,
“Employers' Accounting for Pension Plans,” and SFAS 106, “Employers’ Accounting for Postretirement Benefits
Other Than Pensions.” These models use an attribution approach that generally spreads individual events over the
estimated service lives of the employees in the plan. The attribution approach assumes that employees render
service over their service lives on a relatively smooth basis and as such, presumes that the income statement effects
of pension or postretirement benefit plans should follow the same pattern. The Company’s policy is to fund its
retirement plans based upon actuarial recommendations and in accordance with applicable laws, income tax
regulations and credit agreements. Net pension and postretirement benefit income or expense is generally
determined using assumptions which include expected long-term rates of return on plan assets, discount rates,
compensation rate increases and medical trend rates. The Company considers several factors including actual
historical rates, expected rates and external data to determine the assumptions used in the actuarial models.

Pension benefits are primarily paid through trusts funded by the Company. The Company pays postretirement
benefits directly to the participants. The Company’s postretirement benefit plan provides a benefit to retirees that is
at least actuarially equivalent to the benefit provided by the Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement and
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Modernization Act of 2003 (“Medicare Part D) and thus, the U.S. government provides a federal subsidy to the
plan. Accordingly, the net periodic postretirement benefit cost was reduced to reflect the impact of the federal
subsidy.

Employee Incentive Compensation

The Company maintains short-term and long-term employee incentive compensation plans. These plans are
intended to reward eligible employees for their contributions to the Company's short-term and long-term success.
Provisions for employee incentive compensation are recorded in “Accrued salaries. wages and employee benefits”
and “Long-term employee related benefits” in the Company’s consolidated balance sheets. The Company accrues
the related compensation expense over the period of the plan and changes in the liabilities for these incentive plans
generally correlate with the Company’s financial results and projected future financial performance.

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company has incentive plans which reward certain employees and directors with cash or equity based on
changes in the value of the Company’s common stock. In fiscal year 2006, the Company adopted SFAS 123 (revised
2004), “Share-Based Payment” (“SFAS 123R™) and the four related FASB Staff Positions and the Sccurities and
Exchange Commission issued Staff Accounting Bulletin (“SAB™) 107, “Share-Based Payment” applying the
modified prospective transition method. The amount of compensation cost for share-based payments is measured
based on the fair value on the grant date of the equity or liability instruments issued, based on the estimated number
of awards that are expected to vest. No compensation cost is ultimately recognized for awards for which employees
do not render the requisite service and are forfeited. Compensation cost for equity instruments is recognized on a
straight-line basis over the period that an employee provides service for that award, which generally is the vesting
period. Liability instruments are revalued at each reporting period and compensation expense adjusted. Changes in
the fair value of unvested liability instruments during the requisite service period are recognized as compensation
cost on a straight-line basis over that service period. Changes in the fair value of vested liability instruments after the
service period are recognized as an adjustment to compensation cost in the period of the change in fair value. Prior
to fiscal year 2006, the Company applied the intrinsic value method of accounting for stock-based compensation
under Accounting Principles Board Opinion 25 (“APB 25”).

The Company’s common stock is not listed on any established stock exchange. Accordingly, the stock’s fair
market value is determined by the Board based upon a valuation performed by an independent third-party, Evercore
Group LLC (“Evercore™}. Determining the fair value of the Company’s stock requires complex and subjective
Judgments. The valuation process includes comparison of the Company’s historical financial results and growth
prospects with selected publicly-traded companies, and application of an appropriate discount for the illiquidity of
the stock to derive the fair value of the stock. The Company uses this valuation for, among other things. making
determinations under its share-based compensation plans, such as grant date fair value of awards.

Under the provisions of SFAS 123R. the fair value of stock-based compensation is estimated on the date of
grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing model. The Black-Scholes option pricing model requires the input of
highly subjective assumptions including volatility. Due to the fact that the Company’s common stock is not publicly
traded, the computation of expected volatility is based on the average of the historical and implied volatilities, over
the expected life of the awards. of comparable companies from a representative peer group of publicly traded
entities, selected based on industry and financial atiributes, Other assumptions include expected life, risk-free rate
of interest and dividend yield. Expected life is computed vsing the simplified method permitted under SAB 107.
The risk-free interest rate is based on zero coupon U.S. Treasury bond rates corresponding to the expected life of the
awards. No dividends are assumed.
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 Due to the job function of the award recipients, the Company has included stock-based compensation cost in
*Selling, general and administrative expenses” in the consolidated statements of income.

Self-Insurance

The Company self-insures, up to certain limits, workers’ compensation risk and employee and eligibie retiree
medical health benefits, The Company carries insurance policies covering claim exposures which exceed
predefined amounts, both per occurrence and in the aggregate, for all workers’ compensation claims and for
the medical claims of active employees as well as those salaried retirees who retired after June 1, 2001, Accruals for
losses are made based on the Company’s claims experience and actuarial assumptions followed in the insurance
industry. including provisions for incurred but not reported losses.

Derivative Financial Instruments and Hedging Activities

The Company recognizes all derivatives as assets and liabilities at their fair values. The Company may use
derivatives and establish programs from time to time to manage currency exposures that are sensitive to changes in
market conditions and to changes in the timing and amounts of forecasted exposures. The instruments that qualify
for hedge accounting hedge the Company’s net investment position in certain of its foreign subsidiaries and through
the first quarter of 2007 certain intercompany royalty cash flows. For these instruments, the Company documents
the hedge designation by identifying the hedging instrument, the nature of the risk being hedged and the approach
for measuring hedge ineffectiveness. The ineffective portions of hedges are recorded in “Other income, net” in the
Company's consolidated statements of income. The gains and losses on the instruments that qualify for hedge
accounting treatment are recorded in the “Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)™ in the Company’s
consolidated balance sheets until the underlying has been settled and is then reclassified to earnings. Changes in the
fair values of the derivative instruments that do not qualify for hedge accounting are recorded in “Other income,
net” in the Company’s consolidated statements of income.

Foreign Currency

The functional currency for most of the Company’s foreign operations is the applicable local currency. For
those operations, assets and liabilities are translated into U.S. dollars using period-end exchange rates and income
and expenses are translated at average monthly exchange rates. Net changes resulting from such translations are
recorded as a component of translation adjustments in “Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)” in the
Company’s consolidated balance sheets.

The U.S. dollar is the functional currency for foreign operations in countries with highly inflationary
economies. The translation adjustments for these entities, as applicable, are inctuded in “Other income, net” in
the Company’s consolidated statements of income.

Foreign currency transactions are transactions denominated in a currency other than the entity’s functional
currency. At the date the foreign currency transaction is recognized. each asset, liability. revenue, expense. gain or
loss arising from the transaction is measured and recorded in the functional currency of the recording entity using
the exchange rate in effect at that date. At each balance sheet date for each entity, recorded balances denominated in
a foreign currency are adjusted, or remeasured, to reflect the current exchange rate. The changes in the recorded
balances caused by remeasurement at the exchange rate are recorded in “Other income, net” in the Company’s
consolidated statements of income. In addition, at the settlement date of foreign currency transactions, foreign
currency gains and losses are recorded in “Other income, net” in the Company’s consolidated statements of income
to refiect the difference between the spot rate effective at the settlement date and the historical rate at which the
transaction was originally recorded or remeasured at the balance sheet date.
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Minority Interest

Minority interest includes a 16.4% minority interest of Levi Strauss Japan K.K.. the Company’s Japanese
affiliate, and through March 31, 2005, a 49.0% minority interest of Levi Strauss Istanbul Konfeksiyon, the
Company’s Turkish affiliate. On March 31, 2003, the Company acquired full ownership of its joint venture in
Turkey: subsequent to that date. all operations from that joint venture was attributed to the Company.

Stockholders’ Deficit

The stockholders’ deficit primarily resulted from a 1996 recapitalization transaction in which the Company’s
stockholders created new long-term governance arrangements, including a voting trust and stockholders’ agree-
ment. As a result, shares of stock of a former parent company, Levi Strauss Associates Inc., including shares held
under several employee benefit and compensation plans, were converted into the right to receive cash. The funding
for the cash payments in this transaction was provided in part by cash on hand and in part from proceeds of
approximately $3.3 billion of borrowings under bank credit facilities.

Revenue Recognition

Net sales is primarily comprised of sales of products to wholesale customers. including franchised stores, and
direct sales to consumers at the Company’s company-operated stores, The Company recognizes revenue on sale of
product when the goods are shipped and title passes to the customer provided that: there are no uncertainties
regarding customer acceptance; persvasive evidence of an arrangement exists; the sales price is fixed or deter-
minable; and collectibility is probable. The revenue is recorded net of an allowance for estimated returns, discounts
and retailer promotions and incentives. Licensing revenues from the use of the Company’s trademarks in connection
with the manufacturing. advertising, and distribution of trademarked products by third-party licensees are earned
and recognized as products are sold by licensees based on royalty rates as set forth in the licensing agreements.

The Company generally recognizes allowances for estimated returns, discounts and retailer promotions and
incentives in the period when the sale is recorded. The Company estimates non-volume based allowances based on
historical rates as well as customer and product-specific circumstances. Actual allowances may differ from
estimates due to changes in sales volume based on retailer or consumer demand and changes in customer and
product-specific circumstances. Sales and value-added taxes collected from customers and remitted to govern-
mental authorities are presented on a net basis in the conselidated statements of income.

Net sales to the Company’s ten largest customers totaled approximately 42% of net revenues in each of fiscal
years 2007, 2006 and 2003. No customer represented 10% or more of net revenues in any year.

Cost of Goods Sold

Cost of goods sold includes the expenses incurred to acquire and produce inventory for sale, including product
costs, labor. sourcing costs, inbound freight, internal transfers, and receiving and inspection at manufacturing
facilities. Costs relating to the Company’s licensing activities are included in “Selling, general and administrative
expenses’ in the consolidated statements of income; such costs are insignificant.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

Selling, general and administrative expenses are primarily comprised of costs relating to advertising.
marketing, selling, distribution, information technology and other corporate functions. Selling costs include all
occupancy costs associated with company-operated stores. The Company expenses advertising costs as incurred.
For 2007, 2006 and 2005, total advertising expense was $277.0 million, $285.3 million and $338.6 million,
respectively. Distribution costs include costs related to receiving and inspection at distribution centers,
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warehousing, shipping, handling and certain other activities associated with the Company’s distribution network.
These expenses totaled $225.2 million, $204.6 million and $209.4 million for 2007, 2006 and 2003, respectively.

Recently Issued Accounting Standards

The following recently issued accounting standards have been grouped by their required effective dates for the
Company:

First Quarter of 2008

* In June 20086, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation (“FIN”) 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income
Taxes”, an interpretation of SFAS 109, “Accounting for Income Tuxes”. FIN 48 clarifies the accounting and
reporting for income taxes where interpretation of the tax law may be uncertain. FIN 48 also prescribes a
comprehensive model for the financial statement recognition, derecognition, measurement, presentation and
disclosure of income 1ax uncertainties with respect to positions taken or expected to be taken in income tax
returns. The Company does not anticipate that the adoption of this statement will have a material impact on
its consolidated financial statements.

* In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS 157, “Fair Value Measurements™. SFAS 157 defines fair value,
establishes a framework for measuring fair value and expands disclosure of fair value measurements.
SFAS 157 applies under other accounting pronouncements that require or permit fair value measurements
and accordingly, does not require any new fair value measurements. SFAS 157 is effective for fiscal years
beginning after November 15, 2007, however on December 14, 2007, the FASB issued proposed FSP
FAS 157-b which would delay the effective date of SFAS 157 for nonfinancial assets and nonfinancial
liabilities to fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2008. The Company does not anticipate that the
adoption of this statement as it relates to its financial assets and financial liabilities will have a material
impact on its consolidated financial statements, and is currently evaluating the potential impact, if any, as it
relates to its nonfinancial assets and nonfinancial liabilities.

» In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS 159, “The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities”. SFAS 159 permits entities to choose to measure certain financial assets and liabilities and other
eligible items at fair value, which are not otherwise currently required to be measured at fair value. Under
SFAS 159, the decision to measure items at fair value is made at specified election dates on an irrevocable
instrument-by-instrument basis. Entities electing the fair value option weuld be required to recognize
changes in fair value in earnings and to expense upfront cost and fees associated with the item for which the
fair value optien is elected. Entities electing the fair value option are required to distinguish on the face of the
statement of financial position, the fair value of assets and liabilities for which the fair value option has been
elected and similar assets and liabilities measured using another measurement attribute. The Company does
not anticipate that the adoption of this staterent will have a material impact on its consolidated financial
statements. The Company did not elect to measure existing assets and liabilities at fair value on the date of
adoption.

First Quarter of 2010

= In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS 141 (revised 2007) “Business Combinations” (“"SFAS 141R”).
SFAS 141R establishes principles and requirements for how the acquirer of a business recognizes and
measures in its financial statements the identifiable assets acquired, the liabilities assumed, and any
noncontrolling interest in the acquiree. SFAS 141[R also provides guidance for recognizing and measuring
the goodwill acquired in the business combination and determines what infoermation to disclose to enable
users of the financial statements to evaluate the nature and financial effects of the business combination. The

62




LEVI STRAUSS & CO. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)
FOR THE YEARS ENDED NOYEMBER 25, 2007, NOVEMBER 26, 2006, AND NOVEMBER 27, 2003

Company is currently evaluating the potential impact, if any, of the adoption of SFAS 141R on its
consolidated financial statements.

» In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS 160, “Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Financial
Statements — an amendment of ARB No. 517. SFAS 160 establishes accounting and reporting standards for
the noncontrolling interest in a subsidiary and for the deconsolidation of a subsidiary. It clurifies that a
noncontrolling interest in a subsidiary is an ownership interest in the consolidated entity that should be
reported as equity in the consolidated financial statements. SFAS 160 requires retroactive adoption of the
presentation and disclosure requirements for existing minority interests. Al other requirements of §FAS 160
shall be applied prospectively. The Company is curremtly evaluating the potential impact of the adoption of
SFAS 160 on its consolidated financial statements.

NOTE 2: INCOME TAXES

The Company’s income tax (benefit) expense was $(84.8) million, $106.2 million and $126.7 million, for
fiscal years 2007, 2006 and 2003, respectively. The Company’s effective tax rate was (22.6)%, 30.8% and 44.8% for
fiscal yeurs 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

The decline in the effective tax rate from 2006 to 2007 was primarily due to the reversal of valuation
allowances against the Company’s deferred tax assets for foreign tax credit carryforwards, primarily due to
improvements in business performance and recent developments in the ongoing IRS examination. In connection
with the IRS examination, during the fourth quanter of 2007, the Company agreed to an adjustment relating to the
prepayment of royalties from its European affiliates which, along with current year operating income, contributed to
the full utilization of the Company’s U.S. federal net operating loss carryforward as of November 25, 2007. This net
operating loss carryforward had been a significant piece of negative evidence that impaired the Company’s ability to
utilize foreign tax credits in prior periods. As a result of these developments, the Company concluded it is more
likely than not its foreign tax credits will be utilized prior to expiration resulting in a non-recurring, non-cash
reduction in tax expense of $215.3 million.

The decrease in the effective tax rate from 2005 to 2006 was primarily driven by a modification of the
ownership structure of certain foreign subsidiaries resulting in a reduction in the overall residual 1.5. 1ax expected
to be imposed upon a repatriation of the Company s unremitted foreign earnings, and as a result of the net reversal of
valuation allowarnces, explained further below.

The U.S. and foreign components of income before taxes were as follows:

Year Ended
November 25, November 26, November 27,
2007 2006 2005
(Dollars in thousands)
DOMESHC © oot e e e e $210,770 $160,761 $ 95,052
Foreign .. ... .. .. . 164.856 184,401 187.549
Total income before taxes ... ........ .. o.vvunn $375.626 $345.162 $282,601
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Income tax expense (benefit) consisted of the following:

Year Ended
November 25, November 26, November 27,
2007 2006 2008
(Dollars in thousands)
U.S. Federal
CUmment. . ..o e e $ 15292 $ 21,471 $ 80,176
Deferred. . ........ .. e (156,647 69,128 2,529
(141,355} 90,599 82,705
U.S. State
CUITENL. . o o e e e e e e 3,676 20 5,758
Deferred. . ... ... .. . . 745 (12.,905) 11,193
4,421 (12,885) 16,951
Foreign
CUITent . « o . oot e e e e 46,352 45,216 38,893
Deferred. .. ........ ... .. e 5,823 (16,771) {11,895)
52,175 28.445 26,998
Consolidated
CUITENt, . o o e e 65,320 66,707 124,827
Deferred . . ... ... ... . . (150,079) 39,452 1,827
Total income tax (benefit) expense. ... ......... $ (84,759) $106,159 $126.654

The Company’s income tax (benefit) expense differed from the amount computed by applying the U.S. federal
statutory income tax rate of 35% to income before taxes as follows:

Year Ended
November 25, November 26, November 27,
2007 2006 2005

{Dollars in thousands)

Income tax expense at U.S. federal

slamtory rate . . ... ... ... ... $ 131,470 350% $120,807 35.0% $ 98910 35.0%
State income taxes, net of U.S.

federal impact . . .............. 2,354 0.6% 7.433 2.2% 8,777 3.1%
Change in valuation allowance. . .. .. (206,830) (55.)% (28.729) (B.3)% (62,432) (22.1)%
Impact of foreign operations .. .. ... (21,946) (5.8)% 7.899 2.3% 86,290 30.5%
Reassessment of liabilities due to

change in estimate. .. .......... 10,813 2.9% (1,649 (0.5)% (9,612) (4%
Other, including non-deductible

CXPEISES « o v vt 6200 (0.2)% 398 0.1% 4721 1.7%

Total . ... oo $ (84,739) (22.6)% $106,159 30.8% $126,654 44.8%

State income taxes, net of U.S. federal impact.  This item primarily reflects the current and deferred state
income tax expense, net of related federal benefit. The impact of this item on the estimated annual effective tax rate
decreased in 2007 from the prior years primarily due to the recognition of a non-recurring, non-cash tax benefit of
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$6.3 million resulting from the Company’s election in the second quarter of 2007 to change the filing methodology
of its California state income tax return.

Change in valuation allowance. This item relates to changes in the Company’s expectations regarding its
ability to realize certain deferred tax assets. The Company evaluates all significant available positive and negative
evidence, including the existence of losses in recent years and its forecast of future taxable income, in assessing the
need for a valuation allowance. The underlying assumptions the Company uses in forecasting future taxable income
require significant judgment and take into account the Company’s recent performance.

In 2007, the $206.8 million net release was driven by a valuation allowance reversal of $215.3 million relating
to foreign tax credit carryforwards, partially offset by a net charge of $8.5 million primarily relating to foreign net
operating loss carryforwards and other foreign deferred tax assets as shown in the following table:

Valuation Valuation
Allowance at Changes in Related Allowance at
November 26, Gross Deferred Tax Charge/ November 25,
2006 Asset (Release) 2007
(Dollars in thousands)
Foreign tax credit carryforwards . ...  $259,271 $(43,994) $(215277) $ —
U.S. state net operating loss
carryforward . . ... ... L 1,559 — 429) 1,130
Federal capital loss carryforward . . . . 2,461 (2,461) — —
Foreign net operating loss
carrryforwards and other foreign
deferred tax assets. . ........... 63,590 — 8,876 72,466
$326,881 $(46,455) $(206,830) $73,596

The $253.3 million decrease in the total valuation aliowance during 2007 includes a $206.8 million net
decrease in valuation allowance relating primarily to changes in judgment regarding the recoverability of certain
deferred tax assets in future periods as explained above, and a $46.5 million net decrease in valuation allowance
relating primarily to changes in underlying gross deferred taxes relating to the expected repatriation of unremitted
foreign earnings.

In 2006, the $28.7 million net decrease in valuation allowance primarily relates to benefits related to state net
operating loss carryforwards in the United States and to certain foreign net operating loss carryforwards. In 2005,
the $62.4 million net decrease in valuation allowance relates primarily to foreign net operating loss carryforwards
and foreign tax credit carryforwards, partially offset by an increase relating to U.S. state net operating loss
carryforwards,

Impact of foreign operations. 'This item primarily reflects the impact of the taxation of foreign profits in
jurisdictions with rates that differ from the U.S. federal statutory rate. In 2007, the $21.9 million benefit arose as the
2007 foreign profits were subject to an average rate of tax below the U.S. statutory rate of 35%; due primarily to a
change in the Company’s expectation regarding its ability to utilize foreign tax credit carryforwards prior to
expiration, no additional U.S. tax expense was incurred relating to the expected future repatriation of these earnings.

The $7.9 million expense in 2006 primarily reflects an accrual for additional U.S. residual income tax due to
2006 operating results, partially offset by a non-recurring, non-cash benefit of $31.5 million relating to a
modification of the ownership structure of certain foreign subsidiaries. The $86.3 million expense in 2005
primarily reflects an accrual for the additional U.S. residual income tax due to increases in unremitied foreign
earnings.
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Reassessiment of liabilities due to change in estimate. This item relates primarily to changes in the
Company’s estimate of its contingent tax liabilities. In 2007, the $10.8 million expense is comprised of an increase
in foreign contingent tax liabilities of $7.5 million relating primarily to transfer pricing issues and a net increase in
U.S. federal and state contingent tax liabilities of $3.3 million. In 2006, the $1.6 miltion net benefit includes benefits
relating primarily to favorable state audit settlements, partially offset by additicnal tax expense resulting from a net
increase in foreign contingent tax liabilities. In 20035, the $9.6 million benefit relates primarily to a reduction in
foreign contingent liabilities relating to a favorable court decision in the Netherlands and a reduction in U.S. federal
contingent liabilities, partially offset by an increase for existing and newly identified state and foreign tax
contingencies identifted during the 2005 year.

The temporary basis differences that give rise to deferred tax assets and deferred tax Habilities were as follows:

November 25, November 26,
2007 2006

(Dollars in thousands)

Deferred tax assets (liabilities):

Foreign tax credits on unremitted foreign earnings . ............. $173.476 $ 280,490
Additional U.S. tax on unremitted foreign earnings. ... .......... (177,848) (207,053)
Foreign tax credit carryforward ... ... .. ... ... ... . ..... .. 284,412 100,269
Alternative minimum tax credit carryforward .. ....... ... ... .. — 6,422
Federal net operating loss carryforward ... ............ ....... — 170,550
State net operating loss carryforward .. ... .......... ... ..... 17,441 18,987
Foreign net operating loss carryforward ... ....... ... ... ..... 89,176 82,530
Employee compensation and benefit plans . . .......... ... ... ... 183,900 310,747
Restructuring liabilities . ... ... . ... ... .. . o i L, 15,614 17,622
Sales veturns and allowances .. ... ... . . . o 37,997 29611
Inventory basis difference. . . . ......... .. ... . . L L 18,025 18.026
Depreciation and amortization .. ... ... . ... . ... 11,769 9,770
Unrealized gains/losses on investments . .. .. .................. 24,875 6,906
Other. . . e 39,067 40,932
Total gross deferred tax assets ................ ... ... ..... 717,904 885,809
Less: Valuation allowance . ... ... ..... ... ... ... . .. ... ... (73,596) (326,881)
Total net deferred tax assets .. ......ov e, $ 644,308 $ 558,928
Current
Gross deferred 1ax assets -, ... ... ..ttt s $ 136,778 $ 143,582
Valuation allowance . ... ... ... ... . ... (3,598) (41,759)
Total current net deferred tax assets . ......... ... . oo, $ 133,180 $ 101,823
Long-term
Gross deferred tax assets . . . .. ... $ 581,126 $ 742,227
Valuation allowance . . . ... ... .. . e (69,998) {285,122)
Total long-term net deferred tax assets . ............... .. ... $511,128 $ 457.105

Foreign tax credits on unreminted foreign earnings.  The Company provides for income 1axes with respect o
temporary differences between the book and tax bases of foreign investments that are expected to reverse in the
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foreseeable future. At November 235, 2007, the Company had a gross deferred tax asset for foreign tax credits
relating to unremitted foreign earnings of $173.5 million, These credits are expected to become available to the
Company in future periods upon the remittance of undistributed earnings of certain foreign subsidiaries. This asset
decreased from $280.3 million in the prior year period due to a decision by the Company during 2007 to
permanently reinvest the earnings of certain foreign subsidiaries.

During the fourth quarter of 2007, the Company concluded that basis differences, consisting primarily of
undistributed foreign earnings, related to investments in certain foreign subsidiaries totaling $121.8 million were no
longer expected to reverse in the foreseeable future. The Company plans to utilize these earnings to finance
expansion and operating requirements of these subsidiaries. These earnings could become subject to U.S. federal
tax if distributed as dividends, loaned to a U.S. affiliate, or if the Company sells its interests in these subsidiaries. If
these earnings were distributed, foreign tax credits would become available under current law to eliminate the
resulting U.S. federal income tax liability and a gross deferred tax asset for additional excess foreign tax credit
carryforwards may be established.

Foreign tax credit carryforward. At November 25, 2007. the Company had a gross deferred tax asset for
foreign tax credit carryforwards of $284.4 million. This asset increased from $100.2 million in the prior year period
primarily due to taxes paid during 2007, agreements reached during 2007 with the IRS relating to their examination
of the Company’s U.S. federal income tax returns for the 2000-2002 fiscal years. and a decision during 2007 to
credit rather than deduct income taxes in prior periods. The foreign tax credit carryforward of $284.4 million
existing at November 25, 2007, is subject to expiration from 2009 to 2017, if not utilized.

Federal net operating loss carryforward. At November 26, 2006, the Company had a gross deferred tax asset
of $170.6 million for U.S. federal net operating loss carryforwards of approximately $487.3 million. The Company
utilized approximately $138.3 million of this asset during 2007 due to agreements reached during the fourth quarter
of 2007 with the IRS relating to their examination of the Company’s U.S. federal income tax returns for the
2000-2002 fiscal years. Additionally, the Company utilized approximately $32.3 million due to current year
operating income. As a result of these developments, no gross deferred tax asset for U.S. federal net operating loss
carryforwards exists at November 25, 2007.

State net operating loss carryforward.  AtNovember 25, 2007, the Company had a gross deferred tax asset of
$17.4 million for state net operating loss carryforwards of approximately $368.5 million, partially offset by a
valuation allowance of $1.1 million to reduce this gross asset (o the amount that will more likely than not be
realized. These loss carryforwards are subject to expiration from 2008 to 2027, if not utilized.

Foreign net operating loss carryforward. At November 25, 2007, cumulative foreign operating losses of
$316.6 million generated by the Company were available to reduce future taxable income. Approximately
$127.5 million of these operating losses expire between the years 2008 and 2017. The remaining $189.1 million
are available as indefinite carryforwards under applicable tax law. The gross deferred tax asset for the cumulative
foreign operating losses of $89.2 million is partially offset by a valuation allowance-of $72.4 million to reduce this
gross asset to the amount that will more likely than not be realized.

Examination of tax returns.  During the year ended November 25, 2007, the IRS continued its examination of
the Company’s 2000-2002 U.S. federal corporate income tax returns. During the fourth quarter of 2007, the
Company and the IRS reached agreement on all material issues raised in connection with this examination. No
significant cash tax liabilities or receivables resulted from the agreement, though adjustments to the returns have
resulted in significant adjustments to the federal net operating loss and foreign tax credit carryforwards otherwise
available to the Company. The examination is expected to conclude in the next twelve months, with no material
adverse impact to the Company’s consolidated balance sheet, net income or cash flows.
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The IRS has not yet begun an examination of the Company’s 2003-2006 U.S. federal corporate income tax

NOTE 3: PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

The components of property, plant and equipment (“PP&E™) were as follows:

November 25,

returns. In addition, certain state and foreign tax returns continue to be examined by various regulatory authorities.
The Company continuously reviews issues raised in connection with all cngoing examinations and open tax years to
evaluate the adequacy of its liabilities. The Company believes that ils tax liabilities are adequate to cover all
probable U.S. federal, state, and foreign income tax loss contingencies at November 25, 2007.

November 26

2007 2006
(Dollars in thousands)
Land ... e $ 28639 $ 30,222
Buildings and leasehold improvements . .. ...................... 363,379 345,194
Machinery and equipment . .. ....... ... ... ... .. 0 513,272 472,023
Capitalized internal-use software. . ... ..., ... ... ... . .. uir.i.n 83,370 66,172
Construction N Progress. ... ..o ve e it it in i ee e 64,519 21,331
Subtotal . ... .. 1,053,199 934,942
Accumulated depreciation. . ... ... . L o (605,859) (530,513)
PP&E, net .. ... .. . $ 447340 $ 404,429

Depreciation expense for the years ended November 25, 2007, November 26, 2006, and November 27, 2005,

was $67.5 million, $62.2 million and $58.5 million, respectively.

Construction in progress at November 25, 2007, and November 26, 2006, primarily related to the installation
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NOTE 4: GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The changes in the carrying amount of goodwill by business segment for the years ended November 25, 2007,
and November 26, 2006, were as follows:

North Asia
America Europe Pacific Total
(Dollars in thousands)

Balance, November 27,2005 . ... ... ... ... ...... $199905 $2345 $ — 5202250
Additions . . . ... e e — 1,063 270 1,333
Foreign currency fluctuation . .................. — 406 — 406

Balance, November 26,2006 .................... 199,905 3,814 270 203,989
Additions . ... ... . e e — — 2,175 2,175
Foreign currency fluctuation . . . ................ — 249 73 322

Balance, November 25,2007 ... ... ... .ot $199905 $4,063 $2518 $206,486

Additions to goodwill in both years resulted from the purchase of retail stores.

Other intangible assets were as follows:

November 25, 2007 November 26, 2006
Gross Accumulated Gross Accumulated
Carrying Value Amortization Total Carrying Value Amortization Total

(Dollars in thousands)

Trademarks and other
intangible assets ... ....... $43,059 $(284)  $42,775 $43,059 8(244) 342,815

As of November 25, 2007, there was no impairment to the carrying value of the Company’s goodwill or
indefinite lived intangible assets.
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NOTE 5: LONG-TERM DEBT

November 25, November 26,
2007

(Dollars in thousands)

Long-term debt

Secured:;
Senior revolving credit facility .. .. .. ..., ... ... L. $ 250000 S —
Notes payable, at various rates . ... ....... ... ... ... 131 117
Total secured . . ... .. ... ... . 250,131 117
Unsecured:
12.25% senior notes due 2012 ... .. ... . ..., 18,702 522.453
Floating rate senior notes due 2012 ... ...................... — 380,000
8.625% Euro senior notes due 2013 .. ... ... ... ... ... ... .. 373,808 330,952
Senior term loan due 2014 . . ... .. .. ... o 322,737 —
9.75% seniornotes due 2015 .. . .. ... 450,000 450,000
8.875% seniornotes due 2016 .. .. ... ... ... e 350,000 350,000
4.25% Yen-denominated Eurobonds due 2016. . ................ 184,689 172,801
Total unsecured . .. ... ... ... ... e 1,699,936 2,206,206
Less: current maturities . . .. ..ottt e e e e (70,875 —
Total long-term debt. . . ........ ... . .. ... .. .. $1,879,192  $2.,206,323
Short-term debt
Short-term Bormowings . . .. ..ot e $ 10339 § 11,089
Current maturities of long-termdebt. .. ... ................... 70,875 —
Total short-term debt ... ... . $ 81,214 $ 11,089
Total long-term and short-term debt .. ... ............... ... $1,960,406 $2.217412

Senior Secured Revolving Credit Facility

On May 18, 2006, and October 11, 2007, the Company amended and restated its senior secured revolving
credit facility, which it initially entered into on September 29, 2003. The facility is an asset-based facility, in which
the borrowing availability varies according to the levels of the Company’s domestic accounts receivable. inventory
and cash and investment securities deposited in secured accounts with the administrative agent or other lenders.
Subject to the level of this borrowing base. the Company may make and repay borrowings from time to time until
the maturity of the facility. The Company may make voluntary prepayments of borrowings at any time and must
make mandatory prepayments if certain events occur, sich as asset sales. Other material terms of the credit facility
are discussed below.

Availability, interest and maturity.  The maximum availability under the credit facility is $750.0 million,
including a $250.0 million trademark tranche. The trademark tranche amortizes on a quarterly basis based on a
straight line two-year amortization schedule to a residual value of 25% of the net orderly liquidation value of the
trademarks with no additional repayments required until maturity so long as the remaining amount of the tranche
does not exceed such 25% valuation. The trademark tranche will be borrowed on a first dotlar drawn basis. As the
trademark tranche is repaid, the maximum availability under the credit facility will not be automatically reduced by
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the amount of the repayment. The revolving portion of the credit facility initially bears an interest rate of LIBOR
plus 130 basis points or base rate plus 25 basis points subject to subsequent adjustments based on availability. The
trademark tranche bears an interest rate of LIBOR plus 250 basis points or base rate plus 125 basis points. The credit
facility matures on October 11, 2012,

Guarantees and security.  The Company’s obligations under the senior secured revolving credit facility are
guaranteed by the Company’s domestic subsidiaries. The senior secured revolving credit facility is secured by a
first-priority lien on domestic inventory and accounts receivable, certain domestic equipment, patents, certain
U.S. trademarks associated with the Levi's® brand, and other related intellectual property, 100% of the equity
interests in all domestic subsidiaries and other assets. The lien on the trademarks, but not the other assets, will be
released upon the full repayment of the trademark tranche. In addition, the Company has the ability to deposit cash
or certain investment securities with the administrative agent for the facility to secure the Company’s reimburse-
ment and other obligations with respect to letters of credit. Such cash-collateralized letters of credit are subject to
lower letter of credit fees.

Covenants. The senior secured revolving credit facility contains customary covenants restricting the
Company’s activities as well as those of the Company’s subsidiaries, including limitations on the Company’s,
and the Company’s domestic subsidiaries’, ability to sell assets; engage in mergers; enter into capital leases or
certain leases not in the ordinary course of business; enter into transactions involving related parties or derivatives;
incur or prepay indebtedness or grant liens or negative pledges on the Company’s assets; make loans or other
investments; pay dividends or repurchase stock or other securities; guaranty third-party obligations: and make
changes in the Company’s corporate structure. Some of these covenants are suspended if unused availability
exceeds certain minimum thresholds. In addition, a minimum fixed charge coverage ratio of 1.0:1.0 arises when
unused availability under the Credit Agreement is less than $100.0 million. As of November 25, 2007, the Company
had sufficient unused availability under the Credit Agreement to exceed all applicable minimum thresholds. This
financial covenant will be discontinued upon repayment in full and termination of the trademark tranche described
above and the implementation of a liquidity reserve of $50 million.

Events of defaufr.  The senior secured revolving credit facility contains customary events of default, including
payment failures; failure to comply with covenants; failure to satisfy other obligations under the credit agreements
or related documents; defaults in respect of other indebtedness; bankruptcy, insolvency and inability to pay debts
when due: material judgments; pension plan terminations or specified underfunding; substantial voting trust
certificate or stock ownership changes: specified changes in the composition of the Company’s board of directors;
and invalidity of the guaranty or security agreements. The cross-default provisions in the senior secured revolving
credit facility apply if a default occurs on other indebtedness in excess of $25.0 million and the applicable grace
period in respect of the indebtedness has expired, such that the lenders of or trustee for the defaulted indebtedness
have the right to accelerate. If an event of default occurs under the senior secured revolving credit facility, the
Company's lenders may terminate their commitments, declare immediately payable all borrowings under the credit
facility and foreclose on the collateral.

Use of proceeds — Tender offer and redempiion of the 2012 notes.  As discussed below, in October 2007, the
Company borrowed $346.4 million (including all $250.0 million of the trademark tranche)} under the amended
credit facility and used the proceeds plus $220.5 million of cash on hand to prepay $506.2 million of its senior notes
due 2012 plus accrued and unpaid interest, prepayment premiums, tender offer consideration, applicable consent
payments and other fees and expenses. At November 25, 2007, there were no borrowings outstanding under the
revolving tranche of the amended credit facility as the $96.4 million used above was repaid.
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Senior Notes due 2012

On November 17, 2006, the Company repurchased in the open market $50.0 million of its outstanding
$575.0 million aggregate principal amount of senior notes due 2012 with the Company’s existing cash and cash
equivalents. The Company also paid $6.1 million in premiums and other fees and expenses with the Company’s
existing cash and cash equivalents and wrote off $1.2 million of unamortized debt discount and issuance cosis
refated to this repurchase.

On September 19, 2007, the Company commenced a cash tender offer for its remaining $525.0 million
aggregate principal amount of senior notes due 2012, The Company also sought consent to amend the indenture
under which the notes were issued to eliminate or make less restrictive most of the restrictive covenants, and certain
related events of default, contained in the indenture.

By October 18, 2007, tenders and consents were received from holders of $506.2 million, or 96.4%, of the
aggregate principal amount of the notes outstanding for a total cash consideration of $566.9 million, consisting of
the accrued and unpaid interest, prepayment premiums, tender offer consideration, applicable consent payments
and other fees and expenses. The total cash consideration was paid using the proceeds of $346.4 million under the
amended credit facility plus $220.5 million of cash on hand. Additionally, the Company wrote off $10.6 million of
unamortized debt issuance costs and any applicable discounts or premiums relating to the purchase and extin-
guishment of these notes.

The remaining $18.7 million outstanding 2012 notes are unsecured obligations that rank equally with all of the
Company’s other existing and future unsecured and unsubordinated debt. They are 10-year notes maturing on
December 15, 2012, and bear interest at 12.25% per annum, payable semi-annually in arrears on December 15 and
June 15. The original notes were offered at a net discount of $3.7 million, which is amortized over the term of the
notes using an approximate effective-interest rate method. Costs representing underwriting fees and other expenses
associated with the original notes of $18.4 million are amortized over the term of the notes to interest expense. The
notes became callable on December 15, 2007.

Floating Rate Notes due 2012

As discussed below, on April 4, 2007, the Company borrowed the maximum available of $322.6 million under
the senior unsecured term loan due 2014 and used the borrowings plus cash on hand of $66.4 million to redeem all of
its outstanding $380.0 million floating rate senior notes due 2012 and to pay related redemption premiums,
transaction fees and expenses, and accrued interest of $9.0 million. The floating rate notes had a per annum interest
rate, reset quarterly, equal to LIBOR plus 4.75%, payable quarterly in arrears on January 1, April 1, July 1, and
October 1 with a maturity date of April 1, 2012, Costs representing underwriting fees and other expenses of
$8.6 million were amortized over the term of the notes to interest expense.

Euro Notes due 2013

On March 11, 2005, the Company issued €130.0 million in notes to qualified institutional buyers. These notes
are unsecured obligations that rank equally with all of the Company’s other existing and future unsecured and
unsubordinated debt. These notes mature on April 1, 2013, and bear interest at 8.625% per annum, payable semi-
annually in arrears on April 1 and October 1. Starting on April 1, 2009, the Company may redeem all or any portion
of the notes, at once or over time, at redemption prices specified in the indenture governing the notes. after giving
the required notice under the indenture. In addition, at any time prior to April 1, 2008, the Company may redeem up
to a maximum of 35% of the original aggregate principal amount of the notes with the proceeds of one or more
public equity offerings at a redemption price of 108.625% of the principal amount plus accrued and unpaid interest,
if any, to the date of redemption. These notes were offered at par. Costs representing underwriting fees and other
expenses of $5.3 million are amortized over the term of the notes to interest expense.
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Exchange offer.  In June 2005, after a required exchange offer, all but €2.0 million of the €150.0 million
aggregate principal amount of the notes were exchanged for new notes on identical terms, except that the new notes
are registered under the Securities Act.

Covenants. The indenture governing the 2013 Euro notes contains covenants that limit the Company and its
subsidiaries’ ability to incur additional debt; pay dividends or make other restricted payments; consummate
specified asset sales; enter into transactions with affiliates; incur liens; impose restrictions on the ability of a
subsidiary to pay dividends or make payments to the Company and its subsidiaries; merge or consolidate with any
other person; and sell, assign, transfer, lease, convey or otherwise dispose of all or substantially all of the Company’s
assets or its subsidiaries’ assets,

Asset sales.  The indenture governing these notes provides that the Company’s asset sales must be at fair
market value and the consideration must consist of at least 75% cash or cash equivalents or the assumption of
liabilities. The Company must use the net proceeds from the asset sale within 360 days after receipt either to repay
bank debt. with an equivalent permanent reduction in the available commitment in the case of a repayment under the
Company’s senior secured revolving credit facility, or to invest in additional assets in a business related 1o the
Company’s business. To the extent proceeds not so used within the time period exceed $10.0 million, the Company
is required to make an offer to purchase outstanding notes at par plus accrued an unpaid interest, if any, to the date of
repurchase.

Change in control.  1f the Company experiences a change in control as defined in the indenture governing the
notes, then the Company will be required under the indenture to make an offer to repurchase the notes at a price
equal to 101% of the principal amount plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to the date of repurchase.

Events of default. The indenture governing these notes contains customary events of default, including
failure to pay principal, failure to pay interest after a 30-day grace period, failure to comply with the merger,
consolidation and sale of property covenant, failure to comply with other covenants in the indenture for a period of
30 days after notice given to the Company, failure to satisfy certain judgments in excess of $25.0 million after a
30-day grace period, and certain events involving bankruptcy, insolvency or reorganization. The indenture also
contains a cross-acceleration event of default that applies if debt of the Company or any resiricted subsidiary in
excess of $25.0 million is accelerated or is not paid when due at final maturity.

Covenant suspension.  If these notes receive and maintain an investment grade rating by both Standard and
Poor’s and Moody's and the Company and its subsidiaries are and remain in compliance with the indenture, then the
Company and its subsidiaries will not be required to comply with specified covenants contained in the indenture,

Use of proceeds — Tender offer and redemption of 2008 notes.  In March 2005, the Company purchased
pursuant to a tender offer $270.0 million and €89.0 million in principal amounti tendered of its then-existing 2008
notes. The Company subsequently redeemed all remaining 2008 notes in April 2005. Both the tender offer and
redemption were funded with the proceeds from the issvance of the 2012 floating rate notes and the 2013 Euro
notes. The remaining proceeds of $35.2 million and use of $12.6 million of the Company’s existing cash and cash
equivalents were used to pay the fees, expenses and premiums payable in connection with the March 2003 offering,
the tender offer and the redemption. The Company paid $33.9 million in tender premiums and other fees and
expenses and wrote off $9.2 miilion of unamortized debt discount and issuance costs related to this tender offer and
redemption.

Senior Unsecured Term Loan

On March 27, 2007, the Company entered into a senior unsecured term loan agreement. The term loan consists
of a single borrowing of $325.0 million, net of a 0.75% discount to the lenders. On April 4, 2007, the Company
borrowed the maximum available of $322.6 million under the term loan and used the borrowings plus cash on hand
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of $66.4 million to redeem all of its outstanding $380.0 million floating rate senior notes due 2012 and to pay related
redemption premiums, transaction fees and expenses, and accrued interest of $9.0 million. The term loan matures
on April 4, 2014, and bears interest at 2.25% over LIBOR or 1.25% over the base rate. The term loan may not be
prepaid during the first year but thereafter may be prepaid without premium or penalty.

The covenants, events of default, asset sale, change of control, covenant suspension and other terms of the term
loan are comparable to those contained in the indentures governing the Company’s 2013 Euro notes described
above.

Senior Notes due 2015

Principal, interest and maturity.  On December 22, 2004, the Company issued $450.0 million in notes to
qualified institutional buyers, These notes are unsecured obligations that rank equally with all of the Company’s
other existing and future unsecured and unsubordinated debt. They are 10-year notes maturing on January 15, 20135,
and bear interest at 9.75% per annum, payable semi-anaually in arrears on fanuary 15 and July 15. The Company
may redeem some or all of the notes prior to January 15, 2010, at a price equal to 100% of the principal amount plus
accrued and unpaid interest and a “make-whole™ premium. Thereafter, the Company may redeem all or any portion
of the notes, at once or over time, at redemption prices specified in the indenture governing the notes, after giving
the required notice under the indenture. Costs representing underwriting fees and other expenses of $10.3 million
are amortized over the term of the notes to interest expense.

Use of proceeds — Tender offer and repurchase of senior notes due 2006, In December 2004, the Company
commenced a cash tender offer for the outstanding principal amount of all of its then-existing senior unsecured
notes due 2006. The tender offer expired January 12, 2005. The Company purchased pursuant to the tender offer
$372.1 million in principal amount of its $450.0 million principal amount of the 2006 notes, using $372.1 million of
the gross proceeds of the issuance of the 2015 notes. The Company used the remaining proceeds to repay the
remaining 2006 notes at maturity on November 1, 2006. The Company paid $19.7 million in tender premiums and
other fees and expenses with the Company’s existing cash and cash equivalents and wrote off $3.3 million of
unamortized debt discount and issuance costs related to this tender offer.

Exchange offer.  In June 2003, after a required exchange offer, all but $30,000 of the $450.0 million aggregate
principal amount of the notes were exchanged for new notes on identical terms, except that the new notes are
registered under the Securities Act.

The covenants, events of default, asset sale, change of control, covenant suspension and other terms of the
notes are comparable to those contained in the indentures governing the Company’s 2013 Euro notes described
above.

Additional Euro Senior Notes due 2013 and Senior Notes due 2016

Additional Euro senior notes due 2013, On March 17, 2006, the Company issued an additional €100.0 mil-
lion in Euro senior notes due 2013 to qualified institutional buyers. These notes have the same terms and are part of
the same series as the €150.0 million aggregate principal amount of Euro-denominated 8.625% senior notes due
2013 the Company issued in March 2005. These notes were offered at a premium of 3.5%, or $4.2 million, which
original issuance premium will be amortized over the term of the notes. Costs representing underwriting fees and
other expenses of $2.8 million are being amortized over the term of the notes to interest expense.

Exchange offer.  In July 2006, after a required exchange offer. €100.7 million of the remaining €102.0 million
unregistered 2013 Euro notes {which includes €2.0 million of unregistered 2013 Euro notes from the March 2005
offering) were exchanged for new notes on tdentical terms, except that the new notes are registered under the
Securities Act.
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Senior notes due 2016. On March 17, 2006, the Company issued $350.0 million in notes o qualified
institutional buyers. These notes are unsecured obligations that rank equally with all of the Company's other
existing and future unsecured and unsubordinated debt. They are 10-year notes maturing on April 1, 2016, and bear
interest at 8.875% per annum, payable semi-annually in arrears on April | and October 1. The Company may
redeem these notes, in whole or in part, at any time prior to April 1, 2011, at a price equal to 100% of the principal
amount plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to the date of redemption and a “make-whole™ premium, Starting on
April 1, 2011, the Company may redeem all or any portion of the notes, at once or over time, at redemption prices
specified in the indenture governing the notes, after giving the required notice under the indenture. In addition, at
any time prior to April 1, 2009, the Company may redeem up to and including 35% of the original aggregate
principal amount of the notes (including additional notes, if any) with the proceeds of ene or more public equity
offerings at a redemption price of 108.875% of the principal amount plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to the
date of redemption. These notes were offered at par. Costs representing underwriting fees and other expenses of
$8.0 million are being amortized over the term of the notes to interest expense.

The covenants, events of default, asset sale. change of control, covenant suspension and other terms of the
notes are comparable to those contained in the indentures governing the Company’s 2013 Euro notes described
above.

Exchange offer.  In July 2006. after a required exchange offer. all of the 2016 notes were exchanged for new
notes on identical terms, except that the new notes are registered under the Securities Act.

Use of proceeds — Prepayment of term loan. In March 2006, the Company used the proceeds of the
additional 2013 Euro notes and the 2016 notes plus cash on hand to prepay the remaining balance of then existing
senior secured term loan of $488.8 million.

Yen-denominated Eurobonds

In 1996, the Company issued ¥20 billion principal amount Eurobonds (equivalent to approximately $180.0 mil-
lion at the time of issuance) due in November 2016, with interest payable at 4.25% per annum, The bond is
redeemable at the optien of the Company at a make-whole redemption price.

The agreement governing these bonds contains customary events of default and restricts the Company’s ability
and the ability of its subsidiaries and future subsidiaries to incur liens; engage in sale and leuseback transactions and
engage in mergers and sales of assets. The agreement contains a cross-acceleration event of default that applies if
any of the Company’s debt in excess of $25.0 million is accelerated and the debt is not discharged or acceleration
rescinded within 30 days after the Company’s receipt of a notice of default from the fiscal agent or from the holders
of at least 25% of the principal amount of the bond.

Loss on Early Extinguishment of Debt

For the year ended November 25, 2007, the Company recorded a loss of $63.8 million on early extinguishment
of debt as a result of its redemption of its floating rate senior notes due 2012 during the second quarter of 2007 and
its repurchase of $506.2 mitlion of its 12.25% senior notes due 2012 during the fourth quarter of 2007. The 2007
losses were comprised of prepayment premiums, tender offer constderation, applicable consent payments and other
fees and expenses of $46.7 million and the write-off of $17.) million of unamortized capitalized costs and debt
discount.

For the year ended November 26, 2006. the Company recorded losses of $40.3 million on early extinguishment
of debt primarily as a result of its prepayment in March 2006 of the remaining balance of its term loan of
$488.8 million, the amendment in May 2006 of its senior secured revolving credit facility and open market
repurchases of $50.0 mitlion of its 2012 senior unsecured notes in November 2006, The 2006 losses were comprised
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of prepayment premiums and other fees and expenses of $23.0 million and the write-off of $17.3 million of
unamortized capitalized costs.

For the year ended November 27, 2005, the Company recorded losses of $66.1 million on early extinguishment
of debt primarily as a result of its repurchase of $372.1 million of its $450.0 million principal amount 2006 senior
unsecured notes in Januvary 2005, and repurchase and redemption of all of its outstanding $380.0 million and
€125.0 miilion 2008 senior unsecured notes in March and April 2005. The 2005 losses were comprised of tender
offer premiums and other fees and expenses of $53.6 million and the write-off of $12.5 millicn of unamortized
capitalized costs and debt discount.

Principal Payments on Short-term and Long-term Debt

The table below sets forth, as of November 25, 2007, the Company’s required aggregate short-term and long-
term debt principal payments (inclusive of premium and discount) for the next five fiscal years and thereafter.

(Dollars in thousands)

L $ 81214
2009 e e 70,875
2000 e —
2000 e e e —
2002 108,250
Thereafter ... ..o e e e e 1,700,067

Total future debt principal payments .. ... ... ... ... ... L $1,960,406

Short-term Credit Lines and Standby Letters of Credit

The Company’s unused lines of credit totaled approximately $368.6 million at November 25, 2007, As of
November 25, 2007, the Company’s total availability of $447.2 million under its senior secured revolving credit
facility was reduced by $78.6 million of letters of credit and other credit usage allocated under the Company’s
senior secured revolving credit facility, yielding a net availability of $368.6 million. Tncluded in the $78.6 million of
letters of credit on November 25, 2007, were $6.2 million of trade letters of credit and bankers’ acceptances,
$8.7 million of other credit usage and $63.6 million of stand-by letters of credit with various international banks, of
which $37.5 million serve as guarantees by the creditor banks to cover U.S. workers compensation claims and
customs bonds. The Company pays fees on the standby letters of credit, and borrowings against the letters of credit
are subject to interest al various rates.

Interest Rates on Borrowings

The Company’s weighted-average interest rate on average borrowings outstanding during 2007, 2006 and
2005 was 9.59%, 10.23% and 10.51%, respectively. The weighted-average interest rate on average borrowings
outstanding includes the amortization of capitalized bank fees and underwriting fees, and excludes interest on
obligations to participants under deferred compensation plans.

Dividends and Restrictions

The Company’s senior secured revolving credit facility agreement contains a covenant that restricts the
Company’s ability to pay dividends to its stockholders. As of November 25, 2007, this covenant was suspended by
virtue of the Company’s unused availability under the credit facility exceeding $100.0 million. In addition, the
terms of certain of the indentures relating to the Company's unsecured notes limit the Company’s ability to pay
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dividends. Subsidiaries of the Company that are not wholly-owned subsidiaries (the Company’s Japanese sub-
sidiary is the only such subsidiary) are permitted under the indentures to pay dividends to all stockholders either ona
pro rata basis or on a basis that results in the receipt by the Company of dividends or distributions of greater value
than it would receive on a pro rata basis. There are no restrictions under the Company’s sentor secured revolving
credit facility or its indentures on the transfer of the assets of the Company’'s subsidiaries to the Company in the form
of loans, advances or cash dividends without the consent of a third party.

Capital Leases

The Company has capital lease obligations, primarily comprised of a logistics services agreement in Europe
with a third party that includes machinery and equipment. This agreement includes an initial fixed term of
approximately five years which runs through 2009 and provides for a renewal option,

The total cost of the Company’s capital lease assets and accumulated depreciation was $16.7 million and
$8.3 million, respectively. as of November 25, 2007, and $10.4 million and $5.6 million, respectively, as of
November 26. 2006.

The minimum future lease payments required under the Company's capital leases and the present values of the
minimum future lease payments as of November 25, 2007, were as follows:

(Dollars in thousands)

2008 L $3,027
2000 5,572
2000 L 105
20 18
2002 3
Thereafter ., ... .. e —
Total minimum future lease payments . . .. ... ... ... ... . ... 8,725
Less: amount representing tnterest. . .. ........ ...ttt 548
Present value of minimum future lease payments. .. ................... 8.177
CUITENt MAFILIES .« v o v et e e e e et e e e e e e e e e e e e s 2,701
Long-term capital leases, less current maturities .. .................... $5,476
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NOTE 6: FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amount and estimated fair value — including accrued interest — of the Company's financial
instrument liabilities for the periods presented are as follows:

November 25, 2007 November 26, 2006
Carrying Estimated Carrying Estimated
Value Fair Value Value Fair Value

(Dollars in thousands)

Debt Instruments:

U.S. dollar notes'V. ... ... ... ... $(1,415,690) $(1,373,656) $(1.758,324) $(1,923,365)
Euronotes. . ...........c..vuu.. (378,705) (361,384) (335,483) (351,177
Yen-denominated Eurobond .. ... ... (185.258) (153,122) (173,328) (168,144)
Short-term and other borrowings . . .. (10,776) (10,776) (12,103) (12,103}

Total ............... . ....... $(1,990,429) $(1,898,938) $(2.279,238) $(2,454,789)

Foreign Exchange Contracts:

Forward contracts .. ............. $ (6253 $ (6253 § (1,667) §  (1,66T)
Option contracts .. .............. — — (577) (577)

Total o .o $ (6253 § (6253 $ (2,244 §  (2,244)

(1) The decrease in fair value st November 25, 2007, compared to November 26, 2006, is primartly due to the repurchase of over 96% of the
Company’s 12.25% senior notes due 2012 in the fourth quarter of 2007,

NOTE 7: COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Operating Lease Commitments

The Company is obligated under operating leases for manufacturing, finishing and distribution facilities, office
space. retail stores and equipment. At November 25, 2007, obligations for minimum future payments under
operating leases were as follows:

(Dollars in thousands)

2008 .. e 101,418
200G e e 88,697
200 e 80.966
200 e 73,404
200 e 64,931
Thereafter . ... .. e 109.525

Total minimum future lease payments . . ... ... . it niin s $518,941

The amounts shown for total minimum future lease payments under operating leases have not been reduced by
estimated future income of $13.1 mtllion from non-cancelable subteases, and have not been increased by estimated
future operating expense and property tax escalations.

In general, leases relating to real estate include renewal options of up to approximately 20 years, except for the
San Francisco headquarters office lease, which contains multiple renewal options of up to 72 years. Some leases
contain escalation clauses relating to increases in operating costs. Certain operating leases provide the Company
with an option to purchase the property after the initial lease term at the then prevailing market value, Rental
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expense for the years ended November 25. 2007, November 26. 2006, and November 27, 2005, was $11(0.5 million,
$91.8 million and $77.6 million, respectively.

Subsequent 10 November 25, 2007, the Company entered into a ten-year lease for retail space in Tines Square
in New York City. The lease has annual rent of approximately $4 million and includes two five-year renewal
options.

Foreign Exchange Contracts

The Company uses derivative instruments to manage its exposure to foreign currencies. As of November 23,
2007, the Company had U.S. dollar spot and forward currency contracts to buy $622.1 miilion and to sell
$293.6 million against various foreign currencies. The Company also had Euro forward currency contracts to buy
8.3 million Euros ($12.3 million equivalent) against the Norwegian Krone and Swedish Krona. These contracts are
at various exchange rates and expire at various dates through December 2008.

The Company is exposed to credit loss in the event of nonperformance by the counterparties to the foreign
exchange contracts. However, the Company believes these counterparties are creditworthy financial institutions and
does not anticipate nonperformance.

Other Contingencies

Wrongful termination litigation.  On April 14, 2003, two former employees of the Company’s tax department
filed a complaint in the Superior Court of the State of California for San Francisco County in which they allege that
they were wrongfully terminated in December 2002. Plaintiffs allege, among other things, that Levi Strauss & Co.
engaged in a variety of fraudulent tax-motivated transactions over several years, that the Company manipulated tax
reserves to influte reported income and that the Company fraudulently failed to set appropriate valuation allowances
against deferred tax assets. They also allege that, as a result of these and other tax-related transactions, the
Company’s financial statements for several years violated generally accepted accounting principles in the United
States and SEC regulations and are fraudulent and misleading. that reported net income for these years was
overstated and that these various activities resuited in the Company paying excessive and improper bonuses to
management for fiscal year 2002. Plaintiffs in this action further allege that they were instructed by the Company to
withhold information concerning these matters from the Company’s independent registered public accounting firm
and the IRS, that they refused to do so and. because of this refusal, they were wrongfully terminated. Plaintiffs seek a
number of remedies, including compensatory and punitive damages, attorneys’ fees, restitution, injunctive relief
and any other relief the court may find proper.

On March 12, 2004. plaintiffs filed a complaint in the U.S. District Court for the Northern District of
California, San Jose Division, Case No. C-04-01026. In this complaint. in addition to restating the allegations
contained in the state complaint, plaintiffs assert that the Company violated Sections 154 L A et seq. of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act by taking adverse employment actions against plaintiffs in retaliation for plaintiffs” lawful acts of
compliance with the administrative reporting provisions of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act. Plaintiffs seek a number of
remedies, including compensatory damages, interest lost on all earnings and benefits. reinstatement. litigation
costs. attorneys’ fees and any other relief that the court may find proper. The district court has now related this case
io the securities class action (described below) styled In re: Levi Strauss & Co. Securities Litigation.

On December 7, 2004, plaintifts requested and the Company agreed o, a stay of their state court action in order
to first proceed with their action in the U.S. District Court for the Northern District of California, San Jose Division,
Case No. C-04-01026. Trial of plaintiffs’ Sarbanes-Oxley claim, plaintiffs’ defamation claim and the Company’s
counter-claims is currently set for May 27, 2008.
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The" Company is vigorously defending these cases and is pursuing its related cross-complaint against the
plaintiffs in the state case. The Company does not expect this litigation to have a material impact on its financial
condition, results of operations or cash flows.

Class actions securities litigation. On March 29, 2004, the United States District Court for the Northern
District of California, San Jose Division, issued an order consolidating two putative bondholder class-actions
(styled Orens v. Levi Strauss & Co., et al. and General Retirement System of the City of Detroit. et al. v. Levi
Strauss & Co., er al.) against the Company, a former chief executive officer, a former chief financial officer, a
former corporate controller, former and current directors and financial institutions alleged to have acted as its
underwriters in connection with its April 6, 2001, and June 16, 2003, registered bond offerings. Additionally, the
court appointed a lead plaintiff and approved the selection of lead counsel. The consolidated action is styled In re
Levi Strauss & Co., Securities Litigation, Case No. C-03-05605 RMW (class action).

The action purports to be brought on behalf of purchasers of the Compuany’s bonds who made purchases
pursuant or traceable to its prospectuses dated March 8, 2001, or April 28, 2003. or who purchased the Company’s
bonds in the open market from January 10, 2001, to October 9, 2003. The action makes claims under the federal
securities laws, including Sections 11 and 135 of the Securities Act and Sections 10(b) and 20(a) of the Exchange
Act, relating to the Company’s SEC filings and other public statements. Specifically, the action alleges that certain
of the Company’s financial statements and other public statements during this period materially overstated its net
income and other financial results and were otherwise false and misleading, and that its public disclosures omitted
to state that the Company made reserve adjustments that plaintiffs allege were improper. Plaintiffs contend that
these statements and omissions caused the trading price of the Company s bonds to be artificially inflated. Plaintiffs
seek compensatory damages as well as other relief.

On May 26, 2004, the court related this action to the federal wrongful termination action discussed above, such
that each action is pending before the same judge. On July 15, 2004, the Company filed a motion to dismiss this
action. On September |1, 2007, in the matter In re Levi Strauss & Co., Securities Litigation, Case No. C-03-05605
RMW,_ pending before the United States District Court for the Northern District of California, San Jose Division, the
Court dismissed the Section 10(b) and 20(a) claims and dismissed the tax fraud aspects of the Section 11 and 15
claims. The Court also limited the plaintiff class on the Section 11 and 13 claims by eliminating from the class those
bondholders who purchased the bonds in private offerings and then exchanged them for registered bonds in the
subsequent exchange offer. Plaintiffs filed an amended complaint with respect to the tax-fraud claims on January 14,
2008, and the Company stipulated with the plaintiffs that its response will be due on or before March 21, 2008,
subject to court approval.

The Company is vigorously defending this case. The Company cannot currently predict the impact, if any, that
this action may have on its financial condition, results of operations or cash flows.

Other litigation.  In the ordinary course of business. the Company has various other pending cases involving
contractual matters, employee-related matters, distribution questions, product liability claims, trademark infringe-
ment and other matters. The Company does not believe there are any of these pending legal proceedings that will
have a material impact on its financial condition, results of operations or cash flows.

NOTE 8: DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS AND HEDGING ACTIVITIES

The global scope of the Company’s business operations exposes it to the risk of fluctuations in foreign currency
markets. The Company's exposure results from certain product sourcing activities, some intercompany sales,
foreign subsidiaries’ royalty payments, earnings repatriations, net investment in foreign operations and funding
activities. The Company’s foreign currency management objective is to mitigate the potential impact of currency
fluctuations on the value of its U.S. dollar cash flows and to reduce the variability of certain cash flows at its
subsidiary level. The Company actively manages forecasted exposures.
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The Company uses a centralized currency management operation to lake advantage of potential opportunities
to naturally offset exposures against each other. For any residual exposures under management, the Company eniers
into various financial instruments including forward exchange and option contracis to hedge certain forecasted
transactions as well as certain firm commitments, including third-party and intercompany transactions, The
Company manages the currency risk as of the inception of the exposure. The Company only partially manages the
timing mismatch between its forecasted exposures and the related financial instruments used to mitigate the
currency risk.

The Company has not applied hedge accounting to its foreign currency derivative transactions, except for
certain forecasted intercompany royaity cash flows through the first quarter of 2007 and net invesunent hedging
activities.

The table below provides un overview of the realized and unrealized gains and losses associated with foreign
exchange management activities that are reported in the “Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)” section
of “Stockholders’ deficit” in the Company’s consolidated balance sheets,

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)
November 25, 2007 November 26, 2006
Realized Unrealized Realized Unrealized

{Dollars in thousands)

Cash flow hedge gains (losses). ................. $§ — 3 38 0§ —  §227
Net investment hedge gains (losses):
Derivative instruments .. .................... 4,637 — 4.637 —
Euro sentor notes . .. ... v e — (59,620) — (16,270)
Yen-denominated Eurobond ... .. ............. — 4.510) — 398
Cumulative income 1axes . . . . ... oo (1,230} 24,874 (1,230} 6,906

$3407  $(39.218) $3407 3(11,183)

On February 23, 2007, the Company discontinued its cash flow hedge designation. Changes in the fair value of
these derivatives after the de-designation were recognized in “Other income (expense), net.” Subsequent to that
date, amounts in “Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)” were reclassified to “Other income (expense),
net,” as the related forecasted transactions affected eamings, through December 2007.

As of November 25, 2007, and November 26, 2006, the Company had no foreign currency derivatives
outstanding hedging the net investment in its foreign operations. During 2005. the Company used forcign exchange
currency swaps (o hedge the net investment in its foreign operations.

The Company designates its outstanding 2013 Euro senior notes and a portion of its outstanding Yen-
denominated Eurcbonds as net investment hedges. The fluctuation as compared to prior year was driven primarily
by the weakening of the U.S. Dollar against the Euro and the Japanese Yen.

31



LEVI STRAUSS & CO. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)
FOR THE YEARS ENDED NOYEMBER 25, 27, NOVEMBER 26, 2006, AND NOVEMBER 27, 2005

The table below provides data about the realized and unrealized gains and losses associated with foreign exchange
management activities reported in “Other income, net” in the Company’s consclidated statements of income.
Other Income, Net
Year Ended

November 25, November 26, November 27,
2007 2006 2005

(Dollars in thousands)

Foreign exchange management losses (gains):

Realized . . .. ... . . . . $16.137 $10.695 $(1.368)
Unrealized . . ... ... . .. e 5,934 401 2,430
Total. .. ... . . $22.071 $11,096 $ 1,062

As of November 25, 2007, and November 26, 20006, fair values of derivative instruments associated with the
Company’s foreign exchange management activities were liabilities of $6.3 million and 32.2 million. respectively.

NOTE 9: GUARANTEES
Guarantees. See Note 5 regarding guarantees of the Company's senior secured revolving credit facility.

Indemnification agreements.  In the ordinary course of business, the Company enters into agreements
containing indemnification provisions under which the Company agrees to indemnify the other party for specified
claims and losses. For example, the Company’s trademark license agreements, real estate leases, consulling
agreements, logistics outsourcing agreements, securities purchase agreements and credit agreements typically
comtain such provisions. This type of indemnification provision obligates the Company to pay certain amounts
associated with claims brought against the other party as the result of trademark infringement, negligence or willful
misconduct of Company employees, breach of contract by the Company tncluding inaccuracy of representations
and warranties, specified lawsuits in which the Company and the other party are co-defendants, product claims and
other matters, These amounts generally are not readily quantifiable; the maximum possible liability or amount of
potential payments that could arise out of an indemnification claim depends entirely on the specific facts and
circumstances associated with the claim. The Company has insurance coverage that minimizes the potential
exposure to certain of such claims. The Company also believes that the likelihood of substantial payment
obligations under these agreements to third parties is low and that any such amounts would be immaterial.

Covenamts.  The Company’s long-term debt agreements contain customary covenants restricting its activities
as well as those of its subsidiaries, including limiations on its, and its subsidiaries’, ability to sell assels; engage in
mergers; enter into capital leases or certain leases not in the ordinary course of business; enter inte transactions
involving related parties or derivatives: incur or prepay indebtedness or grant liens or negative pledges on its assels;
make loans or other investments; pay dividends or repurchase stock or other securities: guaranty third-party
obligations; muke capital expenditures; and make changes in its corporate structure. For additional information see
Note 5.

NOTE 10: RESTRUCTURING LIABILITIES

The following describes the reorganization initiatives, including facility closures and organizational changes,
associated with the Company’s restructuring liabilities as of November 25, 2007, November 26, 2006. and
November 27, 2005. In the table below, “Severance and employee benefits™ relates to items such as severance
packages. out-placement services and career counseling for employees affected by the closures and other
reorganization initiatives. “Other restructuring costs™ primarily relates to lease loss liability and facility closure
costs. "Asset impairment” relates to the write-down of assets to their estimated fair value. “Charges™ represents the
initial charge related to the restructuring activity. “Utilization” consists of payments for severance, employee
benefits and other resiructuring costs, the effect of foreign exchange differences and asset impairments. “Adjust-
ments” includes revisions of estimates related to severance, employee benefits and other restructuring costs.
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For the years ended November 25, 2007, November 26. 2006, and November 27, 2005, the Company

recognized restructuring charges, net, of $14.5 million, $14.1 million and $16.6 million. respectively. The following
1ables summarize the restructuring activity for these years and the related restructuring liabilities balances as of
November 25, 2007, November 26, 2000, November 27, 2005, and November 28, 2004:

2007 reorganization initiatives:"'

Prior reorganization initiatives:

Severance and employee

Severance and employee

2007 Restructuring Activities

Liabilities Liabilities Cumulative
November 26, November 25, Charges
2006 Charges  Utilization Adjustments 2007 To Date

({Ddlars in thousands)
)

benefits ................. £ —  $6029 $ (138) $(1.548) $ 4343 $ 4481
Other restructuring costs. . ... .. —_ 231 43) — 188 231
Asset impairment . .. ......... — 9.070 (9.070) — — 9.070

)

benefits ................. 9,001 225 (6,870) (806) 1,550 122,595

Other restructuring costs. .. .. .. 11,746 1,150 (5,679) 107 7324 39,130

Total ....,.............. $20,747 516,705 $(21.800) $(2.247) $13.405 $175.507
Current portion . .............. $13,080 $ 8,783
Long-term portion . ............ __1.667 4,622
Total ................... $20,747 $13ﬁ_49§

{1} On March 1, 2007, the Company announced the reorganization of its Eastern European operations to reduce complexity and streamline

2

—

business processes. This reorganization will result in the elimination of the jobs of approximatcty ten employees through the second quarter
of 2008.

On March 22, 2007, the Company announced its inteat to close and sell its distribution center in Heusenstamm, Germany to enhance
operational efficiencies in its European distribution network and concentrie logistics activities with the Company’s central logistics
provider in Bornem, Belgium. The distribution center closed at the end of November 2007, In addition, the sales oftice for the Genman
business, which is ulso located at the Heusenstamm facility, will move to a more central location in Frankfurt. Germany in the third quarter of
2008. This initiative will result in the elimination of the jobs of approximately 51 employees; nine jobs were eliminated as of November 23,
2007. The Company expects to eliminate the remaining jobs through the third quarter of 2008,

Current year charges include the estimated severance that will be payable to the terminated employees in respect of both of these 2007
reorganization initiatives. Additionally, as a result of the Heusenstamm facility closure, the Company recorded a $9.1 million impairment
charge during 2007 relating 10 the write-down of building. land and some machinery and equipment to their estimated fair values. The
Company utilized prices for similar assets 10 determine the fuir value of the impaired assets.

The Company estimates that it will incur additional restructuring charges related to these actions of approximately $3.0 million, principally
in the form of additional termination benetits and facility-related costs, which will be recorded in future periods.

Prior reorganization initiatives inctude organizational changes and plant closures in 2002-2006, primarily in North America and Europe. Of
the 58.9 million restructuring liability at November 25. 2007, $1.1 millton resulied from its distribution facility closure in Little Rock,
Arkansas, that commenced in 2006; $0.2 miltion resulted from the consolidation of its Nordic operations into its European headquarters in
Brussels in 2006 and $7.6 million resulted from organizational changes in the United States and Europe that commenced in 2004. The
liability for the 2004 activities primarily consists of lease loss liabilities.

The Company estimates that it will incur future additional restructuring charges of approximatety $2.6 million and to climinate the jobs of
approximately two cmployees by the end of the second quarter of 2008 related to these uctions.

83




LEVI STRAUSS & CO. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)
FOR THE YEARS ENDED NOVEMBER 25, 2007, NOVEMBER 26, 2006, AND NOVEMBER 27, 2005

2006 Restructuring Activities

Liabilitics Liabilities
November 27, November 26,
2005 Charges  Utilization  Adjustments 2006

(Dollars in thousands)

2006 and prior reorganization
initiatives. . . ............... .. $22.655  $16,039 $(16,057) §(1.890) $20,747

Restructuring charges in 2006 relate primarily to severance and employee benefit costs for activities associated
with the closure of the Company’s distribution center in Little Rock. Arkansas, the reorganization of its Nordic
operations and the decision to stop selling the Signature by Levi Strauss & Co.™ brand in Europe. The distribution
center closure resulied in the elimination of the jobs of approximately 315 employees.

2005 Restructuring Activities

Liabilities Liabilities
November 28, November 27,
2004 Charges  Ulilization  Adjustments 2005

(Dollars in thousands}

2004 and prior reorganization
initiatives. . ... ..o o L $50.839 $22.943 $(44.817) $(6,310) $22,655

Restructuring charges in 2005 relate primarily to severance and employee benefit related payments and facility
closure costs for activities associated with the Company’s U.S., Europe and Dockers® Europe reorganization
initiatives that commenced in 2004.

NOTE 11: EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

Pension plans.  The Company has severai non-contributory defined benefit retirement plans covering eligible
employees. Plan assets are invested in a diversified porifolio of securities including stocks, bonds, real estate
investment funds and cash equivalents. Benefits payable under the plans are based on years of service, final average
compensation, or both. The Company retains the right to amend, curtail or discontinue any aspect of the plans,
subject to local regulations.

Postrerirement plans.  The Company maintains two plans that provide postretirement benefits, principally
health care, to substantially all U.S. retirees and their qualified dependents. These plans have been established with
the intention that they will continue indefinitely. However, the Company retains the right to amend, curtail or
discontinue any aspect of the plans at any time. The plans are contributory and contain certain cost-sharing features,
such as deductibles and coinsurance. The Company’s policy is to fund postretirement benefits as claims and
premiums are paid.

Adoption of SFAS 158.  On November 25, 2007, the Company adopted SFAS 158, which required recognition
of the funded status of pension plans and other postretirement benefit plans on the consolidated balance sheet and to
measure plan assets and the benefit obligations as of the balance sheet date. The adoption of SFAS 158 did not have
an impact on the Company’s net periodic benefit cost (income) recognized in the consolidated statements of
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income. The following table reflecis the incremental effect of applying SFAS 158 on individual balance sheet line
items for both the pension and postretirement benefit plans combined:

November 25, 2007

Before After
Adoption Adjustments Adoption

(Dollars in millions)

Prepaid benefit cost™ ... ... ... $ 906 $(166) $ 740
Deferred tax asset . ... ... ... .. ... 143.0 (29.0 114.0
Total assets . .. .. e 2,896.3 (45.6) 2,850.7
Total pension and postretirement benefit liability. . . ... ... ... 446.1 (118.4) 3279
Total liabilities. . ... .. 3,363.0 (118.4) 3,244.6
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax . .. (7.2) 72.8 65.6
Total stockholders™ deficit ......... ... . . . .. {470.8) 72.8 (398.0)

(1) Included in “Other assets” on the Company’s consolidated balance sheets.

85



LEVI STRAUSS & CO. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)
FOR THE YEARS ENDED NOVEMBER 25, 2007, NOVEMBER 26, 2006, AND NOVEMBER 27, 2005

The following tables summarize activity of the Company’s defined benefit penston plans and postretirement

benefit plans:

Pension Benefils

Postretirement Benefits

2007 2006 2007 2006
{Dollars in thousands)
Change in benefit obligation:
Benefit obligution ut beginning of year. .. ..... ... $1.049773 § 987335  $203831 % 224000
SerVICE COSL. . .t e 7,930 7.536 713 769
INterest COSt. . . v v vt e e e e e 58,238 56,709 10.833 12411
Plan participants’ contribution ... .............. 1.384 1,334 7.063 7.637
Plan amendments . . ... ... .ot — (1.654) — —
Actuarial (gain) loss™ ... ... ... .. . (124,363) 25,004 (12,400) (12.891)
Net curtailment loss . ... ...... ... ... .. .. 968 1.879 544 122
Impact of foreign currency changes ............. 16,743 19,297 — —
Plan settlements . . . . ... ... ... . .. ... ....... (460) (739) — —
Special termination benefits . .. ... ... ... .. ... 164 1.110 — 500
Benefits paid® .. ... .. ... ... ... .. (52.684) (48.038) (31,003) (29.317)
Benefit obligation atend of year . . . ..... ... ... $ 957693 $1,049.773 $ 179581  § 203831
Change in plan assets:
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year . .. ... $ 838764 $ 727798 % - 5 —
Actual return on plan assets . ... ... .. L L 71,136 79,548 — —
Employer contribution™. . ... . ... ... L. 12,611 68,603 23,940 21,680
Plan participants’ contributions. . .. ............. 1,384 1,334 7.063 7.637
Plan settlements . . . ...« ., (460} (539) — —
Impact of foreign currency changes . ............ 12,815 10,058 — —
Benefits paid'® (52,684) (48,038) _ (31.003) _ (29.317)
Fair value of plan assets atend of year . ..... ... 883,566 $38,764 — —
Funded status at end of year . . ............. $ (74,127 (211,009)  $(179,581) (203,831
Unrecognized net transition obligation 677 —
Unrecognized prior service cost (benefit) 1,660 (264.396)
Unrecognized net actuarial loss 169,229 66,457
Net amount recognized on balance sheet at end of

year 5 _(39443) $(401.770)

(1) Actuarial (gains) and losses in the Company's pension benelit obligation were driven by changes in discount rate assumptions. primarily for

the Company's U.S. pension plans,

{2} The Company’s subsidy cash receipts related to Medicare Part D for 2007 and 2006 were not material,

(3} During 2006, the Company voluntarily funded the U.S. pension plans by an amount of $22.4 millton in excess of actuarial recommendations.
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Amounts recognized in the consolidated balance sheets as of November 25, 2007, and November 26, 2006,
consist of the following:

November 25, 2007

Pension Postretirement
Benefits Benefits
(Dollars in thousands)
Prepaid benefit cost! ™ $ 74,027 $ —
Accrued benefit liability — current portion. .. .. ... ... .. ... .. ... (9.877) (22,134)
Accrued benefit liability — long-term portion . ................... (138,277) (157.447)

$ (74.127y  H(179.581)

Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss):

Netactuanial 105s. .. ..ot e e $ (24517 8 (49,166)
Net prior service (cost) benefit. . . ... ... ... .. .. ... ... . ..., (737 165,154
Net transition obligation .. ... ... ... ... ... .. . . . (231) —

$ (25.485)  $ 115,988

November 26, 2006

Pension Postretirement
Benefits Benefits

(Dollars in thousands)

Prepaid benefit cost'™ .. ... .. L $ 3248 § —
Intangible asset'" .. ... 3370 —
Accrued benefit liability — current portion. . . . ... ... ... ... .. ... (12.489) (22.582)
Accrued benefit liability — long-term portion .. ... .............. (174,991) (379.188)
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss):

Additional minimum pension liability, ... ..... ... ... ... ... .. 141,419 —

$ (39.443)  $(401.770)

(1) Included in "Other assets™ on the Company's consolidated balance sheets.

(2) The Company does not expect any plan assets will be returned during 2008.

The Company's pension and postretirement liabilities reflected on the consolidated balance sheets as of
November 25, 2007, and November 26, 2006, consist of the following:

Pension Liability Postretirement Liability
2007 2006 2007 2006
(Dollars in thousands)

Current portion of SFAS 87/106 plans . ... ...... $ 9877 §$ 12489 § 22134 § 22582
Current portion of other benefit plans ..., ...... 1,505 1.256 — —
Total current benefitplans . . ... .. .......... $ 11382 $ 13745 § 22,134 5§ 22,582
Long-term portion of SFAS 87/106 plans. . ... ... $138.277  $174991  $157.447 5379188
Long-term portion of other benefit plans .. .., ... 9,140 9,099 — —
Total long-term benefit plans . . . ... ... ... $147.417  $184,090  $157.447  §$379,188
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The accumulated benefit obligation for all defined benefit plans was $0.9 billion and $1.0 billion at
November 23, 2007, and November 26, 2006, respectively. Information for the Company’s defined benefit plans
with an accumulated or projected benefit obligation in excess of plan assets is as follows:

Pension Benefits

2007 2006
(Dollars in thousands)

Accumulated benefit obligations in excess of plan assets:

Aggregate accumulated benefit obligation , ... ..., ... ... ....... $188,621 § 982,499

Aggregate fair value of planassets . ... ... ... ... ... . ... ... 68,820 811,159
Projected benefit obligations in excess of plan assets:

Aggregate projected benefit obligation. . ... ... ... ... ... ... ... 3254177  $1,039.422

Aggregate fair value of planassets . ........... ... ... .......... 106,530 830,740

Amounts in the table above decreased in 2007 primarily due to the reduction of plan benefit obligations in the
Company’s U.S. pension plans, which resuited in the benefit obligations being equal to or less than plan assets.
These plans were not fully funded in 2006.

The components of the Company’s net periodic benefit cost (income) were as follows:

Pension Benefits Postretirement Benefits
2007 2006 2005 2007 2006 2005
{Dollars in thousands)
Service cosl .. ... .. $ 7930 § 7536 3% 83680 % M3 $ 769 $ 1.098
Interestcost .. ................. 58.237 56,709 54,921 10,833 12.411 18,119
Expected return on plan assets. . . . .. (60,252)  (53,082)  (53,053) — — —
Amortization of prior service cost
(benefiy!. . ... L 3,614 1.311 2,557  (45,726)  (55,109)  (57.557)
Amortization of transition asset . . . . . 491 571 412 — — —
Amortization of actuarial loss ... ... 6.059 0,747 5,051 4,682 6,089 18,130
Net curtailment loss (gain)®. ... ... 1,188 7,699 —  (52,763)  (29,041) —
Special termination benefit .. ... .., 164 1,110 — — 500 —
Net settlement loss®. . ... ... ... .. 55 5,098 3 — — —
Net periodic benefit cost
(income) . ................. $17486  $33.699 $ 18,571  $(82.261) H(64.381) $(20.210)

(1) Postretirement benefits amortization of prior service benefit recognized during each of years 2007, 2006 and 2003, relates primarily to the
favorable impact of the February 2004 and August 2003 plan amendments.

{2} The pension benefit curtailment loss recognized during 2006 relates primarily to a $5.4 million charge in respect of the supplemental
executive retirement plan as a result of the retirement of the Company’s then president and chief executive officer, Philip A. Marineau.
Postretirement benefit curtailment gains durtng 2007 and 2006 are described in detail below.

(3} For the year ended November 26, 2006, amount primarily consists of net loss from the settlement of liabilities of centain participants in the
Company's hourly and salary pension plans in Canada as a result of prior plant closures.

In 2007, the Company entered into a new labor agreement with the union that represents many of its
distribution-related employees in North America, which contained a voluntary separation and buyout program. As a
result of the voluntary terminations that occurred with this program. the Company remeasured certain pension and
postretirement benefit obligations as of July 31, 2007, which resulted in an estimated $31.7 million postretirement
benefit curtailment gain, attributable to the accelerated recognition of benefits associated with prior plan changes.
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Of the total $31.7 million, $27.5 million was recognized during 2007 related to employees that elected the buyout
and left the Company. The remaining curtailment gain of $4.2 million will be recognized when the remaining
employees voluntarily leave. The Company expects all remaining employees who elected the buyout to leave the
Company by the end of the first quarter of 2008.

As aresult of the 2006 closure of and job reductions related 10 the Company’s facility in Little Rock, Arkansas,
the Company recognized a $54.3 million curtailment gain attributable to the accelerated recognition of prior service
benefit associated with prior plan amendments. Of the curtailment gain. $25.3 million and $29.0' million were
recognized during 2007 and 2006, respectively, as the related employees terminated. See Note 10 for more
information on the facility closure.

The estimated net loss and net prior service benefit for the Company's defined benefit pension and postre-
tirement benefit plans, respectively, that will be amortized from “Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)”
into net periodic benefit cost (benefit) in 2008 are expected to be $1.5 million and $(37.4) million, respectively.

Assumptions used in accounting for the Company’s benefit plans were as follows:

Pension Postretirement
Benefits Benefits

2007 2006 2007 2006

Weighted-average assumptions used to determine net periodic benefit

cost:
Discount rate'™ ... 56% 58% 56% 5.7%
Expecied long-term rate of return on plan assets. . . ... ......... 13% 7.5%
Rate of compensation increase . . ... ... ... .. .. 39% 3.9%
Weighted-average assumptions used to determine benefit obligations:
Discount rate . ... ... ... 6.7% 56% 64% 56%
Rate of compensation increase .. .. ... i .. 4.0% 3.9%
Assumed health care cost trend rates were as follows:
Health cure trend rate assumed fornextyear. . ................ 10,0% 11.0%
Rate trend to which the cost trend is assumed to decline. . ... .. .. 50%  5.0%
Year that rate reaches the ultimate trend rate. ... .. ... ... ... .. 2012 2013

(1) As a result of the new union labor agreement for distribution-related employees in North America, actuarial assumptions were revised in
remeasurement of the impacted plans in July 2007. Net pericdic benefit cost (income) related to these plans for the remainder of the fiscal
year reflects the revised assumptions.

The Company utilized a bond pricing model comprised of U.S. AA corporate bonds that was tailored to the
atributes of its pension and postretirement plans to determine the appropriate discount rate to use for its U.S. benefit
plans. The Company utilized a variety of country-specific third-party bond indices to determine appropriate
discount rates 1o use for benefit plans of its foreign subsidiaries.

The Company bases the overall expected long-term rate-of-return-on-assets on anticipated long-term returns
of individual asset classes and each pension plans’ target asset allocation strategy. For the U.S. pension plans, the
expected long-term returns for each asset class are determined through an equilibrium-based econometric
forecasting process conditioned with some near-term bond yield curve characteristics.

Assumed health care cost trend rates have a significant effect on the amounts reported for the Company's
postretirement benefits plans. A one-percentage-point change in assumed health care cost trend rates would have no
significant effect on the total service and interest cost components or on the postretirement benefit obligation.
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The allocation of the Company’s consolidated pension plan assets, by asset category was as follows:

November 25, Novembher 26,

2007 2006
Equity securities . ... ... .. .. 46.0% 45.9%
Debt SeCUrItIes. . . .. e e e e 43.4% 44.3%
Real estate and other . .. ... ... ... ... . . . . . . 10.6% 9.8%

Total . . e e 100.0% 100.0%

Consolidated pension plan assets relate primarily to the U.S. pension plans. The Company utilizes the services
of independent third-party investment managers to oversee the management of U.S. pension plan assets. The
Company’s investment strategy is to invest plan assets in a diversified pertfolio of domestic and international equity,
fixed income and real estate and other securities with the objective of generating long-term growth in plan assets at a
reasonable level of risk. The current target allocation percentages for the Company’s U.S. pension plan assets are
45% for equity securities, 45% for fixed income securities, and 10% for real estate and other investments.

The Company’s estimated future benefit payments to participants, which reflect expected future service, as
appropriate, are anticipated o be paid as foillows:
Pension Postretirement
Benefits Benefits Total
{Dollars in thousands)

Fiscal year

2008 . oo e $ 51,891 $24,046 § 75,937
2009 . 50.506 24,038 74,544
2000 . 50,719 23,868 74,587
2000 52,183 23,400 75,583
2002 54,470 22,371 76,841
20013-2007 . . 314,403 92.236 406,639

The Company estimates Medicare subsidy receipts of approximately $1.9 million, $2.2 million, $2.6 million,
$3.0 million, $3.4 million, and $21.4 million in fiscal years ending 2008, 2009, 2010, 2011, 2012 and next five years
thereafter, respectively. Accordingly, the Company's net contributions to the pension and postretirement plans in
2008 are estimated to be approximately $16.4 million and $22.1 million, respectively. The Company does not
anticipate any voluntary funding of its qualified U.S. pension plans in 2008.

NOTE 12: EMPLOYEE INVESTMENT PLANS

The Company maintained two employee invesiment plans as of November 25, 2007. The Employee Savings
and Investment Plan of Levi Strauss & Co. (“ESIP”) and the Levi Strauss & Co. Employee Long-Term Investment
and Savings Plan (“ELTIS”) are two qualified plans that cover eligible home office employees and U.S. field
employees, respectively.

The Company matches 100% of ESIP participant’s contributicens to ail funds maintained under the qualified
plan up to the first 7.5% of eligible compensation. Under ELTIS, the Company may match 50% of participants’
contributions to all funds maintained under the qualified plan up to the first 10% of eligible compensation.
Employees are immediately 100% vested in the Company match. The Company matched eligible employee
contributions in ELTIS at 50% for the fiscal years ended November 25, 2007, November 26, 2006, and
November 27, 2005. The ESIP includes a profit sharing feature that provides Company contributions of
1.0%-2.5% of home office employee eligible pay if the Company meets or exceeds its earnings target by
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110%. The ELTIS also includes a profit sharing provision with payments made at the sole discretion of the board of
directors.

Total amounts charged to expense for the years ended November 25, 2007, November 26, 2006, and
November 27, 2005, were $10.2 million, $9.5 million and $9.1 million, respectively.

NOTE 13: EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION PLANS
Annual Incentive Plan

The Annual Incentive Plan ("AIP”) provides a cash bonus that is earned based upen business unit and corporate
financial results as measured against pre-established internal targets and upon the performance and job level of the
individual. Total amounts charged o expense for the years ended November 25, 2007, November 26, 2006. and
November 27, 2005, were $42.4 million, $64.9 million and $67.3 million, respectively. As of November 25. 2007,
and November 26, 2006, the Company had accrued $45.9 million and $66.1 miilion. respectively. for the AIP.

Long-Term Incentive Plans

20006 Equiry incentive plan and 2005 Senior executive long-term incentive plan.  In Juty 2006, the Company's
board of directors (the “Board™) adopted, and the stockholders approved, the 2006 Equity Incentive Plan ("EIP”). In
2005, the Company established the Senior Executive Long-Term Incentive Plan (“SELTIP”). The SELTIP was
established to provide long-lerm incentive compensation for the Company’s senior management. For more
information on these plans, see Note 14,

2005 Long-term incentive plan (“LTIP"). The Company established a long-term cash incentive plan
effective at the beginning of 2005. Executive ofticers are not participants in this plan. The plan is intended to
reward management for its long-term impact on total Company earnings performance. Performance will be
measured at the end of a three-year period based on the Company's performance over the period measured against
the following pre-established targets: (i} the Company’s target earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and
amortization (“EBITDA"™), excluding restructuring charges. for the three-year period; and (ii) the target compound
annual growth rate in the Company’s earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization over the three-
year period. Individual target amounts are set for each participant based on joh level. Awards will be paid out in the
quarter following the end of the three-yeur period based on Company performance against objectives. In 2007 and
2006, additional grants of LTIP awards were made with the same terms as the 2005 grant with the exception of the
Company’s target earnings measure. The 2007 and 2006 grant’s carnings measure will be earnings before interest
and taxes, excluding restructuring charges, over the three-year period.

The Company recorded expense for the LTIP of $5.1 million, $19.6 million and $9.9 million for the years
ended November 25, 2007, November 26, 2006, and November 27, 20035, respectively. As of November 25, 2007,
and November 26, 2006, the Company had accrued a total of $34.4 million and $29.3 million, respectively. for the
LTIP, of which $26.6 million was recorded in “Accrued salaries, wages and benefits” as of November 25, 2007, and
$7.8 million and $29.3 million were recorded in “Long-term employee related benefits™ as November 25, 2007, and
November 26, 2006, respectively, on the Company's consolidated balance sheets.

2005 Management incentive plan ("MIP"). In 2005, the Company established a two-year cash incentive
plan for the Company’s management employees including its executive officers. The MIP covered approximately
1.000 employees worldwide. The amount of the cash incentive earned was based on the Company’s EBITDA
performance in 2005 and 2006. Incentive amounts were paid in two portions: the first payout was made in February
2006 based on achievement of the Company’s 2005 total company EBITDA target. and the second payout was made
in February 2007 based on total company performance against the incentive plan’s two-year cumulative EBITDA
and EBITDA growth targets.
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The Company recorded expense for the MIP of $13.7 million and $17.9 million for the years ended
November 26, 2006, and November 27, 2005, respectively. As of November 26, 2006, the Company had accrued
a total of $20.2 miltion for the MIP, of which $20.2 million was recorded in “Accrued salaries, wages and benefits.”

NOTE 14: STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

During 2006, the Company adopted SFAS 123R. For the years ended November 25, 2007, and November 26,
2006, the Company recognized stock-based compensation expense of $3.1 million and $3.0 million, and related
income tax benefits of $2.0 million and $1.9 million, respectively. As of November 23, 2007, there was
$16.0 million of total unrecognized compensation cost related to nonvested awards, which cost is expected to
be recognized on a straight-line basis over a weighted-average period of 3.0 years. No compensation cost has been
capitalized in the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Prior to the adoption of SFAS 123R, the Company accounted for share-based awards under APB 25. Share-
based compensation expense recognized in the year ended November 27, 2003, was not material to the consolidated
financial statements, and due to the nature of the awards, was equivalent to the expense that would have been
recognized had the Company been accounting for share-based awards under SFAS 123,

2006 Equity Incentive Plan

In 2006, the Company adopted the 2006 Equity Incentive Plan (“EIP™}. A variety of stock awards, including
stock options, restricted stock and restricted stock units (“RSUs"), and stock appreciation rights (“SARs”) may be
made under the EIP. The Equity Incentive Plan also provides for the grant of performance awards in the form of
equity or cash. In fiscal 2007, the Company amended the EIP, increasing the aggregate number of common stock
shares available for grant from 418,175 to 700,000 share units, provided, however, that this number automatically
adjusts upward to the extent necessary to satisfy the exercise of SARs and RSUs under the terms of the EIP,

Under the EIP, stock and performance awards have a maximum contractual term of ten years and generally
must have an exercise price at least equal to the fair market value of the Company’s common stock on the date the
award is granted. The Company’s common stock is not listed on any established stock exchange. Accordingly, as
contemplated by the EIP, the stock’s fair market value is determined by the Board based upon a valuation performed
by Evercore. Awards vest according to terms determined at the time of grant and which may vary with each grant.
Unvested stock awards are subject to forfeiture upon termination of employment prior to vesting, but are subject in
some cases to early vesting upon specified events, including certain corporate transactions as defined in the EIP.
Some stock awards are payable in either shares of the Company’s common stock or cash at the discretion of the
Board as determined at the time of grant.

Upon the exercise of a SAR, the participant will receive a voting trust certificate representing a share of
common stock in an amount equal to the product of (1) the excess of the per share fair market value of the
Company’s common stock on the date of exercise over the exercise price, multiplied by (ii) the number of shares of
common stock with respect to which the SAR is exercised. Recipients of RSUs will receive one voting trust
certificate representing a share of the Company’s common stock six months after discontinuation of service with the
Company for each fully vested unit held at that date,

Put rights.  Prior to an initial public offering (“IP(") of the Company’s common stock, a participant (or estate
or other beneficiary of a deceased participant) may require the Company to repurchase shares of the common stock
held by the participant at then-current fair market value (a “put right”). Put rights may be exercised only with respect
to shares of the Company’s common stock that have been held by a participant for at least six months following their
issuance date, thus exposing the holder to the risk and rewards of ownership for a reasonable period of time.
Accordingly, the SARs and RSUs are classified as equity awards, and are accounted for in “Stockholders’ deficit” in
the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.
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Call rights. Prior to an 1P, the Company aiso has the right to repurchase shares of its common stock
represented by the voting trust certificate held by a participant (or estate or other beneficiary of u deceased
participant, or other permitted transferee) at then-current fair market value (a “call right™). Call rights run with an
award and any shares of common stock acquired pursuant to the award. If the award or common stock is transferred
to another person, that person is subject to the call right. As with the put rights, call rights may be exercised only
with respect to shares of common stock that have been held by a participant for at least six months following their
issuance date.

Temporary equity. The provisions of SAB 107 require that equity-classified awards that may be seitled in
cash at the option of the holder must be presented on the balance sheet outside permanent equity. Accordingly,
“Temporary equity” on the face of the accompanying consolidated balance sheets represents the portion of the
intrinsic value of these awards relating to the elapsed service period since the grant date. The increase in temporary
equity during the year ended November 25, 2007, was due to the regular vesting of outstanding awards and the
increase in the fair value of the Company’s common stock.

SARs.  SAR unit activity during the year ended November 25, 2007, was as follows:

Weighted-Average

Weighted-Average Range of Remaining
Units Exercise Price Exercise Prices Contractual Life (Yrs)

Nonvested and outstanding at

November 26,2006 . .. ........... 1,318,310 $42.00 $42
Granted. ., ... ... ... 471,922 63.20 $52.25-68
Exercised . ......... ... ......... — —
Forfeited . . .. ...... ... ... ........ (150,376) 42.00 $42
Nonvested and outstanding at

November 25, 2007 . . ............ 1,639,856 $48.11 $42-68 5.8
Vested and exercisable at

November 25,2007 .. ............ — $ — — —

The vesting terms of SARs range from two-and-a-half to four years, and have maximum contractual lives
ranging from six-and-a-haif to ten years.

The weighted-average grant date fair value of SARs were estimated using a Black-Scholes option valuation
model. The weighted-average grant date fair values and corresponding weighted-average assumptions used in the
model were as follows:

SARs Granted

_2007 2006
Weighted-average grant date fair value .. ........ ... .. ... ... . ... . ... $24.79  $13.92
Weighted-average assumptions:
Expected life (in years). .. .. ... . e 5.5 4.2
Expected volatility . ...... ... . . 31.8% 30.7%
Risk-free interest rate .. ... .. .. ... e 4.7% 5.1%

RSUs. In the third quarter of 2007, the Company granted 10,301 RSUs to certain members of its Board of
Directors, with an aggregate grant-date fair value of $0.7 million derived from the Evercore stock valuation. RSUs
vest in a series of three equal installments at thirteen months, twenty-four months and thirty-six months following
the date of grant. However, if the recipient’s continuous service terminates for reason other than cause after the first
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vesting installment, but prior to full vesting, then the remaining unvested portion of the award becomes fully vested
as of the date of such termination. As of November 25, 2007, no units were vested or exercisable.

Senior Executive Long-Term Incentive Plan

In 2003, the Company established the SELTIP to provide long-term incentive compensation for the Company’s
senior management. The Company’s executive officers and non-employee members of the Board are eligible to
participate in the SELTIP. The SELTIP provided for a one-time grant of units that vest over three years and are
payable in cash. After the payout of the vested units in 2008, the plan will terminate. The exercise price for each
grant, and the values used to determine appreciation and payouts, are approved by the Board and tuke into account
the Evercore stock valuation. These values do not incorporate any discount related to the illiquid nature of the
Company’s stock. Unvested units are subject 1o forfeiture upon termination of employment with cause. but are
subject in some cases to early vesting upon specified events, including termination of employment without cause as
defined in the agreement. Under SFAS 123R, the SELTIP units are classified as liability instruments as they will be
settled in cash.

A summary of umit activity under the SELTIP during the year ended November 25. 2007. was as follows:
Weighted-Average

Units Exercise Price
Nonvested and outstanding at November 26, 2006 ... ........ ..... 196,504 £54.00
Granted . . . ... .. — —
Exercised. . ... i e e e e (83,334) 54.00
Forfeited . . ... . e e (20,000) _54.00
Outstanding at November 25, 2007. . .. .. ... ... ... ... ... . ..... 93.170 $54.00
Vested and exercisable at November 25, 2007. .. ................. 93,170 $54.00

The fair value per unit of the fully vested SELTIP units at November 25, 2007, was $13, based on the value of
the Company’s common stock as of that date. The fair value of the SELTIP units at November 26, 2006, was
determined using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model using the following assumptions: an expected life of
0.6 years, an expected volatility of 30.7% and a risk-free interest rate of 5.1%.

The units exercised in 2007 relate to the retirement on November 26, 2006, of Mr. Philip A. Marineau, the
Company’s former CEQ. To settle these vested units, the Company paid Mr. Marineau $1.2 million in cash in
February 2007. The Company recognized a tax benefit of $0.5 million related 1o the payment. The Company
expects 1o settle the vested awards outstanding as of November 25, 2007, by paying an aggregate of $1.2 million in
cash to the unit holders in February 2008.
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NOTE 15: LONG-TERM EMPLOYEE RELATED BENEFITS

The liability for long-term employee related benefits was comprised of the following:

November 25, November 26,

2007 2006

{ Dollars in thousands)
Workers® compensation . .......... ... e $ 34,499 § 34,451
Deferred compensation . ............ .. . 71,404 71,458
Non-current portion of liabilities for long-term incentive plans . ... ... 7.807 30.499
Total .. $113.710 $136.408

Workers’ Compensation

The Company maintains a workers’ compensation program in the United States that provides for statutory
benefits arising from work-related employee injuries, Beginning in fiscal 2007, the Company accounts for workers’
compensation liabilities gross of expected insurance recoveries. Such amounts were reported net of expected
insurance recoveries in prior years and were immaterial. For the years ended November 25, 2007, November 26,
2006, and November 27, 2003, the Company reduced its self-insurance liabilities for workers” compensation claims
by $8.1 million, $13.8 million, and $21.1 million, respectively. The reductions were primarily driven by changes in
the Company’s estimated future claims payments as a result of more favorable than projected actual claims
development during the year. As of November 25, 2007, and November 26, 2006, the current portions of
U.S. workers’ compensation liabilities were $3.7 million and $4.4 million, respectively, and were included in
“Accrued salaries, wages and employee benefits” on the Company’s consolidated balance sheets.

Deferred Compensation

Deferred compensation plan for executives and owtside directors, established January 1, 2003. The Com-
pany has a non-qualifted deferred compensation plan for executives and outside directors that was established on
January 1, 2003. The deferred compensation plan obligations are payable in cash upon retirement, termination of
employment andfor certain other times in a lump-sum distribution or in installments, as elected by the participant in
accordance with the plan. As of November 25, 2007, and November 26, 2006, these plan liabilities totaled
$15.4 million and $36.1 miilion, respectively, of which $0.5 million and $21.3 million was included in “Accrued
salaries, wages and employee benefits” as of November 235, 2007, and November 26, 2006, respectively.
Approximately $£4.6 million and $35.3 million of these plan liabilities were associated with funds held in an
irrevocable grantor’s trust (“Rabbi Trust™) as of November 25, 2007, and November 26. 2006, respectively.

Deferred compensation plan for executives, prior to January 1, 2003.  The Company also maintains a non-
qualified deferred compensation plan for certain management employees relating to compensation deferrals for the
peried prior to January I, 2003. The Rabbi Trust is not a feature of this plan. As of November 25, 2007, and
November 26, 2006, liabilities for this plan totaled $68.8 million and $73.4 million. respectively, of which
$12.3 million and $16.8 million, respectively, was included in “Accrued salaries, wages and employee benefits” on
the Company’s consolidated balance sheets.

Interest earned by the participants in deferred compensation plans was $8.6 million, $12.0 million and
$13.1 million for the years ended November 25, 2007, November 26, 2006, and November 27, 2003. respectively.
The charges were included in “Interest expense™ in the Company’s consolidated statements of income,
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NOTE 16: ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)

Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) is summarized below:

Translation Adjustments

Unrealized
Pension and Net Foreign Cash gain (loss) an
Postretirement  Investment  Currency Flow Marketable
Benefits Hedges Translation  Hedges Securitics Totals
(Dollars in thousands)
Accumulated other comprehensive
income (loss) at November 28,
2004, . ... $(76,252) $ (8,211) $2144hH $§ — $ 230 $(105.677)
Gross changes ... .......... (30,578) 34,876 (21,878) — 153 (17.427)
Tax . .................... 11,583 (13,434) 12,229 — {59) 10,319
Other comprehensive income (loss),
netoftax ...... ... ... ... (18,995) 21,442 (9,649) — 94 (7,108)
Accumulated other comprehensive
income (loss) at November 27,
2005, ... .. (95,247) 13,231 (31,093) — 324 (112,785)
Gross changes . .. .......... 10,749 (31,807} 6.404 (2,217 1,956 (14.915)
Tax .. .. o (3.678) 12,169 (5.6701 848 (748) 2,921
Other comprehensive income (loss),
netoftax .................. 7.071 (19.638) 734 (1,369) 1,208 (11,994)
Accumulated other comprehensive
income (loss) at November 26,
2006, ... ... ... (88,176) (6,407) (30,35%) (1,369) 1,532 (124,779)
Gross changes” .. ......... 128.635 (48,258) 21542 2,255 (2.325) 101,849
Tax .. ... (47.837) 18.831 (12.856) (863) 891 (41.834)
Other comprehensive income (loss),
netoftax .................. 80,798 (29,427) 8,686 1,392 (1.434) 60,015

Adjustment to initially apply
SFAS 158 (netoftax) ......... 72,805 72,805

Accumulated other comprehensive
income (loss) at November 25,
2007 . ... $ 65427 $(35834) $(21.673) $ 23 $ 98 § 3,041

(1) Amounts in 2007 primarily reflect the impact to the minimum pension liability resulting from the remeasurement of certain pension
obligations resulting from the Little Rock. Arkansas, facility closure and the voluntary terminations associated with the 2007 labor
agreement. See Note 11 for more information.
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NOTE 17: OTHER INCOME, NET

The following table summarizes significant components of “Other income. net” in the Company’s consol-
idated statements of income:
Year Ended
November 25, November 26, November 27,

2007 2006 2005
(Dellars in thousands)

Foreign exchange management losses . ... .......... $ 22,071 $ 11.096 5 1.062
Foreign currency transaction gains .. .............. (20,608) (16,970 (14,724)
Interest income. . ............ .00, (12.434) (15,621 (7,965)
Investment income .. ......... ... .. .. ... (3.574) (2,047) {153)
Minority interest — Levi Strauss Japan KK ... ... ... 909 1,718 1.847
Minority interest — Levi Strauss Istanbul

Konfeksiyon . ........ . ... ... ... ... ...... — — 1,309
Other ... ... o (502) (594) (4,433)

Total other income. net . .. .................... $(14.138) $(22.418) $(23.057)

The decrease in other income, net. primarily reflects the impact of foreign currency fluctuation, primarily the
weakening of the U.S. Dollar against major currencies, including the Euro, the Canadiun Dollar and the Japanese
Yen between 2007 and 2006 and the Euro and the Japanese Yen between 2006 and 2005.

NOTE 18: RELATED PARTIES
Directors

Vanessa Custagna, a director of the Company since October 2007, is a former employee of Mervyns LLC, a
position she left in February 2007. The Company had net sales to Mervyns LLC in the amount of approximately
$144 million from the beginning of fiscal 2006 through the first quarter of 2007, after which Ms. Castagna was no
longer an employee of Mervyns LLC.

Stephen Neal, a director of the Company since October 2007, was chief executive officer and chairman of the
law firm Cooley Godward Kronish LLP. Mr. Neal stepped down as chief executive officer effective January 1, 2008,
but has retained his role as Chairman of the firm. James C. Gaither. a director of the Company until July 2006, was,
prior to 2004 senior counsel to the firm. The firm provided legal services to the Company and to the Human
Resources Commiittee of the Company’s Board of Directors in 2007, 2006 and 2003, for which the Company paid
fees of approximately $195,000, $465,000 and $235,000, respectively.

Robert E. Friedman. a director of the Company until July 2006, is founder and chairman of the board of the
Corporation for Enterprise Development. a not-for-profit organization focused on creating econemic opportunity
by helping residents of poor communities. In 2006 and 2005, the Levi Strauss Foundation, which is not a
consolidated entity of the Company. donated $130,000 and $85,000, respectively. to the Corporation for Enterprise
Development.

Agreement with Alvarez & Marsal, Inc.

On December 1, 2003, and as provided by an agreement with Alvarez & Marsal, Inc.. the Company appointed
James P. Fogarty as its interim chief financial officer; he served until March 7, 2005. The agreement also provided
that Antonio Alvarez would serve as senior advisor and executive officer to the Company. Under the terms of the
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Company’s agreement, in 2005, the Company paid Alvarez & Marsal $3.7 millicn. The Company did not obtain
services from Alvarez & Marsal in 2007 or 2006.

NOTE 19: BUSINESS SEGMENT INFORMATION

As aresult of establishing a new North America organization in late 2006, the Company changed its reporting
segments in 2007 to align with the new operating structure. Results for the Company’s U.S. commercial business
units — the U.S. Levi’s®, Dockers® and Signature by Levi Strauss & Co.™ brands — and its operations in Canada
and Mexico are now included in a single North America regional segment. The Company’s operations outside
North America continued to be organized and managed through its Europe and Asia Pacific regions. For all periods
presented, the Company’s Europe region includes Eastern and Western Europe; Asia Pacific includes Asia Pacific,
the Middle East, Africa and Central and South America.

Each regicnal segment is managed by a senior executive who reports directly to the chief operating decision maker:
the Company's chief executive officer. The Company’s management, including the chief operating decision maker,
manages business operations, evaluates performance and allocates resources based on the regional segments’ net
revenues and operating income.

As a result of the changes in the Company’s reporting structure in 2007, the Company reclassified certain
U.S. staff costs from “Corporate expense” to the North America segment. The Company reports net trade
receivables and inventories by segment as that information is used by the chief operating decision maker in
assessing segment performance. The Company revised its business segment information for prior years to conform
1o the new presentation. No single country other than the United States had net revenues or long-lived assets
exceeding 10% of consolidated net revenues or long-lived assets for any of the years presented.
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Business segment information for the Company was as follows:

Year Ended

November 25, November 26, November 27,
2007 2006 2005

(Dollars in thousands)

Net revenues:

North AMerica .. ... i e e $2.541,314 $2,533,533 52,505,388
Europe . ... ... .. e 1,016,227 898,042 990,185
AsiaPacific. .. ... 804,558 761,372 729,237
COTPOrate . . ... .t e e (1,170) — —
Consolidated net revenues . ..........c.o.vrerven. s $4,360,929 $4,192 947 54,224,810
Operating income:
NOMH AMEFCA o oo e e e e e $ 392,366 $ 401,944 S 367,484
BUrOpE ... e 220,580 192,352 213,104
Asia Pacific. ............. ... .. ... e 122,472 142.576 144,934
Regional operating income. . . ............ ... ........ 735418 736,872 725,522
Corporate:
Restructuring charges, net . . ... ... ... ... ... .. .... 14,458 14.149 16,633
Postretirement benefit plan curtailment gains .. .......... (52.763) (29,041) —
Other corporate staff costs and expenses. .. ............. 132.682 138,105 119,629
Total corporate .. ........ ... e 94,377 123,213 136,262
Consolidated operating income . . .. ................. 641.041 613.659 589,260
Interest expense .. ... ... ... 215,715 250,637 263,650
Loss on early extinguishment of debt. . .. .................. 63,838 40,278 66,066
Other inCOME, NEL . . . .ttt e et e et (14.138) (22.418) (23,057
Income before income taxes . . ... ... § 375.6260 $ 345,162 $ 282,601
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LEVI STRAUSS & CO. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)
FOR THE YEARS ENDED NOVEMBER 25, 2007, NOVEMBER 26, 2006, AND NOVEMBER 27, 2005

November 25, 2007

North Asia
America Europe Pacific Other Total
Assets:
Trade receivables. net . .............. $364.978  $123235 $99720 § 19,102 § 607,035
Inventories .. ..................... 240,881 149,537 126,557 (L1 515,864
Other ... ... ... . ... .. . .. ... ... — — — 1,727,767 1,727,767
Total assets .. ... ... $2.850,666
November 26, 2006
North Asia
America Europe Pacific Other Total
Assets:
Trade receivables, net . ... ........... $363,940 $113,076  $ 99730 $ 13229 § 589.975
Inventories ......... ... ... 325716 115,676 109,930 (1.259) 550,063
Other . ... . .. . . .. .. — — — 1.664,027 1.664.027
Total assets . . ................... ) $2.804.065

Geographic information for the Company was as follows:

Year Ended
November 25, November 26, November 27,
2007 2006 2005

(Dollars in thousands})

Net revenues:

United States. . . .. ... e $2,321,561 $2,326,913 $2,305,127
Foreign countries. . . ... ... ... ... .. .. ... . ..., 2.039.368 1,866,034 1.919.683
Consolidated net revenues . ........ . .............. $4,360,929 $4,192,947  $4.224.810

November 25, November 26,
2007 2006

(Dollars in thousands)

Deferred tax assets:
United States . . .. oo $585,182 $493.902
Foreign countries . . ... ... ... i 59,126 65,026

$644.308 $558,928

Long-lived assets:
United States'” ... ... $543.315 $505,070
Foreign countries .. ... ... . . .. . . 171,101 146,163

$714.416 $651.233

(1) Includes over 97% of the Company’s goodwill and other intangible assets.

100




LEVI STRAUSS & CO. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)
FOR THE YEARS ENDED NOVEMBER 25, 2007, NOVEMBER 26, 2006, AND NOVEMBER 27, 2005

NOTE 20: QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (UNAUDITED)

Set forth below are the consolidated statements of income for the first, second, third and fourth quarters of 2007
and 2006.

First Second Third Fourth
Year Ended November 25, 2007 Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
{Dollars in thousands)
Netsales.......... ... ... ........ $1.016.299 § 997323 $1.031.,702 $1.220,784
Licensing revenue . .................. 21,106 19,037 19,466 35.212
Netrevenues ..................... 1.037.405 1,016,360 1,051.168 1,255,996
Costofgoodssold................... 539,790 553,233 564.957 660.903
Grossprofit . ... ............... 497 615 463,127 486.211 395,093
Selling, general and administrative
EXPENSES . . . ... 295,562 344,792 343.389 402,804
Restructuring charges, net of reversals . . . . 12,815 [¢14] (579 2,156
Operating income . . .............. 189,238 118,269 143,401 190,133
Interestexpense . . ................... 57,725 55.717 53,142 49.071
Loss on early extinguishment of debt . . . .. 30 14,299 35 49,474
Other (income) expense, net. . . .. ....... (13.588) (4,306) 172 3.584
Income before taxes . ............. 145,071 52,499 90,052 88.004
Income tax expense (benefit) . .......... 58.436 6,784 29,158 (179.137)
Net inCome. . ..o un oo $ 86635 $ 45715 % 60,894 $§ 267,141
First Second Third Fourth
Year Ended November 26, 2006 Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
(Dollars in thousands)
Netsales............ciiiiininn.. $947,874 $944 464 $1,008,929 $1,205,305
Licensing revenue . .................. 19,767 16,347 19,340 30,921
Netrevenues . ... ... ... 967,641 960,811 1,028,269 1,236,226
Costofgoodssold. .. ........ ... ... 502.522 515,071 555,592 643,377
Gross profit . ....... ... .. ... .... 465,119 445,740 472,671 592,849
Selling, general and administrative
EXPENSES .« vttt i e 291,295 323,621 312,082 421,579
Restructuring charges. net of reversals . . .. 3.187 7.262 2,615 1,085
Operating income . .. ............. 170.637 114,857 157,980 170,185
Interest expense . .. .................. 66,297 61,791 60,216 62,333
Loss on early extinguishment of debt . . . .. 7 32,951 — 7,320
Other income, net .. ................. (1,148) (3,429 (9,524) (8,317)
Income before taxes . . ............ 105.481 23.544 107.288 108.849
Income tax expense (benefit) ........... 51,667 (16,658} 58,019 13,131
Netincome. ... .........ouo... $ 53,814 $ 40,202 $ 497269 g 95718
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Item 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

With the approval of our audit committee. KPMG LLP was dismissed as our principal independent accoun-
tants effective upon the completion of their audit of our financial statements as of and for the fiscal year ended
November 26, 2006, and the issuance of their report thereon. During the two fiscal years ended November 26, 2006,
and the subsequent interim period through February 12, 2007, there were no disagreements with KPMG LLP on any
matter of accounting principles or practices, financial statement disclosure, or auditing scope or procedures, which
disagreements if not resolved to the satisfaction of KPMG LLP would have caused them to make reference in
connection with their opinion to the subject matier of the disagreement,

KPMG LLP has provided us with a letter stating that they agree that there were no such disagreements during
the two fiscal years ended November 26, 2006, and the subsequent interim period through February 12, 2007, and
we filed a copy of such letter under cover of Form 8-K/A within the time periods prescribed by the SEC.

On February 9, 2007, we engaged PricewaterhouseCoopers LLF as our new principal independent accoun-
tants. During our 2003 and 2006 fiscal years and the subsequent interim period through February 9, 2007, we did not
consult with PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP regarding either:

(i} the application of accounting principles to a specified transaction, either completed or proposed, or the type
of audit opinion that might be rendered on our financial statements, nor did PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP provide
writlent or oral advice to us that PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP concluded was an important factor considered by us
in reaching a decision as to the accounting, auditing or financial reporting issue; or

(i) any matter that was either the subject of a “disagreement” (as defined in Regulation §-K Item 304(a)(1){(iv)
and the related instructions), or a “reportable event” (as defined in Item 304(a)(1)(v) of Regulation S-K).

Item 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedure

As of November 25, 2007, we updated our evaluation of the effectiveness of the design and operation of our
disclosure controls and procedures for purposes of filing reports under the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934 (the
“Exchange Act”). This controls evaluation was done under the supervision and with the participation of man-
agement. including our chief executive officer and our chief financial officer. Our chief executive officer and our
chief financial officer have concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rule 13{a)-15(e)
and 15(d)-15(¢) under the Exchange Act) are effective to provide reasonable assurance that information relating to
us and our subsidiaries that we are required to disclose in the reports that we file or submit to the SEC is recorded,
processed, summarized and reported with the time periods specified in the SEC’s rules and forms. Our disclosure
controls and procedures are designed to ensure that such information is accumulated and communicated to our
management, including our chief executive officer and chief financial officer, as appropriate to allow timely
decisions regarding required disclosure.

Changes in Internal Controls

We maintain a system of internal control over financial reporting that is designed to provide reasonable
assurance that our books and records accurately reflect our transactions and that our established policies and
procedures are followed. There were no changes to our internal control over financial reporting during our last fiscal
quarter that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial
reporting.

We are currently implementing an enterprise resource planning system on a staged basis in our businesses
around the world. We began in Asia Pacific (by implementing the system in several affiliates in the region in 2006
and 2007) and will continue implementation in other affiliates and organizations in the coming years. We designed
our rollout and transition plan to minimize the risk of disruption to our business and controls. We believe
implementation of this system will change, simplify and strengthen our internal control over financial reporting.
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As aresult of the SEC’s deferral of the deadline for non-accelerated filers' compliance with the internal control
requirements of Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, as a non-accelerated filer we are not yet subject to
the disclosure requirements in our Annual Report on Form 10-K. As currently provided in the rules, non-accelerated
filers will be required to be compliant in 2008 (with respect to the management report) and 2009 (with respect to the
independent auditor attestation report). We have planned for and expect to meet these requirements.

Item 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

None.
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PART III

Item 10. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

The following provides information about our directors und executive officers as of February 11, 2008:

Name Age Position

T. Gary Rogers'™™® ... ... ..., 65 Director, Chairman of the Board of Directors

R.John Anderson . ................ 56 Director, President and Chief Executive Officer

Robert D.Haas ................... 65 Director. Chairman Emeritus

Vanessa J. Castagna'” .. ... ... ... ... 58 Director

Peter A. Georgescu™® | . ... .., 68  Director

Peter E. Haas, Jr.&™ . ... 60 Director

F. Warren Hellman'™® . . .. 73 Director

Leon J. Level®® . .. ... .. ... 67 Director

Stephen C. Neal®® ... ... ... 58 Director

Patricia Salas Pineda"*»® .. 56 Director

Armin Broger .. ...... ... ... .. ... 46  Senior Vice President and President, Levi Strauss
Europe

John Goodman .. ................. 43 President and Commercial General Manager,
Dockers® Brand, United States

Robert L. Hanson . ............. ... 44  Senior Vice President and President, Levi Strauss
North America

AlanHed .. ..................... 48  Senior Vice President and President, Levi Strauss
Asia Pacific

Hilary K. Krane .. ............. ... 44 Senior Vice President and General Counsel

David Love...................... 45 Senior Vice President, Global Sourcing

Hans Ploos van Amstel .. ........... 42 Senior Vice President and Chief Financiat Officer

Lawrence W. Ruff . .. ... ... ... ... 51  Senior Vice President, Strategy and Worldwide
Marketing and Global Marketing Officer

Cathleen L. Univh. ... ... ... ... .. 59  Senior Vice President, Worldwide Human
Resources

(1) Member, Human Resources Committee,
(2) Member. Finangce Committce,
(3) Member. Audit Committee.

(4) Member. Nominating and Governance Committee.

Members of the Haas family are descendants of our founder. Levi Strauss. Peter E. Haas, Jr. is a cousin of
Robert D. Haas.

T. Gary Rogers, a director since.1998 and our Chairman since February 8, 2008, was most recently Chairman
of the Board and Chief Executive Officer of Dreyer’s Grand lce Cream, Inc., a manufacturer and marketer of
premium and super-premium ice cream and frozen dessert products. He held that position from 1977 until the end of
2007. He serves as a director of Shorenstein Company, L..P., Stanislaus Food Products and the Federal Reserve Bank
of San Francisco.

R. John Anderson, our President and Chief Executive Officer since November 2006, previously served as
Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer since July 2006, President of our Global Supply Chain
Organization since March 2004 and Senior Vice President and President of our Asia Pacific region since 1998. He
joined usin 1979. Mr. Anderson served as General Manager of Levi Strauss Canada and as President of Levi Strauss
Canada and Latin America from 1996 to 1998. He has held a series of merchandising positions with us in Europe
and the United States, including Vice President, Merchandising and Product Development for the Levi's brand in
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1995. Mr. Anderson also served as interim President of Levi Strauss Europe from September 2003 to February
2004,

Robert D. Haus, a director since 1980, was recently named Chairman Emeritus. He served as Chairman of our
Board from 1989 to February 8, 2008. Mr. Haas joined us in 1973 and served in a variety of marketing, planning and
operating positions including serving as our Chief Executive Officer from 1984 to 1999.

Vanessa J. Castagna, a director since Octlober 2, 2007, most recently led Mervyns LLC department stores as its
executive chairwoman of the board from 2005 until early 2007. Prior to Mervyns LLC, Ms. Castagna served as
chairman and chief executive officer of JC Penney Stores, Catalog and Internet from 2002 through 2004, She joined
JC Penney in 1999 as chief operating officer, and was both president and Chief Operating Officer of JC Penney
Stores, Catalog and Internet in 2001.

Peter A. Georgescu, a director since February 2000, is Chairman Emeritus of Young & Rubicam Inc. (now
WPP Group plc}, a global advertising ugency. Prior to his retirement in January 2000, Mr. Georgescu served as
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Young & Rubicam since 1993 and. prior 1o that. as President of Y&R Inc.
from 1990 10 1993, Y&R Advertising from 1986 to 1990 and President of its Young & Rubicam international
division from 1982 10 1986. Mr. Georgescu is currently a director of [nternational Flavors & Fragrances Inc.

Peter E. Haas, Jr, adirector since 1985, is a director or trustee of each of the Levi Strauss Foundation, Red Tab
Foundation, Joanne and Peter Haas Jr. Fund, Walter and Elise Haas Fund and the Novato Youth Center Honorary
Beoard. Mr. Haas was one of our managers from 1972 10 1989. He was Director of Product Integrity of The Jeans
Company, one of our former operating units, from 1984 to 1989, He served as Director of Materials Management
for Levi Strauss USA in 1982 and Vice President and General Manager in the Menswear Division in 1980.

F. Warren Hellman, a director since 1985, has served as Chairman and General Partner of Hellman & Friedman
LLC, a private investment firm, since its inception in 1984. Previously, he was a General Partner of Hellman Ferri (now
Matrix Partners) and Managing Director of Lehman Brothers Kuhn Loeb, Inc. Mr. Hellman is currently a director of
Osterweis Capital Management. Inc. and Hall Capital Partners, L.LC, among other private organizations, Mr. Hellman
also served as a director of NASDAQ Stock Market, Inc. through February 2004.

Leon J. Level. a director since April 2005, is a former vice president and director of Computer Sciences
Corporation. a leading global information technology services company. Mr. Level held ascending and varied
financial management and executive positions at Computer Sciences Corporation (Chief Financial Officer from
1989 to February 2006), Unisys Corporation (Corporate Vice President, Treasurer and Chairman of Unisys Finance
Corporation). Burroughs Corporation { Vice President, Treasurer). The Bendix Corporation (Executive Director and
Assistant Corporate Controller) and Deloitte, Haskins & Sells (now Deloitte & Touche). Mr. Level is also currently
a director of Allied Waste Industries, Inc. and UTi Worldwide Inc.

Stephen C. Neal a director since October 2, 2007, is the chairman of the law firm Cooley Godward Kronish
LLP. He was also chiel executive officer of the firm until January 1, 2008. In addition to his extensive experience as
a trial lawyer on a broad range of corporate issues, Mr. Neal has represented and advised numerous boards of
directors, special committees of boards and individual directors on corporate governance and other legal matters,
Prior to joining Cooley Godward in 1995 and becoming CEQ in 2001, Mr. Neal was a partner of the law firm
Kirkland & Ellis.

Fatricia Sualas Pineda, a director since 1991, is currently Group Vice President, Legal, Philanthropy and
Administration for Toyota Motor Norih America. Inc., an affiliate of one of the world’s largest automotive firms.
She assumed this position on September 2004. Prior to joining Toyota Motor North America, Inc., Ms. Pineda was
Vice President of Legal. Human Resources and Government Relations and Corporate Secretary of New United
Motor Manufacturing, Inc. with which she was associated since 1984. She is currently an advisory trustee of the
RAND Corporation and Mills College and & director of Anna’s Linens.

Armin Broger joined us as Senior Vice President and President, Levi Strauss Europe in February 2007. Prior to
joining us, Mr. Broger was Chief Executive Officer for the European business of 7 For All Mankind, a jeans marketer,
from 2004 to 2006. From 2000 to 2004, he was the Chief Operating Officer in Europe of Tommy Hilfiger, an apparel
marketer. Mr. Broger has also held positions with Diesel. The Walt Disney Company and Bain & Company.
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John Goodman joined us as President and Commercial General Manager of our U.S. Dockers® business in
June 2005. Mr. Goodman is also responsible for identifying and leveraging strategic growth opportunities for the
Dockers® brand worldwide, and is the executive sponsor for our U.S. implementation of SAP. Prior to joining us,
Mr. Goodman was Senior Vice President and Chief Apparel Officer for Kmart Holding Corporation, a mass channel
retailer and a wholly owned subsidiary of Sears Holdings Corporation. Prior to joining Kmart Holding Corporation
in 2003, Mr. Goodman spent 11 years at Gap Inc., where he was most recently Senior Vice President of
Merchandising, Planning, Production and Distribution for the company’s outlet stores.

Robert L. Hanson is our Senior Vice President and President of Levi Strauss Americas. He became president of
the North America business in October 2006. Previously, Mr. Hanson was President and Commercial General
Manager of the U.S. Levi’s® brand and U.S. Supply Chain Services since July 2005, and President and General
Manager of the U.5. Levi’s® brand since 2001, Mr. Hanson was President of the Levi’s® brand in Europe from 1998
to 2000. He began his career with us in 1988, holding executive-level advertising, marketing and business
development positions in both the Levi’s® and Dockers® brands in the United States before taking his first position
in Europe.

Alan Hed became Senior Vice President and President in our Asia Pacific Division in October 2006.
Previously, Mr. Hed was Vice President and Regional General Manager in our Asia Pacific business from
2004 to 2006 and Regional General Manager in our European business from 2002 to 2004, responsible for
businesses that spanned our emerging markets in Africa, the Middle East, Eastern Europe, Turkey and Russia. From
2000 10 2002, Mr. Hed was our General Manager in South Africa. Prior to joining us, Mr. Hed was Vice President of
Marketing and Sales in Thailand for Citibank. Between 1983 and 1998, Mr. Hed worked for Proctor & Gamble in a
number of marketing and general management positions, including General Manager of Vietnam and Director of
Marketing in Germany.

Hilary K. Krane, our Senior Vice President and General Counsel, joined us in January 2006. From 1994 to
2005, Ms. Krane held a variety of positions at PricewaterhouseCoopers, one of the world’s leading accounting
firms, including Primary Legal Counsel to the U.S. Advisory Practice and, most recently, Assistant General Counsel
and Partner. Prior to joining PricewaterhouseCoopers, Ms. Krane was a litigation associate in the law firm of
Skadden, Arps, Slate, Meagher & Flom LLP in Chicago.

David Love became our Senior Vice President of Global Sourcing in 2004 and is responsible for development,
sourcing and delivery of our products worldwide. Prior to assuming this role, Mr. Love was Vice President of our
U.S. Supply Chatn organtzation from 2001 to 2004 and Senior Dhrector of Product Services for the U.S. Levi’s®
brand from 1999 to 2001. He began his career with us in 1984.

Huans Ploos van Amstel, Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer since March 2003, joined us in 2003
as Vice President of Finance and Operations for our European business. Mr. Ploos van Amstel came from Procter &
Gamble, a leading manufacturer and marketer of consumer and household products. Mr. Ploos van Amstel joined
Procter & Gamble in 1989, where he served in various capacities throughout Europe and the Middle East, leading to
his appointment in 1999 as Finance Director of Global Corporate Fabric & Home Care, and culminating in his
appointment in 2001 as Finance Director of Procter & Gamble’s Fabric & Home Care Europe division.

Lawrence W. Ruff has been our Senior Vice President, Strategy and Worldwide Marketing and Global
Marketing Officer since May 2004. Mr. Ruff previously was Senior Vice President, Strategy and Commercial
Development from 2003 to 2004 and Senior Vice President, Worldwide Marketing Services from 1999 to 2003. He
joined us in 1987. From 1987 to 1996, he held a variety of marketing positions in the United States and Europe. He
served as Vice President, Marketing and Development for Levi Strauss Europe, Middle East and Africa from 1996
to 1999 when he became Vice President, Global Marketing.

Cathleen L. Unruh, Senior Vice President, Worldwide Human Resources, rejoined us in June 2007. Ms. Unruh
first joined LS&CO. in 1983. During her first 20 years with us, she held numerous regional and global human
resources leadership roles in the United States and Europe. In 2004, Ms. Unruh joined Gap Inc. initially as Vice
President — Human Resources for the Corporate Staff groups, and culminating in her role as Vice President —
Human Resources for Gap International.
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Our Board of Directors

Our board of directors currently has ten members. Qur board is divided into three classes with directors elected for
overlapping three-year terms. The term for directors in Class [1 (Ms. Castagna, Mc. P. E. Haas, Jr. and Mr. Hellman) will
end at our annual stockholders’ meeting in 2009. The term for directors in Class I (Mr. Anderson, Ms. Pineda and
Mr, Rogers) will end at our annual stockholders’ meeting in 2010. The term for directors in Class | (Mr. Georgescu,
Mr. R.D. Haas, Mr. Level and Mr. Neal) will end at our annual stockholders’ meeting in 2011. In October 2007, we
increased the authorized number of directors on our board from nine to eleven and elected Ms. Castagna and Mr. Neal. In
December 2007. one member of the Board (Ms. Patricia A. House) resigned bringing our number of directors down to ten.

Commirtees. Our board of directors has four committees.

* Audit.  Qur audit committee provides assistance 1o the board in the board’s oversight of the integrity of our
financial statements, financial reporting processes, internal controls systems and compliance with legal
requirements. The committee meets with our management regularly to discuss our critical accounting policies,
internal conirols and financial reporting process and our financial reports to the public. The committee also
meets with our independent registered public accounting firm and with our financial personnel and internal
auditors regarding these matters. The committee also examines the independence and performance of our
internal auditors and our independent registered public accounting firm. The committee has sole and direct
authority to engage, appoint, evaluate and replace our independent auditor. Both our independent registered
public accounting firm and our internal auditors regularly meet privately with this committec and have
unrestricted access to the committee. The audit committee held seven meetings during 2007.

~  Members: Mr. Level (Chair), Mr. Georgescu and Ms. Pineda.

Mr. Level is our audit committee financial experi as currently defined under SEC rules. We believe that the
composition of our audit commitiee meets the criteria for independence under, and the functioning of our audit
committee complies with the applicable requirements of, the Sarbanes-Oxley Actand SEC rules and regulations,

* Finance. Our finance committee provides assistance to the board in the board’s oversight of our financial
condition and management, financing strategies and execution and relationships with stockholders, creditors
and other members of the financial community. The finance committee held three meetings in 2007.

— Members: Mr. Rogers (Chair), Mr. Hellman, Mr. Level and Mr. Neal.

* Human resources.  Our human resources commitiee provides assistance to the board in the board’s
oversight of our compensation, benefits and human resources programs and of senior management
performance, composition and compensation. The committee reviews our compensation objectives and
performance against those objectives, reviews market conditions and practices and our strategy and
processes lor making compensation decisions and approves (or, in the case of our chief executive officer,
recommends to the Board) the annual and long term compensation for our executive officers, including our
long term incentive compensation plans. The committee also reviews our succession planning, diversity and
benefit plans. The human resources commitiee held eight meetings in 2007,

— Members: Ms. Pineda (Chair), Ms. Castagna, Mr. PE. Haas, Jr., Mr. Hellman and Mr. Rogers.

Nominating and governance. Our nominating and governance committee is responsible for identifying
qualified candidates for our board of directors and making recommendations regarding the size and
composition of the board. In addition, the committee is responsible for overseeing our corporate governance
matters, reporting and making recommendations to the board concerning corporate governance matters,
reviewing the performance of our chairman and chief executive officer and determining director compen-
sation. The nominating and governance committee held three meetings in 2007,

—  Members: Mr. Georgescu (Chair), Mr. P.E. Haas, Jr., Mr. Neal and Ms. Pineda.
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Worldwide Code of Business Conduct

We have a Worldwide Code of Business Conduct which applies to all of our directors and employees, including
the chief executive officer, the chief financial officer, the controller and our other senior financial officers. The
Worldwide Code of Business Conduct covers a number of topics including:

* accounting practices and financial communications;
» conflicts of interest;

= confidentiality;

* corporate opportunities;

« insider trading: and

* compliance with laws.

A copy of the Worldwide Code of Business Conduct is an exhibit to this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
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Item 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION
COMPENSATION DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

LS&CO.’s compensation policies and programs are designed to support the achievement of our strategic
business plans by attracting. retaining and motivating exceptional talent. Our ability to compete effectively in the
marketplace depends on the knowledge, capabilities and integrity of our leaders. Our compensation programs help
create a high-performance, outcome-driven und principled culture by holding leaders accountable for delivering
results, and developing our employees and exemplifying our core values of empathy. originality, integrity and
courage.

The Human Resources Committee of the Board of Directors (the "HR Committee™) is responsible for fulfilling
the Board's responsibility of overseeing executive compensation practices at LS&CO. Each year, the HR
Committee conducts a review of LS&CQ.’s programs to ensure that the programs are aligned with the Company’s
business sirategies and the competitive practices of our peer companies.

In 2007, the HR Committee completed a comprehensive review of the Company's compensation philosophy.
As a result, we changed three key aspects of our compensation approach for our named executive officers: 1) we
modified the peer group of companies we use for comparative purposes. 2) we changed the positioning of our base
salary and incentive targets relative to our peer group, and 3) we adjusted the mix between annual cash and long-
term compensation. These changes are intended to align our executives’ interests more closely to those of our
stockholders by de-emphasizing annual cash compensation and focusing more heavily on long-term incentive
compensation. The compensation practices described below reflect this revised approach.

Compensation Philosophy and Objectives
LS&CO.’s executive compensation philosophy focuses on the following key principles:

« Attract, motivate and retain high performing talent in an extremely competitive marketplace

« Our ability to achieve our strategic business plans and compete effectively in the marketplace is based on
our ability 10 attract, motivate and retain exceptional leadership talent in a highly competitive talent
market.

+ Deliver compelitive compensation for competitive results

= The Company provides competitive total compensation opportunities that are intended to attract, motivate
and retain a highly capable and results-driven executive team, with the majority of compensation paid
only if performance results are achicved.

« Align the interests of our executives with those of our stockholders

* LS&CO. programs offer compensation incentives designed to motivate executives to enhance total
stockholder return. These programs align certain elements of compensation with our achievement of
corporate growth objectives (including defined financial targets and increases in stockholder value) as
well as individual performance.

Policies and Practices for Establishing Compensation Packages
Establishing the elements of compensation

The HR Committee establishes the elements of compensation for our named executive officers (who, in 2007,
were John Anderson, Hans Ploos van Amstel. Armin Broger. John Goodman and Robert Hanson) after an extensive
review of markel data on the executives from the peer group described below. The HR Commiitee reviews each
element of compensation independently and in the aggregate to determine the right mix of elements. and associated
amounts, for each named executive officer.

A consistent approach is used for all named executive officers when setting each compensation element.
However, the HR Committee. and the Board for the CEQ. maintains flexibility to exercise its independent judgment
in how it applies the standard approach to each executive, taking into account unique considerations existing at an
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executive’s time of hire, or the current and future estimated value of previously-granted long-term incentives
relative to individual performance.

Competitive peer group

In determining the design and the amount of each element of compensation, the HR Committee conducts a
thorough annual review of competitive market information. The HR Committee references data provided by Hewitt
Associates concerning 31 peer companies in the consumer products, apparel and retail industry segments. The HR
Committee also references data from the Apparel Industry Compensation Survey published by ICR Limited for
commercial positions. The peer group is representative of the types of companies LS&CO. competes with for
executive talent, which is the primary consideration for inclusion in the peer group. Revenue size and other financial
measures, such as cash flow and profit margin, are secondary considerations in selecting the peer companies.

The peer group used in establishing our named executive officers’ 2007 compensation packages was:

[
: Company Name Company Name
- Abercrombie & Fitch Co. LVMH Moét Hennessy Louis Vuitton Inc
! Alberto-Culver Company Mattel, Inc.
AnnTaylor Stores Corporation The Neiman-Marcus Group, Inc.
Avon Products, Inc. NIKE, Inc.
The Bon-Ton Stores, Inc. Nordstrom, Inc.
Charming Shoppes, Inc. Pacific Sunwear of California, Inc.
The Clorox Company J.C. Penney Company, Inc.
Colgate-Palmolive Company Phillips-Van Heusen Corporation
Eddie Bauer Holdings, inc Retail Ventures, Inc.
The Gap, Inc. Revlon Inc.
General Mills, Inc. Sara Lee Corporation
Hasbro, Inc. Whirlpool Corporation
Kellogg Company Williams-Sonoma, Inc.
Kimberly-Clark Corporation Wm. Wrigley Jr. Company
| Kohl’s Corporation Yum! Brands Inc.
. Limited Brands, Inc.

Establishing compensation for named executive officers other than the CEQO

The HR Committee has established guidelines calling for annual cash compensation (base salary and target
annual incentive bonus) levels of our named executive officers to be set near the median (50" percentile) of the peer
companies, near the 75'" percentile for long-term incentives and between the 50" — 75™ percentiles for total
compensation. These relative levels serve as a general guideline for compensation decisions and are consistent with
our philosophy of deemphasizing annual cash compensation and focusing more heavily on long-term
compensation.

The HR Committee approves all compensation decisions affecting the named executive officers {other than the
CEO) based on recommendations provided by the CEO. The CEO conducts an annual performance review of each
member of the executive leadership team against his or her annual objectives and reviews the relevant peer group
data provided by the Human Resources staff. The CEQ then develops a recommended compensation package for
each executive, The HR Committee reviews the recommendations with the CEO and the Chairman, seeks advice
from its consultant Hewitt Associates and approves or adjusts the recommendations as it deems appropriate. The
HR Committee then reports on its decisions to the full Board.
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Establishing the CEO compensation package

At the completion of each year, the Nominating and Governance Committee (the “N&G Committee”) assesses
the CEO’s performance against annual objectives that were established jointly by the CEO and the N&G Commitiee
at the beginning of that year. The N&G Committee takes into consideration feedback gathered from Board members
and the direct reports to the CEQ, in addition to the financial and operating results of the Company for the year. and
submits its performance assessment to the HR Committee. The HR Committee then reviews the performance
assessment and peer group data in its deliberations. During this decision-making process, the HR Committee
consults with Hewitt Associates, who informs the HR Committee of market trends and conditions, comments on
market data relative to the CEQO’s current compensation, and provides perspective on other company CEO
compensation practices. Based on all of these inputs. in addition to the same guidelines used for setting annual
cash, long-term and total compensation for the other named executives, the HR Committee prepares a recom-
mendation to the full Board on all elements of the CEO compensation. The full Board then considers the HR
Commitiee’s recommendation and approves the final compensation package for the CEO.

Role of executives and third Parties in compensation decisions

Hewitt Associates acts as the HR Committee’s independent consultant and as such, advises the HR Committee
on industry-standards and competitive compensation practices, as well as on the Company’s specific execulive
compensation practices. Hewitt Associates does not provide any other consulting services to the Company.
Executive officers may influence the compensation package developed by the Board for the CEO by providing input
on the CEQ’s performance in the past year. The CEO influences the compensation packages for each of the other
named executive officers through his recommendations made to the HR Committee.

Elements of Compensation
The primary elements of compensation for our named executive officers are:
» Base Salary
* Annual Incentive Awards
* Long-Term Incentive Awards
= Retirement Savings and Insurance Benefits

+ Perquisites

Base Salary

The objective of base salary is to provide fixed compensation that reflects what the market pays 10 individuals
in similar roles with comparable experience and performance. The HR Committee targets base salarics for each
position near the median (50" percentile) of the peer group. although the peer group data serves as a general
guideline only and the HR Committee, and for the CEQO. the Board, retain the authority to exercise its independent
judgment in establishing the base salary levels for each individual. Merit increases for the named executive officers
are considered by the HR Committee on an annual basis and are based on the executive’s individual performance
against planned objectives and his or her base salary relative to the median of that paid to similar executives by the
peer group. Based on the CEO recommendations and HR Committee’s deliberations, each of the named executives
received a merit increase in 2007, except for John Anderson and Armin Broger, who each assumed their current
positions in 2007 and whose 2007 base salaries were established at that time.

Annual Incentive Plan

Our Annual Incentive Plan (“AIP") provides the named executive officers an opportunity to share in the
success that they help create. The AIP encourages the achievement of our internal annual business goals and
rewards Company, business unit and individual performance against those annual objectives. The alignment of AIP
with our internal annual business goals is intended to motivate all participants to achieve and exceed our annual
performance objectives.
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Ferformance measures

Our priorities for 2007 were to profitably grow the Company and continue to increase stockholder value, Qur
2007 AIP goals were aligned with these key priorities through three performance measures:

* Earnings before interest and taxes (“EBIT”), a non-GAAP measure that is determined by deducting from
operating income, as determined under GAAP. the following: restructuring expense, net curtailment gains
from our post retirement medical plan in the United States, and certain management-defined unusual, non-
recurring SG&A expense/income items

* Days in working capital, a non-GAAP measure defined as the average days in net trade receivables, plus the
average days in inventories, minus the average days in accounts payable. where averages are calculated
based on ending balances over the past thirteen months, and

* Net revenue as determined under GAAP.

We use these measures because we believe they are key drivers in increasing stockholder value and because
every employee can impact them in some way. EBIT and days in working capital are used as indicators of our
earnings and cash flow performance, and net revenue is used as an indicator of our sales growth. These measures
may change from time to time based on business priorities. The HR Commitiee establishes the goals for each
measure at the beginning of each year at levels to provide incentive to the executive team and all employee
participants to strive and perform at a high level to meet the goals. We do not assume that the AIP pools will always
fund at 100%. 1f goal levels are not met but performance reaches minimum thresholds, participants may receive
partial payouts to recognize their efforts that contributed to Company performance.

Funding the AIP pool

The AIP funding, or the amount of money made available in the AIP pool at the end of the year, is dependent on
how actual performance compares to the goals. In 2007, the three measures of EBIT. days in working capital and net
revenue worked together as follows to determine AIP funding:

( EBIT Funding X Working Capital Funding Modifier) ¥ Net Revenue Funding = 2007 AIP Funding
Initial EBIT
% of EBIT AP % of Working Capital Working Capital % of Net Net Revanue AlP Total AIP
Goals Funding % Goals Funding Modiflar Revenue Goals®| Funding % Performance | Funding %
= 125% 175% =110% 1.20 . =103% 175% Max 175%
100% 100% X 100% 1.00 -+ 100% 100% = Plan 100%
< 85% 0% = 00% 0.80 <08% 0% Min 0%
Nota: ERIT-Working Capital Funding is capped al 175% * Tolal Gompany Plan

** 100% achisvament of EBIT goals required

\; J tor Nat Rev funding above 100%
_v \—/V"“—/

Incentive Pool 70% + 30% = 100%
Funding Weight:

» Actual EBIT performance compared to our EBIT goals determines initial AIP funding,

* Actual days in working capital performance compared to our days in working capital goals results in a
working capital modifier, which scales the initial AIP funding to increase or decrease the AIP funding pool.

+ Actual netl revenue performance compared to our net revenue goals can increase or decrease overall AIP
funding. To ensure that incremental net revenue meets profitability goals, actual EBIT must meet or exceed
our EBIT goals in order for net revenue 1o increase the pool in excess of 100% of the initial AIP funding
level,

There are multiple AIP pools reflecting the multiplicity of our businesses and geographic segments. For most
employees, the AIP funding is based on a mix of their respective business unit’s performance and the performance
of the next higher organizational level. For example, the funding for one of our European aftiliates is based on a
mixture of the affiliate’s perforinance and the European region’s performance. Likewise, the funding for the Europe
region is based on the mixture of its regional performance and the total Company performance. The intention is to
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lie individual rewards to the local business unit that the employee most directly impacts and to reinforce the
message that the same efforts and results have an impact on the larger organization. For corporate stalf positions,
such as Finance, Human Resources, Legal positions, that provide support to the entire company, the funding is
based entirely on total Company performance.

The AIP funding for our named executive officers is based on the following: For our CEO and CFO, the AIP
funding is based 100% on total Company performance. For our two regional presidents who are named executive
officers. the AIP funding is based 50% on total Company and 50% on their respective region’s performance. For our
U.S. Dockers® Brand president, his AIP funding is based 50% on his Dockers® business unit performance, 30% on
his region’s performance and 20% on total Company performance as there is a global aspect to his rale.

At the close of the fiscal year. the HR Committee reviews and approves the final AIP funding levels based on
the level of attainment of the designated financial measures at the local, regional and total Company levels. AIP
funding can range from 0% to a maximum of 175% of the target AIP pool.

Determining named executives' AlP targets and actual award amounts

The AIP targets for the named executive officers are a specific dollar amount based on a defined percentage of
the executive’s base salary, called the AIP participation rate. The AIP participation rate is typically based on the
executives’ position and peer group practices.

In determining each executive’s actual AIP award in any given year, the HR Committee or, with respect to the
CEQ., the Board, considers the AIP target, the individual's performance and the AIP funding for the respective
business unit of the respective executive. Because the sum of all actual payments for any given region or business
unit cannot exceed the amount of the AIP funding pool for that unit, the individual awards reflect both performance
against individual objectives and relative performance against the balance of employees being paid out of that pool.
Executives, like all employees, must be employed on the date of payment 1o receive payment, except in the cases of
layoff, retirement, disability or death. The AIP awards for all employee participants are made in the same manner,
except that the employees’ managers determine the individual awards.

Although the AIP participation rates of the named executive officers are targeted at the median (50 percentile)
of that established by the peer group. an executive's actual award is not formulaic. Like all employees, the actual
AlP award is based on the assessment of the executive's performance against his or her annual objectives and
performance relative to his or her peers, in addition to the AIP funding.

The target AIP participation rates, target amounts and actual award payments of the named executive officers
for 2007 are as follows:

2007 ATP 2007 AIP Target 2007 AIP Actual

Name Participation - Amount Award
. B - _ R Rate . _Payment
(%) [ 0] () ;
. | ¢ !
_John Anderson o o 10%_ 1375000 1,031.250
Hans Ploos van Amstel L 65% 1 357500 . 316536
- e + - - B e p— b= ST — - RS § et — 4
_Armin Broger'” _ ) o, 100%_ 795289 808,398
Robert Hanson 0% ’ 490,000 400,776
_John Gog_dmaq . e L 65% L 390.000 J59.I84 o

(1Y Mr. Broger's employment began on February 26, 2007. His AIP target has been prorated to reflect 9 months of active employment,
Mr. Broger is paid in Euros. For purposes of the table, this amount was converted into U.S. dollars using an exchange rate of 1.4626, which is
the average exchange rate for the last month of the fiscal year.

Long-Term Incentives

The HR Committee believes a large part of an executive’s compensation should be linked to long-term
stockholder value creation as an incentive for sustained, profitable growth. Therefore, our long-term incentives for

113




our named executive officers are in the form of equity awards and are competitive with those offered by companies
in the peer group for similar jobs. The HR Committee targets long-term incentive award opportunities for our
named executive officers near the 75" percentile of the peer group, although the HR Committee, and for the CEO,
the Board, retains the authority to exercise its independent judgment in establishing the long-term incentive award
levels for each individual. A significant portion of the total compensation of each named executive officer is in the
form of long-term equity incentive awards. For more information on the 2007 long-term equity grants, see the 2007
Grants of Plan-Based Awards table.

The Company’s common stock is not listed on any stock exchange. Accordingly, the price of a share of our
common stock tor all purposes, including determining the value of equity awards, is established by the Board based
on an independent third-party valuation conducted by Evercore Group LLC (“Evercore™). The valuation process is
typically conducted two times a year, with interim valuations occurring from time to time based on stockholder and
Company needs. Please see “Stock-Based Compensation” under Note | to our audited consolidated financial
statements included in this report for more information about the valuation process.

Equity Incentive Plan

Our omnibus 2006 Equity Incentive Plan (“EIP”) enables our HR Committee to select from a variety of stock
awards in defining long-term incentives for our management, including stock options, restricted stock and restricted
stock units, and stock appreciation rights (“SARs”). The EIP also provides for the grant of performance awards in
the form of equity or cash. Stock awards and performance awards may be granied to employees, including named
execulive officers, non-employee directors and consultants.

To date, SARs have been the only form of equity granted to our named executive officers under the EIP. SARs
are typically granted annually with four-year vesting pericds and exercise periods of up to ten years. (See the table
entitled “Outstanding Equity Awards at 2007 Fiscal Year-End” for details concerning the SARs™ vesting schedule.)
The HR Committee chose 1o grant SARs rather than other available forms of equity compensation to allow the
Company the flexibility to grant SARs that may be seutled in either stock or cash. The terms of the SAR grants made
to date provide for stock settlement only. When a SAR is exercised and settled in stock, the shares issued are subject
to the terms of the Stockholders’ Agreement and the Voting Trust Agreement, including restrictions on voting rights
and transfer. After the participant has held the shares for six months, he or she may require the Company to
repurchase, or the Company may require the participant to sell to the Company, the shares of common stock issued
under the plan. The Company’s obligations under the EIP are subject to certain restrictive covenants in our various
debt agreements (See Note 5 to our andited consolidated financial statements included in this report for more
details).

Senior Executive Long-Term Incentive Plan

Our Senior Executive Long-Term Incentive Plan (“SELTIP”) is a cash-settled stock appreciation rights plan for
a select group of management employees, including named executive officers, and members of the Board. Only one
SELTIP grant was made to our named executive officers and Board members in 2003, as it was replaced by the 2006
EIP. The SELTIP has a 3-year vesting period which concluded on November 25, 2007. It will be paid out in cash by
the end of February 2008 in the amount of $13 per unit. based on the amount the stock price has appreciated from the
original grant date.

Long-term incentive grant practices

LS&CO. does not have any program, plan, or practice to time equity grants to take advantage of the release of
material, non-public information. Equity grants are made in connection with compensation decisions made by the
HR Committee and the timing of the Evercore valuation process, and are made under the terms of the governing
plan.

Retirement Savings and Insurance Benefits

In order to provide a competitive total compensation package, LS&CO. offers a qualified 401(k) defined
contribution retirement plan to its U.S. salaried employees through the Employee Savings and Investment Plan.
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Executive officers participate in this plan on the same terms as other salaried employees. The ability of executive
officers to participate fully in this plan is limited by IRS and ERISA requirements. Like many of the companies in
the peer group, the Company offers a nonqualified supplement to this plan, which is not subject to the IRS and
ERISA limitations, through the Deferred Compensation Plan for Executives and Outside Directors. The Company
also offers its executive officers the health and welfare insurance plans offered to all employees such as medical,
dental, supplemental life, long-term disability and business travel insurance, consistent with the practices of the
majority of the companies in the peer group.

In 2004, we froze our U.S. defined benefit pension plan and increased the Company match under the 401(k)
plan. This change was made in recognition that today’s employment market is characterized by career mobility, and
traditional pension plan benefits are not portable. Of our named executive officers, only Robert Hanson has
adequate years of service to be eligible for future benefits under the frozen U.S. defined benefit pension plan.

Defined contribution plan

The Employee Savings and Investment Plan is a qualified 401(k) defined contribution savings plan that allows
U.S. employees, including executive officers, to save for retirement on a pre-tax basis. The Company matches up to
a certain level of employee contributions. In addition, the Company provides a profit-sharing contribution we
exceed our internal annual business plan goals. This enables employees to share in the Company’s success when we
outperform our goal, Retirement savings programs are common in the peer group.

Deferred compensation plan

The Deferred Compensation Plan for Executives and Outside Directors is a nonqualified, unfunded tax
effective savings plan provided to the named executive officers, among other executives and the directors, as part of
competitive compensation. This type of plan is also common ameng the peer group.

Perquisites

LS&CO. believes perquisites are an element of competitive total rewards. The Company is selective in its use
of perquisites, the value of which is modest. The primary perquisites provided to the named executive officers are in
the form of a flexible allowance to cover expenses such as auto, financial. tax planning and legal assistance and
excess medical costs.

Tax and Accounting Considerations

We have structured our compensation program to comply with Internal Revenue Code Section 409A. Because
our common stock is nol registered on any exchange, we are not subject Lo the potential impact of Section 162(m) of
the Internal Revenue Code.

Severance and Change in Control Benefits

The Executive Severance Plan that was effective for fiscal 2007 is an unfunded plan for our U.S. executive
employees. The purpose of the plan is to recognize past service of executives who are involuntarily terminated. If
employment is involuntarily terminated by the Company due to reduction in force, layoft or position elimination, or
the Company determines that an executive’s services are no longer required, the executive is eligible for severance
payments and benefits. Severance benefits are not payable upon a change in control if the executive is still employed
by or offered a comparable position with the surviving entity.

The SELTIP provides for accelerated vesting of all unvested awards if an executive’s employment is
terminated within twelve months following a change in control. This accelerated vesting structure was designed
to encourage the surviving company to retain the executives following a change in control. All SELTIP awards are
currently fully vested.

Under the 2006 EIP, in the event of a change in control in which the surviving corporation does not assume or
continue the outstanding SARs program or substitute similar awards for such owtstanding SARs, the vesting
schedule of all SARs held by executives that are still employed upon the change in control will be accelerated in full
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to a date prior to the effective date of the transaction as the Board determines. This accelerated vesting structure is
designed to encourage the executives to remain employed with the Company through the date of the change in
control and to ensure that the equity incentives awarded to the executives are not eliminated by the surviving
company.

Please see the section below entitled “Potential Payments upon Termination or Change in Control™ for detailed
information about the scope of severance benefits available to the named executive officers under these plans.

Compensation Committee Report

The Human Resources Committee has reviewed and discussed the Compensation Discussion and Analysis
with management. Based on the review and discussion, the Commitiee recommends to the Board of Directors that
the Compensation Discussion and Analysis be included in the Company’s annual report on Form 10-K for the fiscal
year ended November 25, 2007,

The Human Resources Committee

T. Gary Rogers

Peter E. Haas Ir.

E. Warren Hellman
Vanessa Castagna
Patricia Pineda (Chair)
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Summary Compensation Data

The following table provides compensation information for our chief executive officer. our chief financial

officer and the other three executive officers who were our most highly compensated officers and who were serving
as executive officers as of the last day of the fiscal year.

Change in
Pension Value
and Nonqualified

Deferred |
Name and Principal Option Compensation All Other
Position Year Salary Bonus Awards Earnings Compensation Total
% 5 $ %) % ()
@) (b) (©) @ (e)'” (G @ {h)
John Anderson 2007 | 1,250.000 | 1.031.250 | 2.298.664 36,341 1.531,981 | 6,148,236

President and Chief
Executive Officer

Hans Ploos van Amstel | 2007 547,769 316,536 632,141 — 193,952 1,690,398

Senior Vice
President and Chief
Financial Officer

Armin Broger 2007 812,556 | 1,612,828 218,011 — 224,293 | 2,867,688

Senior Vice
President and
President Levi
Strauss Europe

Robert Hanson 2007 | 700,769 | 400,776 | 635,597 — 128,595 | 1,865,737

Senior Vice
President and
President Levi
Strauss North
America

John Goodman 2007 | 596,154 159,184 | 411,225 — 21,523 | 1,188,086

President and
General Manager.
Dockers® Brand
United States

(1

2

3

)

—

~—

The amounts in column (d) reflect the AIP awards made to the named executive officers.

For My, Broger. the amount in column {d) reflects an AIP payment of $808,398, which is based on an AIP target of 100% for 2007, prorated
for the number of months Mr. Broger was employed during the fiscal year, and a sign-on bonus of $804,430, each per his employment
contrict. Mr, Broger is paid in euros. For purposes of the table, these amounts were converted into U.S. dollars using an exchange rate of
1.4626. which is the average exchange rate for the last month of the fiscal year.

The amounts in column (e) reflect the dollar amount recognized for financial statement reporting purposes for the fiscal year ended
November 25, 2007, in accordance with FAS 123(R). Thus, they include amounts from awards granted under the EIP and the SELTIP in and
prior 1o 2007. Assumptions used in the calculation of this amount for the fiscal year ended November 25, 2007, are included in Notes 1 and
14 of the audited conselidated financial statements included elsewhere in this report.

For Mr. Anderson, the amount in column (f) reflects the change in his Australian pension benefits value from February 28, 2007, o
November 30, 2007.

Mr. Broger was hired in February 2007 and therefore, only began participating in the Netherlands Pension Plan in 2007. No change in the
pension benefits value of this plan will be reflected until 2008.

Mr. Hanson is the only named executive officer that participates in the Home Office Pension Plan (“HOPP"). However, because the value of
the HOPP declined from the 2006 pension plan measurement date to the 2007 pension plan measurement date, no positive change in pension
value is reported. The decline was due to an increase in the General Agreement on Tariffs and Trade rate used in the calculation to determine
the present vaiue of his benefits.
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(4} For Mr. Anderson. the amount in column (g) reflects a payment of $227.516 associated with general expenses under the global assignment
program described below. The amount also reflects $1.077.573 in tax protection benefits under the global assignment program for 2006
incentive award payments and a distribution from Mr. Anderson’s Australian deferred compensation plan made at the end of 2006. Also
reflected is a payment of $101,436 associated with his U.S. relocation. a company 401(k) match of $16.500, a 401{k} excess plan match of
$73.644, un executive allowance of $31.885 and home security services coverage. For purposes of the table, the global assignment payments,
which were paid in Singapore dollars, are converted inte U.S. dollars using the exchange rate of 0.691. which is the average exchange rate for
the last month of the year.

For Mr. Ploos van Amstel, the amount in column (g} reflects residual relocation benefits of $29,033 from his 2005 move from Europe to the
United Sunes. The amount also reflects u payment of $57,773 as a home leave subsidy, a company 401(k) match of $16,500, a 401(k) excess
match of $62,083, an executive allowance of $18,206 and a life insurance premivm payment of $10.357.

For Mr. Broger, the total amount reflected in column (g) is based on items provided under his employment contract. The amount reflects
$13.929 for wax administration and legal fees. $36.737 as a housing allowance, $35,594 {or children’s schooling, a car provided for
Mr. Broger’s use valued a1 $26.730 and health insurance coverage. We agreed 1o pay 12% of Mr. Broger's gross base salary for pension
purposes. Part of that amount has been contributed to the Dutch retirement savings plan and the remaining portion will be paid directly to
Mr. Broger in cash so he may purchase individual pension insurance. A petition to modify the Dutch retirement savings plan has been
recently submitted to the Dutch pension authorities. Once they make a determination, we will calculate the amount of the 12% that will be
paid directly to Mr. Broger in cash. We also provide a tax protection benefit based on his Netherlands tax rate. However, the benefit amount
for 2007 will not be [inalized until the Belgian tax authorities approve Mr, Broges's tax return al the end of 2008,

For Mr. Hanson, the amount in column (g) reflects a company 401(k) match of $16,500, a 401{k) excess match of $85.139 and an executive
allowance of $26,956.

For Mr. Goodman, the amount in column {g) reflects an executive allowance of $18,206 and an excess 401(k) match.

OTHER MATTERS
Employment Contracts

Mr. Anderson.  We have an employment arrangement with Mr. Anderson effective November 27, 2006. The
arrangement provides for a minimum base salary of $1,250,000. His base salary may be adjusted by annual merit
increases. Mr. Anderson is also eligible to participate in our AIP at a target participation rate of 1 10% of base salary.

Mr. Anderson receives certain other benefits under the terms of the arrangement. They include benefits to
assist with the relocation of Mr. Anderson and his family from Singapore to San Francisco, California as follows: a
_one-time irrevocable gross payment of $5,800,000, of which $3.800,000 was paid in November 2006 and

$1,000.000 will be paid in each of January 2008 and January 2009, so leng as he remains actively employed
at the time of each payment; availability of a company-paid apartment and automobile while his family remained in
Singapore; temporary housing in San Francisco upon his arrival and application of his Australian hypothetical tax
rate on his 2006 Annual Incentive Plan and final 2006 Management Incentive Plan payments. Mr. Anderson also
receives healthcare, life insurance, long-term savings program and relocation program benefits, as well as benefits
under our various executive perquisite programs with an annual value of less than $30,000. The portions of these
benefits that were paid in 2007 are reflected in Summary Compensation Table.

In addition to the foregoing arrangements, Mr. Anderson was considered a global assignee during the period
that he was employed with us in Singapore in 2006. Our approach for global assignee employees is to ensure that
individuals working abroad are compensated as they would be if they were based in their home country, in this case
Australia, by offsetting expenses related to a global assignment. This approach covers all areas that are affected by
the assignment, including salary, cost of living, taxes, housing, benefits, savings, schooling and other miscellaneous
expenses. Although Mr. Anderson was no longer formally considered a global assignee upon his assuming the
President and Chief Executive Officer role at the beginning of 2007, his family’s relocation from Singapore to the
United States transitioned through the middle of 2007. Therefore. certain global assignee benefits were provided to
Mr. Anderson during 2007 as he continued through that transition.

Mr. Anderson’s employment is at-will, and may be terminated by us or by Mr. Anderson at any time,
Mr. Anderson does not receive any separate compensation for his services as a member of our board of directors.

Mr. Ploos van Amstel.  We have an employment arrangement with Mr. Ploos van Amstel effective March 3,
2005. Under the arrangement, Mr. Ploos van Amstel was offered an annual base salary of $300,000 (which has
subsequently been adjusted by an annual merit increase), and is eligible to participate in our AIP at a target
participation rate of 65% of base salury. The arrangement entitled him to a SELTIP grant with a target value of

118




$700,000. In addition, Mr. Ploos van Amstel received an initial bonus of $300.000 net of taxes, which equated to a
$524,302 gross payment,

Under his arrangement, Mr. Ploos van Amstel is entitled to specified fringe benefits. including healthcare
benefits, reimbursement of expenses associated with the relocation of his household from Belgium to San Francisco,
California, five years of home leave subsidy and benefits under the various executive perquisite programs available
to similarly ranked executives. The portions of these benefits that were paid in 2007 are reflected in the Summary
Compensation Table.

Mr. Ploos van Amste!’s employment is at-will, and may be terminated by us or by Mr. Ploos van Amstel at any
time.

Mr. Broger. We entered into an employment contract with Mr. Broger, effective February 26, 2007,
Mr. Broger is a resident of the Netherlands, whose employment is based in Brussels. Our employment contract
with Mr. Broger was structured in a manner consistent with European employment practices for senior executives.
Therefore, Mr. Broger’s compensation and benefits are different from our U.S.-based named executive officers.
Under the terms of his employment agreement, Mr. Broger was offered a base salary at an annual rate of
EUR 725,000, which may be adjusted by an annual merit increase. Mr. Broger is eligible to participate in our AIP at
a target participation rate of 65% of base salary, except that in 2007 only, he has a target participation rate of 100%
of his base salary, Mr, Broger received a one-time sign-on bonus of EUR 550,000 net, and ongoing pension benefits,
subsidies for housing and his children’s education. life insurance and car usage benefits and certain de minimus
perquisites. His agreement also provided for a SELTIP grant with a target value of $1.500,000. However, the
SELTIP program was replaced by the EIP under which Mr. Broger received a SAR grant. We have also agreed to
provide Mr. Broger tax protection, similar to our global assignment practices described above. Should he experience
a tax burden in excess of the tax burden that he would have experienced had he been working 100% of his time in the
Netherlands, the Company will pay the excess amount. The portions of these benefits that were paid in 2007 are
reflected in Summary Compensation Table.

In the case of termination, for reasons other than cause, we will provide Mr. Broger with eight months’ notice
in addition to a lump sum payment of two times his annual base salary and two times his AIP target amount at the
time of termination. In addition, in exchange for a six month non-compete restriction, we will pay a one-time
payment of s1x months’ salary.

Mr. Broger’s employment is at-will, and may be terminated by us or by Mr. Broger at any time.

Mr. Goodman.  We have an employment arrangement with Mr, Goodman effective June 1, 2005. Under the
arrangement, Mr. Goodman was offered a base salary at an annual rate of $550,000, which may be adjusted by an
annual merit increase. Under the arrangement, Mr. Goodman is eligible to participate in our AIP at a target
participation rate of 63% of base salary. The arrangement also provided for a 2005 SELTIP grant with a target value
of $1,400.000. In 2006, Mr. Goodman was to receive an additional SELTIP grant with a target value of $700,000.
However, the SELTIP program was replaced by the EIP under which Mr. Goodman received a 2006 SAR grant. In
addition, Mr. Goodman received a sign-on bonus of $750,000. He is also eligible to participate in the normal
benefits program available to all U.S. executives. The portions of these benefits that were paid in 2007 are reflected
in Summary Compensation Table.

Mr. Goodman’s employment is at-will, and may be terminated by us or by Mr. Goodman at any time.
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2007 Grants of Plan-Based Awards

The following table provides information on stock appreciation rights granted under the EIP in 2007 to each of
the Company’s named executive officers.

Al Other
Option
Awards:
Number of Exercise or
Securities Base Price Full Grant
Grant Underlying of Gption Date Fair
Name ) Date Options Awards Value
# ($/5h) 8
(s) (b) 0" (d)? ()
John Anderson 8/1/2007 124,455 68.00 3,522,077
Hans Ploos van Amstel 8/1/2007 31,114 68.00 880.526
Armin Broger 2/26/2007 54,368 53.25 949,265
8/1/2007 16,971 68.00 480,279
Robert Hanson 8/1/2007 31,114 68.00 880,526
John Goodman 8/1/2007 16,603 68.00 469.865

(1) Column {c) reflects SARs that were granted in 2007 under the EIP. Mr., Broger’s February 26, 2007, SAR grant was based on his employment
contract,

(2) The exercise price in column (d) is based on the fair market value of the Company's common stock as of the grant date established by the
Evercore valuation process. ’

(3) Generally, the full gram date fair value in column {e) is the amount that the Company would expect to expense on the grant date and in its
financial statements over the award’s vesting schedule. Assumptions used in the calculation of these amounts for the fiscal year ended
November 25, 2007, are included in Note 14 of the audited consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this report.
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Outstanding Equity Awards at 2007 Fiscal Year-End

The following table provides information on the current unexercised and unvested SAR holdings by the
Company’s named executive officers as of November 25, 2007, The vesting schedule for each grant are shown

following this table.

Option Awards
Number of Number of
Securities Securities
Underlying Underlying Option Option
Unexercised Unexercised Exercise Expiration
Name Options Options Price Date
(#) ) $)
Exercisable Unexercisable
() (" " @™ te)
John Anderson 16,667 — 54.00 —
— 462,696 42.00 12/31/2012
— 124.455 68.00 8/1/2017
Hans Ploos van Amstel 11,667 — 54.00 —
—_ 127,242 42.00 12/31/2012
— 31,114 68.00 81/2017
Armin Broger — 54,368 53.25 2/26/2013
— 16,971 68.00 B8/1/2017
Robert Hanson 15,000 — 54 .00 —
— 127,242 42.00 12/31/2012
— 31,114 68.00 8/1/2017
John Goodman 23,334 — 54.00 —
— 80.972 42,00 12/31/2012
o 16,603 68.00 /172017

(1) Reflects the SELTIP plan. This grant vested as of November 25, 2007, and the sole payout under the plan will be made by the end of

February, 2008,
(2) SAR Vesting Schedule
Grant Daie Vesting Schedule
7/13/2006 1/24™ monthly vesting beginning 1/1/08
2/26/2007 1/24™ monthly vesting beginning 2/26/09
84172007 25% vested on 7/31/08; monthly vesting over remaining 36 months

The named executive officers may only exercise vested SARs during certain times of the year under the terms of the EIP.

(3) The exercise prices in column (d} reftect the fair market value of the Company’s common stock as of the grant date as established by the
Evercore valuation process. Upon the vesting and exercise of a SAR, the recipient will receive a voting trust certificate representing shares of
common stock in an amount equal to the product of (i) the excess of the per share fair market value of the Company's common stock on the
date of exercise over the exercise price, multiplied by (ii) the number of shares of common stock with respect to which the SAR is exercised.
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EXECUTIVE RETIREMENT PLANS

Number of Present Value of
Years Credited Accumulated Payments
Service as of Benefits as of During Last
Name Plan Name 112572007 11/25/2007 Fiscal Year
(#) ($) ($)
(a) (b) (e} (d) (e)
John Anderson" Australia Statf Superannuation Plan — 1,121,390 —
Armin Broger'” Netherlands Retirement Plan — 10,968 —
U.S. Home Office Pension Plan
Robert Hanson (qualified plan) 16.8 225,617 —
U.S. Supplemental Benefit Restoration
Plan (non-qualified plan) 16.8 573,414 _—
TOTAL 799,031

(1) Mr. Anderson’s benefits under this plan are in Australian dollars. For purposes of the table, these amounts were cenverted inte U.S. dollars
using an exchange rate of 0,904, which is the average exchange rate for the last menth of the fiscal year.

(2) Mr. Broger's benefits under this pian are in Euros. For purposes of the table. these amounts were converted into U.S. dollars using an
exchange rate of 1.4626, which is the average exchange rate for the last month of the fiscal year.

John Anderson

Prior to assuming his role as President of our Asia Pacific division, Mr. Anderson participated in the Levi
Strauss Australia Staff Superannuation Plan that applied to all employees in Australia. This is a defined benefit fund
where retirement benefits are defined in terms of the highest average salary of any three consecutive years within a
ten year period during the employee’s active participation in the plan. Participants are required to contribute 3% of
base salary and may elect to make additional contributions to increase their benefit. Mr. Anderscon ceased to be an
active participant in that plan in 1998, and is accruing no further benefits under the plan. His benefits under the plan
are account-based and not related to his salary. Part of his benefit continues to vest over time. Full vesting of his
benefit is achieved at age 60. The benefit is fully funded and no further contributions are expected to be required
from us.

Armin Broger

Mr. Broger began participating in the Levi Strauss Netherlands Pension Plan (“Dutch Pension Plan™) in 2007.
The Dutch Pension Plan is a defined benefit plan. Funding of the plan is based on a maximum annual base salary of
€60,905 (approximately $89,080). Normal retirement is age 65 under the plan. Benefits are computed on the basis
of a surviving spouse annuity. Per Mr. Broger’s employment contract, we agreed to pay 12% of his gross base salary
for pension purposes. Part of that amount is contributed to the Dutch Pension Plan and the remaining portion is paid
directly to Mr. Broger so he may purchase individual pension insurance. A petition to increase the Dutch Pension
Plan’s maximum salary of €60,905 used for funding purposes has been recently submitted to the Dutch pension
authorities. If they approve the petition, we will recalculate the portion of the 12% that will be contributed to the
Dutch Pension Plan and determine the amount that will be paid to Mr. Broger directly in cash.

Robert Hanson

Effective November 28, 2004, we froze our U.S. pension plan for all salaried employees. Of our named
executive officers, only Robert Hanson has adequate years of service to be eligible for benefits under the frozen
defined benefit pension plan. The normal retirement age is 65 with five years of service; early retirement age is 55
with 15 years of service, Mr. Hanson is not eligible for early retirement at this time. If Mr. Hanson elects to receive
his benefits before normal retirement age, the accrued benefit is reduced by an applicable factor based on the
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number of years before normal retirement. Benefits are 100% vested after five years of service, measured from the
date of hire.

There are two components to this pension plan. the Home Office Pension Plan (*“HOPP”), an IRS qualified
defined benefit plan, which has specific compensation limits and rules under which it operates, and the Supple-
mental Benefits Restoration Plan (“SBRP”). a non-qualified defined benefit plan, that provides benefits in excess of
the IRS limit.

The benefit formula under the HOPP is the following:

a) 2% of final average compensation (as defined below) multiplied by the participant’s years of benefit
service (not in excess of 25 years), less

b) 2% of Social Security benefit multiplied by the participant’s years of benefit service (not in excess of
235 years), plus ’

¢} 0.25% of final average compensation multiplied by the participant’s years of benefit service earned
after completing 25 years of service.

Final average compensation is defined as the average compensation (comprised of base salary, commissions,
bonuses, incentive compensation and overtime earned for the fiscal year) over the five consecutive plan years
producing the highest average out of the ten consecutive plan years immediately preceding the earlier of the
participant’s retirement date or lermination date.

The benefit formula under the SBRP is the excess of {a) over (b):

a) Accrued benefit as described above for the gualified pension plan determined using non-qualified
compensation and removing the application of maximum annuity amounts payable from qualified
plans under Internal Revenue Code Section 415(b});

b} Actual accrued benefit from the qualified pension plan,
The valuation method and assumptions are as follows:

a) The values presented in the Pension Benefits table are based on certain actuarial assumptions as of
November 25, 2007, and November 26, 2006, for purposes of SFAS 87.

b) The discount rate and post-retirement mortality utilized are based on information presented in the
pension footnotes. No assumptions are included for early retirement, termination, death or disability
prior o normal retirement at age 65.

¢) Present values incorporate the normal form of payment of life annuity for single participants and 30%
joint and survivor for married participants.

Non-Qualified Deferred Compensation

The Deferred Compensation Plan for Executives and Qutside Directors (“Deferred Compensation Plan™) is a
nongualified, unfunded tux effective savings plan provided to the named executive officers, among other executives
and the directors, as part of competitive compensation,

Participants may elect to defer all or a portion of their base salary and AIP payment and may elect an in-service
and/or retirement distribution. Executive officers who defer salary or bonus under this plan are credited with
market-based returns depending upon the investment choice made by the executive applicable to each deferral. The
investment options under the plan, which closely mirror the options provided under our qualified 401(k} plan,
include a number of mutual funds with varying risk and return profiles. Participants may change their investment
choices as frequently as they desire. consistent with our 401(k) plan.

In addition, under the Deferred Compensation Plan, the Company provides a match on all deferruls, up to 10%
of eligible compensation that cannot be provided under the gualified 401(k) plan due to IRS qualified plan
compensation limits. The amounts in the table reflect non-qualified contributions over the 401(k) limit by the
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executive officers and the resulting Company match. None of the executive officers made additional salary or bonus

deferral elections.

The table below reflects the Company contributions to the Deferred Compensation Plan, as well as the

earnings under the plan during 2007.

Executive Registrant Aggregate Aggregate
Contributions Contributions Earnings in Balance at
Name in Last FY in Last FY Last FY Last FYE
%) %) $) $®
(a) {b) (o {d) (0
John Anderson 98,192 73,644 (255) 171,582
— — — 4,048,719%
Hans Pioos van Amstel 82,777 62,083 10,957 368.646
Robert Hanson® 113,518 85,139 42,894 785,811
John Goodman 3,538 3,317 15,432 187,385

(1) These amounts reflect the 401(k) excess match contributions made by the Company and are reflected in the Summary Compensation Table
under column {g) All Other Compensation.

(2

—

While Mr. Anderson was the President of our Asia Pacific division, he participated in a Supplemental Executive Incentive Plan which was an
unfunded plan where the Company contributed 20% of his base salary and annual bonus each year. The plan was frozen as of November 26,
2006, when he assumed the role of CEO and no further contributions were made. Upon Mr. Anderson’s termination, not for cause, he will be
paid out the balance of his accrued benefits in a lump sum. Mr, Anderson’s benefits under this plan are in Australian dollars. For purposes of
the table, these amounts were converted into U.S. dollars using an exchange rate of 0.904, which is the average exchange rate for the last
month of the fiscal year.

3

—

Amounts for Mr. Hanson under coluntn {f} Aggregate Balance at Last FYE also reflect $26,187 in accrued benetits under the Excess Benefits
Restoration Plan which was frozen in 1990,

POTENTIAL PAYMENTS UPON TERMINATION OR CHANGE IN CONTROL

The named executive officers are eligible to receive certain benefits and payments upon their separation from
the Company under certain circumstances under the terms of the Executive Severance Plan, the SELTIP and the EIP.
In addition, Mr. Broger is entitled to certain additional payments upon separation under the terms of his employment
agreement as described above.

In 2007, the Company’s 1.5. severance arrangements offered named executive officers with basic severance of
two weeks of base salary and enhanced severance of 104 weeks of base salary plus their AIP target amount, if their
employment ceases due a reduction in force, layoff or position elimination or the Company’s determination that the
executive's services are no longer required. The Company would also cover the cost of the COBRA health coverage
premium for up to 18 months, at the same percentage premium sharing effective during the executive’s employ-
ment, in addition to providing life insurance, career counseling and transition services. These severance benefits
would not be payable upon a change in control if the executive is still employed or offered a comparable position
with the surviving entity.

Under the EIP, in the event of a change in contro} in which the surviving corporation does not assume or
continue the cutstanding SARs or substitute similar awards for the outstanding SARs, the vesting schedule of all
SARs held by executives that are still employed will be accelerated in full to a date prior to the effective time of the
transaction as the Board shall determine. The SARs will terminate if not exercised at or prior to the effective time of
the transaction. and any reacquisition or repurchase rights held by the Company with respect to such SARs shali
lapse.
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The information in the tables below reflect the estimated value of the compensation to be paid by the Company
to each of the named executive officers in the event of termination or a change in control under the Executive
Severance Plan and the EIP, SEL.TIP payments fully vested on November 25, 2007. and therefore, are not reflected
in the tables. For details of the arrangements with Armin Broger under his employment agreement. please see the
relevant table below. The amounts shown below assume that termination or change in control was effective as of
November 25, 2007, and a share price of $50.00 for the SAR grants, which is based on the Evercore share valuation.
The actual amounts that would be paid can only be determined at the time of the actual termination event,

John Anderson

Involuntary
Executive Benefits and Voluntary Not for Fer Cause Change of
Payments Upon Termination Termination Retirement Cause ‘Termination Control
($) ($) ($) %) ($)

Compensation:

Severance!" — — | 5,298,077 — —

Stock Appreciation Rights™ — — — — | 3.701,568
Benefits:

COBRA & Life Insurance — — 4,908 — _
Supplemental Executive

Incentive Plan: ¥ 4,048.719 | 4.048,719 | 4,048.719 — | 4,048.719

{1) Based on Mr. Anderson’s annual base salary of $1.250,000 and his AIP target of 110% of his base salary.

(2) Accelerated vesting of all outstanding SARs. However, the $50.00 share price is lower than the strike price for 124.455 SARs so no
accelerated vatue is reflected for those outstanding awards.

(3) Reflects 18 months of COBRA and life insurance premium at the same Company / employee percentage sharing as during employment.

(4) Reflects a lump sum payment under the Supplemental Executive Incentive Plan. While Mr. Anderson was the President of our Asia Pacific
diviston, he participated in a Supplemental Executive Incentive Plan which was an enfunded plan where the Company contributed 20 of
his base salary and annual bonus each year. His participation in the plan was frozen as of November 26, 2006, when he assumed the role of

CEOQ.

Hans Ploos van Amstel

Imoluntary

Executive Benefits and Voluntary Not for For Cause Change of
Payments Upon Termination Termination Retirement Cause Termination Control
) $ (&3] % #®

Compensation:

Severance!" _ — | 1.836,154 — —

Stock Appreciation Rights™® — — — — | 1,017,936
Benefits:

COBRA & Life Insurance — — 5914 — —

(1) Based on Mr. Ploos van Amstel’s annual base salary of $550.000 and his AIP target of 65% of his base salary.

(2y Accelerated vesting of all outstanding SARs. However, the $50.00 share price is lower than the strike price for 31,114 SARs s0 no

accelerated value is reflected for those outstanding awards,

(3} Reflects 18 months of COBRA and life insurance premium at the same Company / employee percentage sharing as during employment.
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Armin Broger

Envoluntary
Executive Benefits and Voluntary Not for For Cause Change of
Payments Upon Termination Termination Retirement Cause ‘Termination Control
%) %) (3) $) $
Compensation''”;
Severance™ — — | 5.478.656 — —

Stock Appreciation Rights”

(1} These payments do not reflect any tax protection benefit since that amount is determined only after review and approval of the individual’s

1ax retorn by the Belgian tax authorities during the calendar year following the applicable compensation year.

{2} Based on two times the sum of Mr. Broger's base salary plus AIP target of 100%, eight months’ notice pay and six menths’ pay for 4 non-

compete considernation (based on base salary only).

(3) Accelerated vesting of all outstanding SARs. However, the $50.00 share price is lower than the strike price for all of Mr. Broger's SAR

awards, so no accelerated value is reflected for any outstanding award.

Robert Hanson

Involuntary
Executive Benefits and Voluntary Not for For Cause Change of
Payments Upon Termination Termination | Retirement Cause Termination Control
% $) $) $) $

Compensation:

Severance'! — — | 2,406,923 — —

Stock Appreciation Rights'? — — — — | 1,017.936
Benefits:

COBRA & Life Insurance'® — — 4,325 — —

(1) Based on Mr. Hanson's annual base salary of $700,000 and his AIP target ol 70% of his base salary.

(2) Accelerated vesting of all outstanding SARs. However, the $50.00 share price is lower than the strike price for 31,114 SARs s0 no

accelerated value is reflected for those outstanding awards.

(3) Reflects 18 months of COBRA and life insurance premium at the same Company / employee percentage sharing as during empleyment,

John Goodman

Involuntary
Executive Benefits and Yoluntary Not for For Cause Change of
Payments Upon Termination Termination Retirement Cause . Termination Control
$ $) $ % (%)

Compensation:

Severance'" — — | 2,003,077 — —

Stock Appreciation Rights'? — — - — | 647,776
Benefits:

COBRA & Life Insurance'” — — 5914 — —

(1) Based on Mr. Goodman’s annual base salary of $600,000 and his ALP target of 65% of his base salary.

(2} Accelerated vesting of all outstanding SARs. However, the $50.00 share price is lower than the strike price for 16,603 SARs so no

accelerated value is reflected for those outstanding awards.

(3) Reflects 18 months of COBRA and life insurance premium at the same Company / empluyee percentage sharing as during employment,
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DIRECTOR COMPENSATION

The following table provides compensation information for our directors in fiscal 2007 who were not
employees:

Fees
Earned or
Paid in Stock Option All Other

Name Cash Awards Awards Compensation Total

%) %) $) ($) (%)

(a) (b} (O (d)" (e) U]

Robert D. Haas® 256,000 — — 31,415 287,415
Vanessa J. Castagna® 9,500 — — — 9,500
Peter A. Georgescu 70,000 30,799 778 — 101,577
Peter E. Haas, Jr. 58,000 | 30,799 778 — 89,577
F. Warren Hellman 59,000 | 30,799 778 — 90,577
Patricia A. House” 82,000 | 30,799 | 778 — 113.577
Leon J. Level 80,000 | 30,799 778 — 111,577
Stephen C. Neal™ 9.500 — — — 9.500
Patricia Salas Pineda 59,000 | 30,799 778 — 90,577
T. Gary Rogers 64,000 | 30,799 778 — 95,577

(1) The amounts in columns {c) and (d) reflect the dollar amount recognized for financial statement reporting purposes for the fiscal year ended
November 25, 2007, in accordance with FAS 123(R). Columns (¢) and (d) include amounts from RSUs granted under the BIP and awards
gramted under the SELTIP, respectively. in and prior to 2007, Assumptions used in the calculation of this amount for the fiscal year ended
November 25, 2007, are included in Notes 1 and 14 of the audited consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this report.

(2) Mr. Haas received for his services as Chairman an annual retainer fee of $250.000, meeting fees, a leased car at a value of $29,410, home
security system coverage and the use of an office and services of an assistant. He did not receive a restricted stock unit (*RSU™) grant.

(3) Vanessa J. Castagna joined the Board in October 2007.

(4) Patricia House retired from the Board effective at the end of the fiscal year.

(5) Stephen C. Neal joined the Board in October 2007,

Non-employee directors, other than Robert D. Haas, received compensation in 2007 consisting of an annual
retainer fee of $45,000, meeting fees and, if applicable, committee chairperson retainer fees ($20,000 for the Audit
Committee and the Human Resources Committee, and $10,000 for the Finance Committee and the Nominating and
Governance Committee}. They also received equity awards in the form of 1,472 restricted stock units each.

RSUs are units, representing beneficial ownership interests, corresponding in number and value to a specified
number of underlying shares of stock. Currently, RSUs have only been granted to our Board members. The RSUs
vest in three equal installments after thirteen, twenty-four and thirty-six months following the grant date. The 2007
RSU grant included a deferral delivery feature, by which the recipient of the RSU will not receive the vested awards
until six months following the cessation of the director’s service on the Board. After the recipient of the RSU has
held the shares for six months, he or she may require the Company to repurchase, or the Company may require the
participant to sell to the Company, those shares of common stock. If the director’s service terminates for reason
other than cause after the first, but prior to full vesting, then any unvested portion of the award will fully vest as of
the date of such termination. The value of the RSUs is tracked against the Company’s share prices, established by
the Evercore valuation process,

In 2007, the Board approved stock ownership guidelines for our non-employee Board members consistent with
governance practices of similarly-situated companies. The ownership target is $300,000 worth of equity ownership,
to be achieved within five years. Therefore, RSUs were granted under the EIP, rather than other available forms of
equity compensation, in order to provide the directors with immediate stock ownership to facilitate achievement of
the ownership guidelines.
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Directors are covered under travel accident insurance while on Company business, as are all employees, and
the non-employee directors are eligible to participate in the provisions of the Deferred Compensation Plan for
Executives and Outside Directors that apply to directors. In 2007. none of the directors participated in this Deferred
Compensation Plan.

Effective February 8, 2008, Mr. Haas resigned his position as Chairman. He will continue to serve as a director.
with the designation of Chairman Emeritus of the Board, for a term of ten years. As such, we will provide Mr. Haas a
leased car with driver, home security services and an office and related administrative and technical support. In
addition, Mr. Haas will receive the same compensation as all other non-employee directors.

Effective upon Mr, Haas’ resignation, T. Gary Rogers was appointed as the new Chairman of the Board.

Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participaticn

The Human Resources Committee serves as the compensation committee of our board of directors. Its
members are Ms. Pineda (Chair), Ms. Castagna, Mr. P.E. Haas, Jr., Mr. Hellman and Mr. Rogers. Ms. Castagna
became a member in October 2007, In 2007, no member of the Human Resources Committee was a current officer
or employee, or former officer, of ours. In addition, there are no compensation committee interlocks between us and
other entities involving our executive officers and our Board members who serve as executive officers of those other
enfities,

Ms. Castagna, a director since October 2007, is a former employee of Mervyns LLC, a position she left in
February 2007. The Company had net sales to Mervyns LLC in the amount of approximately $144 million from the
beginning of fiscal 2006 through the first quarter of 2007, after which Ms. Castagna was no longer an employee of
Mervyns LLC.

Mr. Neal, a director since October 2007, was chief executive officer and chairman of the law firm Cooley
Godward Kronish LLLP. Mr. Neal stepped down as chief executive officer effective January 1, 2008, but has retained
his role as Chairman of the firm. Cooley Godward Kronish provided legal services to us and to the Human
Resources Committee of our board of directors in 2007, for which we paid fees of approximately $195,000.
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Item 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND
RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

All shares of our common stock are deposited in a voting trust, a legal arrangement that transfers the voting
power of the shares to a trustee or group of trustees. The four voting trustees are Miriam L. Haas, Peter E. Haas, Ir.,
Robert D. Haas and F. Warren Hellman. The voting trustees have the exclusive ability to elect and remove directors,
amend our by-laws and take certain other actions which would normally be within the power of stockholders of a
Delaware corporation. Our equity holders who, as a result of the voting trust, legally hold “voting trust certificates,”
ot stock, retain the right 10 direct the trustees on specified mergers and business combinations, liquidations, sales of
substantially all of our assets and specified amendments to our certificate of incorporation,

The voting trust will last until April 2011, unless the trustees unanimously decide, or holders of at least two-
thirds of the outstanding voting trust certificates decide, to terminate it earlier. [f Robert D. Haas ceases to be a
trustee for any reason, then the question of whether to continue the voting trust will be decided by the holders. The
existing trustees will select the successors to the other trustees. The agreement among the stockholders and the
trustees creating the voting trust contemplates that, in selecting successor trustees, the trustees will attempt to select
individuals who share a common vision with the sponsors of the 1996 transaction that gave rise to the voting trust,
represent and reflect the financial and other interests of the equity holders and bring a balance of perspectives to the
trustee group as a whole. A trustee may be removed if the other three trustees unanimously vote for removal or if
holders of at least two-thirds of the outstanding voting trust certificates vote for removal.

The foliowing table contains information abour the beneficial ownership of our voting trust certificates as of
February I, 2008, by:

« Each of our directors and each of our named executive officers;
+ Each person known by us to own beneficially more than 5% of our voting trust certificates; and
* All of our directors and officers as a group.

Under the rules of the SEC, a person is deemed to be a “beneficial owner” of a security if that person has or
shares “voting power,” which includes the power to vote or to direct the voting of the security, or *investment
power,” which includes the power to dispose of or to direct the disposition of the security. Under these rules, more
than one person may be deemed a beneficial owner of the same securities and a person may be deemed to be a
beneficial owner of securities as to which that person has no economic interest. Except as described in the footnotes
to the table below, the individuals named in the table have sole voting and investment power with respect to all
voting trust certificates beneficially owned by them, subject to community property laws where applicable.

As of February 1, 2008, there were 177 record holders of voling trust certificates. The percentage of beneficial
ownership shown in the table is based on 37,278,238 shares of commaon stock and related voting trust certificates
outstanding as of February 1, 2008. The business address of all persons iisted, including the trustees under the voting
trust, is 1155 Battery Street, San Francisco, California 94111.

129




Percentage of
Number of Voting Voting Trust

Trust Certificates Certificates
Name Beneficially Owned QOutstanding
Peter E. Haas, Jr. . ... oo 9,185,2821 24.64%
Miriam L. Haas ... ...t 6,547,314 17.56%
Robert D, Haas . . ..o vv et e e e 3,953,703% 10.61%
Margaret E. Haas .. ... ... ... ... .. . 3,761.420W 10.09%
Joanne C. Haas. . . .. i 2,921,770 7.84%
F Warren Hellman .. .................................. 717,585 1.92%
Vanessa J. Castagna . ... ... ... . ... ... — —
Peter A. Georgescu. .. ... ... L e — —
LeonJ. Level . . ... .. - —
Stephen C. Neal ... ... . . . o — —
Patricia Salas Pineda . . .. ........ . ... . ... . ... — —
T.Gary Rogers . . ... i e — —
R.John Anderson . . ... .. ... ... ... ... —_ —_
Armin Broger . .. ... e — —
John Goodman ... ... . . . — —
Robert L. Hanson . ...... ... ... . . . . . i i, — —
Hans Ploos van Amstel . .. .. ... .. ... ... .. ... .. .. ..., — —
Directors and executive officers as a group (20 persons). . ....... 13,856,570 37.17%

(1) Includes 2,911,770 voting trust certificates held by the Joanne and Peter Haas Jr. Fund, of which Mr. Haas is president, for the benefit of
charitable entities. Mr. Haas shares voting and investing powers of the Fund with his spouse, Joanne C. Haas. Includes a total of 1.634.624
voting trusi certificates held by trusts, of which Mr. Haas is trustee, for the benefit of his children. Mr. Haas disclaims beneficial ownership of
these voting trust certificates. Includes 2,657,721 voting trust certificates held by partnerships of which Mr. Haas is managing general
partner.

2

—

Includes 20,000 voting trust certificates held by the estate of Peter E. Haas, Sr., for which Ms. Huaas is the executor under the will of Peter E.
Haas, Sr.

)

—

Includes an aggregate of 50.876 voting trust certificates owned by the spouse of Mr, Haas and by a trust, of which Mr, Haas is trustee, for the
benefit of their daughter. Mr. Haas disclaims beneficial ownership of these voting trust centificates. Includes 700,000 voting trust certificates
held by the Walter A. Haas, Jr. QTIP Trust B-1 of which Mr. Haas is wustee. Includes 7.364 voting trust certificates held by the
Walter A. Haas. Jr. QTIP Trust A. of which Mr. Haas is a co-trustee, for the benefit of his mother. Mr. Haas disclaims beneficial ownership of
these voting trust certificates.

(4

~—

Includes 20,197 voting trust certificates held in a custedial account, of which Ms. Haas is custodian, for the benefit of Ms. Haas® son.
Ms. Haas disclaims beneficial ownership of these voting trust certificates. Includes 970,590 voting trust shares held by the Margaret E. Haas
Fund, of which Ms. Haas is president, for the benefit of charitable entities.

(5

—

Encludes 2.911.770 voting trust certificates held by the Joanne and Peter Haas Jr. Fund, of which Mrs, Haas is vice president, treasurer and
secretary. for the benefit of charitable entities. Mrs, Haas shares voting and investing powers of the Fund with her spouse, Peter E. Haas, Jr.

(6) Includes 190.243 voting trust certificates held by a trust, of which Mr. Hellman is co-trustee. for the benefit of the daughter of Robert D.
Haas. Mr. Hellman disclaims beneficial ownership of these voting trust certificates.
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Equity Compensation Ptan Information

The following table sets forth certain information. as of November 25, 2007, with respect to the EIP our only
equity compensation plan. This plan was approved by our shareholders.

Number of SARs
Weighted-Average Remaining Available
Number of Securities to Exercise Price of for Future [ssuance
Number of Be Issued Upon Exercise Qutstanding Under Equity
Outstanding SARs'" of Outstanding SARs®! SARs Compensation Plans"”’
1,167.934 186.869 $42.00 513,131

(1) Inctudes only dilutive SARs.

(2) Represents the number of shares of common stock the dilutive SARs would convert to if exercised November 25, 2007, calculated based on
the conversion formula as defined in the plan and the fair market value of our common stock on that date as determined by an independent
third panty.

(3) Calculated based on the number of SARs autherized upon the adoption of the EIP on July 13, 2006, However, the following shares may
return o the EIP and be available for issuance in connection with a future award: (i} shares covered by an award that expires or otherwise
lerminates without having been exercised in full; (ii) shares that are forfeited or repurchased by us prior to becoming fully vested: (iii) shares
covered by an award that is settled in cash: (iv) shares withheld to cover paymenl of an exercise price or cover applicable tuax withholding
obligations: (v) shares tendered to cover payment of an exercise price; and (vi) shares that are cancelled pursuant to an exchange or repricing
program,

Stockholders’ Agreement

Qur common stock and the veting trust certificates are not publicly held or traded. All shares and the voting
trust certificates are subject to a stockholders’ agreement. The agreement, which expires in April 2016, limits the
transfer of shares and certificates to other holders, family members, specified charities and foundations and to us,
The agreement does not provide for registration rights or other contractual devices for forcing a public sale of
shares, certificates or other access to liquidity. The scheduled expiration date of the stockholders’ agreement is five
years later than that of the voting trust agreement in order to permit an orderly transition from effective control by
the voting trust trustees to direct control by the stockholders,

Item 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR
INDEPENDENCE

Vanessa Castagna, a director since Qctober 2007, was, until February 2007. the executive chairwoman of the
board and an employee of Mervyns LLC. The Company had net sales to Mervyns LLC in the amount of
approximately $24.0 million for the first quarter of 2007, after which Ms. Castagna was no longer an employee of
Mervyns LLC.

Stephen C. Neal, a director since October 2007, was chief executive officer and chairman of the law {irm
Cooley Godward Kronish LLP. Mr. Neal stepped down as chief executive officer effective January 1, 2008, but has
retained his role as Chairman of the firm. Cooley Godward Kronish provided legal services to us and to the Human
Resources Committee of our board of directors in 2007, for which we paid fees of approximately $195,000.

Procedures for Approval of Related Party Transactions

We have a written policy concerning the review and approval of related party transactions. Potential related
party transactions are identified through an internal review process that includes a review of director and officer
questionnaires and a review of any payments made in connection with transactions in which related persons may
have had a direct or indirect material interest. Any business transactions or commercial relationships between the
Company and any director, stockholder, or any of their immediate family members, are reviewed by the Nominating
and Governance Committee of the Board of Directors and must be approved by at least a majority of the
disinterested members of the Board. Business transactions or commercial relationships between the Company and
named executive officers who are not directors or any of their immediate family members requires approval of the
chief executive officer with reporting to the Audit Committee.
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Director Independence

Although our shares are not registered on a national securities exchange, we review and take into consideration
the director independence criteria required by both the New York Stock Exchange and the Nasdaq Stock Market in
determining the independence of our directors. In addition, the charters of our Audit, Human Resources and
Nominating and Governance Committees prohibit members from having any relationship that would interfere with
the exercise of their independence from management and the Company. The fact that a Board member may own
stock or voting trust certificates representing stock in the Company is not, by itself, considered an “interference”
with independence under the committee charters. Family shareholders or other family member directors are not
eligible for membership on the Audit Committee. These independence standards are disclosed on our website at
htip/fwww levistrauss.com/Company/DirectorIndependence.aspx

Each of our Directors except for John Anderson, who serves as our full-time President and Chief Executive
Officer, meets these standards of independence.

Item 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

Engagement of the independent registered public accounting firm.  The audit committee is responsible for
approving every engagement of our independent registered public accounting firm to perform audit or non-audit
services for us before being engaged to provide those services. The audit committee’s pre-approval policy provides
as follows:

+ First, once a year when the base audit engagement is reviewed and approved, management will identify all
other services (including fee ranges) for which management knows it will engage our independent registered
public accounting firm for the next 12 months. Those services typically include quarterly reviews, employee
benefit plan reviews, specified tax matters, certifications to the lenders as required by financing documents,
consultation on new accounting and disclosure standards and, in future years, reporting on management’s
internal controls assessment.

* Second, if any new proposed engagement comes up during the year that was not pre-approved by the audit
committee as discussed above, the engagement will require: (i) specific approval of the chief financial
officer and corporate controller (including confirming with counsel permissibility under applicable laws and
evaluating potential impact on independence) and, if approved by management, (ii) approval of the audit
committee.

* Third, the chair of the audit committee will have the authority to give such approval, but may seek full audit
committee input and approval in specific cases as he or she may determine.

Auditor fees.  The following table shows fees billed to or incurred by us for professional services rendered by
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLC, our independent registered public accounting {irm during 2007 and KPMG LLF, our
independent registered public accounting firm during part of 2007 and 2006:

Year Ended Year Ended
November 25, November 26,
2007 2006

(Dollars in thousands)

Services provided:

Audit fees' L $3,921 $4.,960
Audit-related fees™ .. 955 490
T S ETVICES .« v vt ittt e e e — 40

Total fees. . .. ... $4.876 $5,490

(1) Includes fees for the audit of our annual conselidated financial statements, quarterly reviews of interim consoliduted financial statements and
statutory audits.

(2) Principally comprised of fees related to quality assurance in connection with our implementation of an SAP enterprise rescurce planning
system, the audit of our benefit plans and Sarbanes-Oxley Section 404 planning in 2007 and the audit of our benefit plans. Sarbanes-Oxley
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Section 404 planning and services provided related to our debt refinancing activities tn 2006.

(3) Does not include fees of $0.1 million to KPMG LLP in connection with the auditor transition and other miscellaneous charges in 2007.

Change in principal independent accoumtants.  On February 5, 2007, we informed KPMG LLP that they
would be dismissed as our principal independent accountants effective upon the completion of their audit of our
financial statements as of and for the fiscal year ended November 26, 2006, and the issuance of their report thereon.
On February 9, 2007, we engaged PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as our new principal independent accountants.
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PART IV

Item 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

List the following documents filed as a part of the report:

1. Financial Statements
The following consolidated financial statements of the Company are included in Item 8§:
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
Consolidated Balance Sheets
Consolidated Statements of Income
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders™ Deficit
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2. Financial Statement Schedule
Schedule 1l — Valuation and Qualifying Accounts

All other schedules have been omitted because they are inapplicable, not required or the information is
included in the Consolidated Financial Statements or Notes thereto.

Exhibits
3.1 Restated Certificate of Incorporation. Previously filed as Exhibit 3.3 to Registrant’s Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q filed with the Commission on April 6, 2001.

3.2 Amended and Restated By-Laws. Previously filed as Exhibit 3.1 to Registrant’s Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q) filed with the Commission on July 12, 2005.

4.1 Fiscal Agency Agreement, dated November 21, 1996, between the Registrant and Citibank, N.A., relating
to ¥20 billien 4.25% bonds due 2016. Previously filed as Exhibit 4.2 to Registrant’s Registration
Statement on Form S-4 filed with the Commission on May 4, 2000.

4.2 Indenture relating to 12.25% Senior Notes due 2012, dated December 4, 2002, between the Registrant and
Wilmington Trust Company, as trustee. Previously filed as Exhibit 4.16 to Registrant’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K filed with the Commission on February 12, 2003,

43 First Supplemental Indenture relating to 12.25% Senior Notes due 2012, dated October 11, 2007, between
the Registrant and Wilmington Trust Company, as trustee, Previously filed as Exhibit 4.1 to Registrant’s
Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commission on October 12, 2007.

44 Indenture relating to 9.75% Senior Notes due 2015, dated of December 22, 2004, between the Registrant
and Wilmington Trust Company, as trustee. Previously filed as Exhibit 4.1 to Registrant’s Current Report
on Form 8-K filed with the Commission on December 23, 2004.

4.5 Indenture relating to the 8.625% Senior Notes due 2013, dated March 11, 2005, between the Registrant
and Wilmington Trust Company, as trustee. Previously filed as Exhibit 4.2 (o Registrant’s Current Report
on Form 8-K filed with the Commission on March 11, 2005.
4.6  First Supplemental Indenture relating to the 8.625% Senior Notes due 2013, dated March 11, 2005,
between the Registrant and Wilmington Trust Company, as trustee. Previously filed as Exhibit 4.4 to
Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commission on March 11, 2005,
4.7 Indenture relating to the 8.875% Senior Notes due 2016, dated as of March 17, 2006, between the
Registrant and Wilmington Trust Company, as trustee. Previously filed as Exhibit 4,1 to the Registrant’s
‘ Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commission on March 17, 2006.
4.8 Voting Trust Agreement, dated April 15, 1996, among LSAI Holding Corp. (predecessor of the
‘ Registrant), Robert D. Haas, Peter E. Haas, Sr.. Peter E. Haas, Jr, . Warren Hellman, as voting

trustees, and the stockholders. Previously filed as Exhibit 9 to Registrant’s Registration Statement on
Form S-4 filed with the Commission on May 4, 2000.
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Exhibits

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7

10.8

10.9

10.10

10.11

10.12

10.13

10.14
10.15
10.16

10.17

10.18

Stockholders Agreement. dated Aprt 15, 1996, among LSAI Holding Corp. (predecessor of the
Registrant) and the stockholders. Previously filed as Exhibit 10.1 to Registrant’s Registration
Statement on Form S-4 filed with the Commission on May 4, 2000.

First Amended and Restated Credit Agreement. dated May 18, 2006. among the Financial Institutions

. named therein as the Lenders and, Bank of America, N.A. as the Agent and Sole Syndication Agent, and

the Registrant and Levi Strauss Financial Center Corporation as the Borrowers. General Electric Capital
Corporation, Wells Fargo Foothill, LLLC and JP Morgan Chase Bank as Co-Documentation Agents and
Banc of America Securities LLC as Sole Lead Arranger and Sole Book Manager. Previously filed as
Exhibit 10.1 to Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated and filed with the Commission on May 22,
2006,

First Amended and Restated Pledge and Security Agreement, dated May 18, 2006, between the
Registrant, certain Subsidiaries of the Registrant, and Bank of America, N.A. as Agent. Previously
filed as Exhibit 10.2 10 Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated and filed with the Commission on
May 22, 2006.

Subsidiary Guaranty, dated September 29, 2003, entered into by certain Subsidiaries of the Registrant, and
Bank of America, N.A. as Agent. Previously filed as Exhibit 99.5 to Registrant’s Current Report on
Form 8-K dated and filed with the Commission on October 14, 2003,

Supply Agreement, dated March 30, 1992, and First Amendment to Supply Agreement, between the
Registrant and Cone Mills Corporation. Previously filed as Exhibit 10.18 to Registrant’s Registration
Statement on Form S-4 filed with the Commission on May 4, 2000.

Second Amendment to Supply Agreement dated May 13, 2002, between the Registrant and Cone Mills
Corporation dated as of March 30, 1992, Previously filed as Exhibit 10.1 to Registrant’s Quarterly Report
on Form 10-Q/A filed with the Commission on September 19, 2002.

Deferred Compensation Plan for Executives. Previously filed as Exhibit 10.25 to Registrant’s Registration
Statement on Form S-4 filed with the Commission on May 4, 2000.*

Amendment to Deferred Compensation Plan for Executives effective March 1, 2000. Previously filed as
Exhibit 10.42 to Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the Commission on February 3,
2001.*

Amendment to Deferred Compensation Plan for Executives effective August 1. 2000. Previously filed as
Exhibit 10.45 to Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the Commission on February 5,
2001.*

Deferred Compensation Plan for Quiside Directors. Previously filed as Exhibit i0.26 to Registrant’s
Registration Statement on Form S-4 filed with the Commission on May 4, 2000.*

Deferred Compensation Plan for Executives and Outside Directors, effective January 1, 2003, Previously
filed as Exhibit 10.64 to Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the Commission on
Februury 12, 2003.*

First Amendment to Deferred Compensation Plan for Executives and QOutside Directors, dated
November 17, 2003. Previously filed as Exhibit 10.69 to the Registrant’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K filed with the Commission on March 1, 2004.#

Second Amendment to Deferred Compensation Plan for Executives and Outside Directors, effective
January 1, 2005. Previously filed as Exhibit 10.1 to Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed with
the Commission on October 12, 2004.*

Executive Severance Plan effective May 1, 2004. Filed herewith.

Executive Severance Plan effective January 16, 2008. Previously filed as Exhibit 10.1 to Registrant’s
Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commission on January 23, 2008.

Excess Benefit Restoration Plan. Previously filed as Exhibit 10.27 to Registrant’s Registration Statement
on Form S-4 filed with the Commission on May 4, 2000.*

Supplementa! Benefit Restoration Plan. Previously filed as Exhibit 10.28 to Registrant’s Registrution
Statement on Form §-4 filed with the Commission on May 4. 2000.*

Amendment to Supplemental Benefit Restoration Plan effective January 1, 2001. Previously filed as
Exhibit 10.47 to Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the Commission on February 5,
2001.*
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Exhibits
10,19

10.20
10.21
10.22

10.23

10.24

10.29

10.30

10.31

10.32

10.33

10.34

10.35

10.36

Annual Incentive Plan, effective November 29, 2004. Previously filed as Exhibit 10.5 10 Registrant’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed with the Commission on July 12, 2005.*

Senior Executive Long Term Incentive Plan, effective November 29, 2004. Previously filed as Exhibit 10.4
to Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed with the Commission on July 12, 2005.*

2006 Equity Incentive Plan. Previously filed as Exhibit 99.1 to Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K
filed with the Commission on fuly 19, 2006.*

Form of stock appreciation right award agreement. Previously filed as Exhibit 99.2 to Registrant’s Current
Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commission on Julty 19, 2006.*

Rabbi Trust Agreement, effective January 1, 2003, between the Registrant and Boston Safe Deposit and
Trust Company. Previously filed as Exhibit 10.65 to Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with
the Commission on February 12, 2003.#

Offer Letter, dated March 24, 2003, between the Registrant and Hans Ploos van Amstel summarizing the
terms of Mr. Ploos van Amstel’s employment as Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of the
Registrant. Previously filed as Exhibit 10.2 to Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed with the
Commission on April 12, 2005.*

Letter of December 18, 2006, to Hans Ploos van Amstel. Previously filed with the Commission on
December 22, 2006.*

Offer Letter, dated May 13, 2005, between the Registrant and John Goodman. Previously filed as
Exhibit 10.1 to Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed with the Commission on July 12, 2005.*

Memorandum. dated July 8, 2005, summarizing the terms of Robert D. Haas’ role as Chairman of the
Board of the Registrant. Previously filed as Exhibit 10.3 to Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q
filed with the Commission on July 12, 2005.*

Employment Agreement, dated as of September 30, 1999, between the Registrant and Philip Marineau.
Previously filed as Exhibit 10.33 to Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-4 filed with the
Commission on May 4, 2000.*

Letter Agreement, dated July 5, 2006, between the Registrant and Philip A. Marineau. Previously filed as
Exhibit 10.3 to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed with the Commission on July 11,
2006.

Offer letter dated October 17, 2006. from the Registrant to John Anderson. Previously filed as Exhibit 99.1
to Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commission on October 27, 2006.*

Amendment of November 28, 2006, to offer letter dated October 17, 2006, from the Registrant to John
Anderson. Previously filed as Exhibit 99.1 to Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the
Commission on November 30, 2006.*

Limited Waiver dated as of March 1, 2007, by and among Levi Strauss & Co., the financial institutions
listed therein and Bank of America, N.A. as agent for lenders. Previously filed as Exhibit 99.1 to
Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commission on March 2, 2007.

Term Loan Agreement, dated as of March 27, 2007, among Levi Strauss & Co., the lenders and other
financial institutions party thereto and Bank of America, N.A. as administrative agent. Previously filed as
Exhibit 99.1 to Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commission on March 30, 2007,

Employment Contract and related agreements, dated as of February 23, 2007, between Armin Broger and
Levi Strauss Nederland B.V. and various affiliates. Previously filed as Exhibit 10.3 to Registrant’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed with the Commission on April 10, 2007.*

Second Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dated October 11, 2007, among Levi Strauss & Co.,
Levi Strauss Financial Center Corporation. the financial institutions party thereto and Bank of America,
N.A.. as agent, to the First Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dated May 18, 2006, between Levi
Strauss & Co.. Levi Strauss Financial Center Corporation, the financial institutions party thereto and Bank
of America, N.A,, as agent. Previously filed as Exhibit 10.1 to Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K
filed with the Commission on Qctober 12, 2007.

"Second Amended and Restated Pledge and Security Agreement, dated October 11, 2007, by Levi

Strauss & Co. and certain subsidiaries of Levi Strauss & Co. in favor of the agent. Previously filed as
Exhibit 10.2 to Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commission on October 12, 2007.
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Exhibits

10.37

10.38

12

14.1

14.2

21
23
24
311

31.2

32

Trademark Security Agreement, dated October 11, 2007, by Levi Strauss & Co. in favor of the agent.
Previously filed as Exhibit 10.3 to Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commission on
October 12, 2007.

First Amended and Restated Subsidiary Guaranty, dated October 11, 2007, by certain subsidiaries of Levi
Strauss & Co. in favor of the agent. Previously filed as Exhibit 10.4 to Registrant’s Current Report on
Form 8-K filed with the Commission on October 12, 2007.

Statements re: Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges. Filed herewith.

Worldwide Code of Business Conduct of Registrant. Previously filed as Exhibit 14 to the Registrant’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the Commission on March 1, 2004,

Amendment to Worldwide Code of Business Conduct of Registrant. Previously filed as Exhibit 14.2 to the
Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the Commission on February 17, 2005.
Subsidiaries of the Registrant. Filed herewith.

Consent of KPMG LLP. Filed herewith.

Power of Attorney. Contained in signature pages hereto.

Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, Filed
herewith.

Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. Fited
herewith.

Cenrtification of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 18 U.S.C. 1350,
as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, Furnished herewith.

* Management contract, compensatory plar or arrangement.
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LEVI STRAUSS & CO. AND SUBSIDIARIES
VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

November 25, 2007. . ... ... ... . .. .
November 26, 2006. .. ... . ... ... .. ... .....
November 27, 2005. . . ... .. ... .

Sales Returns

November 25, 2007. ... ... ... .. ... ... .. ... ...
November 26, 2006. ... ...... ... ... ........
November 27, 2005. . .. .. ... ... . . . .. ..

Sales Discounts and Tncentives

November 25, 2007

November 26, 2006 . ... .. e
November 27, 2005

Valuation Allowance Against Deferred
Deferred Tax Assets

November 25, 2007 ... ..., .. .. ..
November 26,2006 .. ......... .. .. .. ........
November 27,2005 .. ... ... . ... ... .. ... .....

Balance at

Additions
Charged 10/

SCHEDULE HII

Balance at

Beginning (Recoveries of) End of
of Period Expenses Deductions'” Period
(Dollars in thousands)
$17,998 $ 542 $3,735 $14,805
$26,550 $(1,021) $7,531 $17,998
$29.002 $ 4,858 $7.310 $26,550
Balance at Additions Balance at
Beginning Charged to End of
of Period Net Sales Deductions'" Period
(Dollars in thousands)
$29,888 $130,707 $106,100 $54,495
518,418 $110,740 $ 99,270 $29,888
514,429 $ 92,502 % 88,513 318,418
Balance at Additions Balance at
Beginning Charged to End of
of Period Net Sales Deductions'" Period
(Dollars in thousands)
$84,102 $319,315 $296,802 $106,615
$77,480 $242,654 $236,032 $ 84,102
$80,236 $233,346 $236,102 $ 77,480
Balance at Charges/ Balance at
Beginning (Releases) to End of
of Period Tax Expense Deductions'" Period
{Dollars in thousands)
$326,881 $(206,830) $ 46,455 $ 73,596
$303,273 $ (28,729) $(52,337)  $326,881
$386,683 § (62,432) $ 20,978 $303,273

(1) The charges to the accounts are for the purposes for which the allowances were created.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has
duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

Date: February 12, 2008

LEVI STRAUSS & CO.

By: s/ Hans PLoos VAN AMSTEL

Hans Ploos van Amstel
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

KNOWALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each person whose signature appears below constitutes
and appoints Hans Ploos van Amsiel, Heidi L. Manes, and Hilary K. Krane and each of them, his or her
attorney-in-fact with power of substitution for him or her in any and all capacities, to sign any amendments,
supplements or other documents relating to this Annual Report on Form 10-K he or she deems necessary or
appropriate, and to file the same, with exhibits thereto, and other documents in connection therewith, with the
Securities and Exchange Commission, hereby ratifying and confirming all that such attorney-in-fact or their
substitute may do or cause to be done by virtue hereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the
following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature

/s! T. Gary ROGERS

T. Gary Rogers

/s R. JOHN ANDERSON

R. John Anderson

fs/  Rosert D. Haas

Robert D. Haas

/s/  PETER A. GEORGESCU

Peter A. Georgescu

fs/ Perer E. Haas, Ir

Peter E. Haas, Jr.

/s/ F. WARREN HELLMAN

F. Warren Hellman

/s/ LEeow J. LEVEL

Leon J. Level

/s/ PaTrRICIA SALAS PINEDA

Patricia Salas Pineda

Title

Chairman of the Board

Director, President and Chief

Executive Officer

Director, Chairman Emeritus

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director
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Date

Date:

Date:

Date:

Date:

Date:

Date;

Date:

: February 12, 2008

February 12, 2008

February 12, 2008

February 12, 2008

February 12, 2008

February 12, 2008

Februarv 12, 2008

February 12, 2008



Signature

Is!  Vanessa CASTAGNA

Vanessa Castagna

Is/  STEPHEN NEAL

Stephen Neal

/s/ Hem L. Mangs

Heidi L. Manes

Title

Director

Director

Vice President and Controller
(Principal Accounting Officer)
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Date: February 12, 2008

Date: February 12, 2008

Date: February 12, 2008




SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION

We will furnish our 2007 annual report to our voting trust certificate holders after the filing of this Form 10-K
and will furnish copies of such material to the SEC at such time.

[EXHIBIT INDEX AND CERTAIN EXHIBITS INTENTIONALLY OMITTED)|
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Exhibit 23

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Stockholders and Board of Directors
Levi Strauss & Co.:

We consent to the inclusion in the Annual Report on Form 10-K of Levi Strauss & Co. of our report dated February 12, 2007,
except as to the 2006 and 2005 data in Note 19, which is as of February 11, 2008, with respect to the consolidated balance
sheet of Levi Strauss & Co. as of November 26, 2006, and the related consolidated statements of income, stockholders’

deficit and comprehensive income, and cash flows for each of the years in the two-year period ended November 26, 2006,
and the related financial statement schedule.

/sf KPMG LLP

San Francisco, California
February 11, 2008




Exhibhit 31.1

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT

I, R. John Anderson, certify that:
1. T have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Levi Strauss & Co.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state
a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements
were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report,
fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as
of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15e and 15d-15e) for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures
to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in
which this report is being prepared,

b) [Paragraph omitted pursuant to SEC Release Nos. 33-8238; 34-47986];

¢} Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this
report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the
period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an
annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting;

5. The registrant’s other certifying officers and [ have disclosed, based on our most recent evalvation of
internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit commirtee of registrant’s board of
directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over
financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process,
summarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

/s/  R. JoHN ANDERSON

R. John Anderson
President and Chief Executive Officer

Date: February 12, 2008



Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF SARBANES-OXLEY ACT

I, Hans Ploos van Amstel, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Levi Strauss & Co.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state
a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements
were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report,
fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as
of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15e and 15d-15¢) for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures
to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in
which this report is being prepared;

b} [Paragraph omitted pursuant to SEC Release Nos. 33-8238; 34-47986];

¢) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this
report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the
period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d} Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an
annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting;

5. The registrant’s other certifying officers and 1 have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of
internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of
directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over
financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process,
summarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s intemal control over financial reporting.

/s  Hans PLoos van AMSTEL

Hans Ploos van Amstel
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Date: February 12, 2008




Exhibit 32

CERTIFICATION BY THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

This certification is not to be deemed filed pursuant to the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and
does not constitute a part of the Annual Report of Levi Strauss & Co., a Delaware corporation (the “Company”), on
Form 10-K for the period ended November 25, 2007, as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the
date hereof (the “Report™),

In connection with the Report, each of the undersigned officers of the Company does hereby certify, pursuant
to 18 U.5.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934 and

2. The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition
and results of operations of the Company as of, and for, the periods presented in the Report.

/s/ R, JOHN ANDERSON

R. John Anderson

President

and Chief Executive Officer
February 12, 2008

/s/  Hans PLoos VAN AMSTEL

Hans Ploos van Amstel
Senior Vice President

and Chief Financial Officer
February 12, 2008
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